
 

 

 

AGENDA 

CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN  

PLANNING COMMISSION – REGULAR MEETING 

November 26, 2018 7PM 

1. CALL MEETING TO ORDER 

2. PUBLIC REMARKS 

3. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

4. APPROVAL OF MINUTES   

A. November 5, 2018 Regular Meeting 

 

5. COMMUNICATIONS 

 A. Sheila Zwiesele RE: Planned Unit Development #18014 

 B. Suzanne Ferris RE: Special Use Permit #18081 

 C. Cecelia Kramer RE: Special Use Permit #18081 

 D. Michael Casby RE: Planned Unit Development #18014 

 E. Cecelia Kramer RE: Special Use Permit #18081 

 F. Chris Weiss RE: Special Use Permit #18111  

G. Kathy & Larry McCurdy RE: Rezoning #18120 

 H. Catherine & Chris Cleveland RE: MUPUD #18044  

 I. Jessi Adler RE: Special Use Permit #18101 

J. Alice Cardy RE: Special Use Permit #18081 

 K. Carol Weaver RE: Special Use Permit #18111 

   

 6. PUBLIC HEARINGS 

A. Special Use Permit #18101 (Green Castle Properties LLC), construct 23,094 

square foot new car dealership at 1614 & 1622 Grand River Avenue. 

B. Special Use Permit #18111 (Fedewa Holdings), construct two multiple 

family apartment buildings with a total of 15 units at 1730 Chief Okemos 

Circle. 

 

7. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

A Mixed Use Planned Unit Development #18044 (Newton Pointe LLC), 

establish Newton Park mixed use planned unit development (MUPUD) 

project consisting of 19,367 square feet of commercial space and 218 

residential units at 6276 Newton Road. 

B. Special Use Permit #18091 (Newton Pointe LLC), construct group of 

buildings greater than 25,000 square feet in size (approximately 264,684 

total square feet) at 6276 Newton Road . 

 

8. OTHER BUSINESS 

A. Commission Review #18133 (Meridian Township), Section 61 Review for 

land preservation purchase located north of Biber Street, east of Towar 

Avenue (Tax ID #06-226-001). 

 

9. TOWNSHIP BOARD, PLANNING COMMISSION OFFICER, COMMITTEE CHAIR, AND 

STAFF COMMENTS OR REPORTS 

 

 



AGENDA page 2 

CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN  

PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING 

November 26, 2018 7:00 pm 

 

Individuals with disabilities requiring auxiliary aids or services should contact: Principal Planner Peter Menser, 5151 Marsh Road, 

Okemos, MI 48864 or 517.853.4576 - Ten Day Notice is Required.  

Meeting Location: 5151 Marsh Road, Okemos, Ml 48864 Township Hall 

 

Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community. 

 

10. PROJECT UPDATES 

A. New Applications - NONE  

B. Site Plans Received - NONE 

C. Site Plans Approved - NONE 

 

11. PUBLIC REMARKS 

12. ADJOURNMENT 

 

TENTATIVE PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA 

 

December 10, 2018 

  

1. PUBLIC HEARINGS 

A. Rezoning #18140 (Thomas M. Hitch), rezone approximately 2.87 acres 

located at 2530 & 2540 Jolly Road from RA (Single Family-Medium Density) 

to PO (Professional and Office) 

B. Rezoning #18150 (Meridian Township), rezone the south four acres of 

Parcel I.D. #21-226-011 from RDD (Multiple Family) to C-3 (Commercial), 

located on the east side of Okemos Road, south of Central Park Drive. 

 

2. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

A. Special Use Permit #18081 (Lafontaine Automotive Group), construct new 

car dealership located at 1492, 1478, 1476, and 1448 Grand River Avenue. 

B. Special Use Permit #18101 (Green Castle Properties LLC), construct 24,969 

square foot new car dealership at 1614 & 1622 Grand River Avenue. 

C. Special Use Permit #18111 (Fedewa Holdings), construct two multiple 

family apartment buildings with a total of 15 units at 1730 Chief Okemos 

Circle. 

 

 3. OTHER BUSINESS - NONE 

 

 

 

 

 



 

CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN 

PLANNING COMMISSION  

REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 

 

November 5, 2018 

5151 Marsh Road, Okemos, MI 48864-1198 

517-853-4560, Town Hall Room, 7:00 P.M. 

 

PRESENT: Commissioners Premoe, Trezise, Cordill, Scott-Craig, Ianni, Stivers, Richards, 

and Lane 

ABSENT: Commissioner Shrewsbury 

STAFF: Director of Community Planning & Development Mark Kieselbach, Principal 

Planner Peter Menser, Economic Development Director Chris Buck. 

 

1.    Call meeting to order 

 

Chair Ianni called the regular meeting to order at 7:00 P.M.  

 

2.  Public Remarks 

 

A. Cecelia Kramer, 4560 Oakwood, spoke in opposition to Special Use Permit #18081. 

B. Betty Casby, 5624 Creekwood Lane, spoke in opposition to Planned Unit Development 

#18014. 

C. Mike Casby, 5624 Creekwood Lane, spoke in opposition to Planned Unit Development 

#18014. 

D. Christine Coady, 5639 Creekwood Lane, spoke in opposition to Planned Unit Development 

#18014. 

E. Sheila Saliganan, 5648 Creekwood Lane, spoke in opposition to Planned Unit Development 

#18014. 

F. Joshua Morey, 5609 Creekwood Lane, spoke in opposition to Planned Unit Development 

#18014. 

G. Craig Phillipich, 5594 Creekwood Lane, spoke in opposition to Planned Unit Development 

#18014. 

H. Brian Dyke, 486 Haslett Road, spoke in opposition to Planned Unit Development #18014. 

I. Kristen Hood, 5636 Creekwood Lane, spoke in opposition to Planned Unit Development 

#18014. 

J. Ari Adler, 1580 Hillside Drive, spoke in opposition to Special Use Permit #18081. 

K. Denise Kane, 5600 Creekwood Lane, spoke in opposition to Planned Unit Development 

#18014. 

L. Quenda Story, 4526 Marlborough, spoke in opposition to Special Use Permit #18081. 

M. Gary Laundroche, 4000 West Highland Road, introduced himself as the applicant from 

LaFontaine Automotive Group. 

N. Lorraine Cook, 5654 Creekwood Lane, spoke in opposition to Planned Unit Development 

#18014. 

O. Amy Garcia, 5603 Creekwood Lane, spoke in opposition to Planned Unit Development 

#18014. 

P. John Garcia, 5603 Creekwood Lane, spoke in opposition to Planned Unit Development 

#18014. 

  

DRAFT 



Planning Commission Regular Meeting Minutes Draft 

November 5, 2018 

Page 2 
 

3.  Approval of Agenda 

 

Commissioner Premoe moved to approve the agenda as written. 

Supported by Commissioner Scott-Craig.    

VOICE VOTE: Motion approved unanimously.  

 

4.  Approval of Minutes 

 

 A. September 24, 2018 Regular Meeting 

 B. October 8, 2018 Regular Meeting 

 C. October 22, 2018 Regular Meeting 

 

Commissioner Cordill moved to approve the three sets of minutes as written. 

Seconded by Commissioner Richards. 

VOICE VOTE:  Motion approved unanimously. 

 

5.  Communications 

 

Principal Planner Menser noted five additional communications were received after the Planning 

Commission meeting packets were assembled.  He further noted that hard copies of the 

communications were distributed to the Planning Commission at their places on the dais prior to 

tonight’s meeting and would be included on the agenda for the November 26, 2018 Planning 

Commission Meeting. 

 

6.  Public Hearings 

 

Chair Ianni opened the public hearing at 7:44 P.M. 

 

A. Special Use Permit #18081 (Lafontaine Automotive Group), construct new car dealership 

located at 1492, 1478, 1476, and 1448 Grand River Avenue. 

 

Principal Planner Menser provided a brief summary of the staff report. 

 

The applicant, Gary Laundroche, 4000 West Highland Road and owner, Ryan Lafontaine, 4000 West 

Highland Road, Lafontaine Automotive Group provided a presentation and announced they were 

available to answer questions.   

 

Public Comments: None 

 

Planning Commission Discussion: 

 

Commissioner Scott-Craig asked about the future proposal on the west side of Powell Road.  He also 

expressed concerns with Danielle’s Drain and suggested the applicant work with the Ingham 

County Drain Commission to collaborate efforts to address the drainage before the second phase of 

the project begins.  Commissioner Scott-Craig also commented on the concern of protecting trees 

and providing a more appealing “green” view when driving on Grand River past the proposed 

dealership. 

 



Planning Commission Regular Meeting Minutes Draft 

November 5, 2018 

Page 3 
 

Commissioner Trezise asked how many parking spaces would be on the site and Gary Laundroche 

replied a total of 373. 

 

Commissioner Premoe asked the applicant about storm water and how they planned to address the 

issue. 

 

Commissioner Cordill stated her concerns regarding future traffic flow and turning lanes in this 

busy area. She also asked about the dealership hours of operation and how many employees the 

dealership would be hiring when in full operation. 

 

Commissioner Stivers expressed her appreciation to the applicant for listening to residents and 

addressing their concerns at a recent meeting.  

 

Principal Planner Menser noted the Commissioners need to express special conditions (such as 

buffers and tree preservation) if they are to be added to the Special Use Permit.   

 

Commissioner Trezise stated he would like to see the greenspace buffer off Grand River retaining a 

40 foot minimum in the Greenspace Plan. 

 

A straw poll conducted by Chair Ianni indicated the Planning Commission would like to add Special 

User Permit #18081 for action at the November 26, 2018 meeting. 

 

Chair Ianni closed the public hearing at 8:36 P.M.  

 

The Planning Commission took a ten minute recess. 

 

B. Mixed Use Planned Unit Development #18044 (Newton Pointe LLC), establish Newton Park 

mixed use planned unit development (MUPUD) project consisting of 19,367 square feet of 

commercial space and 218 residential units at 6276 Newton Road. 

 

C. Special Use Permit #18091 (Newton Pointe LLC), construct group of buildings greater than 
25,000 square feet in size (approximately 264,684 total square feet) at 6276 Newton Road. 

 

Chair Ianni opened the public hearing at 8:45 P.M.  

 

Principal Planner Menser stated they were going to combine 6.B and 6.C agenda items and outlined 

the projects from Newton Pointe LLC for discussion.  He also mentioned the rezoning from 2006 

greatly influences the design of the site relating the uses and types. 

 

Applicant presenters, Raji Uppal and Chuck Holman with DTN Management Company reviewed the 

plans for the site and were available for questions. 

 

Public Comments: 

 

A. John Garcia, 5603 Creekwood Lane, had a question regarding site access.   

B. Jerry Fedewa, 5570 Okemos Road, questioned the residential setbacks for the Sierra Ridge 

Development which backs up to the proposed development of Newton Pointe LLC.  He is in 

favor of Newton Pointe LLC but would like to see a 100 foot buffer between the residential 

and commercial property. 



Planning Commission Regular Meeting Minutes Draft 

November 5, 2018 

Page 4 
 

 

Planning Commission Discussion: 

 

Commissioner Scott-Craig suggested the developers work with MDOT for further evaluation of 

traffic flow in this area.  The traffic studies for the demographics involved in the area raise many 

concerns.  Commissioner Scott-Craig also expressed concerns (safety and noise) for the proposed 

building C-7 being too close to M-78/Saginaw Highway and would prefer to see it removed and 

replacing it with green space.  He also added that by reducing the amount of ten-unit apartment 

buildings from ten to nine perhaps that would allow for more flexibility in building plans.  

 

A straw poll conducted by Chair Ianni indicated the Planning Commission would like to have a 

resolution to approve the Mixed Use Planned Unit Development #18044 and Special Use Permit 

#18091 at the next meeting.  

 

Chair Ianni closed the public hearing at 9:36 P.M.  

 

7.  Unfinished Business 

 

A. Planned Unit Development #18014 (Haslett Road LLC), develop Copper Creek PUD 

consisting of 88 single family homes on 44 acres located on the north side of Haslett Road, 

east of Creekwood Lane. 

 

Commissioner Lane moved to adopt the resolution recommending approval of Planned Unit 

Development #18014 as outlined in the resolution. 

Supported by Commissioner Richards. 

 

VOICE VOTE: 

YEAS:  Commissioners Lane, Richards, Premoe, Trezise, Scott-Craig and Chair Ianni 

NAYS:  Commissioners Stivers and Cordill 

MOTION CARRIED:  6-2 

 

8.  Other Business- None 

  

9. Township Board, Planning Commission Officer, Committee Chair, and staff comments or 

Reports 

 

Commissioner Scott-Craig noted a Redevelopment Ready Certification Ceremony being held on 

Friday, November 16, 2018 at 3 P.M.  at the Okemos Elevations Community Room on Jolly Oak Road.  

 

Commissioner Stivers attended the Downtown Development Authority meeting this morning and had 

an ongoing discussion on the tax capture plan.  The Planning Commission is being asked to review the 

downtown area when reviewing the section for the Master Plan because there are a couple parcels 

that are listed as residential and should be changed to commercial so the map is accurate. 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Planning Commission Regular Meeting Minutes Draft 

November 5, 2018 

Page 5 
 

10.  Project Updates 

 

A. New Applications – NONE 

B. Site Plans Received 

1. Site Plan Review #18-09 (Affinity 9), construct 4,534 square foot Panera restaurant 

with drive-through window at 2080 Grand River Avenue. 

C. Site Plans Approved- NONE 

 

11.  Public Remarks 

 

A. Randy Kindy, 5642 Creekwood Lane, spoke in opposition to Planned Unit Development 

#18014. 

 

12.  Adjournment 

 

Commissioner Cordill moved to adjourn the meeting. 

Supported by Commissioner Richards. 

VOICE VOTE: Motion carried unanimously.   

 

Chair Ianni adjourned the regular meeting at 9:55 P.M. 

 

Respectfully Submitted, 

 

Debbie Budzynski  

Recording Secretary 



1

Peter Menser

From: Sheila Zwiesele <sczwiese@gmail.com>

Sent: Saturday, November 03, 2018 9:21 PM

To: Peter Menser

Subject: Letter for 11-5-18 meeting re: Copper Creek PUD

Dear Peter,  
We would like to officially submit the letter below for the upcoming planning committee meeting on Monday 11-
5-18. May you please see that it gets added to the meeting materials? 
Thank you 
Sheila 
 
 
We are again writing regarding the planned unit development proposal for Copper Creek. 
 
We live in the Wood Ridge subdivision, directly adjacent to the proposed Copper Creek development. Our 
home at 5648 Creekwood Lane is one that is in closest proximity to the proposed units at the NW corner of the 
development. As you know from your review of previously submitted materials, the developer's initial proposal 
suggested zero setbacks between our abutting properties, which we and several other neighbors as well as 
planning committee members felt was inappropriate. We advocated for increased setbacks and preservation of 
the natural wooded border along the West boundary of their property. After several revisions, there is now a 
proposed 75 foot buffer between our properties. While we would ideally prefer even more separation, this 
seems to be a minimum acceptable compromise to both parties which at the very least must be upheld. As 
revisions are seemingly still being made to the proposed development, we felt compelled to again bring this to 
your attention so that our prior progress is not undone.  
 
While progress has been made in one area, there is another that demands our attention. The proposed 
connection between Wood Ridge subdivision and Copper Creek via Wood Knoll Drive (and subsequently 
Creekwood Lane) is unsafe, unsuitable, and undesirable for the following reasons: 
 

• One neighborhood should not serve as an entrance for another 
• There is severely limited sight distance at the intersection of Creekwood Lane and Haslett Road, which 

will only become more dangerous with increased traffic through our neighborhood 
• Creekwood Lane is a narrow road that becomes a single lane when cars are parked along the curbs, 

and cannot accommodate increased traffic flow 
• A safer alternative exists. The developer has the option to build a road on the East end of their property 

since they have future plans to expand that way further. This would satisfy the fire code requirements 
for access and eliminate the unnecessary shortcut through an existing subdivision 

• The proposed connection will destroy a protected wetland area, which raises additional concerns for 
drainage and wildlife displacement 

• The connection would negatively impact the safety and quality of life of the current residents of the 
Wood Ridge subdivision  

 
We would like to elaborate on the last point and provide some perspective. Creekwood Lane is a single access 
dead-end cul-de-sac with only 25 houses. This fosters a sense of security,  charm, and close knit community 
which current residents have come to love. Our children play outside, we look out for each other, and we enjoy 
coming home to a quiet and peaceful neighborhood. In fact, this is what drew us to buy a house here. We love 
living in Haslett and we want future residents to as well, but not by compromising what we love in the first 
place.  
 



2

Based on the initial concept plan, the developers are eventually planning to build 350+ units. It is unreasonable 
to consider connecting our small established neighborhood to one that is OVER 14 TIMES its size and 
comprised of newly constructed units with different zoning requirements. This proposed connection raises 
concerns for our safety,  home value, quality of life, and environmental impacts. The current residents of Wood 
Ridge subdivision have continuously and unanimously voiced these objections even when the connection was 
planned as an emergency access only in earlier proposals. Despite our concerns, the developers proceeded to 
propose a full vehicular connection via Wood Knoll Drive/Creekwood Lane, which we strongly oppose. We 
urge the planning committee to take these concerns seriously and advocate for the current residents rather 
than appease the requests of a new developer at our expense.  
 
Thank you for your time and consideration.  
 
Sheila and Daryl Saliganan 
5648 Creekwood Lane, Haslett MI 48840 



1

Peter Menser

From: Suzanne Ferris <marecksmf@gmail.com>

Sent: Sunday, November 04, 2018 5:17 PM

To: Mark Kieselbach; Peter Menser; Brett Dreyfus

Subject: Proposed car dealership

Dear Planning Commission Committee, 

As an owner of a condo in the 1563 West Pond Drive building, I am very opposed to this special use to 

LaFontaine Automotive Group. I have serious concerns. How would this development impact the drainage? 

Will the pond located on Waldon Ponds property have to be enlarged? Especially with the exceptionally large 

parking lots that are a part of a dealership drainage is definitely a concern. 

In addition to the drainage, light and noise pollution and increased traffic are generally another issue that comes 

to mind. How would all this be addressed so as to not affect our generally quiet calm area?  

I'm not opposed to this area being developed, but I think a dealership is not an appropriate development at this 

time.  

Sincerely, 

Suzanne Ferris 







1

Peter Menser

From: M.W. Casby <casbymw@yahoo.com>

Sent: Wednesday, October 31, 2018 12:07 PM

To: Peter Menser

Subject: Copper Creek dev - Nov 5 Planning meeting 

Decisions should be made on facts - not subjective opinions, viewpoints, preconceived notions, or poor 

understanding. 

 

 

Here are the facts- 

 

 

From the beginning the Planning Commission repeatedly asked for a second access road to the east off of 

Haslett Road - for expressed safety concerns.  Its requests were repeatedly ignored. 

 

 

The Township Board has previously rejected a subdivision proposal with an exact traffic pattern plan - 

declaring it to be unsafe and unsuitable. 

 

 

The Board also rejected such a plan with an exact traffic pattern because it violated a Township regulation 

which requires subdivision roads to be arranged so as not to encourage through traffic.  This plan forces illicit 

through traffic. 

 

 

This previous Board action is relevant today.  It is, if you will, the - “law of the land.” 

(Supportive sources have been submitted numerous times.) 

 

 

(cf. The Meridian Township Board of Trustees, the final local authority with regard to plat approval, considered 

the proposed plat at its regular meeting of September 20, 1988, and disapproved it by a vote of five to one. At 

meetings on October 3 and November 22, 1988, the board amended the minutes of its September 20 meeting to 

specify the reasons for its disapproval of the plat: 

(1) Such a design is not consistent with Section 101-4.12(a) of the subdivision regulations, which states that 

streets shall be so arranged so as to discourage their use by through traffic. 

(2) The alignment of Wood Knoll Drive provides sole access onto Creekwood [Lane], which requires egress 

onto Haslett Road at a point where there is less than 750 feet of sight distance — in violation of Section VII.B.1 

of the County Road Commission Plat Procedures. (Altman v. Meridian)) 

 

 

As for the Wood Knoll Drive stub facts.  If the prior submitted materials were read, and understood, it would be 

clear that it was laid out prior to when the traffic safety concerns became apparent.  When those concerns 

became known the stub basically became unusable.  It was further noted that the stub’s prior existence did not 

guarantee any future use, let alone unsafe use.  It has had that status for 30 years.  People purchased homes on 

Creekwood with that understanding.  Not with the understanding that it might be opened one day. 

 

 



2

(cf. Quoting from the relevant Michigan Supreme Court materials:  “Equally untenable is the suggestion that the 

[T]ownship’s prior consent to the construction of the existing Wood Knoll Drive stub street adjoining 

Creekwood Lane constituted some sort of irrevocable advance consent to the development of any new 

subdivisions seeking to use that stub street for access. The township was not under any legal requirement, at the 

time the Creekwood subdivision was developed, to give advance notice of what hypothetical future subdivisions 

adjoining Creekwood Lane it might approve or disapprove, and on what grounds.”) 

 

 

Commissioners stated that building another safe access onto Haslett Road would cost the developer 

money.  This is their responsibility.  Lack of the access may very well cost someone life or limb. There are 

dangers on exit and entrance.  Other cars come up blindly very quickly on exit and entrance.  Approval will 

make a dangerous situation worse. 

 

 

Commissioners have clearly acknowledged, the dangers of the roadway. Yet many making excuses for the 

developer, and trying to predict the future, while ignoring the facts of the past and present.  The Chair (Tresize) 

of the last meeting stated - “I don’t know why anybody would use an exit onto Haslett Road that is difficult 

and/or dangerous.”  At the August 27th meeting Commissioner Tresize stated: “I do not want to get into the 

driving through the Creekwood neighborhood. I think that's inappropriate, and their roads are too narrow to 

begin with, and to have an egress or entrance through that neighborhood is inappropriate." 

 

 

It was remarked that drivers would just need to be more careful.  No.  The onus for safety is on the developer 

and the Township.  And in fact,  there are other safe options. 

 

 

It’s like saying it’s ok for one to park cars and trailers in a front yard, even though it’s a violation of a Township 

ordinance.  This plan is in violation of ordinance, regulation, and Board action. 

 

 

The interests of the Township and its citizens should be foremost - not those of a developer.  Support for a 

known unsafe, unsuitable, illicit access proposed by a developer is not in the interest of the Township or its 

citizens. 

 

 

Vote to deny this plan.  Voting for it puts the Township and its citizens at significant risk.  Funneling more 

traffic into the Creekwood/Haslett intersection via Wood Knoll is in fact significantly unsafe and unsuitable, 

and in violation of a Township ordinance and decision. This is a shame, when there are safe alternatives. 

 

 

Michael & Betty Casby 

5624 Creekwood Lane 

Haslett, MI 48840 

 

 

Below you will find Table 3 from the Ingham County Road Commission regulations regarding sight 

distance.  You will also find a map addressing the relevant intersection and distance. Traveling at 35 mph it 

functionally takes less than 4 sec. to travel the distance. 







1

Justin Quagliata

From: Cecelia Kramer <cremark1@sbcglobal.net>

Sent: Wednesday, November 07, 2018 4:44 PM

To: Mark Kieselbach

Cc: Justin Quagliata

Subject: La Fontaine Car Dealership  SUP #18081

 

 

At the meeting on Monday night, during the public remarks, I failed to bring up one of the requests that 

our subdivision had for inclusion in the SUP for La Fontaine Car Dealership  SUP #18081 that had been 

suggested during our neighborhood meeting with Gary from La Fontaine.  

As you may be aware, the traffic particularly in morning and evening rush hours and even the after-school 

times make it difficult to get in and out of our Forest Hills Subdivision using the Northview Street exit onto 

Grand River.  We have been assured by the Dealership and its traffic study, that most of the interest in 

the facility will be on the weekend and mid-day or evening.  Nonetheless, a close look at the traffic 
particularly in Phase 2 development may warrant a de-excelleration lane from the east. 

Further, and most importantly for our Forest Hills Residents, we would like the SUP to be have a clause 

that prohibits test driving through the subdivisions.  Forest Hills does not have curbs or sidewalks. 

Children bike and ride their skateboards, people jog and walk their dogs on the streets.  Additional traffic 
that is not necessary should be prohibited. 

Thank you for taking these traffic issues into consideration. 

 

Cecelia Kramer 

4560 Oakwood 

Okemos, MI  48864 

  

  

 



1

Peter Menser

From: chris@chrisweiss.com

Sent: Sunday, November 11, 2018 6:50 PM

To: Peter Menser

Cc: 'Theresa Weiss'

Subject: Special Use Permit #18111

Dear Mr. Menser, 

 

This is in follow-up to our phone conversation on Friday. 

 

I have numerous concerns about development on the parcel listed on 1730 Chief Okemos Circle.  In particular: 

 

1. If this project is allowed to go forward, I believe that the land owner should be required to put up a 6’ fully 

opaque privacy fence along the rear property line (the western boundary).  This property abuts four residences 

who would be profoundly affected by the headlights of vehicles shining into the rear of their homes.  An 

alternative could be a dense hedge or line of other bushes or trees that are similarly opaque year round.  

 

2. The plot itself is irregularly platted with insufficient curb space for the expected road traffic.  I don’t believe 

there is a way to address this problem, creating an irresolvable traffic issue.  This could be addressed by limiting 

the capacity to less than the maximum determined by the township housing code. 

 

3. When the landowner had attempted this project before, he had tried to provide insufficient parking for the 

number of units as well as insufficient green space.  I don’t believe that any variance should be accepted given 

the surrounding density of the housing and the nearby single family homes. 

 

4. There is a civil covenant setting standards on any structure built on the land such as minimum brick to siding 

ratios, etc.  While not a township issue, it would seem pointless for the project to be approved if it will be tied 

up and blocked by litigation.  I would hope that the landowner would be required to address this issue before a 

special use permit is issued. 

 

Thank you for allowing me to voice my concerns over email.  I will be out of town on business on 11/26 and could not 

voice my concerns in person. 

 

Regards, 

Chris 



1

Peter Menser

From: Larry Mccurdy <kalamc@ameritech.net>

Sent: Monday, November 19, 2018 3:30 PM

To: Peter Menser

Subject: County Drain Commission

Mr. Mesner, 

Please inform the planning commission that we feel it crucial that the county drain commission be asked 

to look at the drainage issues in the rezoning issue of the property to the east of Champion Woods 

subdivision. It should not be needed to say that once rezoning is granted and houses and roads are built, 

there is no going back and redoing. Therefore, everything that can be done to assess the problems that 

could be created with a new development most be thoroughly examined early in this process. As has 

already been discussed, not only are we looking at the ramifications to the adjacent developments, but 

there are other already existing subdivisions that are  being effected by drainage issues that are down 

stream from the property in question.  To us it seems like a reasonable and logical step that should be 

taken before any other rezoning requests are put forward. 

 

Gratefully, 

Kathy & Larry McCurdy 



 Catherine and Chris Cleveland 

 6025 Marietta Way 

 East Lansing, MI 48823 

 

RE:  MUPUD #18044  

 

 

 

November 19, 2018 

 

Mr. Peter Menser 

Meridian Township Principal Planner 

5151 Marsh Rd. 

Okemos, MI 48864 

 

After watching the November 5, 2018 Planning Commission meeting and reviewing the 

packet associated with that meeting, we are writing to voice our concerns regarding the 

Newton Park Development (the Development) MUPUD proposal.  We understand that 

this corner will be developed and, in many respects, we support the development of this 

property.  However, we do have concerns regarding the many waivers that are being 

requested by the applicant.  Please share this letter with all who will be making any 

decisions regarding this proposal. 

Per our review, it appears the applicant is requesting at least 9 waivers on a 23 acre 

development, and some of these waivers are asking for large concessions.  For example, 

two of the waivers in relation to residential set-backs are requesting an 80% concession 

as requested:  

In the C-2 zoning district no structure is permitted within 100 feet of any residential 

zoning district boundary line. As proposed, Building B15 (a single family home) is 

located 20 feet from the RAA (Single Family) property to the south, therefore a 

waiver of 80 feet is requested for the setback from the residential zoning district 

boundary.  

Buildings C4, C5, and C6 (10-unit apartment buildings) are located 20 feet from the 

RR (Rural Residential) property to the east, therefore a waiver of 80 feet is requested 

for the setback from the residential zoning district boundary.  

At the November 5, Planning Commission meeting, it was discussed to meet somewhere 

in the middle on these concessions.  This may be reasonable if it were only single-family 

residences bordering the Sierra Ridge Estates Phase IV.  However, according to the plan 

this area also includes a clubhouse (4778 sq ft), pool, maintenance garage (1586 sq ft), as 

well as the communities recycling center, commercial dumpster, proposed trash 

compactor and parking areas planned in the standard setback required with C-2 

zoning.  The only internal access road to these areas is also located in the conventional 

setback.  This waiver request does not provide any relief for future Sierra Ridge 



neighbors on the west side who will border the Development’s high traffic areas of 

recycling/trash, clubhouse, pool, and the roadway which create noise, odors, animals, and 

general unsightliness.   

 

The parking lot setback waivers are requesting concessions of 75% – 92% concessions. 

This too is excessive.  Even after the allowed parking reduction from bicycle parking, the 

applicant is requesting a 35% concession on parking spaces.  This is not a location that is 

easily/safely accessible via bike.  The amount of bike parking will not truly reduce the 

amount of vehicle parking that will be needed, which inflates that 35% waiver. 

 

Another concern we have is not in the proposed plan, however was mentioned by a 

commissioner at the November 5, meeting.  He indicated it may be a good idea to 

connect the Development and Sierra Ridge Estates via a road.  We are strongly opposed 

to any road connection between the two developments. This would cause increased traffic 

and decreased safety for the homeowners of Sierra Ridge Estates. 

 

The concept of this project seems like a good idea for this location.  However, after 

reviewing the amount of requested waivers and the capacity of those waivers, the project 

as proposed just does not fit on this property.  I have only touched on a few of the 

waivers that would adversely affect the Sierra Ridge Estates Development, which is 

currently in Phase III of four phases. 

Please strongly consider these concerns while making your decision regarding the 

Newton Park Development proposal.  Thank you for your time and considerations. 

 

Sincerely, 

 

Catherine and Chris Cleveland 

6025 Marietta Way 



November 20, 2018 
Re: Special Use Permit #18101 
 
 
Dear Planning Commissioners and Planning Department,  
 
I’m writing you today to strongly object and urge you to reject/vote no on special 
use permit #18101 for Green Castle Properties (Fox Nissan) to construct a car 
dealership on lots 1614 and 1622 Grand River.  
 
My husband and I live at the corner of Hillside and Northview in the Forest Hills 
Subdivision. Along with our neighbors, we have watched this township rezone acres 
upon acres of rural residential property into commercial zones and allow way too many 
commercial entities to move in.  
 
Many of us purposely bought houses in the more rural sections of the community. There 
is very little of that ruralness left, and the few acres of trees, greenspace and wetlands 
left continue to be paved over. The earth continues to warm up and cause climate 
issues because every square inch of pavement means hotter temperatures because 
there is no grass left to soak up the sun’s rays – instead they are radiated back into the 
atmosphere and are causing icebergs to melt, hurricanes to intensify and resulting in 
many other natural disasters. Don’t take it from me, listen to what major media outlets 
have to say: 
 

• “Human activity has helped put humans on a potentially irreversible path toward a hot, 

chaotic planet stripped clean of the natural resources that enrich it, a new report has 

concluded.” (Washington Post, Oct. 30, 2018) 

 

• “Reports of the threats from a warming planet have been coming fast and furiously. The 

latest: a startling analysis from the Intergovernmental Panel on Climate 

Change predicting terrible food shortages, wildfires and a massive die-off of coral reefs 

as soon as 2040, unless governments take strong action.” (New York Times, Nov 19, 

2018) 

 

 
As a result of this commercial development we are being subjected to decreased 
property values as well as increased traffic, light pollution, noise, deforestation, and 
displacement of wildlife. 
 
A car dealership will bring all of those items I just mentioned and negatively 
impact our daily lives and house values. Listed below are my major concerns and 
reasons why you should reject this special use permit.  
 

1) Light Pollution. Car dealerships are known to have more light poles than any 
business ever needs. Our dark sky area east of Central Park Drive will now be lit 
up like a major city. Light pollution is an increasing problem globally and we need 



to stop this. Why does a dealership need to be lit up like a runway 24-hours a 
day? If they’re concerned with security there are other ways to handle this, 
without having all the lights on. Even the new LEDs and downward facing or 
angled lights aren’t enough – people are still shorter than a light pole so we 
would be subjected to seeing these lights and if you look up at the sky they will 
block your vision.  

 
2) Water redirection. Car dealers also need as much pavement as possible to park 

their cars on – pavement is not environmentally friendly because it generates 
heat, is not permeable, and contributes to global warming. Water that drains into 
the ground helps replenish the aquifer. If the ground is paved over, that water will 
be redirected and quite likely contaminated with runoff from the parking lot.  
 

a. As a household that is still on a well, this is extremely concerning to me as 
we rely on our aquifer being replenished.   

b. Also, there is significant wetlands in that area; I can’t tell exactly from the 
site plan how they intend to work around those, but I do know that the so 
called “replacement” wetlands required are nowhere near as beneficial 
and worthwhile as the originals. 

 
3) Deforestation. Grass and trees are necessary to cool the earth, produce much-

needed oxygen, and help with water runoff and drainage. The wholesale removal 
of large mature trees that they will attempt to replace with tiny sticks that do not 
even cast a shadow is alarming. We must act now to save these mature trees. 
The site plan shows almost all solid pavement with little to no trees or shrubs left 
on the property. That is not enough to counteract the vast amount of pavement 
planned. Again, for a township that has a Greenspace Plan, you sure are doing a 
good job of trying to get rid of anything green.  

 
a. Have you considered working with Nissan and other parties in town to 

allow them to build on sections of land already paved over, such as the 
empty Toys R Us or Meridan Mall? Both those parking lot sit empty most 
of the time and would be an ideal location for a car dealership that desires 
lots of pavement. This would prevent additional deforestation and 
greenspace destruction.  

 
4) Wildlife destruction. A study released recently by the World Wildlife Foundation 

says that in the past 40 years, humans have been responsible for causing the 
wildlife populations to fall by more than half due to deforestation and pollution – 
both things a car dealership will contribute to. We already have a large deer herd 
in this area. Where are those deer going to go if you eliminate their forest? And 
not just the deer, but the rest of the wildlife that live there and who have made 
this area their home much longer than any of us? Deforestation up and down 
Grand River, Central Park Drive and surrounding areas has caused more and 
more animals to move into our neighborhoods because they have nowhere else 
to go. As the study says “We’re facing a rapidly closing window for action and the 



urgent need for everyone—everyone—to collectively rethink and redefine how 
we value, protect, and restore nature.”  The township is already paying hunters to 
unnecessarily reduce the deer population in the township that is seen as a threat. 
But the deer wouldn’t be a threat if we would stop removing the natural areas 
they want to live in for the sake of more tax revenue. 

 
5) Increased traffic. Grand River is heavily traveled and in the 10+ years we have 

lived in Forest Hills, we find it harder and harder every day to exit our subdivision 
due to increased traffic from the urban sprawl. Additionally, the corner of Grand 
River/Central Park and Central Park itself is already dangerous enough to due to 
fast speeds, drivers running red lights, ill-timed signals, drivers not paying 
attention. This is without the addition of a car dealership that will have customers 
in and out for sales, service, test drives, vehicle deliveries and more.  
 

a. The proposed curb cut entrance on Central Park is located on a curve! 
This cannot be safe, especially with The Willows curb cut only a few yards 
away (which is already a dangerous exit on a curve). This was a poorly 
designed road to begin with and adding an additional entrance is going to 
land someone in the hospital.  

 
b. As you also are considering a proposal for another car dealership 

(LaFontaine) just a few yards to the east, I’m even more concerned about 
the ability to get in and out of our subdivision and crashes from cars trying 
to turn every which way. The curb cuts from existing businesses are 
already too close together and every day it’s a serious crash waiting to 
happen when someone is turning out of Northview headed west, someone 
is trying to turn north into Sparrow, someone else is trying to get out of 
Baryames, and others are racing trying to beat the light at the corner. I 
have witnessed and been party to many near-misses. Adding a car 
dealership so close to the intersection will add to an already bad situation.  

 
c. We also are concerned about increased traffic in our neighborhood from 

customers test-driving vehicles through it. Too many cars speed through 
our neighborhood already. We should not be subjected to additional traffic 
from people who aren’t familiar with the area or the vehicle they are 
driving testing out cars and not paying attention to their surroundings. The 
past decade has seen an increase in families living in our subdivision, and 
every day we are noticing more kids on foot and on bikes traveling 
through. They should not have their neighborhood streets turned into a 
test track. 

 
6) Poor drainage and flooding. Okemos is prone to flooding. That is partly 

because we’ve paved the land where the water would have naturally soaked into. 
Our drain systems are already over-burdened and a car dealership will only 
contribute to those woes.  

 



7) Decreased property values. Realtors always tell you Location, Location, 
Location. Where a house is located is important – and across the street from a 
large car dealership probably isn’t the first location a family would choose when 
looking for a house or condo. It’s not a business you frequent regularly, unlike a 
grocery store, pharmacy or restaurant. We were sold on our house because of its 
proximity to a grocery store, as well as how rural it was – there was nothing 
commercial to the east of us except the driving range, which is still rural because 
it’s 99% green space. The land north and east was all zoned rural residential, 
which appealed greatly to us. Now it’s been rezoned commercial and you want to 
add not one, but two car dealerships to the mix – businesses that isn’t great for 
what was supposed to be a semi-rural family neighborhood. Our property value 
has finally recovered after the recession and I worry significantly that it will drop 
again if this proposal is approved.  

 
 
While my husband and I object to this proposal and again, strongly urge you to 
reject it based on the concerns listed above, I assume it is likely a foregone 
conclusion that you will be approving it. 
 
Therefore, the following items need to be considered and required as a condition 
of the special use permit: 

1) Require Fox Nissan to shut off all their parking lot lights at night, especially since 
they close around 7 p.m. most evenings. For security reasons, the lights could be 
on a motion sensor so they only go on if tripped. For lights that are on during 
evening business hours, require the lights to be covered, dimmed and angled so 
light does not leave their property.  

 
2) Require any maintenance facilities to be placed as far back from the road as 

possible to minimize sound. This includes any service bays, car wash, loading 
docks, etc. In addition, there should be requirements for bioswales or other 
measures to help filter the water runoff from this industrial space prior to it 
reaching the aquifer.  

 
3) Do not allow any outside sound like a public address system, music or honking.  

 
4) Require them to preserve as many of the existing mature trees as possible and 

design and construct their parking lot and buildings around the established trees 
instead of cutting them down and planting new tiny ones. Design the car layout to 
cluster cars together instead of a long straight line, allowing for as much green 
space as possible to be saved and incorporated. Require a significant 
greenspace berm between the road, sidewalk and any parking lot.  

 
5) Require that no test drives be allowed in our neighborhood.  

 
 



Again, overall we feel this project will be extremely detrimental to the environment, 
our property values, and quality of life. We urge you to vote no on this special use 
permit. Meridian Township was already special and continued approval of these 
types of permits is ruining that. 

 
 
Jessi and Ari Adler 
1580 Hillside Drive 
Okemos, MI 
517-230-9923 
jessicawortley@gmail.com  

















 

To:  Planning Commission  
 
From:  Peter Menser, Principal Planner 
   

Justin Quagliata, Assistant Planner 
 
Date:  November 21, 2018 
 
Re: Special Use Permit #18101 (Green Castle Properties, LLC), request to construct 

a 23,094 square foot new car dealership at 1614 and 1622 Grand River 
Avenue, and an adjacent parcel to the north recognized as Parcel I.D. #22-252-
003.  

 
 
Green Castle Properties, LLC has requested a special use permit to construct a new car dealership 
on three parcels, two addressed as 1614 and 1622 Grand River Avenue, and an adjacent parcel to 
the north recognized as Parcel I.D. #22-252-003.  The approximate 8.24 acre subject site is located 
on the north side of Grand River Avenue, east of Central Park Drive.  1614 Grand River Avenue is 
currently occupied by a 1,163 square foot single family house built in 1925, a 785 square foot 
detached garage, and a shed.  1622 Grand River Avenue is currently occupied by a 2,255 square foot 
single family house built in 1951, a shed, and a pool.  Parcel I.D. #22-252-003 is currently occupied 
by a 3,576 square foot metal barn and a pool. 
 
The proposed dealership will contain sales and service for Nissan automobiles.  The proposed one-
story structure contains 23,094 square feet of floor area.   
 
Master Plan 
 
The Future Land Use Map from the 2017 Master Plan designates the subject site in the Commercial 
category.   
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



 
Special Use Permit #18101 (Green Castle Properties, LLC) 
Planning Commission (November 26, 2018) 
Page 2 

  

Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community. 

 

FUTURE LAND USE MAP 
 

 
 
Zoning 
 
The subject site (three parcels) is located in the C-2 (Commercial) zoning district, which requires a 
minimum of 100 feet of lot width and 4,000 square feet of lot area.  All three parcels conform to the 
minimum lot area and lot width standards of the C-2 zoning district. 
 
The proposed automobile dealership is an allowed use in the C-2 zoning district by special use 
permit.  A zoning ordinance amendment (ZA #07160) adopted in January 2008 permitted new car 
dealerships to operate in the C-2 district, subject to special use permit approval.  Prior to the zoning 
amendment new car dealerships were only permitted in the C-3 district.  Section 86-404(e)(16)(1) 
requires a minimum lot size of four acres for new car dealerships.  The three parcels which make up 
the subject site would need to be combined to meet this standard. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
Special Use Permit #18101 (Green Castle Properties, LLC) 
Planning Commission (November 26, 2018) 
Page 3 

  

Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community. 

 

ZONING MAP 
 

 
 
Physical Features 
 
The topography of the site slopes from 871 feet above mean sea level near the southern edge of the 
property to a low point of 859 feet above mean sea level at the center of the site, and slopes to 868 
feet above mean sea level in the northern portion of the site.  The Flood Insurance Rate Map (FIRM) 
for Meridian Township indicates the property is not located in a floodplain.  The site does not have 
any special designation on the Township Greenspace Plan. 
 
Wetlands 
 
Six wetlands are located on the subject property.  A wetland delineation was conducted by the 
applicant’s wetland consultant to determine the boundary, regulatory status, and size of the 
wetlands.  The delineation was verified by the Township’s wetland consultant in October of 2018.  
Wetland A on the submitted plans is 0.26 acre in size.  Wetlands B, C, D, E, and F are all under 0.10 
acre in size.  Based on the submitted plans the applicant is not proposing any impacts to wetlands, 
and where applicable the 20 foot wetland setback is observed. 
 

 
 

 
 



 
Special Use Permit #18101 (Green Castle Properties, LLC) 
Planning Commission (November 26, 2018) 
Page 4 

  

Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community. 

 

WETLANDS MAP 
 

 
 
Streets and Traffic 
 
The site fronts on both Grand River Avenue and Central Park Drive.  Grand River Avenue is a four 
lane road with curb and gutter and a center turn lane classified as a Principal Arterial on the Street 
Setbacks and Service Drives Map in the zoning ordinance.  Central Park Drive is a four lane road with 
curb and gutter classified as a Collector street.  The most recent (2003) traffic count information 
from the Ingham County Road Department (ICRD) for Central Park Drive, between Newman Road 
and Grand River Avenue, showed a total of 12,557 vehicles in a 24 hour period.  The most recent 
(2016) traffic count information from the Michigan Department of Transportation (MDOT) for 
Grand River Avenue, between Dobie Road and Cornell Road, showed a total of 15,980 vehicles in a 
24 hour period.   
 
A traffic assessment is required for new special uses which could generate between 50 to 99 
directional trips during a peak hour of traffic.  The applicant submitted a traffic impact study 
prepared by Traffic Engineering Associates, Inc. dated October 2018 that provides information on 
traffic generated by the proposed new car dealership.  The study looks at existing, background 
(future traffic volumes without traffic generated by the proposed development), and future level of 
service (LOS) during the AM (7:45-8:45 a.m.) and PM (5:00-6:00 p.m.) peak hours at the following 
two intersections around the project site: 
 
 



 
Special Use Permit #18101 (Green Castle Properties, LLC) 
Planning Commission (November 26, 2018) 
Page 5 

  

Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community. 

 

 Grand River Avenue and Central Park Drive/Dobie Road 
 Grand River Avenue and Hamilton Road 

 
The traffic study notes existing traffic at the studied intersections all operate at an acceptable LOS (LOS 
D or better) during the AM and PM peak hours.  The study shows background traffic at the studied 
intersections will operate at an acceptable level of service (LOS D or better) during AM and PM peak 
hours.  Under future conditions, it is projected all movements will continue to operate at an acceptable 
level of service (LOS D or better). 
 
The submitted traffic impact study contains a trip generation analysis which estimates future 
vehicle trips that could be generated by the proposed automobile dealership.  The Institute of 
Transportation Engineers (ITE) trip generation rates for Automobile Sales (New) (Land Use Code 
840) were selected to represent the dealership.  The following table summarizes findings from the 
trip generation analysis.   
 

Description Size 
AM Peak Hour PM Peak Hour 

Weekday 
In Out Total In Out Total 

Automobile 
Sales (New) 

24,500 
sq. ft. 

34 12 46 26 40 66 672 

 
The findings of the traffic impact study show no recommendations to the existing road system based 
on the projected traffic volumes.  
 
Utilities 
 
Municipal water and sanitary sewer is available in the vicinity to serve the subject site.  The location 
and capacity of utilities will be reviewed in detail during site plan review if the special use permit is 
approved. 
 
Staff Analysis 
 
The special use permit review criteria found in Section 86-126 of the Code of Ordinances should be 
used when evaluating the proposed special use permit.  Section 86-404(e)(16) outlines the 
regulations pertaining to new car dealerships in the C-2 zoning district, which are as follows: 
 

 Minimum lot size: four acres. 
 

 Vehicle service and repair and used car sales shall be permitted ancillary uses to the 
principal new car sales use.   

 
 Body shops shall not be a permitted ancillary use.     

 
 
 
 



 
Special Use Permit #18101 (Green Castle Properties, LLC) 
Planning Commission (November 26, 2018) 
Page 6 

  

Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community. 

 

Parking 
 
The Code of Ordinances requires one parking space for each 200 square feet of useable floor space 
of sales room, and one for each one vehicle displayed for sale.  The submitted plan indicates 332 
parking spaces are provided.  The building contains approximately 6,755 square feet of sales room 
and associated customer access areas, therefore 34 parking spaces are required to serve the 
building. 
 
C-2 zoned sites are allowed 70 percent impervious surface coverage.  The submitted site plan 
indicates impervious surface coverage would be 46.6%. 
 
Landscaping 
 
The submitted site plan shows a 40 foot setback between the dealership and the adjacent 
residentially zoned property to the north and east.  The Zoning Ordinance requires commercial uses 
to observe a 100 foot setback from any adjacent residential zoning district.  The 100 foot setback 
can be reduced to 60 feet if appropriate screening is provided.  The 60 foot setback cannot be 
reduced to 40 feet.  The parking area at the north encroaches into the 60 foot setback, which would 
require a variance from the Zoning Board of Appeals. 
 
If the Planning Commission decides to approve the special use permit request, staff recommends 
the following conditions: 
 

 Vehicle service and repair and used car sales are permitted at the subject site only when 
ancillary to the principal new car sales use. 

 
 Paint and/or automobile bodywork are prohibited uses at the subject site.   

 
 The applicant shall combine the three subject parcels to meet the minimum four acre lot size 

requirement for new car dealerships. 
 
If the project is approved by the Planning Commission, the applicant will be required to submit for Site 
Plan Review before work on the project can begin.  Site Plan Review is a detailed staff-level analysis of 
the project which includes reviews of storm water, utilities, landscaping, grading, and other issues to 
ensure compliance with all applicable ordinances as well as confirmation of approvals from local 
agencies such as the Ingham County Drain Commissioner’s Office and Road Department. 
 
Planning Commission Options 
 
The Planning Commission may approve, approve with conditions, or deny the special use permit.  A 
resolution will be provided at a future meeting. 
 
 
 
 
 



 
Special Use Permit #18101 (Green Castle Properties, LLC) 
Planning Commission (November 26, 2018) 
Page 7 

  

Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community. 

 

Attachments 
1.  Special use permit application. 
2.  Traffic Impact Analysis prepared by Traffic Engineering Associates, Inc., dated October, 2018,  
      and received by the Township on October 16, 2018. 
3.  Natural Features Assessment prepared by Marx Wetlands, dated September 24, and received by   
      the Township on October 16, 2018. 
4.  Site plan prepared by Nederveld, dated October 16, 2018 (revision date November 8, 2018), and   
     received by the Township on November 9, 2018. 
5.  Building elevations and floor plans prepared by Studio Detroit, dated October 12, 2018 and  
      received by the Township on October 16, 2018. 
 
 
G:\Community Planning & Development\Planning\SPECIAL USE PERMITS (SUP)\2018\SUP 18101 (Green Castle Properties, LLC)\SUP 
18101.pc1.doc 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN 
DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT 

5151 MARSH ROAD, OKEMOS, Ml 48864 
PLANNING DIVISION PHONE: (517) 853-4560, FAX: (517) 853-4095 '~,,,,,,,,,, 

,, ,, ,, 
................ 

SPECIAL USE PERMIT APPLICATION ,,_ 

Before submitting this application for review, an applicant may meet with the Director of Community 
Planning and Development to discuss the requirements for a special use permit and/or submit a 
conceptual plan for review to have preliminary technical deficiencies addressed prior to submittal of the 
application. If the property or land use is located in the following zoning districts RD, RC, RCC, RN then 
the applicant must meet with the Planning Director to discuss technical difficulties before filing a formal 
application. 

Part I 
A. Applicant DP Fox dba Green Castle Properties, LLC 

Address of Applicant 200 Ottawa NW, Suite 800, Grand Rapids, Ml 49506 cschiefler@dpfox.com 
Telephone-Work 616-774-4044 Home Fax ______ Email ___ _ 
Interest in property (circle one): Owner Tenant XX Option Other 
(Please attach a list of all persons with an ownership interest in the property.) 

B. Site address/ location/ parcel number 1614 & 1622 W. Grand River, Meridian Twp., Ml 

C. 

Legal description (please attach if necessary) ---'---'A=tt=ac=h..,_,e=d,__ _______________ _ 
Current zoning Commercial C-2 
Use for which permit is requested/ project name New Auto Dealership - Fox Nissan 
Corresponding ordinance number Article IV, Division 3 86.404(e)(16) & Article II, Division 4 

Developer (if different than applicant) ~S=a~m=e~a=s~a...,p"""p=li~c-an.....,t~--------------­
Address ---------------------------------
Te I e phone - Work Home ________ Fax ________ _ 

D. Architect, Engineer Planner or Surveyor responsible for design of project if different from applicant: 
Name Nederveld, Inc. - James Gorenflo, Project Manager 
Address 3037 Miller Rd. Ann Arbor Ml 48103 
Telephone - Work 734-929-6963 Home Fax _______ _ 

E. Acreage of all parcels in the project: Gross 8.67 Net 

F. Explain the project and development phases: New auto dealership; single phase development 

G. Total number of: 

H. 

Existing: structures __ 6 _ bedrooms_6_ offices__ parking spaces_8_ carports _ garages_2_ 
Proposed: structures_1 _ bedrooms--1.§_ offices __ parking spaces 332 carports_ garages_1 _ 

Square footage: 
Usable Floor area: 

existing buildings 9, 757proposed buildings 24,969 sf 
existing buildings __ proposed buildings __ 

I. If employees will work on the site, state the number of full time and part time employees working per shift 
and hours of operation: 1 shift; 20 full time & 1 part time employees 

J. Existing Recreation: Type __ N_/_A _____________ Acreage ___ _ 
Proposed Recreation: Type N/A Acreage ___ _ 
Existing Open Space: Type Residential yard areas Acreage ___ _ 
Proposed Open Space: Type T.B.D. Acreage ___ _ 

Page 1 



K. If Multiple Housing: 
Total acres of property _N_/_A ___ _ 
Acres in floodplain _______ _ 
Acres in wetland (not in floodplain) __ 
Total dwelling units ______ _ 

Percent of total 
Percent of total 

Dwelling unit mix: Number of single family detached: 
Number of duplexes: 
Number of townhouses: 
Number of garden style apartments: 
Number of other dwellings: 

for Rent 
for Rent 
for Rent 
for Rent 
for Rent 

Condo 
Condo 
Condo 
Condo 
Condo 

L. The following support materials must be submitted with the application: 

1. Nonrefundable Fee. 

2. Legal Description of the property. 

3. Evidence of fee or other ownership of the property. 

4. Site Plan containing the information listed in the attachment to this application. 

5. Architectural sketches showing all sides and elevations of the proposed buildings or structures, 
including the project entrance, as they will appear upon completion. The sketches should be 
accompanied by material samples or a display board of the proposed exterior materials and 
colors. 

6. A Traffic Study, prepared by a qualified traffic engineer, based on the most current edition of 
Evaluating Traffic Impact Studies: A Recommended Practice for Michigan Communities, 
published by the State Department of Transportation. 

a. A traffic assessment will be required for the following: 
1) New special uses which could, or expansion or change of an existing special use 

where increase in intensity would, generate between 50 to 99 directional trips 
during a peak hour of traffic. 

2) All other special uses requiring a traffic assessment as specified in the Township 
Code of Ordinances, Chapter 86, Article IV, Division 2. 

b. A traffic impact study will be required for the following: 
1) New special uses which would, or expansion or change of an existing special use 

where increase in intensity would, generate over 100 directional trips or more 
during a peak hour of traffic, or over 750 trips on an average day. 

2) All other special uses requiring a traffic assessment as specified in the Township 
Code of Ordinances, Chapter 86, Article IV, Division 2. 

7. Natural features assessment which includes a written description of the anticipated impacts on the 
natural features at each phase and at project completion that contains the following: 

a. An inventory of natural features proposed to be retained, removed, or modified. Natural 
features shall include, but are not limited to, wetlands, significant stands of trees or 
individual trees greater than 12 inches dbh, floodways, floodplains, waterbodies, identified 
groundwater vulnerable areas, slopes greater than 20 percent, ravines, and vegetative 
cover types with potential to sustain significant or endangered wildlife. 

b. Description of the impacts on natural features. 

c. Description of any proposed efforts to mitigate any negative impacts. 

The natural features assessment may be waived by the Director of Community Planning and 
Development in certain circumstances. 

Page 2 



M. Any other information specified by the Director of Community Planning and Development which is 
deemed necessary to evaluate the application. 

N. In addition to the above requirements, for zoning districts, RD, RC, RCC, RN, and CV and Group 
Housing Residential Developments the following is required: 

1 . Existing and proposed contours of the property at two foot intervals based on United States 
Geological Survey (USGS) data. 

2. Preliminary engineering reports in accordance with the adopted Township water and sewer 
standards, together with a letter of review from the Township Engineer. 

3. Ten copies of a report on the intent and scope of the project including, but not limited to: Number, 
size, volume, and dimensions of buildings; number and size of living units; basis of calculations of 
floor area and density and required parking; number, size, and type of parking spaces; 
architectural sketches of proposed buildings. 

4. Seven copies of the project plans which the Township shall submit to local agencies tor review 
and comments. 

0. In addition to the above requirements, a special use application in zoning district RP requires the following 
material as part of the site plan: 

1. A description of the operations proposed in sufficient detail to indicate the effects of those 
operations in producing traffic congestion, noise, glare, air pollution, water pollution, fire hazards 
or safety hazards or the emission of any potentially harmful or obnoxious matter or radiation. 

2. Engineering and architectural plans for the treatment and disposal of sewerage and industrial 
waste tailings, or unusable by-products. 

3. Engineering and architectural plans for the handling of any excessive traffic congestion, noise, 
glare, air pollution, or the emission of any potentially harmful or obnoxious matter or radiation. 

P. In addition to the above requirements, a special use application for a use in the Floodway Fringe of 
zoning district CV requires the following: 

1. A letter of approval from the State Department of Environmental Quality. 
2. A location map including existing topographic data at two-foot interval contours at a scale of one 

inch representing 100 feet. 
3. A map showing proposed grading and drainage plans including the location of all public drainage 

easements, the limits, extent, and elevations of the proposed fill, excavation, and occupation. 
4. A statement from the County Drain Commissioner, County Health Department, and Director of 

Public Works and Engineering indicating that they have reviewed and approved the proposal. 

Q. In addition to the above requirements, a special use application for a use in the Groundwater Recharge 
area or zoning district CV requires the following: 

1. A location map including existing topographic data at two-foot interval contours. 
2. A map showing proposed grading and drainage plans including the location of all public drainage 

easements, the limits and extent of the proposed fill, excavation, and occupation. 
3. A statement from the County Drain Commissioner, County Health Department, and Director of 

Public Works and Engineering indicating that they have reviewed and approved the proposal. 

R. In addition to the above requirements, the Township Code of Ordinances, Article VI, should be reviewed 
for the following special uses: group housing residential developments, mobile home parks, 
nonresidential structures and uses in residential districts, planned community and regional shopping 
center developments, sand or gravel pits and quarries, sod farms, junk yards, sewage treatment and 
disposal installations, camps and clubs for outdoor sports and buildings greater than 25,000 square feet 
in gross floor area. 

Page 3 



( 

Part II SUP REQUEST STANDARDS 
Township Code of Ordinances, Section 86-126 

Applications for Special Land Uses will be reviewed with the standards stated below. An application that 
complies with the standards stated in the Township Ordinance, conditions imposed pursuant to the 
Ordinance, other applicable Ordinances, and State and Federal statutes will be approved. Your 
responses to the questions below will assist the Planning Commission in its review of your application. 

(1) The project is consistent with the intent and purposes of this chapter. 

(2) The project is consistent with applicable land use policies contained in the Township's Master Plan of 
current adoption. 

(3) The project is designed, constructed, operated, and maintained so as to be harmonious and 
appropriate in appearance with the existing or intended character of the general vicinity and that such a 
use will not change the essential character of the same area. 

(4) The project will not adversely affect or be hazardous to existing neighboring uses. 

(5) The project will not be detrimental to the economic welfare of surrounding properties or the community. 

(6) The project is adequately served by public facilities, such as existing roads, schools, stormwater 
drainage, public safety, public transportation, and public recreation, or that the persons or agencies 
responsible for the establishment of the proposed use shall be able to provide any such service. 

(7) The project is adequately served by public sanitation facilities if so designed. If on-site sanitation 
facilities for sewage disposal, potable water supply, and storm water are proposed, they shall be 
properly designed and capable of handling the longterm needs of the proposed project. 

(8) The project will not involve uses, activities, processes, materials, and equipment and conditions of 
operation that will be detrimental to any persons, property, or the general welfare by reason of 
excessive production of traffic, noise, smoke, fumes, glare, or odors. 

(9) The project will not directly or indirectly have a substantial adverse impact on the natural resources of 
the Township, including, but not limited to, prime agricultural soils, water recharge areas, lakes, rivers, 
streams, major forests, wetlands, and wildlife areas. 

Part Ill 
I (we) hereby grant permission for members of the Charter Township of Meridian's Boards and/or Commissions, 
Township staff member(s) and the Township's representatives or experts the right to enter onto the above 
described property (or as described in the attached information) in my (our) absence for the purpose of gathering 
information including but not limited to the taking and the use of photographs. 

[Z] Yes D No (Please check one) 

By the sig f1ature(s) attached hereto, I (we) certify that the information provided within this application and 
accompanying documentation is, to the best of my (our) knowledge, true and accurate 

Signature of Applicant / 

Colin Schiefler 
Type/Print Name 

Fee: $740.00 

Oct. 15, 2018 
Date 

~ U ~ [o - 1 6- 1~ 
Received by/Date:~·~~---~----------

Page 4 



 

 

 

 

TRAFFIC IMPACT STUDY 
 

For The Proposed 
 

Fox Nissan Dealership 
 

Meridian Charter Township, Ingham County, MI 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

October, 2018 
 
 

Prepared by: 



 

Table of Contents 
 

  Page 
 

Executive Summary 
 

 I 

Introduction  
Project Description 
Scope of Work 
Aerial Site Map 
 

1 
2 
2 
3 
 

Existing Conditions  
Roadways & Intersections 
Land Use 
Existing Traffic Volumes 
Level of Service Analysis for Existing Traffic 

4 
5 
6 
6 
8 
 

Background Conditions  
Background Traffic Volumes – Growth Related 
Background Traffic Volumes – Development Related 
Level of Service Analysis for Background Traffic 
 

10 
11 
11 
13 

Future Conditions  
Site Traffic Generation  
Site Traffic Distribution 
Level of Service Analysis for Future Traffic 
 

15 
16 
18 
21 
 

Significant Findings   
Analysis for a Recommended Right Turn Treatment 
Analysis for a Recommended Left Turn Treatment 
Recommendations 
 

23 
24 
24 
24 
 

Supplemental Information  
Site Plan 
Vehicle Volume Counts 
MDOT Guidelines for Right-Turn Lanes and Tapers 
MDOT Guidelines for Left-Turn Lanes and Passing 

Flares 
LOS Computations 
 

25 

 



 

 

2 

 

 

List of Tables 
 
 
Table Title Page 

 
1 Level of Service (LOS) Summary – Existing Traffic 

 
9 

2 Level of Service (LOS) Summary – Background Traffic 
 

14 

3 Vehicle Trip Generation Summary – Proposed Fox Nissan 
Dealership Development 
 

17 

4 Level of Service (LOS) Summary –Future Traffic 
 

22 

 
 
 
 
 
 

List of Figures 
 

 
Figure Title Page 

 
1 Existing Traffic – Peak Hours 

 
7 

2 Background Growth Traffic – Peak Hours 12 
 

3 Site Traffic – Peak Hours 
 

19 

4 Future Traffic – Peak Hours  20 
 

 
 

  
 



I 
 

 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
Traffic Engineering Associates, Inc. (TEA) conducted a traffic impact study for the proposed 
Fox Nissan Dealership development in Meridian Charter Township, Ingham County, 
Michigan.  The purpose of this study is to determine the impact on the surrounding road 
system by the new traffic to be generated from this development. The Fox Nissan Dealership 
development will consist of an approximate 24,500 square foot car dealership.  
 
The new development will be located on the north side of Grand River Avenue (M-43) east 
of Central Park Drive.  There will be two (2) access points, one (1) onto Grand River Avenue 
(M-43) and one (1) onto Central Park Drive.  The site is expected to open in the spring of 
2020. 
 
TEA, Inc. conducted vehicle turning movement counts during the midweek, of a non-holiday 
week in the month of September, 2018, at the intersections of Grand River Avenue (M-43) 
and Central Park Drive/ Dobie Road, and Grand River Avenue (M-43) and Hamilton Road.  
The existing weekday AM and PM peak hours are 7:45 – 8:45 AM and 5:00 – 6:00 PM.  All 
existing turning movements at the studied intersections operate at an acceptable level of 
service (LOS D or better). 
 
Background traffic represents future volumes without the traffic generated by the proposed 
Fox Nissan Dealership development.  The target year for completion is the spring of 2020; 
therefore, a one and one-half (1.5) year growth rate was applied to the existing traffic 
volumes.   It is anticipated that all movements at the studied intersections will operate at an 
acceptable level of service (LOS D or better) under background conditions. 
 
The ITE trip generation rates for Automobile Sales (New) (Land Use Code 840), were 
selected as representing the 24,500 square foot dealership.  It is projected that the proposed 
Fox Nissan Dealership will generate 46 vehicle trips in the AM peak hour, 66 vehicle trips in 
the PM peak hour, and 672 weekday trips.  It is anticipated that all movements at the studied 
intersections will operate at an acceptable level of service (LOS D or better) under future 
conditions. 
 
The findings of this study show that there are no recommendations to the existing road 
system. 
 
 



 

 

1 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

INTRODUCTION 



 

 

2 

PROJECT DESCRIPTION 
 
The purpose of this study is to determine the impact of traffic to be generated by the 
proposed Fox Nissan Dealership development in Meridian Charter Township, Ingham 
County, Michigan. The new development will consist of an approximate 24,500 square foot 
car dealership.  
 
The Fox Nissan Dealership development will be located on the north side of Grand River 
Avenue (M-43) east of Central Park Drive.  There will be two (2) access points, one (1) onto 
Grand River Avenue (M-43) and one (1) onto Central Park Drive.  The site is expected to 
open in the spring of 2020. 
 

 

SCOPE OF WORK 
 
The scope of work contained in this report is as follows: 
 
• Analysis of existing traffic conditions on the adjoining street system, including the 

following intersections;  
 

 Grand River Avenue (M-43) and Central Park Drive/ Dobie Road 
 Grand River Avenue (M-43) and Hamilton Road 

 
• Analysis of background traffic conditions on the adjoining street system, which includes 

the above listed intersections, for the future year 2020 volumes without the proposed Fox 
Nissan Dealership development.   

 
• Projection of future traffic volumes to be generated by the proposed Fox Nissan 

Dealership development for the future year. 
 

• Analysis of the impact of future traffic for the proposed Fox Nissan Dealership 
development at the above listed intersections. 

 
• Determination of what roadway and traffic control improvements, if any, will be needed 

to accommodate future traffic volumes for the proposed Fox Nissan Dealership 
development. 

 
 
  

 
 
 

   



 

 

3 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  
  

 

 

Aerial Site Map  
 
 

   

N 

Site 
 

 



 

 

4 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 

EXISTING CONDITIONS 



 

 

5 

ROADWAYS AND INTERSECTIONS 
 
Roadways 
 
Grand River Avenue (M-43) is a five (5) lane east/west roadway with an exclusive center left 
turn lane.  Grand River Avenue (M-43) has curb and gutter and sidewalks on both sides.  The 
posted speed limit is 45 MPH.  This roadway is under the jurisdiction of the Michigan 
Department of Transportation.   
 
Central Park Drive is a four (4) lane north/south roadway.  It is under the jurisdiction of the 
Ingham County Road Department. Central Park Drive has concrete curb and gutter and 
sidewalk on both sides of the road.  The posted speed limit is 35 MPH. 
 
Dobie Road is a three (3) lane north/south roadway with a center left turn lane.  It is under 
the jurisdiction of the Ingham County Road Department. Dobie Road has concrete curb and 
gutter and sidewalk on both sides of the road.  The posted speed limit is 35 MPH. 
 
Hamilton Road is a four (4) lane east/west roadway and is under the jurisdiction of the 
Ingham County Road Department.  Hamilton Road has concrete curb and gutter and 
sidewalks on both sides of the road.  The posted speed limit is 35 MPH. 
 
 
Intersections 
 
Central Park Drive/Dobie Road and Grand River Avenue (M-43) 
Grand River Avenue (M-43) has five (5) lanes; the east approach has one (1) exclusive left 
turn lane, one (1) thru lane, one (1) thru-right turn lane, and two (2) outbound lanes.  The 
west approach on Grand River Avenue (M-43) has six (6) lanes; one (1) exclusive left turn 
lane, two (2) thru lanes, one (1) exclusive right turn lane, and two (2) outbound lanes.   The 
north approach on Central Park Drive has five (5) lanes; one (1) exclusive left turn lane, one 
(1) thru lane, one (1) exclusive right turn lane, and two (2) outbound lanes.  The south 
approach on Dobie Road has three (3) lanes; one (1) exclusive left turn lane, one (1) thru-
right turn lane, and one (1) outbound lane.  The intersection is controlled by a traffic signal.  
This intersection is under the jurisdiction of the Michigan Department of Transportation. 
 
Hamilton Road and Grand River Avenue (M-43)  
This is a “T” intersection with stop sign control on northbound Hamilton Road.  The east 
approach on Grand River Avenue (M-43) has five (5) lanes; one (1) center left turn lane, two 
(2) thru lanes, and two (2) outbound lanes. The west approach on Grand River Avenue (M-
43) has five (5) lanes; one (1) center left turn lane, one (1) thru lane, one (1) thru-right turn 
lane, and two (2) outbound lanes. Hamilton Road has two (2) lanes; one (1) inbound left-
right turn lane, and one (1) outbound lane. 
 
 
 



 

 

6 

LAND USE 
 
The proposed Fox Nissan Dealership will consist of a 24,500 square foot dealership.  The 
proposed site has an existing building that is vacant.  The surrounding land use includes 
various types of commercial uses such as retail, restaurant, and gas station. 
 
 

EXISTING TRAFFIC VOLUMES 
 
TEA, Inc. conducted vehicle turning movement counts during the midweek, of a non-holiday 
week in the month of September, 2018 at the following locations:  
 

• Grand River Avenue (M-43) and Central Park Drive/ Dobie Road 
• Grand River Avenue (M-43) and Hamilton Road 

 
The existing weekday AM and PM peak hours are 7:45 – 8:45 AM and 5:00 – 6:00 PM at the 
key locations, respectively. The existing volumes are illustrated in Figure 1. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



(
)
 

<D
 

::
, 

r+
 

.., ~
 

"'O
 

C
 .., "' 0 :J
. 

<
 

<D
 

,,...
. ,

,....
 

,-
..

. 
N

 
~
 

0
)
 

0
)
 

a
, 

0 
....

.. 
<D

 
....

.,..
...,

 ...
.., 

I<
::.

_ 
67

 
(1

99
) 

v
i 

.i
,.

 
...

...
 
~
 

7
6

6
 

(4
25

) 
~
 

9
0

6
 

(6
23

) 
....

.. 
0 

....
.. 

J 
,l, 

~ 
r 

2
6

 
(1

8)
 

G
ra

nd
 

R
iv

er
 

A
ve

nu
e 

(M
-4

3
) 

r 
3

3
5

 (
10

3)
 

(8
1)

 
2

5
 _

_:,
.. 

~ 
1' 

f 
(8

79
) 

30
2 
~
 

~ 
f 

(6
94

) 
21

1 
~
 

(3
2)

 
0

~
 

~
 
~
 

v
i 
~
 

<D
 

(1
17

) 
55

 ~
 

0 
....

.. 
<D

 
,,..

.. 
,,..

.. 
,,..

.. 
:::c

 
,,..

.. 
,,..

.. 
~
 

v
i 

N
 

v
i 

N
 

0 
0 

~
 

C
 

...
..,

 
<D

 

0 
<D

 
....

.. 
...

..,
 

2.
 

.e 
....

., 
.....

, 
0 

;
. 

C
T 

0 
~-

::
, 

:::
0 

:::
0 

0 
0 

C
 

C
 

a.
 

a.
 

t\.
 

TR
AF

Fl
C

 
EN

G
IN

EE
R

IN
G

 
LE

G
EN

D
 

~
 AS

SO
C

IA
TE

S,
 

IN
C

. 
XX

X 
~
 

P
k 

H
r 

{7
:4

5
-8

:4
5

 ~
)
 V

ol
um

es
 

FI
G

U
R

E
 

1:
 

E
xi

st
in

g 
T

ra
ff

ic
 

-
P

ea
k 

H
o

u
rs

 
PO

 
B

ox
 

10
0 

S
ar

an
ac

, 
M

l 
48

88
1 

{X
X

X
) 

PM
 

P
k 

H
r 

{5
:0

0
-8

:0
0

 
P

M
) 

V
ol

um
es

 
I SC

AL
E:

 
I PA

G
E:

 
P

H
O

N
E

: 
{5

1
7

) 
6

2
7

-6
0

2
8

 
D

AT
E:

 
O

ct
ob

er
, 

20
18

 
N

TS
 

7 



 

 

8 

LEVEL OF SERVICE ANALYSIS FOR EXISTING TRAFFIC 
 
The critical intersections defined for this study were analyzed according to the methodologies 
published in the most recent edition of the Highway Capacity Manual.  The analysis 
determines the “Level of Service” of the intersections and is based on factors such as the 
number and types of lanes, signal timing, traffic volumes, pedestrian activity, etc.  The level 
of service (LOS) is defined by average vehicle delay in seconds created by a traffic control 
device for a given traffic movement or intersection approach.   
 

 
Level of Service 

 
Delay per Vehicle (seconds) 

 
Non-Signalized Signalized 

A < 10 <10 
B 10 to 15 10 to 20 
C 15 to 25 20 to 35 
D 25 to 35 35 to 55 
E 35 to 50 55 to 80 
F > 50 > 80 

 
Levels of Service are expressed in a range from “A” to “F,” with “A” being the highest LOS 
and “F” representing the lowest LOS.  Level of service “D” is considered the minimum 
acceptable LOS in an urban area.   
 
The above table shows the thresholds for Levels of Service “A” through “F” for non-
signalized and signalized intersections, respectively. 
 
All Level of Service computations contained in this report were based upon the Synchro 
software package which is approved by the Michigan Department of Transportation 
(MDOT). Delay per vehicle includes initial deceleration delay, queue move-up time, stopped 
delay, and final acceleration delay. 
 
The Level of Service analysis for existing traffic at the subject intersections during the peak 
hours is summarized in Table 1.  All existing turning movements at the studied intersections 
operate at an acceptable level of service (LOS D or better). 

 



 

 

9 

 
Table 1 

Level of Service (LOS) Summary 
Existing Traffic 

 

Location Movement 
Weekday 

AM Peak Hour 
Weekday 

PM Peak Hour 
  Avg. 

Delay LOS Avg. 
Delay LOS 

 
Grand River Avenue (M-43) 
and Central Park Drive/ 
Dobie Road 

 
EB Left 
EB Thru 
EB Right 
WB Left 
WB Thru-Right 
NB Left 
NB Thru-Right 
SB Left 
SB Thru 
SB Right 
Intersection 
 

 
14.8 
7.9 
7.7 
8.7 
12.0 
24.3 
18.9 
22.2 
19.1 
17.5 
14.0 

 
B 
A 
A 
A 
B 
C 
B 
C 
B 
B 
B 

 
22.7 
16.4 
13.5 
19.8 
17.2 
18.2 
14.5 
22.9 
13.7 
11.9 
16.7 

 
C 
B 
B 
B 
B 
B 
B 
C 
B 
B 
B 

 
Grand River Avenue (M-43) 
and Hamilton Road 

 
EB Thru-Right 
WB Left 
WB Thru 
NB Left-Right 
Intersection 
 

 
0.0 
9.3 
0.0 
15.2 
3.5 

 
A 
A 
A 
C 
A 

 
0.0 
11.0 
0.0 
25.4 
4.9 

 
A 
B 
A 
D 
A 

 
Note:  Delay = Average control delay per vehicle in seconds.   

LOS = Level of Service 



 

 

10 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

BACKGROUND CONDITIONS  



 

 

11 

BACKGROUND TRAFFIC VOLUMES – GROWTH RELATED  
 
Background traffic represents future volumes without the traffic generated by the proposed 
Fox Nissan Dealership development.  The target year for completion is the spring of 2020 
(1.5 years).   
 
According to the US Census Bureau, the exponential annual growth rate for the population of 
Meridian Charter Township from 2010 to 2017 was one point zero four percent (1.04%) over 
a seven (7) year period, and the exponential annual growth rate for the population of Ingham 
County was zero point four seven percent (0.47%) for the same time period.  For the 
purposes of this study, a one percent (1.0%) growth rate was applied over one and one-half 
(1.5) years to the proposed completion date of spring of 2020.  Background traffic growth 
volumes are illustrated in Figure 2. 
 
 
BACKGROUND TRAFFIC VOLUMES – DEVELOPMENT RELATED 
 
There were no new developments identified by the Meridian Charter Township Planning 
Department in the immediate area that would influence the background traffic for the 
proposed Fox Nissan Dealership development; therefore, no background developments were 
included in the study. 
 



(
)
 

<D
 

::
, 

r+
 

cl "'O
 

C
 ;_L
 

0 ::!
. ii 

,,...
. ,

,....
 

,-
...

 
N

 
~
 

0
)
 

-..
J 

<D
 

~
 

N
 

v
i 

._
, 

._
, 

._
, 

I<
::.

_ 
68

 
(2

0
3

) 

is: 
t 

~ 
~
 7

81
 

(4
3

4
) 

~
 9

2
4

 
(6

3
5

) 
I 

I 
I 

,r
 2

7
 

(1
8

) 
. 

,r
 3

4
2

 
(1

0
5

) 
ft

 
,J

, 
~
 

G
ra

nd
 

R
iv

er
 

A
ve

nu
e 

(M
-4

3
) 

(8
3

) 
2

6
 

__
:,..

 
~
 
1 

r 
(8

7
9

) 
3

0
8

 ~
 

~
 
r 

(7
0

8
) 

2
1

5
 ~
 

(3
3

) 
0 
~
 

v
1

..
.a

.<
0

 
..

.a
.N

 
(1

1
9

) 
56

 
~
 

v1
 

«>
 

~
 

-=
-c

:.N
 

:::c
: 

U
U

 
....

.. 
....

.. 
....

.. 
C

 
...

._
, 

0 
~

v
1

._
, 

3 
(J

I 
a' 

...._
,.._

,, 
=

 
._, 

~
 

~
 

<D
 

::
, 

~
 

~
 

0 
0 

C
 

C
 

~
 

~
 

t,
 

'"W
1s

&:~
~~

~~
G 

LE
G

EN
D

 
FI

G
U

R
E

 
2:

 
B

a
ck

g
ro

u
n

d
 

T
ra

ff
ic

 
-

P
ea

k 
H

o
u

rs
 

1
6

'\
. 

PO
 

B
ox

 
10

0 
XX

X 
~
 P

k 
H

r 
{7

:4
5

-8
:4

5
 ~

)
 V

ol
um

es
 

~
~
 

P
H

:~
"(

~
1

7
)1 

6
2

~
2

8
 

{X
X

X
) 

PM
 

Pk
 

H
r 

{S
:O

O
-S

:O
O

 
PM

) 
V

ol
um

es
 

DA
TE

: 
O

ct
ob

er
, 

20
18

 
I SC

AL
E:

 
N

TS
 

I PA
G

E:
 

12
 



 

 

13 

 

LEVEL OF SERVICE ANALYSIS FOR BACKGROUND TRAFFIC 
 
The level of service analysis for background 2020 traffic is summarized in Table 2.  All 
existing roadway geometrics and traffic control devices were utilized for the background 
analysis.  Under background conditions, it is anticipated that all movements at the studied 
intersections will continue to operate at an acceptable level of service (LOS D or better). 
 
 
 

 



 

 

14 

Table 2 
Level of Service (LOS) Summary 

Background Traffic 
 

Location Movement 
Weekday 

AM Peak Hour 
Weekday 

PM Peak Hour 
  Avg. 

Delay LOS Avg. 
Delay LOS 

 
Grand River Avenue (M-43) 
and Central Park Drive/ 
Dobie Road 

 
EB Left 
EB Thru 
EB Right 
WB Left 
WB Thru-Right 
NB Left 
NB Thru-Right 
SB Left 
SB Thru 
SB Right 
Intersection 
 

 
15.3 
8.0 
7.8 
8.9 
12.3 
24.2 
18.7 
22.1 
18.9 
17.4 
14.1 

 
B 
A 
A 
A 
B 
C 
B 
C 
B 
B 
B 

 
23.6 
16.9 
13.8 
20.4 
17.8 
18.1 
14.3 
23.2 
13.5 
11.7 
17.0 

 
C 
B 
B 
C 
B 
B 
B 
C 
B 
B 
B 

 
Grand River Avenue (M-43) 
and Hamilton Road 

 
EB Thru-Right 
WB Left 
WB Thru 
NB Left-Right 
Intersection 
 

 
0.0 
9.4 
0.0 
15.7 
3.5 

 
A 
A 
A 
C 
A 

 
0.0 
11.2 
0.0 
27.0 
5.2 

 
A 
B 
A 
D 
A 
 

 
Note:  Delay = Average control delay per vehicle in seconds.   

LOS = Level of Service



 

 

15 

 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

FUTURE CONDITIONS 



 

 

16 

SITE TRAFFIC GENERATION 
 
The trip generation rates for the proposed Fox Nissan Dealership were derived from the ITE 
TRIP GENERATION MANUAL (10th edition).  The ITE trip generation rates for 
Automobile Sales (New) (Land Use Code 840), were selected as representing the 24,500 
square foot dealership.  The ITE description of Automobile Sales (New) is as follows: 
 
A new automobile sales dealership is typically located along a major arterial street 
characterized by abundant commercial development. The sale or leasing of new cars is the 
primary business at these facilities; however, automobile services, parts sales, and used car 
sales may also be available. Some dealerships also include leasing options, truck sales, and 
servicing. 
  
It is projected that the proposed Fox Nissan Dealership will generate 46 vehicle trips in the 
AM peak hour, 66 vehicle trips in the PM peak hour, and 672 weekday trips.  The projected 
traffic to be generated by the Fox Nissan Dealership is summarized in Table 3.   
 



 

 

17 

 
 
 

 
 

Table 3 
Vehicle Trip Generation Summary 
Fox Nissan Dealership Development 

 

Land Use Size 
AM Peak Hour PM Peak Hour 

Weekday In Out Total In Out Total 
Automobile Sales 
(New), Land Use 
Code 840 

24,500 
sq. ft. 34 12 46 26 40 66 672 

Total Trips 34 12 46 26 40 66 672 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 



 

 

18 

SITE TRAFFIC DISTRIBUTION 
 
Traffic distribution for the proposed Fox Nissan Dealership development was distributed 
based on the surrounding roadway patterns. Typically, a commercial development is a 
destination type of facility; therefore, the existing, entering traffic pattern on the roadway 
system during the morning and evening peak hours dictated the distribution of the proposed 
new site traffic for this study.  The distribution for the commercial generated traffic is as 
follows. 
 

 
Direction of Approach and Departure AM Peak 

Hour 
PM Peak 

Hour 
To/From the North on Central Park Drive 12% 18% 
To/From the South on Dobie Road 12% 15% 
To/From the East on Grand River Avenue (M-43) 57% 25% 
To/From the West on Grand River Avenue (M-43) 13% 31% 
To/From the South on Hamilton Road 6% 11% 

 
 
Traffic was further distributed by driveway.  Given the main entrance is on Grand River 
Avenue (M-43), and the volumes on Grand River Avenue (M-43) are higher than Central 
Park Drive, eighty percent (80%) of the traffic was distributed to that driveway location.  The 
remaining twenty percent (20%) was distributed to the driveway on Central Park Drive. 
 
The total estimated site generated traffic for the proposed Fox Nissan Dealership 
development during the AM and PM peak hours is illustrated in Figure 3. 
 
Adding the project site traffic (Figure 3) to the background traffic (Figure 2) generates the 
total anticipated future traffic which is displayed in Figure 4. 
 



ui
' 

.....
. "'" 

IL
 

1 
(7

) 

~ 
,r

 1
 

(1
) 

r 
P

ro
po

se
d 

D
riv

e 

(
)
 

v
i 

CD
 

§ 
:::

, .... ., 9..
 

"'O
 

C
 

0 
;;i

 "'
O 

., .,_ 
2: 

X
 
0 

0 
co

 z
-o

 
"'O

 
~· 

-,
 
-
•
0

 
., 

(/
) 

(/
) 

(/
) 

0 
CD

 
:::

:,-
C/

l 
CD

 
"'O

 
-

•
C

a
. 

"'O
 

:::
, 

0 C
l) CD

 
a

. 

0 
,,...

. ,
,....

 
:::

,. 
N

 
~
 

<
 

,,..
.. 

~
8

 
CD

 
.....

. 
~
 
~
 

1 
(1

2)
 

~
 

2 
(1

8)
 

v
i 

...
.. 

d 
,r

 1
 

(6
) 

G
ra

nd
 

R
iv

er
 

A
ve

nu
e 

(M
-4

3
) 

,r
 1

 
(4

) 
d 

~ 
IL

 
19

 
(6

) 

(0
) 

2 
..

..
:f

\ 
1' 

r 
(1

2)
 

6 
~
 

r 
(1

5)
 

8 
..

..
:f

\ 

(8
) 

3 
~
 

~
 

v
i 

N
 

0
~

 
~
 

....
....

....
 

:::c
 

C
 

0 
~.

 
0 

;::
;: 

0
-

0 
m·

 
:::

, 

:;o
 

:;o
 

0 
0 

C
 

C
 

a
. 

a
. 

t\.
 

TR
A

FF
lC

 
EN

G
IN

EE
RI

N
G

 
LE

G
EN

D
 

~
 A

SS
O

CI
A

TE
S,

 
IN

C.
 

FI
G

U
R

E
 

3:
 

S
ite

 
T

ra
ff

ic
 

-
P

ea
k 

H
o

u
rs

 
PO

 
B

ox
 

10
0 

XX
X 
~
 

Pk
 

H
r 

{7
:4

5
-8

:4
5

 ~
)
 V

ol
um

es
 

S
ar

an
ac

, 
M

l 
48

88
1 

{X
X

X
) 

PM
 

P
k 

H
r 

{5
:0

0
-8

:0
0

 P
M

) 
V

ol
um

es
 

I SC
AL

E:
 

I PA
G

E:
 

PH
O

N
E:

 
{5

17
) 

6
2

7
-6

0
2

8
 

DA
TE

: 
O

ct
ob

er
, 

20
18

 
N

TS
 

19
 



ui
' 

I\
) 

..
..

..
 

O
> 

(J
I 

._.
.. 

._.
.. 

I\
) 

a>
 
~
 

1 
(7

) 
0

"
'"

 

J, 
~ 

,r
 1

 
(1

) 

i 
r 

P
ro

po
se

d 
D

riv
e 

(
)
 

I\
) 

v
,I

 
~
 

(D
 

v
,I

 
:::

, .... 
0

1
0

 
., 9..

 
co

 
._.

.. 
~
 

-0
 

C
 

o;
;1

-u
 

., "' 
2: 

X
 
0 

0 
co

 z
-o

 
-0

 
~· 

-,
 
-
•
0

 
., 

(/
) 

(/
) 

(/
) 

0 
(D

 
:::

:,-
(/

) 
(D

 
"'O

 
-

•
C

a
. 

"'O
 

::
, 

0 C
l) (D

 
a

. 
....

....
....

 
..

-
.1

\
)
 
~
 

0 
O

> 
-.

J 
co

 
~
~
~
 

....
....

....
 

::,
. 

I
\
)
~

 
<

 
~
 

68
 

(2
03

) 
~

8
 

(D
 

v
,I

"
'"

 
-.

J 
~
 

78
2 

(4
46

) 
~
 

92
6 

(6
53

) 
v
,I

 
-.

J 
~
 

19
 

(6
) 

co
 

v
,I

 
co

 

J 
J, 

~ 
,r

 2
8

 
(2

4)
 

G
ra

nd
 

R
iv

er
 

A
ve

nu
e 

(M
-4

3
) 

,r
 3

43
 

(1
09

) 
J 

~ 
~
 

12
66

 
(7

40
) 

(8
3)

 
28

 .
...

:f\
 

~ 
i 

r 
(9

09
) 

3
1

4
 ~
 

~ 
r 

(1
5)

 
8 

_
:1

\ 

(7
16

) 
2

1
8

 ~
 

~
~

I
\
)
 

(3
3)

 
0

~
 

~
 
~
 

(1
20

2)
 

42
9 
~
 

v
,I

 
I\

) 
I\

) 
~
 

I\
) 

(1
19

) 
56

 ~
 

v
,I

 
0 

v
,I

 

.....
. ..

.... 
.....

. 
:::c

 
....

....
....

 
~
 

v,
I 

I\
) 

v
,I

 
v
,I

 
~

~
(
J
I
 

C
 

._
...

 
0 

0 
~
 

v,
I 

._
..

. 
~.

 
OD

 
._.

.. 
._.

.. 
._.

.. 
0 

;::
;: 

0
-

0 
iii

' 
:::

, 

:;o
 

:;o
 

0 
0 

C
 

C
 

a
. 

a
. 

t\.
 

TR
AF

Fl
C

 
EN

G
IN

EE
R

IN
G

 
LE

G
EN

D
 

~
 AS

SO
C

IA
TE

S,
 

IN
C

. 
FI

G
U

R
E

 
4:

 
F

u
tu

re
 

T
ra

ff
ic

 
-

P
ea

k 
H

ou
rs

 
PO

 
B

ox
 

10
0 

XX
X 
~
 

P
k 

H
r 

{7
:4

5
-8

:4
5

 ~
)
 V

ol
um

es
 

S
or

an
ac

, 
M

l 
48

88
1 

{X
X

X
) 

PM
 

P
k 

H
r 

{5
:0

0
-8

:0
0

 
P

M
) 

V
ol

um
es

 
I SC

AL
E:

 
I PA

G
E:

 
P

H
O

N
E

: 
{5

1
7

) 
6

2
7

-6
0

2
8

 
DA

TE
: 

O
ct

ob
er

, 
20

18
 

N
TS

 
20

 



 

 

21 

LEVEL OF SERVICE ANALYSIS FOR FUTURE TRAFFIC 
 
The level of service analysis for future traffic is summarized in Table 4.  Comparing future 
level of service conditions to background level of service conditions determines the impact 
on the surrounding road system that can be expected from the addition of new traffic 
generated from the Fox Nissan Dealership development. 
 
All existing roadway geometrics and traffic control devices were used for the future analysis.  
The two (2) proposed new driveways were modeled with one (1) inbound lane and one (1) 
outbound lane.  Under future conditions, it is projected that all movements at the studied 
intersections will continue to operate at an acceptable level of service (LOS D or better). 
 
 

 
 



 

 

22 

Table 4 
Level of Service (LOS) Summary 

Future Traffic 
 

Location Movement 
Weekday 

AM Peak Hour 
Weekday 

PM Peak Hour 
  Avg. 

Delay LOS Avg. 
Delay LOS 

 
Grand River Avenue (M-43) 
and Central Park Drive/ 
Dobie Road 

 
EB Left 
EB Thru 
EB Right 
WB Left 
WB Thru-Right 
NB Left 
NB Thru-Right 
SB Left 
SB Thru 
SB Right 
Intersection 
 

 
15.5 
8.1 
7.8 
9.0 
12.3 
24.2 
18.8 
22.2 
18.9 
17.4 
14.2 

 
B 
A 
A 
A 
B 
C 
B 
C 
B 
B 
B 

 
24.1 
17.1 
13.9 
21.1 
18.1 
18.0 
14.3 
23.3 
13.5 
11.6 
17.1 

 
C 
B 
B 
C 
B 
B 
B 
C 
B 
B 
B 

 
Grand River Avenue (M-43) 
and Hamilton Road 

 
EB Thru-Right 
WB Left 
WB Thru 
NB Left-Right 
Intersection 
 

 
0.0 
9.4 
0.0 
15.7 
3.5 

 
A 
A 
A 
C 
A 

 
0.0 
11.3 
0.0 
28.3 
5.3 

 
A 
B 
A 
D 
A 

 
Grand River Avenue (M-43) 
and Proposed Drive 

 
EB Left 
EB Thru 
WB Thru-Right 
SB Left-Right 
Intersection 
 

 
13.4 
0.0 
0.0 
25.9 
0.2 

 
B 
A 
A 
D 
A 

 
9.5 
0.0 
0.0 
14.4 
0.3 

 
A 
A 
A 
B 
A 

 
Central Park Drive and 
Proposed Drive 

 
WB Left-Right 
NB Thru-Right 
SB Left 
SB Thru 
Intersection 
 

 
9.8 
0.0 
7.7 
0.0 
0.1 

 
A 
A 
A 
A 
A 

 
11.0 
0.0 
8.8 
0.0 
0.1 

 
B 
A 
A 
A 
A 

Note:  Delay = Average control delay per vehicle in seconds.   
LOS = Level of Service 



 

 

23 

 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

SIGNIFICANT FINDINGS  



 

 

24 

ANALYSIS FOR A RECOMMENDED RIGHT TURN TREATMENT  
  
Using the MDOT Traffic and Safety “Geometric Design Guidance Document,” Traffic 
Volume Guidelines for Right-Turn Lanes and Tapers, the results show that the projected 
right turn volumes, during both the AM and PM peak hours, do not meet the criteria for a 
right turn lane or taper at either of the proposed driveways.  
 
 
ANALYSIS FOR A RECOMMENDED LEFT-TURN TREATMENT 
 
Grand River Avenue (M-43) currently has a two-way center left turn lane; however, Central 
Park Drive transitions to a four-lane cross section where the proposed driveway is located.  
Using MDOT Traffic and Safety “Geometric Design Guidance Document,” Traffic Volume 
Guidelines for Left-Turn Lanes and Passing Flares at Unsignalized Intersections, the results 
show that the projected left turn volumes, during both the AM and PM peak hour, do not 
meet the criteria for a left turn lane at the proposed driveway on Central Park Drive; 
therefore, extension of the two-way left turn lane north of the proposed driveway is not 
justified based on projected left turn volumes. 
 

RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
The findings of this study show that there are no recommendations to the existing road 
system based on projected volumes. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

25 

 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION 
 



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Supplemental Information 
 

Site Plan 
Vehicle Volume Counts 
MDOT Guidelines for Right-Turn Lanes and Tapers 
MDOT Guidelines for Left-Turn Lanes and Passing Flares 
LOS Computations 

 
 
     

 
 
 

 
 



NATURAL FEATURES ASSESSMENT 
 
 

  for the 
 
 

W. Grand River Avenue and Central Park Drive 
Section 22, Meridian Township, Michigan 

 
 

Prepared for: 
 
 

Mr. Colin Schiefler 
DP Fox dba Green Castle Properties, LLC 

200 Ottawa Ave., NW #800 
Grand Rapids, MI 49506 

  
Prepared by: 

 
 

Marx Wetlands, LLC  
 

9/24/2018

MARX 
WETLANDS 
LLC 



Natural Features Assessment 
W. Grand River Avenue & Central Park Drive 

Meridian Township, Ingham County, Michigan 

  i 
 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
Section  Page 

1.0 INTRODUCTION .................................................................................................................. 1 

2.0 SITE LOCATION AND PROJECT DESCRIPTION .................................................................... 1 

3.0 METHODS ........................................................................................................................... 2 

4.0 RESULTS, FINDINGS, AND DISCUSSION ............................................................................. 2 

4.1 Existing Structures, Materials, and Adjacent Land use ....................................................... 2 
4.2 Topography ......................................................................................................................... 3 
4.3 Vegetation ........................................................................................................................... 3 
4.4 Significant Tree Inventory ................................................................................................... 7 
4.5 Wetlands ............................................................................................................................. 7 
4.6 Special Flood Hazard Area .................................................................................................. 9 
4.7 Floodways ......................................................................................................................... 10 
4.8 Water Bodies ..................................................................................................................... 10 
4.9 Soils ................................................................................................................................... 10 
4.10 Identified Areas of Groundwater Vulnerability ................................................................ 11 
4.11 Slopes Greater than 20 Percent ........................................................................................ 11 
4.12 Wildlife .............................................................................................................................. 11 

5.0 CONCLUSIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS ..................................................................... 12 

 
APPENDICES 
 
I. Figure 1: Site Location Map  
 Figure 2: Aerial Imagery Map 
 Figure 3: Presettlement Vegetation/MNFI ca. 1800 map 
 Figure 4: Township Natural Features Map 
 Figure 5: National Wetland Inventory Map 
 Figure 6: Flood Insurance Rate Map 
 Figure 7: County Soils Survey Map 
II. Vegetation Lists 
III.  NFE’s Tree Survey Results 
IV.     Marx Wetlands Wetland Delineation Report (Dated September 24, 2018) 
 



Natural Features Assessment 
W. Grand River Avenue & Central Park Drive 

Meridian Township, Ingham County, Michigan 

  1 

1.0 INTRODUCTION 
 
Marx Wetlands, LLC (MW) was contracted by DP Fox dba Green Castle Properties, LLC to perform 
a natural features assessment for an approximately 9-acre Assessment Area consisting of three 
(3) parcels (#33-02-02-22-252-003, 33-02-02-22-401-003, and 33-02-02-22-426-001) for the 
above-referenced (“Site”). The Site is located on the east side of Central Park Drive on the north 
side of Grand River Avenue within Section 22 of Meridian Township (T4N, R1W) of Ingham 
County, Michigan. 
 
As part of a Special Use Permit Application, the Charter Township of Meridian Department of 
Community Planning and Development requires a “Natural Features Assessment,” which is to 
include “a written description of the anticipated impacts on the natural features at each phase 
and at project completion that contains the following: 

a. An inventory of natural features proposed to be retained, removed, or modified. 
Natural features shall include, but are not limited to, wetlands, significant stands of 
trees or individual trees greater than 12 inches dbh, floodways, floodplains, water 
bodies, identified groundwater vulnerable areas, slopes greater than 20 percent, 
ravines, and vegetative cover types with potential to sustain significant or endangered 
wildlife. 

b.  Description of the impacts on natural features. 
c.  Description of any proposed efforts to mitigate any negative impacts.” 

 
After obtaining site location information, MW conducted desktop information reviews, site 
assessments, a wetland determination and delineation, and information analysis to help address 
the Township’s natural features assessment requirements. In addition, a tree survey was 
conducted by Nowak & Fraus Engineers (NFE) and their tree survey results are included in this 
report as well. 
 
2.0 SITE LOCATION AND PROJECT DESCRIPTION 
 
The approximately 9-acre Site is located on the east side of Central Park Drive on the north side 
of Grand River Avenue within Section 22 of Meridian Township (T4N, R1W) of Ingham County, 
Michigan.  Green Castle (Developer) is proposing to construct an approximately 25,000 square 
foot one-story Nissan car dealership building and associated parking and utility infrastructure.  
The proposed building and parking facilities on this parcel will be completed in one phase.  Prior 
to site clearing and grading, soil erosion and sediment control measures will be installed and will 
be inspected and maintained during the construction project.  All soil erosion and sedimentation 
control measures will be removed upon completion of construction and stabilization.  Please 
refer to Figure 1: Site Location Map in Appendix I.  
 
Based on review of aerial photographs and the on-site visits, the Site is largely vacant, 
undeveloped land consisting of areas of upland field, scrub-shrub, forest, mixed deciduous tree 
lines, and wetland.  The Site also contains existing vacated houses, a barn, in-ground pool, and 
associated lawn, particularly in the central and southern portions of the Site.  In addition, existing 



Natural Features Assessment 
W. Grand River Avenue & Central Park Drive 

Meridian Township, Ingham County, Michigan 

Marx Wetlands, LLC    
Natural Features Assessment  2 

driveways and mowed paths were also observed.  The Site is situated within a largely commercial 
and residential region of Meridian Township, Michigan. The Site is bounded by undeveloped land 
to the north, commercial development/Central Park Drive to the west, W. Grand River Avenue 
to the south, and undeveloped land/commercial buildings to the east. 
 
The topography of the Site is relatively flat, with a gradual lowering of grade toward eastern 
boundary.  The southeastern portion of the Site contains an upland berm that appears to have 
been created associated with the off-site pond.  The Site contains field vegetation, scattered trees 
and shrubs, and tree rows. Refer to the Figure 2: Aerial Imagery Map in Appendix I. 
 
3.0 METHODS 
 
MW conducted a desktop review for the Site using existing information and imagery, including 
the United States Geological Service (USGS) topographic map, aerial photographs, National 
Wetland Inventory (NWI) map, county soil survey map, Federal Emergency Management Agency 
(FEMA) Flood Insurance Rate Map (FIRM), and Meridian Township’s Natural Features Map, which 
primarily includes wetlands and floodplains.   
 
On September 17 & 18, 2018, MW conducted an on-site assessment and a wetland 
determination and delineation. The on-site assessment consisted of a site reconnaissance to 
evaluate the current and prior land use, conduct habitat type determination, habitat quality 
evaluation, wetland determination and delineation, wildlife observations, and floodplain or other 
special concern observations.   
 
The wetland determination and delineation was performed in accordance with the Michigan 
Department of Environmental Quality Wetland Identification Manual (2001), the Northcentral-
Northeast Manual to the 1987 U.S. Army Corps of Engineers Wetland Delineation Manual.  The 
wetland determination consisted of desktop review of available background documentation and 
mapping followed by two (2) site visits performed on September 17 & 18, 2018.   
 
The findings from the desktop review, site assessment, and wetland delineation were combined 
to help interpret the Site’s natural features and evaluate potential project impacts upon those 
natural features. 
 
4.0 RESULTS, FINDINGS, AND DISCUSSION  

4.1 Existing Structures, Materials, and Adjacent Land use 
The Site contains existing vacated houses, a barn, an abandoned in-ground pool, and associated 
lawn, particularly in the central and southern portions of the Site.  In addition, existing driveways 
and mowed paths were also observed.  In addition, an overhead electric distribution line also 
transects the southeastern portions of the Site.  
 
The Site is situated within a largely commercial and residential region of Meridian Township, 
Michigan. The Site is bounded by undeveloped land to the north, commercial 



Natural Features Assessment 
W. Grand River Avenue & Central Park Drive 

Meridian Township, Ingham County, Michigan 

Marx Wetlands, LLC    
Natural Features Assessment  3 

development/Central Park Drive to the west, W. Grand River Avenue to the south, and 
undeveloped land/commercial buildings to the east.  Refer to Figure 2: Aerial Imagery Map in 
Appendix I. 

  

Photograph 1.  View of the vacant and undeveloped 
parcel (northernmost parcel #22-252-003) 

Photograph 2.  View of the southern boundary of 
the Site north along W. Grand River Avenue. 
(Residential parcels #22-401-003 & 22-426-001).  

 

4.2 Topography 
The Site is relatively flat ranging in elevation between approximately 860 to 870 feet above sea 
level (asl).  Gradual sloping and local microtopographic relief was observed within the Site, 
particularly near wetland areas and along the eastern boundary adjacent to the off-site pond.  An 
upland berm was observed along the eastern boundary of the Site, which appears to have been 
constructed to enclose the off-site pond.  Refer to Figure 1: Site Location Map in Appendix I.  

4.3 Vegetation 
A vegetation assessment was conducted during the on-site visits to describe the dominant cover 
or community types observed throughout the Site.  Based on review of aerial photographs and 
the on-site visits, the northern parcel of the Site is largely vacant, undeveloped land consisting of 
areas of upland field, scrub-shrub, mixed deciduous forest patches/tree lines, and wetland.  In 
addition, the residential parcels also contain maintained lawn scattered with landscaped trees 
and shrubs.  
 
MW found two distinct community types present on the Site; old field/lawn and scrub-
shrub/forested/tree lines.  Most of the Site contains old field/lawn, which is characterized by 
herbaceous vegetation, grasses, shrubs, and scattered trees or clusters of landscaped or planted 
trees near the existing residences.  In addition, along the site’s northern and western peripheries, 
upland tree lines or rows of planted trees were observed including: pines and spruces with 
scattered native hardwood trees. The descriptions of the two main cover types are described 
below:  
 



Natural Features Assessment 
W. Grand River Avenue & Central Park Drive 

Meridian Township, Ingham County, Michigan 

Marx Wetlands, LLC    
Natural Features Assessment  4 

Cover Type Descriptions 
 
Open Fields/Lawn 
Upland herbaceous species found in the open fields or lawn include orchard grass (Dactylus 
glomerata), common milkweed (Asclepias syriaca), white vervain, smooth brome (Bromus 
inermis), Japanese hedge-parsley (Torilis japonica), bluegrasses (Poa pratensis & P. compressa), 
timothy (Phleum pratense), mugwort (Artemisia vulgaris), common plantain (Plantago major), 
white vervain (Verbena urticifolia), Queen Anne’s lace (Daucus carota), and thistles (Cirsium 
arvense and C. vulgare).  In addition, scattered prairie remnant species were also observed such 
as little bluestem (Schizachyrium scoparium), broom-sedge (Andropogon virginicus), and 
goldenrods (Solidago altissima and S. canadensis), particularly in the northeast corner of the 
overall Site.  Scattered trees and shrub species observed include: Norway maple (Acer 
platanoides), cottonwood (Populus deltoides), multi-flora rose (Rosa multiflora), autumn-olive 
(Elaeagnus umbellata), blackberry (Rubus allegheniensis), and black raspberry (Rubus 
occidentalis).    
 
Scrub-shrub/Forested/Tree Lines 
The upland, scrub-shrub and mixed deciduous forested areas, including the tree lines generally 
contain the following species: penn sedge (Carex pennsylvanica), orchard grass, white vervain, 
Virginia creeper (Parthenocissus quinquefolia), red pine (Pinus resinosa), Austrian pine (Pinus 
nigra), white pine (Pinus strobus), black locust (Robinia pseudoacacia), Scotch pine (Pinus 
sylvestris), white spruce (Picea glauca), blue spruce (Picea pungens), crabapple/apple (Malus 
spp.), black walnut (Juglans nigra), box-elder (Acer negundo), black cherry (Prunus serotina), 
cottonwood, scattered with sugar maple (Acer saccharum), silver maple (Acer saccharinum),  
oaks (Quercus alba and Q. rubra), basswood (Tilia americana),  white mulberry (Morus alba), 
sycamore (Platanus occidentalis), American elm (Ulmus americana), trembling aspen (Populus 
tremuloides), and ash (Fraxinus spp.) trees.  Common native and non-native shrub species include 
autumn-olive, dogwoods (Cornus amomum and C. racemosa), common buckthorn (Rhamnus 
cathartica), blackberry and black raspberry.   
 
Vegetation Assessment 
Several species associated with disturbed lands in the Great Lakes region were observed 
throughout these parcels.  These include non-native species, invasive species, native species that 
are tolerant of human land uses, and native pioneer species that normally colonize land after 
activities are abandoned.  Examples of these species present on the Site include Japanese hedge-
parsley (non-native), mugwort, common plantain, orchard grass (non-native), autumn-olive 
(invasive), black locust, multiflora rose (invasive), tall goldenrod (weedy), white vervain (native 
but tolerant of human land uses), and cottonwood/trembling aspen (pioneer species, early 
successional species).  The weedy aspect of the Site is likely due to possible previous agricultural 
land use or another site disturbance on-site or adjacent lands.   

The Vegetation ca. 1800 map produced by the Michigan Natural Features Inventory (MNFI) shows 
the Site appears to be part of an extensive oak-hickory forest that once extended many miles 
northward from the Red Cedar River.  Refer to Figure 3: Pre-settlement Vegetation/MNFI ca. 1800 



Natural Features Assessment 
W. Grand River Avenue & Central Park Drive 

Meridian Township, Ingham County, Michigan 

Marx Wetlands, LLC    
Natural Features Assessment  5 

map in Appendix I. Prior to extensive land clearing, these forests were found throughout 
Michigan in a wide range of site conditions; however, these forests generally prefer moist, well-
drained, loamy soils.  These forests often contained a wide variety of (non-oak/hickory) tree 
species, such as are red maple, bigtooth aspen, black cherry, white pine, basswood, white ash, 
sugar maple, green ash, American elm, and red pine.  These forests were commonly cleared for 
agricultural production, and it is likely that most of the Site was cleared many decades ago for 
this purpose; notice the light (gray/tan) color indicating open land in the 1983 USGS Topographic 
map (refer to Figure 1 in Appendix I). However, as twentieth century commercial and residential 
development began to fill in lands between East Lansing and Okemos, the northernmost parcel 
of the Site was likely left idle due to the infeasibility of continuing agriculture on a small scale.  As 
a result, the Site contains both native and non-native plants that are adept to recolonize.  There 
is evidence that as this recolonization progressed the Site became brushier, particularly in the 
northern undeveloped/vacant parcel where autumn-olive and common buckthorn has formed 
thicket areas. The field/lawn habitat’s low native mean Coefficient of Conservatism of 2.3 is an 
overall indicator that this Site was subject to possible disturbances in the past. 

The mixed deciduous tree lines or patches are dominated by planted pines, native hardwood 
forest trees, and relatively weedy shrubs and groundcover plants. This assemblage includes both 
native and non-native species.  Examples of the species present on the Site include planted 
red/Austrian pine, planted white pine, naturally established black walnut, non-native black locust 
(weedy), and non-native smooth brome, common buckthorn (invasive), and autumn-olive 
(invasive).  The tree lines or forested patches are located primarily along Central Park Drive and 
W. Grand River Avenue, which would normally have been cleared for agriculture; however, it is 
likely that due to the adjacent commercial and residential development, these forested portions 
were kept to serve as screening, privacy or wind/noise barriers.  The forested and tree lines also 
appear to contain remnant forest species, including scattered red oaks, maples, basswood, black 
cherry, cottonwood, and elm trees.  The changes on this Site over the last two-hundred years 
have not left any true remnant forests, although there are some remaining native species, which 
are possibly descendent and/or residual from the original oak-hickory forest that likely occurred 
within this location.  

Therefore, due to the possible previous disturbances of habitat fragmentation, full or partial prior 
clearing, surrounding commercial and residential development of the area, etc., the 
forested/scrub-shrub/tree lines also appear to contain a relatively weedy understory, rather than 
a native forest understory. The forested and tree line habitat’s low native mean Coefficient of 
Conservatism of 2.7 is an overall indicator that this site was modified in the past but does retain 
some native remnant species. Refer to the Vegetation Lists in Appendix II.  
  



Natural Features Assessment 
W. Grand River Avenue & Central Park Drive 

Meridian Township, Ingham County, Michigan 

Marx Wetlands, LLC    
Natural Features Assessment  6 

  
Photograph 3.  View of upland mixed deciduous 
forested patches, pine/spruce pines observed along 
the western boundary near Central Park Dr.   

Photograph 4.  View of mixed deciduous forested 
patches and open field observed primarily 
throughout the northernmost parcel.  

  
Photograph 5.  View of upland field and scrub-shrub 

areas. 
Photograph 6.  Tree line observed parcel boundary 
with both planted pines/spruce and remnant oak-

hickory forest trees. 

  
Photograph 7.  View of existing house and associated 
lawn with both scattered landscaped and native 
trees.  

Photograph 8.  View of existing mowed path and 
open upland fields, scrub-shrub.  An off-site forest is 
depicted in the background of this photograph.  



Natural Features Assessment 
W. Grand River Avenue & Central Park Drive 

Meridian Township, Ingham County, Michigan 

Marx Wetlands, LLC    
Natural Features Assessment  7 

Although the Developer intends to preserve as many trees as possible along the site boundaries, 
development of the Site will likely require clearing some existing vegetation.  Most of the Site 
contains upland open fields, non-native shrubs, planted trees, and lawns associated with the 
existing houses; however, there are a few areas of wetlands and native trees.  No formal 
mitigation for vegetation removal has been planned.  Traditional landscape grass, shrub, and tree 
plantings are expected for this development; however, no formal landscaping plans are designed 
at this time.  It is likely that much of the existing vegetation, particularly some of the large or 
remnant trees may be incorporated into the traditional landscaping to the maximum extent 
possible.  

4.4 Significant Tree Inventory 
Separate from the vegetation assessment conducted by MW, a tree survey was also conducted 
by Nowak & Fraus Engineers (NFE).  The survey included trees considered “significant” or 
deserving special protection because of their size, relative rarity, or historical importance.  During 
the inventory, trees with a diameter at breast height (DBH) (the standard measure for tree size) 
of 12 inches or greater were located on the Site and mapped.  The trees were identified to species 
and their size recorded (Appendix III).  Results of the inventory identified approximately 279 
significant trees within the Site.  Approximately 53% consisted of hardwood species and 
approximately 47% were softwood/conifer species.  Of the 279 trees, approximately 10 trees 
were larger than or equal to 30 inches in diameter, the largest being a willow (Salix spp.) with a 
diameter of 48 inches.  Thirty-three of the trees were between 20 and 30 inches and remaining 
239 trees were between 8 and 20 inches DBH. Refer to NFE’s Tree Survey Results in Appendix III. 

4.5 Wetlands 
Marx Wetlands LLC conducted a wetland determination and delineation while on the Site.  In 
accordance with the Midwestern Interim Regional Supplement to the 1987 U.S. Army Corps of 
Engineers Wetland Delineation Manual, wetlands are defined by the presence of three basic 
parameters: 1) the presence of hydrophytic vegetation (plants adapted to living in saturated 
soils), 2) hydric soils (distinctive soil types that develop under saturated conditions), and 3) 
wetland hydrology (the presence of water at or near the surface for a specific period of time).  
The above parameters are virtually always inter-related and normally present in wetland 
systems.  Marx Wetlands LLC identified six (6) wetlands (Wetlands A, B, C, D, E, and F) within the 
Site and/or along the site’s perimeters. No ponds or watercourses appear within the Site.  Refer 
to the Wetland Delineation Report included with this report in Appendix IV.   
 

Table 1.  Wetland Inventory Table: 
Feature 
Name Wetland Type Regulatory Status 

Wetland A Emergent (Forested Edge) Likely MDEQ and Township Non-Regulated; isolated and < 0.25 ac in size 

Wetland B Emergent (Forested Edge) Likely MDEQ and Township Non-Regulated; isolated and < 0.25 ac in size 

Wetland C Emergent Likely MDEQ and Township Non-Regulated; isolated and < 0.25 ac in size 

Wetland D Emergent Likely MDEQ & Township regulated; within 500 feet of off-site pond. 

Wetland E Emergent/ (Forested edge) Likely MDEQ & Township regulated; within 500 feet of off-site pond. 

Wetland F Emergent/ (Forested Edge) Likely MDEQ & Township regulated; within 500 feet of off-site pond  
 



Natural Features Assessment 
W. Grand River Avenue & Central Park Drive 

Meridian Township, Ingham County, Michigan 

Marx Wetlands, LLC    
Natural Features Assessment  8 

Most of the on-site wetlands are emergent wetland type or contain a small forested edge of 
overhanging trees, particularly Wetlands A, B, E, and F.  Wetlands C and D are small in field 
emergent wetlands.  Meridian Township Natural Features Map (Figure 4 in Appendix I) depicts 
two (2) township mapped wetland areas in the northwest corner and along the southeastern 
boundary of the Site adjacent to the off-site pond.  Wetlands A, B, E, and F generally correspond 
to those areas indicated by the Township’s map.  In addition, the National Wetland Inventory 
Map-NWI (Figure 5 in Appendix I) also indicates one wetland system along the southeastern 
boundary of the Site near the off-site pond, which appears to correspond to the on-site Wetlands 
E and F.   
 
Regulations 
 
State Regulations 
Part 301, Inland Lakes and Streams, states that a feature is considered a regulated watercourse 
by the MDEQ if it possesses a defined bed, bank, and evidence of continued flow or a continued 
occurrence of water.   Additionally, Part 301 states that if a pond with a surface area larger than 
five (5) acres should be considered regulated.  Based on the site visit, no watercourses or ponds 
were observed on-site.   However, there is an off-site pond east of parcel #33-02-02-22-426-001 
that appears to have an open water area that is larger than 1 acre in size, which would be 
considered a “regulating” feature.   
 
Part 303, Wetlands Protection, of the NREPA states that if a wetland is five acres in size or larger 
and/or connected to or located within 500 feet of a river, stream, lake, or pond, it is considered 
regulated by the MDEQ.  Marx Wetlands, LLC has the professional opinion that both Wetlands A, 
B, and C are not likely regulated by the MDEQ because they appear less than 5 acres in size and 
isolated (i.e., not connected to or located within 500 feet of a regulating feature).  However, 
Wetlands D, E, and F are likely within 500 feet of a regulating feature (i.e., off-site pond east of 
parcel #33-02-02-22-426-001).  Therefore, Marx Wetlands LLC has the professional opinion that 
Wetlands D, E, and F appear to meet the requirements of Part 303, Wetlands Protection, of the 
NREPA; and therefore, are likely regulated by the MDEQ. 
 
Local Regulations 
In addition, Meridian Township’s Chapter 22 Environment, Article IV Wetland Protection, states 
that protected wetlands include all wetlands subject to the regulation by the MDEQ as well as 
any wetlands two acres or more, in size, including the area of any contiguous inland lake, pond, 
river, or stream.  Any wetlands less than two acres in size and not connected to a body of water 
may still be regulated, if it is determined that the protection of the area is important for the 
preservation of the state’s natural resources. In addition, any wetlands, equal to or greater than 
one-quarter acre and equal to or less than two acres in size, which are not contiguous to any 
inland lake, stream, river or pond and are determined to be essential to the preservation of the 
natural resources of the Township (Meridian Township- Code 1974, § 105-3; Ord. No. 2002-02, 
3-19-2002; Ord. No. 2003-11, 7-6-2003; Ord. No. 2011-04, 3-15-2011).   
 



Natural Features Assessment 
W. Grand River Avenue & Central Park Drive 

Meridian Township, Ingham County, Michigan 

Marx Wetlands, LLC    
Natural Features Assessment  9 

It is the professional opinion of Marx Wetlands LLC that Wetlands D, E, and F are also likely 
regulated by Meridian Township because they appear within 500 feet of a regulating feature (i.e., 
off-site pond).  Wetlands A, B, and C appear to be isolated and/or less than 0.25 acres in size and 
may be considered non-regulated by the Township.  However, Wetlands A & B may be protected 
under the Meridian Township’s Chapter 22 Environment, Article IV Wetland Protection, if it is 
determined that the protection of these wetland areas is important for the preservation of the 
local natural resources.  
 
Impact Assessment 
The current site plan avoids the on-site wetlands and wetland buffers and minimizes native 
vegetation clearing to the maximum extent practicable. Therefore, it is the professional opinion 
of Marx Wetlands LLC that the current site plan is the most prudent and viable option for the 
development of the Site.  

4.6 Special Flood Hazard Area 
Flood Hazard Areas are those which are most likely to be inundated during flood events.  Flood 
Hazard Areas are regulated by local, state, and federal regulations designed to reduce the 
damage to structures during floods.  The regulations apply to areas within 100-year floodplains, 
which are defined by a one percent (1%) annual probability of flood occurrence.  These areas are 
mapped by the Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) on Flood Insurance Rate Maps, 
or FIRMs.  These maps were developed using flow modeling and the existing USGS topographic 
maps.  The modeling produces an elevation associated with 100-year flood events, and areas 
below these elevations are designated as the 100-year floodplains.   
 
FEMA FIRMs for Ingham County were reviewed to determine if portions of the Site are mapped 
as floodplains, floodways, or other flood prone areas.  These maps record the following data: 
100-year (1% chance of annual flooding) and 500-year (0.2% annual chance of flooding) 
floodplains, the height of the base flood elevation, and the risk to premium areas developed 
across a floodplain.   Based on FEMA FIRM Panels No. 26065C0158D (eff. 48/16/2018) and No. 
26065C0156D, FEMA mapped 100-year and 500-year floodplains are not associated with the Site.  
Refer to Figure 6: Flood Insurance Rate Map in Appendix I.    
 
Areas more than 1,500 feet further northeast of the Site associated with Pine Lake Outlet 
(tributary to Red Cedar River) are designated “A,” “AE,” or “X500” indicating risk areas of 100-
year floodplain or lesser.  If an area on the Site were within the floodplain, a permit would have 
to be obtained to allow construction within the floodplain, and the project designed to the flood 
proofing standards that would minimize the risk of flood damage.   
 
FIRM maps can incorrectly show areas of 100-year floodplain. In such cases, a site’s topography 
can be surveyed using modern techniques. When such studies show that the mapped floodplain 
is above the determined flood elevation or that the FIRM is otherwise inaccurate, this 
information can be sent to the National Flood Insurance Program to obtain a Letter of Map 
Amendment (LOMA) which officially changes the area included within the floodplain.  It does not 
appear that this Site will require such additional work. 



Natural Features Assessment 
W. Grand River Avenue & Central Park Drive 

Meridian Township, Ingham County, Michigan 

Marx Wetlands, LLC    
Natural Features Assessment  10 

4.7 Floodways 
A floodway is the portion of the floodplain that is required to carry and discharge flood waters 
during a flood event.  They have more rapidly moving water during flood events.  They include 
river channels, upper banks, and adjacent areas that effectively become part of the water transit 
process during a flood.  The FIRM for Meridian Township shows that there are no floodway areas 
on the subject property.  Again, areas more than 1,500 feet further northeast of the Site, 
associated with Pine Lake Outlet, are designated as floodways indicating their water transit role 
during flood events. No activities at the Site will have any impact upon these floodway areas, nor 
will these floodway areas have any impact on development at the Site. 
 
Part 31, Water Resources Protection, of the NREPA regulated activities within the 100-year 
floodplain and floodway of a river, stream, or drain, and within the floodplain of any watercourse 
with an upstream drainage area of two square miles or larger.   A Part 31 permit is required for 
construction within a regulated floodplain or floodway.  Therefore, it is the professional opinion 
of Marx Wetlands that the Site does not appear to contain a MDEQ regulated 100-year floodplain 
or floodway. 

4.8 Water Bodies 
Streams, rivers, lakes, and many ponds are afforded legal protection under a combination of 
Township, county, state, and federal regulations pertaining to wetlands, flood prone areas, and 
water bodies. Any filling or alteration of these areas would typically require one or more permits 
from state agencies, county agencies, federal agencies, or Meridian Township.   
 
There are no open water bodies located within the Site. This includes ponds, lakes, creeks, rivers, 
sloughs, or stormwater detention basins. However, there is an off-site pond east of parcel #33-
02-02-22-426-001 that appears to have an open water area that is larger than 1 acre in size.  

4.9 Soils 
According to the U.S. Department of Agriculture (USDA) Natural Resources Conservation Service 
(NRCS) Web Soil Survey, the soils contained within the Site have been mapped with five (5) soil 
types—Kibbie loam, 0 to 3 percent slopes (KbA), Spinks loamy sand, 0 to 6 percent slopes (SpB), 
Urban land-Capac-Colwood complex, 0 to 4 percent slopes (KpA), Houghton muck, 0 to 1 percent 
slopes (Hn), and Urban land-Marlette complex, 2 to 12 percent slopes (UtB).  Refer to Figure 7: 
County Soils Survey Map in Appendix I). 
 
Kibbie loam are primarily formed from loamy glaciofluvial deposits on lake plains. Spinks loamy 
sands are formed from morainal till and outwash plains. Urban land-Capac-Colwood complex are 
formed from loamy glaciofluvial deposits over silty clay loam in lake plains. Houghton mucks are 
typically formed in depression in moraines and outwash plains.  Urban land-Marlette complex 
soils are formed from loamy till in end moraines. These soils range from very poorly drain to well 
drained with no likelihood to infrequent flooding or ponding.  Houghton muck, Kibbie loam, 
Urban land-Capac-Colwood, and Urban land-Marlette complexes are classified as hydric or 
contain hydric inclusions.  Hydric soils are conducive to the growth and regeneration of 



Natural Features Assessment 
W. Grand River Avenue & Central Park Drive 

Meridian Township, Ingham County, Michigan 

Marx Wetlands, LLC    
Natural Features Assessment  11 

hydrophytic vegetation by their ability to hold water for extended periods of time (USDA-NRCS 
2010).       
 
Site balancing, filling, and subsurface excavation activities will take place within the limits of 
disturbance which are contained primarily within the areas of these well drained soil types.  The 
most suitable soils will be utilized on the Site during parking lot, driveway, and building 
construction.  Soil erosion and sedimentation control (SESC) measures will be installed and 
maintained by the developer throughout the construction period, as required by the State of 
Michigan, Meridian Township, and the Ingham County Drain Commissioner, and will be removed 
once the entire Site has been stabilized.  These measures will significantly reduce the possibility 
of soil erosion and the water transport of these soil materials, which could cause the degradation 
of areas receiving the Site’s stormwater. 

4.10 Identified Areas of Groundwater Vulnerability 
Areas of groundwater vulnerability are those areas where the hydrologic and geologic surface 
and subsurface setting makes the groundwater more vulnerable to contamination than in other 
areas. Although the Site contains wetland areas, it is anticipated that the Site does not contain 
groundwater vulnerable or sensitive areas.  In addition, all construction activity on the Site will 
be outside the bounds of the on-site wetlands and wetland buffers.  Stormwater on the site will 
be collected and treated in accordance with local and state regulations designed to protect water 
quality and runoff volumes.  Therefore, it is the professional opinion of Marx Wetlands LLC that 
the site development will not impact any sensitive areas identified for groundwater vulnerability 
because the current site plan avoids on-site wetlands and buffers.   

4.11 Slopes Greater than 20 Percent 
Slopes of greater than 20% are highly susceptible to soil erosion which can lead to sedimentation 
in other on and off-site areas such as ponds, streams and lakes.  The Site does not appear to 
contain significant slopes steeper than 20%.  Gradual sloping and local microtopographic relief 
was observed within the Site, particularly near wetland areas and along the eastern boundary 
adjacent to the off-site pond. The southern portions of the Site is locally somewhat hilly; 
however, slopes do not appear to exceed 20% grade.  
 
The development project will follow structure and grading setbacks and requirements provided 
in Meridian Township ordinances.  During construction, any slopes (if applicable) created by the 
project that are over 20% will be intentionally designed and stabilized with appropriate 
landscaping materials.  Soil erosion and sedimentation measures will be placed and maintained 
in the areas necessary to control any erosion that may occur during construction. 

4.12 Wildlife 
Evidence of wildlife presence has been observed throughout the Site in the form of both direct 
and indirect observations, including sightings, tracks, and droppings, although the amount of 
animal usage is naturally limited by the size of the Site and the surrounding urbanized context.  
Evidence of common wildlife were observed within the Site, including white-tailed deer 
(Odocoileus virginiana), gray squirrels (Sciurus carolinensis), and raccoon (Procyon lotor).  Squirrel 



Natural Features Assessment 
W. Grand River Avenue & Central Park Drive 

Meridian Township, Ingham County, Michigan 

Marx Wetlands, LLC    
Natural Features Assessment  12 

evidence was mainly near the forested and tree line areas.  Deer usage appeared most 
concentrated near the northern boundary of the Site.  Fresh deer and raccoon droppings were 
also observed.  Cardinals (Cardinalis cardinalis) and blue jays (Cyanocitta cristata) were seen and 
heard during the on-site assessments.  
 
It is highly likely that the Site also serves as foraging or resting ground for numerous other insects 
and birds, such as Monarch butterflies (Danaus plexippus), honeybees (Apis mellifera), robins 
(Turdus migratorius), mourning doves (Zenaida macroura), and black-capped chickadees (Poecile 
atricapillus). Overall, the Site appears to contain species that can be considered urban or 
suburban wildlife, which are common across the Midwest. Urban and suburban wildlife are 
mainly generalists species that have wide tolerance in diet and behavioral flexibility. They are 
very unlike threatened and endangered species, which are almost all specialized and intolerant 
of numerous human disturbances or interferences.  
 
The proposed site plan has been designed to minimize impacts to natural on-site features, 
wetlands, and habitat.  Most of the on-site development is restricted to the residential parcels of 
the Site and wetlands, buffers, and on-site features have been avoided to the maximum extent 
practicable.  Therefore, any declines in certain very abundant wildlife species should not be 
assumed to bear negative consequences.  Wildlife will be displaced to a small degree by the 
proposed development; however, the undeveloped northernmost parcel will remain relatively 
intact after the development.  It is anticipated that some of these common urban and suburban 
wildlife species will continue to use the Site post-construction.  
 
5.0 CONCLUSIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS  
 
The proposed Site was reviewed for remnant and existing natural resources and features.  The 
approximately 9-acre Site consists of three (3) parcels (#33-02-02-22-252-003, 33-02-02-22-401-
003, and 33-02-02-22-426-001), which contain vacant, undeveloped land and two existing single-
family residences.  The undeveloped land portions contain upland field, scrub-shrub, forest 
patches/mixed deciduous tree lines, and wetland.  MW identified six (6) wetlands (Wetlands A, 
B, C, D, E, and F) within the Site and/or along the Site’s perimeters. No ponds or watercourses 
appear within the Site.  The Site also contains existing vacated houses, a barn, in-ground pool, 
and associated lawn, particularly in the central and southern portions of the Site.  In addition, 
existing driveways and mowed paths were also observed.  The Site is situated within a largely 
commercial and residential region of Meridian Township, Michigan. The Site is bounded by 
undeveloped land to the north, commercial development/Central Park Drive to the west, W. 
Grand River Avenue to the south, and undeveloped land/commercial buildings to the east. 
 
Most of the on-site soils are upland sandy loams and loams with some hydric inclusions that 
formed under what was once an oak-hickory forest, which appear to be largely original to the 
Site.  It is likely that this Site was once a small portion of that forest which covered many acres 
but was cleared for agriculture or development.  Within the last few decades this Site has been 
surrounded by roads and growing commercial and residential development. Wildlife that appear 
to utilize the Site are common in urban and suburban landscapes.  It is anticipated that their 



Natural Features Assessment 
W. Grand River Avenue & Central Park Drive 

Meridian Township, Ingham County, Michigan 

Marx Wetlands, LLC    
Natural Features Assessment  13 

populations will not be significantly affected by the development of this Site.  Vegetation on the 
Site includes planted pines/spruces, native trees, and relatively common native and non-native 
groundcover species. The loss of vegetation due to development on the Site will occur, though 
the species lost are very unlikely to include any that are locally rare (i.e. rare county-wide) or 
state threatened and endangered. There are numerous trees on the Site which are in good 
condition, including both planted pines/spruces, landscaped and unplanted hardwood species.  
 
The proposed development is largely positioned in the central and southern portions of the Site, 
primarily on the residential properties (1614 & 1622 W. Grand River Avenue).  The northernmost 
parcel does not appear to be proposed for development, although some landscaping activities 
are expected.  The only remaining natural heritage on this Site appears to be the original 
topography, soils, and some of the native vegetation clustered in the southeast corner and 
northern parcel of the overall Site.  
 
The Developer’s selection of the site plan included an analysis of alternative on-site layouts, while 
taking into consideration existing site conditions, specific project and site requirements, building 
requirements and setbacks, visibility and accessibility, safety, traffic flow into and out of the Site, 
and existing natural features.  The commercialized land use, associated parking and utility 
infrastructure, and economic valuation has limited site design options; however, for this Site the 
primary likelihood of preserving natural resource values would be associated with minimal 
development on the northernmost parcel, avoidance of on-site wetlands and wetland buffers, 
and by incorporating some of the larger or native trees into the overall landscape design; and 
thereby, preserving them on the post-development landscape.   
 
Therefore, through consideration of these factors and requirements, it has been determined that 
the preferred site plan is the most prudent and viable layout for the development of the proposed 
Site because it avoids the on-site wetlands and buffers and minimizes native vegetation clearing 
to the maximum extent practicable.  
 
Thank you for the opportunity to provide this wetland determination.  If you have any questions, 
please contact me at your convenience. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
Marx Wetlands, LLC 
 

       
 
Bryana J. Guevara, CSWO (MI) 
Environmental Scientist 
ISA Certified Arborist #MI-4202A 
Professional Wetland Scientist #2949 



 

 

APPENDIX I 

Figure 1: Site Location Map  
Figure 2: Aerial Imagery Map 

Figure 3: Presettlement Vegetation/MNFI ca. 1800 map 
Figure 4: Township Natural Features Map 
Figure 5: National Wetland Inventory Map 

 Figure 6: Flood Insurance Rate Map 
Figure 7: County Soils Survey Map 

 







Vegetation circa 1800 of 
Ingham County, Michigan 

An Interpretation of the General Land Office Surveys 

Legend 

- ASPEN -BIRCH FOREST 
V O BEECH-SUGAR MAPLE FOREST 

0 BEECH-SUGAR MAPLE-HEMLOCK FOREST 
V O BLACK ASH SWAMP 
.; 0 BLACK OAK BARREN 

- CEDAR SWAMP 
D GRASSLAND 
0 HEMLOCK-WHITE PINE FOREST 
- HEMLOCK-YELLOW BIRCH FOREST 
0 JACK PINE-RED PINE FOREST 

.; 0 LAKE/RIVER 
V MIXED CONIFER SWAMP 
.; - MIXED HARDWOOD SWAMP 
V CJ MIXED OAK FOREST 
.; 0 MIXED OAK SAVANNA 

- MIXED PINE-OAK FOREST 
.; D MUSKEG/BOG 
.; 0 OAK-HICKORY FOREST 

- OAK-PINE BARREN 
0 PINE BARREN 
- SAND DUNE 

.; 0 SHRUB SWAMP/EMERGENT MARSH 
0 SPRUCE-FIR-CEDAR FOREST 

,I' D WET PRAIRIE 
CJ WH ITE PINE-MIXED HARDWOOD FOREST 
CJ WH ITE PINE-RED PINE FOREST 
0 WHITE PINE-WHITE OAK FOREST 

~ = LAND COVER TYPE PRESENT ON THIS MAP 

Sca1e1 :80,000 

SOURCE. Comer.P.J.,DA . .... lb«l, H.A.Wolla.B.L. f'lart,J.B.R&>b. 
D.L. Price,D.M. Kast.an. R.A_Comer,D.W . Scti""° IMap lnt-ation) 
M.B.Auolio, T.R leiblreid. K_M_ Korroch.l. Prar.g.-~.J.G. Spilzl~Y­
C. J O...oirt,L. J Sorimg,&r, IDigiMIMapProduclior>). 1995. 
MiOhig.e,n'ol'rMolll'"'*"V~,&1lnlerpr- d!romlhe-.,a 
Lan<IOffice Sur,eys1816-1656 
Mior,jg.e,nNaMaol F.,.t"'6t l""""b)',l.Msir>Q,MiOigilalMap. 

\IIQ-tk.;AN STAlt 
\!....ti.. l \ [j\ u 1.~ 

D:TINSJON 



67��

%DWK�7ZS

/DNH�/DQVLQJ

5HG &HG
DU
5LY

HU

/DNH�
2
7KH�+LOOV

&1
�5
DLO
UR
DG

&6;�5DLOURDG

]̂���

6D
JLQ

DZ
+Z

\

:LOOLDPVWRZQ
7ZS

(DVW�/DQVLQJ

/DQVLQJ
7ZS

:KHDWILHOG
7ZS$ODLHGRQ�7ZS'HOKL�7ZS

(�/DNH�/DQVLQJ�5G

+DVOHWW�5G

(
/
DN
H
'
U

0RXQW�+RSH�5G

: *UDQG 5LYHU $YH

$
E
E
R
WW
�5
G

-ROO\�5G

6KRHVPLWK�5G

+
DP
LOWRQ

5

G

&ROHPDQ�5G

5DE\�5G

( *UDQG 5LYHU $YH

%HQQHWW�5G

:
/D

NH
'U

0
HU
LG
LD
Q
�5
G

+
XO
HW
W�
5
G

0
DU
VK
�5
G

7LKDUW�5G

7RZQHU�5G

)RUHVW�5G

%
HD
X
P
R
Q
W�
5
G

)
D
UP

�/
Q

&RXQW\�/LQH�5G

(�-ROO\�5G

'
R
E
LH
�5
G

1
�+
D
J
DG
R
UQ
�5
G

*
UH
HQ
�5
G

2
NH
P
R
V
�5
G

&
R
UQ
H
OO�
5
G

9
DQ

$
WW
D
5
G

6
�+
DJ
DG
R
UQ
�5
G

1
HZ

WR
Q
�5
G

3
R
Z
H
OO�
5
G

3
DU
N
�/
D
NH
�5
G

1DWXUDO�)HDWXUHV

0DS�)HDWXUH�6RXUFH��0HULGLDQ�&KDUWHU�7RZQVKLS������

� ����� �����
)((7

0$3���

0HULGLDQ�&KDUWHU�7RZQVKLS
,QJKDP�&RXQW\��0LFKLJDQ

-DQXDU\���������

:HWODQGV

:HWODQGV

)ORRG�+D]DUG�$UHDV

1R�%DVH�)ORRG�(OHYDWLRQV�'HWHUPLQHG

%DVH�)ORRG�(OHYDWLRQV�'HWHUPLQHG

����\HDU�)ORRG�3ODLQ

&RRSHUDWLYH�$JUHHPHQW



W
. G

ra
nd

 R
iv

er
 a

nd
 C

en
tra

l P
ar

k 
D

r

U
.S

. F
is

h 
an

d 
W

ild
lif

e 
Se

rv
ic

e,
 N

at
io

na
l S

ta
nd

ar
ds

 a
nd

 S
up

po
rt 

Te
am

,
w

et
la

nd
s_

te
am

@
fw

s.
go

v

We
tla

nd
s Es

tu
ar

in
e 

an
d 

M
ar

in
e 

D
ee

pw
at

er

Es
tu

ar
in

e 
an

d 
M

ar
in

e 
W

et
la

nd

Fr
es

hw
at

er
 E

m
er

ge
nt

 W
et

la
nd

Fr
es

hw
at

er
 F

or
es

te
d/

S
hr

ub
 W

et
la

nd

Fr
es

hw
at

er
 P

on
d

La
ke

O
th

er

R
iv

er
in

e

Se
pt

em
be

r 2
4,

 2
01

8

0
0.

15
0.

3
0.

07
5

m
i

0
0.

25
0.

5
0.

12
5

km

1:
10

,1
47

Th
is

 p
ag

e 
w

as
 p

ro
du

ce
d 

by
 th

e 
N

W
I m

ap
pe

r
N

at
io

na
l W

et
la

nd
s 

In
ve

nt
or

y 
(N

W
I)

Th
is

 m
ap

 is
 fo

r g
en

er
al

 re
fe

re
nc

e 
on

ly.
 T

he
 U

S
 F

is
h 

an
d 

W
ild

lif
e 

Se
rv

ic
e 

is
 n

ot
 re

sp
on

si
bl

e 
fo

r t
he

 a
cc

ur
ac

y 
or

 c
ur

re
nt

ne
ss

 o
f t

he
 

ba
se

 d
at

a 
sh

ow
n 

on
 th

is
 m

ap
. A

ll 
w

et
la

nd
s 

re
la

te
d 

da
ta

 s
ho

ul
d 

be
 u

se
d 

in
 a

cc
or

da
nc

e 
w

ith
 th

e 
la

ye
r m

et
ad

at
a 

fo
un

d 
on

 th
e 

W
et

la
nd

s 
M

ap
pe

r w
eb

 s
ite

.



U
SG

S 
Th

e 
N

at
io

na
l M

ap
: O

rth
oi

m
ag

er
y.

  D
at

a 
re

fre
sh

ed
 O

ct
ob

er
 2

01
7.

N
at

io
na

l F
lo

od
 H

az
ar

d 
La

ye
r F

IR
M

et
te

0
50

0
1,

00
0

1,
50

0
2,

00
0

25
0

Fe
et

Ü

84°24'45.94"W 42
°4

3'
15

.3
7"

N
 

84°24'8.48"W 

42
°4

2'
48

.9
3"

N
 

SE
E F

IS 
RE

PO
RT

 FO
R 

DE
TA

ILE
D 

LE
GE

ND
 AN

D 
IN

DE
X M

AP
 FO

R 
FIR

M 
PA

NE
L L

AY
OU

T

SP
EC

IAL
 FL

OO
D

HA
ZA

RD
 AR

EA
S

Wi
tho

ut 
Ba

se
 Fl

oo
d E

lev
ati

on
 (B

FE
)

Zo
ne

 A,
 V,

 A9
9

Wi
th 

BF
E o

r D
ep

th
Zo

ne
 AE

, A
O,

 AH
, V

E, 
AR

Re
gu

lat
ory

 Fl
oo

dw
ay

0.2
% 

An
nu

al 
Ch

an
ce

 Fl
oo

d H
az

ard
, A

rea
s

of 
1%

 an
nu

al 
ch

an
ce

 flo
od

 w
ith

 av
era

ge
de

pth
 le

ss
 th

an
 on

e f
oo

t o
r w

ith
 dr

ain
ag

e
are

as
 of

 le
ss

 th
an

 on
e s

qu
are

 m
ile

  Zo
ne

 X
Fu

tur
e C

on
dit

ion
s 1

% 
An

nu
al

Ch
an

ce
 Fl

oo
d H

az
ard

Zo
ne

 X
Ar

ea
 w

ith
 Re

du
ce

d F
loo

d R
isk

 du
e t

o
Le

ve
e. 

Se
e N

ote
s.

Zo
ne

 X
Ar

ea
 w

ith
 Fl

oo
d R

isk
 du

e t
o L

ev
ee

Zo
ne

 D

NO
 SC

RE
EN

Ar
ea

 of
 M

ini
ma

l F
loo

d H
az

ard
Zo

ne
 X

Ar
ea

 of
 Un

de
ter

mi
ne

d F
loo

d H
az

ard
Zo

ne
 D

Ch
an

ne
l, C

ulv
ert

, o
r S

tor
m 

Se
we

r
Le

ve
e, 

Dik
e, 

or 
Flo

od
wa

ll

Cro
ss

 Se
cti

on
s w

ith
 1%

 An
nu

al 
Ch

an
ce

17.
5

Wa
ter

 Su
rfa

ce
 El

ev
ati

on
Co

as
tal

 Tr
an

se
ct

Co
as

tal
 Tr

an
se

ct 
Ba

se
lin

e
Pr

ofi
le 

Ba
se

lin
e

Hy
dro

gra
ph

ic 
Fe

atu
re

Ba
se

 Fl
oo

d E
lev

ati
on

 Li
ne

 (B
FE

)

Eff
ec

tiv
e L

OM
Rs

Lim
it o

f S
tud

y
Jur

isd
ict

ion
 Bo

un
da

ry

Dig
ita

l D
ata

 Av
ail

ab
le

No
 Di

git
al 

Da
ta 

Av
ail

ab
le

Un
ma

pp
ed

Th
is 

ma
p c

om
pli

es
 w

ith
 FE

MA
's 

sta
nd

ard
s f

or 
the

 us
e o

f 
dig

ita
l fl

oo
d m

ap
s i

f it
 is

 no
t v

oid
 as

 de
sc

rib
ed

 be
low

. 
Th

e b
as

em
ap

 sh
ow

n c
om

pli
es

 w
ith

 FE
MA

's 
ba

se
ma

p 
ac

cu
rac

y s
tan

da
rds

Th
e f

loo
d h

az
ard

 in
for

ma
tio

n i
s d

eri
ve

d d
ire

ctl
y f

rom
 th

e
au

tho
rita

tiv
e N

FH
L w

eb
 se

rvi
ce

s p
rov

ide
d b

y F
EM

A. 
Th

is 
ma

p
wa

s e
xp

ort
ed

 on
 9/

24
/2

01
8 a

t 7
:05

:29
 AM

  a
nd

 do
es

 no
t

ref
lec

t c
ha

ng
es

 or
 am

en
dm

en
ts 

su
bs

eq
ue

nt 
to 

thi
s d

ate
 an

d
tim

e. 
Th

e N
FH

L a
nd

 ef
fec

tiv
e i

nfo
rm

ati
on

 m
ay

 ch
an

ge
 or

be
co

me
 su

pe
rse

de
d b

y n
ew

 da
ta 

ov
er 

tim
e.

Th
is 

ma
p i

ma
ge

 is
 vo

id 
if t

he
 on

e o
r m

ore
 of

 th
e f

oll
ow

ing
 m

ap
ele

me
nts

 do
 no

t a
pp

ea
r: b

as
em

ap
 im

ag
ery

, fl
oo

d z
on

e l
ab

els
,

leg
en

d, 
sc

ale
 ba

r, m
ap

 cr
ea

tio
n d

ate
, c

om
mu

nit
y i

de
nti

fie
rs,

FIR
M 

pa
ne

l n
um

be
r, a

nd
 FI

RM
 ef

fec
tiv

e d
ate

. M
ap

 im
ag

es
 fo

r
un

ma
pp

ed
 an

d u
nm

od
ern

ize
d a

rea
s c

an
no

t b
e u

se
d f

or
reg

ula
tor

y p
urp

os
es

. 

Le
ge

nd

OT
HE

R A
RE

AS
 OF

FL
OO

D H
AZ

AR
D

OT
HE

R A
RE

AS

GE
NE

RA
L

ST
RU

CT
UR

ES

OT
HE

R
FE

AT
UR

ES

MA
P P

AN
EL

S

8

1:
6,

00
0

B
20.

2

Th
e p

in 
dis

pla
ye

d o
n t

he
 m

ap
 is

 an
 ap

pro
xim

ate
 

po
int

 se
lec

ted
 by

 th
e u

se
r a

nd
 do

es
 no

t r
ep

res
en

t 
an

 au
tho

rita
tiv

e p
rop

ert
y l

oc
ati

on
.



Soil Map—Ingham County, Michigan
(W. Grand River & Central Park Dr)

Natural Resources
Conservation Service

Web Soil Survey
National Cooperative Soil Survey

9/24/2018
Page 1 of 3

47
32

64
0

47
32

69
0

47
32

74
0

47
32

79
0

47
32

84
0

47
32

89
0

47
32

94
0

47
32

99
0

47
33

04
0

47
33

09
0

47
32

64
0

47
32

69
0

47
32

74
0

47
32

79
0

47
32

84
0

47
32

89
0

47
32

94
0

47
32

99
0

47
33

04
0

47
33

09
0

712060 712110 712160 712210 712260 712310 712360

712060 712110 712160 712210 712260 712310 712360 712410

42°  43' 15'' N
84

° 
 2

4'
 3

6'
' W

42°  43' 15'' N

84
° 
 2

4'
 2

1'
' W

42°  43' 0'' N

84
° 
 2

4'
 3

6'
' W

42°  43' 0'' N

84
° 
 2

4'
 2

1'
' W

N

Map projection: Web Mercator   Corner coordinates: WGS84   Edge tics: UTM Zone 16N WGS84
0 100 200 400 600

Feet
0 30 60 120 180

Meters
Map Scale: 1:2,290 if printed on A portrait (8.5" x 11") sheet.

Soil Map may not be valid at this scale.



M
A

P 
LE

G
EN

D
M

A
P 

IN
FO

R
M

AT
IO

N

A
re

a 
of

 In
te

re
st

 (A
O

I)
A

re
a 

of
 In

te
re

st
 (A

O
I)

So
ils

S
oi

l M
ap

 U
ni

t P
ol

yg
on

s

S
oi

l M
ap

 U
ni

t L
in

es

S
oi

l M
ap

 U
ni

t P
oi

nt
s

Sp
ec

ia
l P

oi
nt

 F
ea

tu
re

s
B

lo
w

ou
t

B
or

ro
w

 P
it

C
la

y 
S

po
t

C
lo

se
d 

D
ep

re
ss

io
n

G
ra

ve
l P

it

G
ra

ve
lly

 S
po

t

La
nd

fil
l

La
va

 F
lo

w

M
ar

sh
 o

r s
w

am
p

M
in

e 
or

 Q
ua

rr
y

M
is

ce
lla

ne
ou

s 
W

at
er

P
er

en
ni

al
 W

at
er

R
oc

k 
O

ut
cr

op

S
al

in
e 

S
po

t

S
an

dy
 S

po
t

S
ev

er
el

y 
E

ro
de

d 
S

po
t

S
in

kh
ol

e

S
lid

e 
or

 S
lip

S
od

ic
 S

po
t

S
po

il 
A

re
a

S
to

ny
 S

po
t

Ve
ry

 S
to

ny
 S

po
t

W
et

 S
po

t

O
th

er

S
pe

ci
al

 L
in

e 
Fe

at
ur

es

W
at

er
 F

ea
tu

re
s

S
tre

am
s 

an
d 

C
an

al
s

Tr
an

sp
or

ta
tio

n
R

ai
ls

In
te

rs
ta

te
 H

ig
hw

ay
s

U
S

 R
ou

te
s

M
aj

or
 R

oa
ds

Lo
ca

l R
oa

ds

B
ac

kg
ro

un
d A

er
ia

l P
ho

to
gr

ap
hy

Th
e 

so
il 

su
rv

ey
s 

th
at

 c
om

pr
is

e 
yo

ur
 A

O
I w

er
e 

m
ap

pe
d 

at
 

1:
15

,8
00

.

W
ar

ni
ng

: S
oi

l M
ap

 m
ay

 n
ot

 b
e 

va
lid

 a
t t

hi
s 

sc
al

e.

E
nl

ar
ge

m
en

t o
f m

ap
s 

be
yo

nd
 th

e 
sc

al
e 

of
 m

ap
pi

ng
 c

an
 c

au
se

 
m

is
un

de
rs

ta
nd

in
g 

of
 th

e 
de

ta
il 

of
 m

ap
pi

ng
 a

nd
 a

cc
ur

ac
y 

of
 s

oi
l 

lin
e 

pl
ac

em
en

t. 
Th

e 
m

ap
s 

do
 n

ot
 s

ho
w

 th
e 

sm
al

l a
re

as
 o

f 
co

nt
ra

st
in

g 
so

ils
 th

at
 c

ou
ld

 h
av

e 
be

en
 s

ho
w

n 
at

 a
 m

or
e 

de
ta

ile
d 

sc
al

e.

P
le

as
e 

re
ly

 o
n 

th
e 

ba
r s

ca
le

 o
n 

ea
ch

 m
ap

 s
he

et
 fo

r m
ap

 
m

ea
su

re
m

en
ts

.

S
ou

rc
e 

of
 M

ap
: 

N
at

ur
al

 R
es

ou
rc

es
 C

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

S
er

vi
ce

W
eb

 S
oi

l S
ur

ve
y 

U
R

L:
 

C
oo

rd
in

at
e 

S
ys

te
m

: 
W

eb
 M

er
ca

to
r (

E
P

S
G

:3
85

7)

M
ap

s 
fro

m
 th

e 
W

eb
 S

oi
l S

ur
ve

y 
ar

e 
ba

se
d 

on
 th

e 
W

eb
 M

er
ca

to
r 

pr
oj

ec
tio

n,
 w

hi
ch

 p
re

se
rv

es
 d

ire
ct

io
n 

an
d 

sh
ap

e 
bu

t d
is

to
rts

 
di

st
an

ce
 a

nd
 a

re
a.

 A
 p

ro
je

ct
io

n 
th

at
 p

re
se

rv
es

 a
re

a,
 s

uc
h 

as
 th

e 
A

lb
er

s 
eq

ua
l-a

re
a 

co
ni

c 
pr

oj
ec

tio
n,

 s
ho

ul
d 

be
 u

se
d 

if 
m

or
e 

ac
cu

ra
te

 c
al

cu
la

tio
ns

 o
f d

is
ta

nc
e 

or
 a

re
a 

ar
e 

re
qu

ire
d.

Th
is

 p
ro

du
ct

 is
 g

en
er

at
ed

 fr
om

 th
e 

U
S

D
A

-N
R

C
S

 c
er

tif
ie

d 
da

ta
 a

s 
of

 th
e 

ve
rs

io
n 

da
te

(s
) l

is
te

d 
be

lo
w

.

S
oi

l S
ur

ve
y 

A
re

a:
 

In
gh

am
 C

ou
nt

y,
 M

ic
hi

ga
n

S
ur

ve
y 

A
re

a 
D

at
a:

 
Ve

rs
io

n 
15

, O
ct

 5
, 2

01
7

S
oi

l m
ap

 u
ni

ts
 a

re
 la

be
le

d 
(a

s 
sp

ac
e 

al
lo

w
s)

 fo
r m

ap
 s

ca
le

s 
1:

50
,0

00
 o

r l
ar

ge
r.

D
at

e(
s)

 a
er

ia
l i

m
ag

es
 w

er
e 

ph
ot

og
ra

ph
ed

: 
Ju

l 1
, 2

01
1—

M
ar

 1
0,

 
20

17

Th
e 

or
th

op
ho

to
 o

r o
th

er
 b

as
e 

m
ap

 o
n 

w
hi

ch
 th

e 
so

il 
lin

es
 w

er
e 

co
m

pi
le

d 
an

d 
di

gi
tiz

ed
 p

ro
ba

bl
y 

di
ffe

rs
 fr

om
 th

e 
ba

ck
gr

ou
nd

 
im

ag
er

y 
di

sp
la

ye
d 

on
 th

es
e 

m
ap

s.
 A

s 
a 

re
su

lt,
 s

om
e 

m
in

or
 

sh
ift

in
g 

of
 m

ap
 u

ni
t b

ou
nd

ar
ie

s 
m

ay
 b

e 
ev

id
en

t.

S
oi

l M
ap

—
In

gh
am

 C
ou

nt
y,

 M
ic

hi
ga

n
(W

. G
ra

nd
 R

iv
er

 &
 C

en
tra

l P
ar

k 
D

r)

N
at

ur
al

 R
es

ou
rc

es
C

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

Se
rv

ic
e

W
eb

 S
oi

l S
ur

ve
y

N
at

io
na

l C
oo

pe
ra

tiv
e 

S
oi

l S
ur

ve
y

9/
24

/2
01

8
P

ag
e 

2 
of

 3



Map Unit Legend

Map Unit Symbol Map Unit Name Acres in AOI Percent of AOI

Co Colwood-Brookston loams 0.2 1.6%

Hn Houghton muck, 0 to 1 percent 
slopes

0.1 1.4%

KbA Kibbie loam, 0 to 3 percent 
slopes

4.1 40.9%

SpB Spinks loamy sand, 0 to 6 
percent slopes

1.4 14.3%

UpA Urban land-Capac-Colwood 
complex, 0 to 4 percent 
slopes

2.7 27.1%

UtB Urban land-Marlette complex, 
2 to 12 percent slopes

1.5 14.7%

Totals for Area of Interest 10.1 100.0%

Soil Map—Ingham County, Michigan W. Grand River & Central Park Dr

Natural Resources
Conservation Service

Web Soil Survey
National Cooperative Soil Survey

9/24/2018
Page 3 of 3



Hydric Rating by Map Unit—Ingham County, Michigan
(W. Grand River & Central Park Dr)

Natural Resources
Conservation Service

Web Soil Survey
National Cooperative Soil Survey

9/24/2018
Page 1 of 5

47
32

64
0

47
32

69
0

47
32

74
0

47
32

79
0

47
32

84
0

47
32

89
0

47
32

94
0

47
32

99
0

47
33

04
0

47
33

09
0

47
32

64
0

47
32

69
0

47
32

74
0

47
32

79
0

47
32

84
0

47
32

89
0

47
32

94
0

47
32

99
0

47
33

04
0

47
33

09
0

712060 712110 712160 712210 712260 712310 712360

712060 712110 712160 712210 712260 712310 712360 712410

42°  43' 15'' N
84

° 
 2

4'
 3

6'
' W

42°  43' 15'' N

84
° 
 2

4'
 2

1'
' W

42°  43' 0'' N

84
° 
 2

4'
 3

6'
' W

42°  43' 0'' N

84
° 
 2

4'
 2

1'
' W

N

Map projection: Web Mercator   Corner coordinates: WGS84   Edge tics: UTM Zone 16N WGS84
0 100 200 400 600

Feet
0 30 60 120 180

Meters
Map Scale: 1:2,290 if printed on A portrait (8.5" x 11") sheet.

Soil Map may not be valid at this scale.



M
A

P 
LE

G
EN

D
M

A
P 

IN
FO

R
M

AT
IO

N

A
re

a 
of

 In
te

re
st

 (A
O

I)
A

re
a 

of
 In

te
re

st
 (A

O
I)

So
ils So

il 
R

at
in

g 
Po

ly
go

ns
H

yd
ric

 (1
00

%
)

H
yd

ric
 (6

6 
to

 9
9%

)

H
yd

ric
 (3

3 
to

 6
5%

)

H
yd

ric
 (1

 to
 3

2%
)

N
ot

 H
yd

ric
 (0

%
)

N
ot

 ra
te

d 
or

 n
ot

 a
va

ila
bl

e

So
il 

R
at

in
g 

Li
ne

s
H

yd
ric

 (1
00

%
)

H
yd

ric
 (6

6 
to

 9
9%

)

H
yd

ric
 (3

3 
to

 6
5%

)

H
yd

ric
 (1

 to
 3

2%
)

N
ot

 H
yd

ric
 (0

%
)

N
ot

 ra
te

d 
or

 n
ot

 a
va

ila
bl

e

So
il 

R
at

in
g 

Po
in

ts
H

yd
ric

 (1
00

%
)

H
yd

ric
 (6

6 
to

 9
9%

)

H
yd

ric
 (3

3 
to

 6
5%

)

H
yd

ric
 (1

 to
 3

2%
)

N
ot

 H
yd

ric
 (0

%
)

N
ot

 ra
te

d 
or

 n
ot

 a
va

ila
bl

e

W
at

er
 F

ea
tu

re
s

S
tre

am
s 

an
d 

C
an

al
s

Tr
an

sp
or

ta
tio

n
R

ai
ls

In
te

rs
ta

te
 H

ig
hw

ay
s

U
S

 R
ou

te
s

M
aj

or
 R

oa
ds

Lo
ca

l R
oa

ds

B
ac

kg
ro

un
d A

er
ia

l P
ho

to
gr

ap
hy

Th
e 

so
il 

su
rv

ey
s 

th
at

 c
om

pr
is

e 
yo

ur
 A

O
I w

er
e 

m
ap

pe
d 

at
 

1:
15

,8
00

.

W
ar

ni
ng

: S
oi

l M
ap

 m
ay

 n
ot

 b
e 

va
lid

 a
t t

hi
s 

sc
al

e.

E
nl

ar
ge

m
en

t o
f m

ap
s 

be
yo

nd
 th

e 
sc

al
e 

of
 m

ap
pi

ng
 c

an
 c

au
se

 
m

is
un

de
rs

ta
nd

in
g 

of
 th

e 
de

ta
il 

of
 m

ap
pi

ng
 a

nd
 a

cc
ur

ac
y 

of
 s

oi
l 

lin
e 

pl
ac

em
en

t. 
Th

e 
m

ap
s 

do
 n

ot
 s

ho
w

 th
e 

sm
al

l a
re

as
 o

f 
co

nt
ra

st
in

g 
so

ils
 th

at
 c

ou
ld

 h
av

e 
be

en
 s

ho
w

n 
at

 a
 m

or
e 

de
ta

ile
d 

sc
al

e.

P
le

as
e 

re
ly

 o
n 

th
e 

ba
r s

ca
le

 o
n 

ea
ch

 m
ap

 s
he

et
 fo

r m
ap

 
m

ea
su

re
m

en
ts

.

S
ou

rc
e 

of
 M

ap
: 

N
at

ur
al

 R
es

ou
rc

es
 C

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

S
er

vi
ce

W
eb

 S
oi

l S
ur

ve
y 

U
R

L:
 

C
oo

rd
in

at
e 

S
ys

te
m

: 
W

eb
 M

er
ca

to
r (

E
P

S
G

:3
85

7)

M
ap

s 
fro

m
 th

e 
W

eb
 S

oi
l S

ur
ve

y 
ar

e 
ba

se
d 

on
 th

e 
W

eb
 M

er
ca

to
r 

pr
oj

ec
tio

n,
 w

hi
ch

 p
re

se
rv

es
 d

ire
ct

io
n 

an
d 

sh
ap

e 
bu

t d
is

to
rts

 
di

st
an

ce
 a

nd
 a

re
a.

 A
 p

ro
je

ct
io

n 
th

at
 p

re
se

rv
es

 a
re

a,
 s

uc
h 

as
 th

e 
A

lb
er

s 
eq

ua
l-a

re
a 

co
ni

c 
pr

oj
ec

tio
n,

 s
ho

ul
d 

be
 u

se
d 

if 
m

or
e 

ac
cu

ra
te

 c
al

cu
la

tio
ns

 o
f d

is
ta

nc
e 

or
 a

re
a 

ar
e 

re
qu

ire
d.

Th
is

 p
ro

du
ct

 is
 g

en
er

at
ed

 fr
om

 th
e 

U
S

D
A

-N
R

C
S

 c
er

tif
ie

d 
da

ta
 a

s 
of

 th
e 

ve
rs

io
n 

da
te

(s
) l

is
te

d 
be

lo
w

.

S
oi

l S
ur

ve
y 

A
re

a:
 

In
gh

am
 C

ou
nt

y,
 M

ic
hi

ga
n

S
ur

ve
y 

A
re

a 
D

at
a:

 
Ve

rs
io

n 
15

, O
ct

 5
, 2

01
7

S
oi

l m
ap

 u
ni

ts
 a

re
 la

be
le

d 
(a

s 
sp

ac
e 

al
lo

w
s)

 fo
r m

ap
 s

ca
le

s 
1:

50
,0

00
 o

r l
ar

ge
r.

D
at

e(
s)

 a
er

ia
l i

m
ag

es
 w

er
e 

ph
ot

og
ra

ph
ed

: 
Ju

l 1
, 2

01
1—

M
ar

 1
0,

 
20

17

Th
e 

or
th

op
ho

to
 o

r o
th

er
 b

as
e 

m
ap

 o
n 

w
hi

ch
 th

e 
so

il 
lin

es
 w

er
e 

co
m

pi
le

d 
an

d 
di

gi
tiz

ed
 p

ro
ba

bl
y 

di
ffe

rs
 fr

om
 th

e 
ba

ck
gr

ou
nd

 
im

ag
er

y 
di

sp
la

ye
d 

on
 th

es
e 

m
ap

s.
 A

s 
a 

re
su

lt,
 s

om
e 

m
in

or
 

sh
ift

in
g 

of
 m

ap
 u

ni
t b

ou
nd

ar
ie

s 
m

ay
 b

e 
ev

id
en

t.

H
yd

ric
 R

at
in

g 
by

 M
ap

 U
ni

t—
In

gh
am

 C
ou

nt
y,

 M
ic

hi
ga

n
(W

. G
ra

nd
 R

iv
er

 &
 C

en
tra

l P
ar

k 
D

r)

N
at

ur
al

 R
es

ou
rc

es
C

on
se

rv
at

io
n 

Se
rv

ic
e

W
eb

 S
oi

l S
ur

ve
y

N
at

io
na

l C
oo

pe
ra

tiv
e 

S
oi

l S
ur

ve
y

9/
24

/2
01

8
P

ag
e 

2 
of

 5



Hydric Rating by Map Unit

Map unit symbol Map unit name Rating Acres in AOI Percent of AOI

Co Colwood-Brookston 
loams

80 0.2 1.6%

Hn Houghton muck, 0 to 1 
percent slopes

100 0.1 1.4%

KbA Kibbie loam, 0 to 3 
percent slopes

10 4.1 40.9%

SpB Spinks loamy sand, 0 to 
6 percent slopes

0 1.4 14.3%

UpA Urban land-Capac-
Colwood complex, 0 
to 4 percent slopes

28 2.7 27.1%

UtB Urban land-Marlette 
complex, 2 to 12 
percent slopes

5 1.5 14.7%

Totals for Area of Interest 10.1 100.0%

Hydric Rating by Map Unit—Ingham County, Michigan W. Grand River & Central Park Dr

Natural Resources
Conservation Service

Web Soil Survey
National Cooperative Soil Survey

9/24/2018
Page 3 of 5



 

 

APPENDIX II- VEGETATION LISTS 

Table 1.  Species list including scientific and common name, wetness indicator code (WET), wetness co-efficient (W), 
conservation co-efficient (C), nativity, habit, and occurrence of species identified at W. Grand River and Central Park Drive 

project site - Open Fields/Lawn with scattered shrubs and trees 

Scientific Name Common Name WET   W C Native Habit Occurrence 

Acer saccharinum Silver Maple FACW -3 2 Yes Tree Infrequent 

Agrostis gigantea Redtop FACW -3 * No Herb Common 

Andropogon virginicus Broom-sedge FACU 3 4 Yes Herb Infrequent 

Arctium minus Burdock UPL 5 * No Herb Occasional 

Asclepias syriaca Common Milkweed UPL 5 1 Yes Herb Infrequent 

Artemisia vulgaris Mugwort UPL 6 * No Herb Infrequent 

Bromus inermis Smooth Brome UPL 5 * No Herb Common 

Cirsium arvense Field Thistle FACU 3 * No Herb Occasional 

Cirsium vulgare Bull Thistle FACU 3 * No Herb Occasional 

Dactylis glomerata Orchard Grass FACU 4 * No Herb Common 

Daucus carota Queen Anne's Lace UPL 5 * No Herb Occasional 

Fallopia japonica Japanese knotweed FACU 3 * No Herb Infrequent 

Elaeagnus umbellata Autumn-olive FACU 3 * No Shrub Common 

Morus alba White Mulberry FACU 3 * No Tree Infrequent 

Plantago major Common Plantain FACU 3 * No Herb Occasional 

Phalaris arundinacea Reed Canary Grass FACW -3 0 Yes Herb Occasional 

Phleum pratense Timothy FACU 3 * No Herb Occasional 

Poa compress Canada bluegrass FACU 3 * No Herb Common 

Poa pratensis Kentucky bluegrass FACU 3 * No Herb Common 

Populus deltoides Cottonwood FAC 0 1 Yes Tree Occasional 

Prunus serotina Black Cherry FACU 3 2 Yes Tree Occasional 

Quercus alba White Oak FACU 3 5 Yes Tree Occasional 

Quercus rubra Red Oak FACU 3 5 Yes Tree Occasional 

Robinia pseudoacacia Black Locust FACU 3 * No Tree Occasional 

Rosa multiflora Multiflora Rose FACU 3 * No Shrub Occasional 

Rubus allegheniensis Blackberry FACU 3 1 Yes Herb Occasional 

Rubus occidentalis Black Raspberry UPL 5 1 Yes Herb Occasional 

Schizachyrium scoparium Little Bluestem FACU 3 5 Yes Herb Infrequent 

Solidago altissima Tall Goldenrod FACU 3 1 Yes Herb Occasional 

Solidago canadensis Canada Goldenrod FACU 3 1 Yes Herb Common 

Torilis japonica Japanese hedge-parsley FACU 4 * No Herb Occassional 

Toxicodendron radicans Poison-Ivy FAC 0 2 Yes Vine Common 

Verbena urticifolia White Vervain FAC 0 4 Yes Herb Infrequent 

Count = 33 Average Wetness Co-efficient =    2.63         

  Average Conservation Co-efficient =      2.33       

*Adventive or non-native species 



 

 

Table 2.  Species list including scientific and common name, wetness indicator code (WET), wetness co-efficient (W),  conservation co-efficient 
(C), nativity, habit, and occurrence of species identified at W. Grand River and Central Park Drive project site - Mixed Deciduous Forest Areas, 
Tree Lines 

Scientific Name Common Name WET   W C Native Habit Occurrence 

Acer negundo Box-elder FAC 0 0 Yes Tree Common 

Sugar Maple Sugar Maple FACU 3 5 Yes Tree Occasional 

Acer saccharinum Silver Maple FACW -3 2 Yes Tree Infrequent 

Artemisia vulgaris Mugwort UPL 6 * No Herb Infrequent 

Bromus inermis Smooth Brome UPL 5 * No Herb Common 

Carex pensylvanica Penn Sedge UPL 5 4 Yes Herb Common 

Cornus amomum Silky Dogwood FACW -3 2 Yes Shrub Occasional 

Cornus foemina/racemosa Gray Dogwood FAC 0 1 Yes Shrub Occasional 

Dactylis glomerata Orchard Grass FACU 4 * No Herb Common 

Elaeagnus umbellata Autumn-olive FACU 3 * No Shrub Common 

Fraxinus pennsylanica Green Ash FACW -3 2 Yes Tree Infrequent 

Malus spp. Crabapple/Apple UPL 5 * No Tree Occasional 

Parthenocissus quinquefolia Virginia creeper FACU 3 5 Yes Vine Common 

Picea abies Norway Spruce UPL 5 * No Tree Infrequent 

Picea glauca White Spruce FACU 3 3 Yes Tree Occasional 

Picea pungens Blue Spruce FACU 3 * No Tree Common 

Pinus nigra Austrian Pine UPL 5 * No Tree Common 

Pinus resinosa Red Pine FACU 3 6 Yes Tree Common 

Pinus strobus White Pine FACU 3 3 Yes Tree Common 

Pinus sylvestris  Scotch Pine FACU 3 * No Tree Common 

Platanus occidentalis Sycamore FACW -3 7 Yes Tree Infrequent 

Populus deltoides Cottonwood FAC 0 1 Yes Tree Occasional 

Populus tremuloides Trembling Aspen FAC 0 1 Yes Tree Occasional 

Prunus serotina Black Cherry FACU 3 2 Yes Tree Occasional 

Quercus rubra Red Oak FACU 3 5 Yes Tree Occasional 

Rhamnus cathartica Common Buckthorn FAC 0 * No Shrub Occasional 

Robinia pseudoacacia Black Locust FACU 3 * No Tree Occasional 

Rosa multiflora Multiflora Rose FACU 3 * No Shrub Occasional 

Rubus allegheniensis Blackberry FACU 3 1 Yes Herb Occasional 

Rubus occidentalis Black Raspberry UPL 5 1 Yes Herb Occasional 

Solidago altissima Tall Goldenrod FACU 3 1 Yes Herb Occasional 

Solidago canadensis Canada Goldenrod FACU 3 1 Yes Herb Common 

Tilia americana American Basswood FACU 3 5 Yes Tree Infrequent 

Toxicodendron radicans Poison-Ivy FAC 0 2 Yes Vine Common 

Ulmus americana American Elm FACW -3 1 Yes Tree Occasional 

Verbena urticifolia White Vervain FAC 0 4 Yes Herb Infrequent 

Count = 36 
Average Wetness Co-

efficient =    2.03         

  Average Conservation Co-efficient =      2.71     

*adventive or non-native species 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

APPENDIX III 

Nowak & Fraus Engineers (NFE) Tree Survey Results 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 



J987 TS
9/18/2018

Tree Inventory List

Job Number: J987 TS

Job Location: 1614 West Grand River, Meridian Twp., Okemos

Client LaFontaine

Compiled by: NFE

Condition Description Notes:

"Good" - no observed structural defects*

"Fair" - minor structural defects, marginal form, some insect activity noted* 

"Poor" - major structural defects, poor form, insect infested*

*Structural defects may include decayed wood, cracks, root problems, weak branch unions

cankers, poor tree architecture, dead/failed branches due to various causes.

Tree # Botanical Name Common Name Dia. Type Other Dia. Condition Comments

178 Malus spp. Crabapple spp. 9 Twin 8 Good

179 Pinus nigra Austrian Pine 14 Dead

180 Pinus sylvestris Scotch Pine 12 Poor Insect damage, extensive crown deadwood

181 Picea pungens Colorado Blue Spruce 10 Poor 90% dead

182 Picea pungens Colorado Blue Spruce 18 Poor Unidentified needle disease

183 Picea pungens Colorado Blue Spruce 13 Poor Unidentified needle disease

184 Picea pungens Colorado Blue Spruce 10 Poor Unidentified needle disease

185 Pinus sylvestris Scotch Pine 22 Fair Trunk  has been girdled by old fencing

186 Picea pungens Colorado Blue Spruce 14 Fair Unidentified needle disease

187 Picea pungens Colorado Blue Spruce 9 Fair Unidentified needle disease

188 Pinus sylvestris Scotch Pine 14 Good

189 Acer saccharum Sugar Maple 15 Poor 40% dead

190 Pinus sylvestris Scotch Pine 12 Good

191 Picea pungens Colorado Blue Spruce 8 Good

192 Acer platanoides Norway Maple 13 Fair Delining, low vigor, small branch deadwood

193 Picea pungens Colorado Blue Spruce 15 Fair Unidentified needle disease

194 Pinus sylvestris Scotch Pine 16 Fair Unidentified needle disease

195 Picea pungens Colorado Blue Spruce 22 Fair Unidentified needle disease

196 Acer platanoides Norway Maple 13 Good

197 Acer platanoides Norway Maple 19 Good

198 Acer platanoides Norway Maple 9 Good

199 Pinus strobus Eastern White Pine 17 Good

200 Pinus strobus Eastern White Pine 15 Dead

201 Pinus strobus Eastern White Pine 16 Good

202 Pinus resinosa Red Pine 18 Good

203 Pinus strobus Eastern White Pine 18 Good

204 Pinus strobus Eastern White Pine 26 Good

205 Pinus strobus Eastern White Pine 24 Poor Trunk hollow detected

206 Acer platanoides Norway Maple 21 Fair Small basal trunk injury, wood exposed, some decay

207 Acer platanoides Norway Maple 14 Good

208 Juglans nigra Black Walnut 22 Good

209 Juglans nigra Black Walnut 20 Good

210 Acer negundo Boxelder 15 Poor Excesive trunk lean

211 Picea glauca White Spruce 8 Poor Unidentified needle disease

212 Pinus sylvestris Scotch Pine 14 Fair Being choked by grape vines

213 Pinus sylvestris Scotch Pine 15 Poor Being choked by vines

214 Pinus sylvestris Scotch Pine 14 Fair Being choked by vines

215 Pinus sylvestris Scotch Pine 9 Dead

216 Pinus sylvestris Scotch Pine 8 Dead

217 Ulmus americana American Elm 10 Good

218 Pinus sylvestris Scotch Pine 15 Dead

219 Acer saccharum Sugar Maple 14 Fair Basal trunk injury, wood exposed, some deadwood

220 Platanus occidentalis Sycamore 26 Good

221 Acer platanoides Norway Maple 14 Good

222 Betula populifolia Gray Birch 13 Multiple 12, 11 Good

223 Morus alba White Mulberry 10 Good

224 Ulmus americana American Elm 17 Good

225 Juglans nigra Black Walnut 10 Good

226 Juniperus virginiana Eastern Red-cedar 8 Good

227 Juniperus virginiana Eastern Red-cedar 8 Good

228 Juniperus virginiana Eastern Red-cedar 8 Good

229 Acer platanoides Norway Maple 26 Poor Extensive trunk decay

230 Acer platanoides Norway Maple 15 Good

231 Acer saccharinum Silver Maple 30 Twin 8 Good

232 Acer saccharinum Silver Maple 30 Multiple 28, 10 Fair Weak trunk union with included bark, decay suspected

233 Acer saccharinum Silver Maple 30 Fair Unbalanced crown, large bow in trunk

234 Acer platanoides Norway Maple 20 Twin 17 Poor Basal trunk decay

235 Malus spp. Crabapple spp. 10 Multiple 6, 4 Good

236 Salix spp. Willow spp. 48 Twin 36 Poor Poor structure

237 Morus alba White Mulberry 8 Fair

238 Acer negundo Boxelder 26 Fair Limb deadwood, weak branch attachments

239 Acer negundo Boxelder 8 Poor Excessive trunk lean

240 Acer negundo Boxelder 9 Poor Leaning & growing into cyclone fence

241 Acer negundo Boxelder 18 Twin 15 Poor Excessive trunk lean

242 Acer negundo Boxelder 15 Poor Excessive trunk lean

243 Picea abies Norway Spruce 30 Good

244 Acer negundo Boxelder 10 Poor Trunk decay, growing into fence, poor structure

245 Prunus avium Sweet Black Cherry 9 Good

246 Celtis occidentalis Northern Hackberry 17 Good

1



J987 TS
9/18/2018

Condition Description Notes:

"Good" - no observed structural defects*

"Fair" - minor structural defects, marginal form, some insect activity noted* 

"Poor" - major structural defects, poor form, insect infested*

*Structural defects may include decayed wood, cracks, root problems, weak branch unions

cankers, poor tree architecture, dead/failed branches due to various causes.

Tree # Botanical Name Common Name Dia. Type Other Dia. Condition Comments

247 Rhamnus cathartica Common Buckthorn 10 Fair Poor structure, being choked by vines

248 Acer negundo Boxelder 15 Fair

249 Juglans nigra Black Walnut 9 Good

250 Acer negundo Boxelder 9 Poor Basal trunk decay, leaning, poor structure

251 Morus alba White Mulberry 8 Twin 6 Poor Weak trunk union, slime flux

252 Acer platanoides Norway Maple 18 Good

253 Acer platanoides Norway Maple 20 Good

254 Prunus serotina Black Cherry 9 Good

255 Prunus serotina Black Cherry 28 Good

256 Prunus avium Sweet Black Cherry 11 Good

257 Acer platanoides Norway Maple 13 Good

258 Acer platanoides Norway Maple 15 Good

259 Abies concolor White Fir 16 Good

260 Morus alba White Mulberry 14 Poor Basal trunk decay, 50% of tree is missing

261 Abies concolor White Fir 18 Good

262 Picea pungens Colorado Blue Spruce 26 Good

263 Abies concolor White Fir 12 Good

264 Pinus sylvestris Scotch Pine 28 Twin 24 Good

265 Abies concolor White Fir 8 Good

266 Abies concolor White Fir 14 Good

267 Abies concolor White Fir 9 Good

268 Pinus sylvestris Scotch Pine 16 Multiple 13, 10 Poor Insect damage, crown deadwood

269 Abies concolor White Fir 14 Good

270 Abies concolor White Fir 16 Good

271 Pinus sylvestris Scotch Pine 18 Poor 90% dead

272 Abies concolor White Fir 17 Good

273 Abies concolor White Fir 9 Good

274 Pinus sylvestris Scotch Pine 13 Poor Limb deadwood, insect damage

275 Pseudotsuga menziesii Douglas-fir 26 Good

276 Pseudotsuga menziesii Douglas-fir 14 Good

277 Tilia americana Basswood 8 Twin 6 Good

278 Picea pungens Colorado Blue Spruce 18 Good

279 Acer saccharum Sugar Maple 9 Good

280 Malus spp. Crabapple spp. 12 Fair

281 Acer platanoides Norway Maple 12 Good

282 Gleditisia triacanthos Honeylocust 20 Good

283 Gleditisia triacanthos Honeylocust 14 Good

284 Acer saccharum Sugar Maple 16 Good

285 Ulmus americana American Elm 14 Twin 9 Good

286 Acer platanoides Norway Maple 10 Good

287 Juglans nigra Black Walnut 11 Good

288 Acer platanoides Norway Maple 11 Multiple 9, 9, 8, 6 Poor Large in-rolled trunk seam, extensive decay probabable

289 Pseudotsuga menziesii Douglas-fir 11 Dead

290 Juniperus virginiana Eastern Red-cedar 9 Fair

291 Pseudotsuga menziesii Douglas-fir 15 Good

292 Juniperus virginiana Eastern Red-cedar 9 Good

293 Acer platanoides Norway Maple 38 Poor Some insect damage, basal trunk decay

294 Acer platanoides Norway Maple 16 Good

295 Juniperus virginiana Eastern Red-cedar 9 Dead

296 Juniperus virginiana Eastern Red-cedar 9 Twin 8 Fair

297 Juniperus virginiana Eastern Red-cedar 14 Fair

298 Juniperus virginiana Eastern Red-cedar 15 Fair

299 Malus spp. Crabapple spp. 22 Poor Extensive basal trunk decay

300 Picea pungens Colorado Blue Spruce 14 Fair Unidentified needle disease

301 Prunus serotina Black Cherry 18 Good

302 Pyrus spp. Pear 15 Multiple Good

303 Pyrus spp. Pear 15 Good

304 Malus spp. Crabapple spp. 8 Multiple Fair

305 Malus spp. Crabapple spp. 9 Multiple Fair

306 Pseudotsuga menziesii Douglas-fir 18 Good

307 Abies concolor White Fir 20 Good

308 Acer saccharum Sugar Maple 26 Fair Declining

309 Picea pungens Colorado Blue Spruce 12 Fair Unidentified needle disease

310 Malus spp. Crabapple spp. 15 Fair

311 Picea pungens Colorado Blue Spruce 15 Fair

312 Picea glauca White Spruce 14 Good

313 Picea glauca White Spruce 15 Good

314 Pseudotsuga menziesii Douglas-fir 16 Good

315 Pseudotsuga menziesii Douglas-fir 15 Good

316 Pseudotsuga menziesii Douglas-fir 14 Good

317 Pseudotsuga menziesii Douglas-fir 14 Good

318 Pseudotsuga menziesii Douglas-fir 16 Good

319 Pseudotsuga menziesii Douglas-fir 30 Good

320 Acer negundo Boxelder 16 Poor Poor structure, large bow in strunk

321 Malus spp. Crabapple spp. 14 Multiple Fair

2



J987 TS
9/18/2018

Condition Description Notes:

"Good" - no observed structural defects*

"Fair" - minor structural defects, marginal form, some insect activity noted* 

"Poor" - major structural defects, poor form, insect infested*

*Structural defects may include decayed wood, cracks, root problems, weak branch unions

cankers, poor tree architecture, dead/failed branches due to various causes.

Tree # Botanical Name Common Name Dia. Type Other Dia. Condition Comments

322 Acer saccharinum Silver Maple 41 Good

323 Malus spp. Crabapple spp. 18 Multiple Fair

324 Malus spp. Crabapple spp. 13 Poor Extensive trunk decay

325 Pinus strobus Eastern White Pine 34 Fair Trunk hollow detected

326 Pinus strobus Eastern White Pine 18 Good

327 Pinus strobus Eastern White Pine 15 Good

328 Pinus strobus Eastern White Pine 26 Poor In-rolled trunk seam, extensive basal trunk decay

329 Picea pungens Colorado Blue Spruce 13 Good

330 Gleditisia triacanthos Honeylocust 24 Good

331 Cercis canadensis Redbud 16 Poor Extensive trunk decay

332 Acer saccharum Sugar Maple 18 Fair Declining

333 Acer saccharum Sugar Maple 20 Good

334 Malus spp. Crabapple spp. 9 Multiple Poor Insect damage, basal trunk decay

335 Acer platanoides Norway Maple 12 Poor Limb deadwood, dieback & decay

336 Juniperus virginiana Eastern Red-cedar 14 Fair

337 Juniperus virginiana Eastern Red-cedar 11 Good

338 Ulmus americana American Elm 28 Good

339 Pyrus spp. Pear 11 Multiple 5, 3 Fair

340 Pyrus spp. Pear 10 Poor Extensive trunk deadwood

341 Pyrus spp. Pear 12 Twin 5 Fair

342 Malus spp. Crabapple spp. 14 Twin 10 Poor

343 Acer platanoides Norway Maple 8 Good

344 Acer platanoides Norway Maple 8 Good

345 Acer platanoides Norway Maple 9 Good

346 Acer platanoides Norway Maple 8 Good

347 Acer platanoides Norway Maple 8 Good

348 Acer platanoides Norway Maple 9 Good

349 Picea pungens Colorado Blue Spruce 22 Good

350 Acer saccharum Sugar Maple 12 Good

351 Acer saccharum Sugar Maple 12 Good

352 Acer saccharum Sugar Maple 14 Good

353 Acer saccharum Sugar Maple 8 Good

354 Picea glauca White Spruce 8 Fair

355 Pseudotsuga menziesii Douglas-fir 8 Fair

356 Acer saccharum Sugar Maple 12 Good

357 Acer saccharum Sugar Maple 14 Good

358 Picea pungens Colorado Blue Spruce 9 Fair Unidentified needle disease

359 Picea pungens Colorado Blue Spruce 14 Fair Unidentified needle disease

360 Pseudotsuga menziesii Douglas-fir 22 Poor Terminal leader has failed

361 Acer saccharum Sugar Maple 13 Good

362 Acer saccharum Sugar Maple 16 Good

363 Acer saccharum Sugar Maple 15 Good

364 Liquidambar styraciflua Sweetgum 11 Good

365 Acer saccharum Sugar Maple 11 Good

366 Juglans nigra Black Walnut 12 Good

367 Acer platanoides Norway Maple 11 Good

368 Acer platanoides Norway Maple 8 Fair Small trunk injury, wood exposed, some decay

369 Gleditisia triacanthos Honeylocust 12 Good

370 Acer platanoides Norway Maple 9 Good

371 Platanus occidentalis Sycamore 30 Good

372 Acer platanoides Norway Maple 28 Good

373 Picea pungens Colorado Blue Spruce 8 Fair

374 Picea pungens Colorado Blue Spruce 8 Dead

375 Acer saccharum Sugar Maple 13 Good

376 Acer platanoides Norway Maple 13 Good

377 Picea pungens Colorado Blue Spruce 9 Fair

378 Acer platanoides Norway Maple 9 Good

379 Malus spp. Crabapple spp. 9 Multiple Fair

380 Prunus avium Sweet Black Cherry 9 Good

381 Robinia pseudoacacia Black Locust 12 Good

382 Juglans nigra Black Walnut 9 Good

383 Juniperus virginiana Eastern Red-cedar 13 Good

384 Robinia pseudoacacia Black Locust 15 Good

385 Juniperus virginiana Eastern Red-cedar 8 Good

386 Juniperus virginiana Eastern Red-cedar 14 Good

387 Juniperus virginiana Eastern Red-cedar 15 Good

388 Juniperus virginiana Eastern Red-cedar 13 Good

389 Juniperus virginiana Eastern Red-cedar 14 Twin 8 Good

390 Juniperus virginiana Eastern Red-cedar 13 Twin 9 Good

391 Juniperus virginiana Eastern Red-cedar 8 Multiple 7, 3 Good

392 Juniperus virginiana Eastern Red-cedar 11 Twin 10 Good

393 Acer saccharum Sugar Maple 16 Twin 11 Good

394 Acer saccharum Sugar Maple 18 Good

395 Juglans nigra Black Walnut 12 Good

396 Celtis occidentalis Northern Hackberry 8 Good

3



J987 TS
9/18/2018

Condition Description Notes:

"Good" - no observed structural defects*

"Fair" - minor structural defects, marginal form, some insect activity noted* 

"Poor" - major structural defects, poor form, insect infested*

*Structural defects may include decayed wood, cracks, root problems, weak branch unions

cankers, poor tree architecture, dead/failed branches due to various causes.

Tree # Botanical Name Common Name Dia. Type Other Dia. Condition Comments

397 Acer platanoides Norway Maple 14 Twin 10 Fair Weak trunk union, included bark, some decay

398 Acer negundo Boxelder 12 Multiple 5, 3 Fair

399 Acer saccharum Sugar Maple 15 Good

400 Acer saccharinum Silver Maple 9 Multiple Good

401 Quercus bicolor Swamp White Oak 8 Good

402 Populus deltoides Eastern Cottonwood 13 Good

403 Populus deltoides Eastern Cottonwood 9 Good

404 Populus deltoides Eastern Cottonwood 12 Good

405 Populus deltoides Eastern Cottonwood 16 Good

406 Pinus sylvestris Scotch Pine 10 Good

407 Acer platanoides Norway Maple 17 Poor Large in-rolled trunk seam, decay

408 Acer saccharum Sugar Maple 12 Good

409 Acer saccharum Sugar Maple 15 Good

410 Acer saccharum Sugar Maple 9 Good

411 Acer saccharum Sugar Maple 11 Good

412 Acer saccharum Sugar Maple 15 Good

413 Acer saccharum Sugar Maple 9 Good

414 Acer saccharum Sugar Maple 12 Good

415 Acer saccharum Sugar Maple 8 Poor Extensive trunk decay

416 Gleditisia triacanthos Honeylocust 20 Good

417 Gleditisia triacanthos Honeylocust 16 Good

418 Gleditisia triacanthos Honeylocust 12 Good

419 Pseudotsuga menziesii Douglas-fir 12 Good

420 Picea pungens Colorado Blue Spruce 8 Fair

421 Picea pungens Colorado Blue Spruce 9 Fair

422 Pinus nigra Austrian Pine 14 Good

423 Acer saccharum Sugar Maple 9 Good

424 Acer saccharum Sugar Maple 10 Good

425 Pinus nigra Austrian Pine 14 Good

426 Pinus nigra Austrian Pine 11 Good

427 Pinus nigra Austrian Pine 14 Multiple 12, 10 Good

428 Pinus nigra Austrian Pine 15 Multiple 13, 7 Good

429 Picea pungens Colorado Blue Spruce 9 Poor Unidentified needle disease

430 Pinus nigra Austrian Pine 10 Fair Some diplodia disease

431 Pinus nigra Austrian Pine 9 Fair Some diplodia disease

432 Pinus nigra Austrian Pine 9 Fair Some diplodia disease

433 Pinus nigra Austrian Pine 10 Twin 9 Fair Some diplodia disease

434 Pinus nigra Austrian Pine 11 Fair Some diplodia disease

435 Pinus nigra Austrian Pine 13 Fair Some diplodia disease

436 Pinus nigra Austrian Pine 13 Dead

437 Pinus nigra Austrian Pine 15 Poor Some diplodia disease

438 Acer saccharinum Silver Maple 24 Good

439 Pinus nigra Austrian Pine 15 Poor Some diplodia disease

440 Pinus nigra Austrian Pine 12 Poor Some diplodia disease

441 Pinus sylvestris Scotch Pine 28 Good

442 Ulmus americana American Elm 9 Good

443 Pinus sylvestris Scotch Pine 14 Good

444 Acer saccharinum Silver Maple 18 Good

445 Pinus sylvestris Scotch Pine 22 Fair Insect damage

446 Pinus sylvestris Scotch Pine 28 Good

447 Acer saccharinum Silver Maple 15 Multiple Good

448 Pinus sylvestris Scotch Pine 16 Good

449 Pinus sylvestris Scotch Pine 15 Good

450 Pinus sylvestris Scotch Pine 16 Good

451 Acer saccharinum Silver Maple 8 Good

452 Pinus sylvestris Scotch Pine 28 Good

453 Pinus sylvestris Scotch Pine 18 Good

454 Acer saccharinum Silver Maple 11 Good

455 Pinus sylvestris Scotch Pine 15 Good

456 Pinus sylvestris Scotch Pine 13 Good

457 Acer saccharinum Silver Maple 9 Good

458 Pinus sylvestris Scotch Pine 14 Good

459 Malus spp. Crabapple spp. 9 Twin 8 Good

4



 

 

APPENDIX IV 

Marx Wetlands LLC Wetland Determination and Delineation Report (September 2018) 

 
 



 
 

 

3309 Platt Road 

Ann Arbor, Michigan 

Mobile: 734-478-8277 

e-mail 

bg.marxwetlands@gmail.com 

 

MARX 
WETLANDS 
LLC 

September 24, 2018 
 
 
Mr. Colin Schiefler 
DP Fox dba Green Castle Properties, LLC 
200 Ottawa Ave., NW #800 
Grand Rapids, MI 49506 
 
Re: Wetland Delineation Report: Grand River Avenue & Central Park Dr. 
 (Approx. 9-acre Property) 
 Meridian Township, Ingham County, MI 
 
Mr. Schiefler:  
 
Pursuant to your request, Marx Wetlands LLC conducted a wetland determination 
and delineation for an approximately 9-acre Assessment Area consisting of three 
(3) parcels (#33-02-02-22-252-003, 33-02-02-22-401-003, and 33-02-02-22-426-
001) for the above-referenced (“Project Site”).  The Site is located on the east side 
of Central Park Drive on the north side of Grand River Avenue within Section 22 of 
Meridian Township (T4N, R1W) of Ingham County, Michigan.  The intent of this 
determination is to provide a report of the character of any wetland areas within 
the subject parcel and an opinion as to the possible jurisdiction of the Michigan 
Department of Environmental Quality (MDEQ) and/or local governments over 
wetland areas identified on-site. 
 
The wetland determination was performed in accordance with the Michigan 
Department of Environmental Quality Wetland Identification Manual (2001), the 
Northcentral-Northeast Manual to the 1987 U.S. Army Corps of Engineers Wetland 
Delineation Manual.  The delineation of any wetland depends on three basic 
parameters.  These parameters are: 1) the presence of hydrophytic vegetation 
(plants adapted to living in saturated soils), 2) hydric soils (distinctive soil types 
that develop under saturated conditions), and 3) wetland hydrology (the presence 
of water at or near the surface for a specific period of time).  The above 
parameters are virtually always inter-related and present in wetland systems. The 
wetland determination consisted of desktop review of available background 
documentation and mapping followed by two (2) site visits performed on 
September 17 & 18, 2018.  A review of the findings is provided below.   
 
Site Characteristics 
Based on review of aerial photographs and the on-site visits, the Site is largely 
vacant, undeveloped land consisting of areas of upland field, scrub-shrub, forest, 
mixed deciduous tree lines, and wetland.  The Site also contains existing vacated 
houses, a barn, in-ground pool, and associated lawn, particularly in the central and 
southern portions of the Site.  In addition, existing driveways and mowed paths 
were also observed.  The Site is within a largely commercial and residential region 
of Meridian Township, Michigan. The Site is bounded by undeveloped land to the 
north, commercial development/Central Park Drive to the west, W. Grand River 
Avenue to the south, and undeveloped land/commercial buildings to the east. 
 
 



              September 24, 2018 
Central Park Drive & W. Grand River Avenue 
Meridian Township, Ingham County, Michigan 
Page 2 of 6 
 

 
 

Cover Type Descriptions 
Upland herbaceous species found in the open fields and much of the lawn areas 
include orchard grass (Dactylus glomerata), common milkweed (Asclepias 
syriaca), smooth brome (Bromus inermis), Japanese hedge-parsley (Torilis 
japonica), bluegrasses (Poa pratensis & P. compressa), timothy (Phleum pratense), 
Queen Anne’s lace (Daucus carota), and thistles (Cirsium arvense and C. vulgare).  
In addition, scattered prairie remnant species were also observed such as little 
bluestem (Schizachyrium scoparium), broom-sedge (Andropogon virginicus), and 
goldenrods (Solidago altissima and S. canadensis).  Scattered trees and shrub 
species observed include: cottonwood (Populus deltoides), multi-flora rose (Rosa 
multiflora), autumn-olive (Elaeagnus umbellata), blackberry (Rubus 
allegheniensis), and black raspberry (Rubus occidentalis).    
 
The upland, scrub-shrub and mixed deciduous forested areas, including the tree 
lines generally contain the following species: penn sedge (Carex pennsylvanica), 
orchard grass, white vervain (Verbena urticifolia), Virginia creeper (Parthenocissus 
quinquefolia), white pine (Pinus strobus), black locust (Robinia pseudoacacia), 
Scotch pine (Pinus sylvestris), white spruce (Picea glauca), blue spruce (Picea 
pungens), crabapple/apple (Malus spp.), maples (Acer platanoides, A. saccharum, 
and Acer saccharinum), oaks (Quercus alba and Q. rubra), black walnut (Juglans 
nigra), box-elder (Acer negundo), black cherry (Prunus serotina), cottonwood, 
scattered with basswood (Tilia americana),  white mulberry (Morus alba), 
sycamore (Platanus occidentalis), American elm (Ulmus americana), trembling 
aspen (Populus tremuloides), and ash (Fraxinus spp.) trees.  Common native and 
non-native shrub species include autumn-olive, dogwoods (Cornus amomum and 
C. racemosa), common buckthorn (Rhamnus cathartica), blackberry and black 
raspberry.  The weedy aspect of the Site is likely due to possible previous 
agricultural land use or another site disturbance.  Refer to the enclosed 
Photographic Log. 
 
Wetland Determination & Delineation  
Six (6) wetlands (Wetlands A, B, C, D, E, and F) were identified within the Site 
and/or along the site’s perimeters. No ponds or watercourses appear within the 
Site.  Refer to the enclosed Wetland Sketch.  

Table 1. Wetland Inventory Table 
Feature 
Name Wetland Type Regulatory Status 

Wetland A 
Emergent 

(PEM)/Forested-PFO 
Edge 

Likely MDEQ and Township Non-Regulated; 
isolated and < 0.25 ac in size 

Wetland B PEM/PFO edge 
Likely MDEQ and Township Non-Regulated; 

isolated and < 0.25 ac in size 

Wetland C Emergent (PEM) 
Likely MDEQ and Township Non-Regulated; 

isolated and < 0.25 ac in size 

Wetland D Emergent (PEM) 
Likely MDEQ & Township regulated; within 500 

feet of off-site pond. 

Wetland E Emergent/PFO edge 
Likely MDEQ & Township regulated; within 500 

feet of off-site pond. 

Wetland F Emergent/PFO edge 
Likely MDEQ & Township regulated; within 500 

feet of off-site pond  



              September 24, 2018 
Central Park Drive & W. Grand River Avenue 
Meridian Township, Ingham County, Michigan 
Page 3 of 6 
 

 
 

Wetlands 
 
Wetlands A & B 
Wetlands A & B are largely emergent wetlands with a minor forested component 
observed in the northwest portion of the Site (on parcel 33-02-02-22-252-003).  
Wetland A is contained entirely within the Site; however, Wetland B extends north 
off-site.  Herbaceous vegetation within these wetlands include: reed canary grass 
(Phalaris arundinacea: FACW), softstem bulrush (Schoenoplectus 
tabernaemontani; OBL), grass-leaved goldenrod (Euthamia graminifolia; FACW), 
Indian-hemp (Apocynum cannabinum; FAC), calico American-aster 
(Symphyotrichum lateriflorum; FAC, soft-stemmed rush (Juncus effusus; OBL), and 
scattered sedges (Carex lupulina, C. scoparia and C. vulpinoidea; OBL-FACW).  
Woody vines include riverbank grape (Vitis riparia; FACW) and poison-ivy 
(Toxicodendron radicans; FAC); and shrub species include: black raspberry and 
dogwoods.  Overhanging trees observed include silver maple (Acer saccharinum; 
FACW), white swamp oak (Quercus bicolor; FACW), elm (FACW) and cottonwood 
(FAC).  Most of these species range in wetland indicator status from obligate (OBL) 
to facultative (FAC), indicating species that typically occur in wetlands. Wetland 
hydrology indicators observed include: microtopographic relief (i.e., hummocks), 
water-stained leaves, geomorphic position, and FAC Neutral Test.  These wetlands 
appear to receive hydrology from precipitation, runoff from adjacent developed 
areas, and roadways, resulting in seasonally saturated to seasonally inundated 
water regimes.  Refer to the enclosed Wetland Sketch.   
 
Wetlands C & D 
Wetlands C & D are primarily emergent wetlands observed in the northwest and 
north-central portion of the Site (on parcel 33-02-02-22-252-003).  Wetland C 
extends north off-site and Wetland D is entirely within the site boundaries.  
Common herbaceous vegetation observed include: reed canary grass (FACW), 
grass-leaved goldenrod (FACW), redtop (Agrostis gigantea; FAC), softstem bulrush 
(OBL), Indian-hemp (FAC), panicled American-aster (Symphyotrichum 
lanceolatum; FACW), soft-stemmed rush (OBL), and sedges (Carex normalis, C. 
scoparia, and C. vulpinoidea).   Wetland C also contained: wool grass (Scirpus 
cyperinus; OBL), rush (Juncus biflorus), and self-heal (Prunella vulgaris; FAC).  The 
species range in wetland indicator status from obligate (OBL) to facultative (FAC), 
indicating species that typically occur in wetlands. Wetland hydrology indicators 
observed include microtopographic relief (I.e., hummocks), geomorphic position, 
and FAC Neutral Test.  These wetlands appear to receive hydrology from 
precipitation, runoff from adjacent developed areas, and roadways, resulting in 
seasonally saturated to seasonally inundated water regimes.  Refer to the 
enclosed Wetland Sketch.  
 
Wetlands E & F 
Wetlands E and F are primarily emergent wetlands with overhanging trees 
observed along the eastern boundary of the Site (on parcel #33-02-02-22-426-
001).  These wetlands continue slightly off-site; however, do appear to close at an 



              September 24, 2018 
Central Park Drive & W. Grand River Avenue 
Meridian Township, Ingham County, Michigan 
Page 4 of 6 
 

 
 

upland berm along the western edge of the pond (off-site).  Dominant herbaceous 
vegetation observed include: reed canary grass (FACW) and redtop (FAC), 
scattered species include: calico American-aster (FAC) and ground-ivy (Glechoma 
hederacea; FACU).  Overhanging trees and shrubs observed include box-elder 
(FAC), common buckthorn (FAC), black ash (Fraxinus nigra; FACW) saplings, and 
black willow (Salix nigra; FACW).  Most of these species range in wetland indicator 
status from obligate (OBL) to facultative (FAC), indicating species that typically 
occur in wetlands.  Wetland hydrology indicators observed include water-stained 
leaves, bare soil (sparsely vegetated concave surface in areas), geomorphic 
position, and FAC Neutral Test.  These wetlands appear to receive hydrology from 
precipitation, runoff from adjacent developed areas, and roadways, resulting in 
seasonally saturated to seasonally inundated water regimes.  Refer to the 
enclosed Wetland Sketch.  
 
Regulations 
Part 301, Inland Lakes and Streams, states that a feature is considered a regulated 
watercourse by the MDEQ if it possesses a defined bed, bank, and evidence of 
continued flow or a continued occurrence of water.   Additionally, Part 301 states 
that if a pond with a surface area larger than five (5) acres should be considered 
regulated.  Based on the site visit, no watercourses or ponds were observed on-
site.  
 
Part 303, Wetlands Protection, of the NREPA states that if a wetland is five acres 
in size or larger and/or connected to or located within 500 feet of a river, stream, 
lake, or pond, it is considered regulated by the MDEQ.  Marx Wetlands, LLC has 
the professional opinion that both Wetlands A, B, and C are not likely regulated by 
the MDEQ because they appear less than 5 acres in size and isolated (i.e., not 
connected to or located within 500 feet of a regulating feature).  However, 
Wetlands D, E, and F are likely within 500 feet of a regulating feature (i.e., off-site 
pond east of parcel #33-02-02-22-426-001).  Therefore, Marx Wetlands LLC has 
the professional opinion that Wetlands D, E, and F appear to meet the 
requirements of Part 303, Wetlands Protection, of the NREPA. 
 
In addition, Meridian Township (Township) has its own wetland protection 
ordinance. The township’s Wetland Protection ordinance (Chapter 22, Article IV) 
states that wetlands are protected if they are:  
 
  contiguous to any inland lake stream, river, or pond.  
 
 Partially or entirely within 500 feet of the ordinary high-water mark of any 
inland lake, stream, river or pond.  
 
 Two or more areas of wetland separated only by barriers, such as dikes, roads, 
berms or other similar features, if any of those wetlands are contiguous to an 
inland lake, stream, river or pond. 
 



              September 24, 2018 
Central Park Drive & W. Grand River Avenue 
Meridian Township, Ingham County, Michigan 
Page 5 of 6 
 

 
 

 larger than two acres, even if not contiguous to an inland lake, stream, river 
or pond.  
 
 not contiguous to any inland lake, stream, river or pond, if the state 
department of environmental quality determines the protection of the wetland is 
essential to the preservation of the natural resources of the state from pollution, 
impairment or destruction. 
 
 wetlands, equal to or greater than one-quarter acre and equal to or less than 
two acres in size, which are not contiguous to any inland lake, stream, river or 
pond and are determined to be essential to the preservation of the natural 
resources of the Township as provided in township code § 22-156. Code § 22-156 
provides that a wetland is essential to the preservation of the township’s natural 
resources if it fulfills any of ten criteria.  
 
Therefore, it is the professional opinion of Marx Wetlands LLC that Wetlands D, E, 
and F are also likely regulated by Meridian Township because they appear within 
500 feet of a regulating feature (i.e., pond). Wetlands A, B, and C appear to be 
isolated and/or less than 0.25 acres in size and may be considered non-regulated 
by the Township; however, Wetlands A & B may be protected under the Meridian 
Township’s Chapter 22 Environment, Article IV Wetland Protection, if it is 
determined that the protection of these wetland areas is important for the 
preservation of the local natural resources.  (Meridian Township- Code 1974, 
§ 105-3; Ord. No. 2002-02, 3-19-2002; Ord. No. 2003-11, 7-6-2003; Ord. No. 2011-
04, 3-15-2011).  
 
It is important to note that the Meridian Township Board has a policy of no net 
loss of wetlands and impacts to wetlands may require wetland mitigation. A 
mitigation plan, if required, shall be approved as part of the wetland use permit 
decision. 
 
A permit or approval is likely required by the Meridian Township for any proposed 
work (e.g., filling, dredging, construction, and draining and/or other development) 
that takes place within the boundaries of a regulated wetland.  Most construction 
activities that take place outside of these boundaries do not require a wetland 
permit from the MDEQ or Meridian Township.  Please note that the MDEQ and 
Township have the final authority on the extent of regulated wetlands, lakes, and 
streams in the State of Michigan and Meridian Township, respectively.   
 
Please be advised the information provided in this report is a professional opinion.  
The ultimate decision on wetland boundary locations and jurisdiction thereof rests 
with the MDEQ or Township and, in some cases, the Federal government.  
Therefore, there may be adjustments to boundaries based upon review of a 
regulatory agency.  An agency determination can vary, depending on various 
factors including, but not limited to, experience of the agency representative 
making the determination and the season of the year.  In addition, the physical 



              September 24, 2018 
Central Park Drive & W. Grand River Avenue 
Meridian Township, Ingham County, Michigan 
Page 6 of 6 
 

 
 

characteristics of the site can change with time, depending on the weather, 
vegetation patterns, drainage, activities on adjacent parcels, or other events.  Any 
of these factors can change the nature / extent of wetlands on the site.  
 
Thank you for the opportunity to provide this wetland determination.  If you have 
any questions, please contact me at your convenience. 
 
Sincerely, 
 

 
Marx Wetlands LLC 
Bryana J. Guevara, PWS 2949  
ISA Certified Arborist MI-4204A 
Environmental Consultant 
 
Enclosures:  
1) Photographic Log  
2) Wetland Sketch 
3) USACE Wetland Determination Data Forms 



W
et

la
nd

 D
et

er
m

in
at

io
n 

&
 D

el
in

ea
tio

n 
 

W
. G

ra
nd

 R
iv

er
 A

ve
nu

e 
&

 C
en

tr
al

 P
ar

k 
D

riv
e 

 
 

 M
er

id
ia

n 
To

w
ns

hi
p,

 In
gh

am
 C

ou
nt

y 
M

ic
hi

ga
n 

PH
O

TO
G

RA
PH

IC
 L

O
G

 

 
 

 
1 

 
 

1)
 A

n 
ea

st
-f

ac
in

g 
vi

ew
 o

f e
xi

st
in

g 
di

rt
 d

riv
ew

ay
.  

 
2)

 
A 

no
rt

he
as

t-
fa

ci
ng

 v
ie

w
 o

f a
n 

up
la

nd
 o

ld
 fi

el
d 

w
ith

 s
ca

tt
er

ed
 s

hr
ub

s a
nd

 tr
ee

s.
 In

 
gr

ou
nd

 p
oo

l o
bs

er
ve

d 
in

 b
ac

kg
ro

un
d 

of
 th

is
 p

ho
to

gr
ap

h.
  

 
 

3)
 

Vi
ew

 o
f e

xi
st

in
g 

m
ow

ed
 p

at
h 

ob
se

rv
ed

 in
 th

e 
w

es
te

rn
 p

or
tio

n 
of

 th
e 

Si
te

.  
  

4)
 

Vi
ew

 o
f t

he
 u

nd
ev

el
op

ed
 p

ar
ce

l c
on

si
st

in
g 

of
 p

rim
ar

ily
 u

pl
an

d 
fie

ld
s a

nd
 m

ix
ed

 
de

ci
du

ou
s 

fo
re

st
 p

at
ch

es
.  



W
et

la
nd

 D
et

er
m

in
at

io
n 

&
 D

el
in

ea
tio

n 
 

W
. G

ra
nd

 R
iv

er
 A

ve
nu

e 
&

 C
en

tr
al

 P
ar

k 
D

riv
e 

 
 

 M
er

id
ia

n 
To

w
ns

hi
p,

 In
gh

am
 C

ou
nt

y 
M

ic
hi

ga
n 

PH
O

TO
G

RA
PH

IC
 L

O
G

 

 
 

 
2 

 
 

5)
 

An
ot

he
r v

ie
w

 o
f u

pl
an

d 
m

ix
ed

 d
ec

id
uo

us
 fo

re
st

ed
 p

at
ch

es
 o

bs
er

ve
d 

in
 th

e 
Si

te
.  

 
6)

 
A 

w
es

t-
fa

ci
ng

 v
ie

w
 o

f a
n 

ex
is

tin
g 

ba
rn

 a
nd

 o
pe

n 
fie

ld
 a

nd
 g

ra
ss

y 
la

w
n 

ar
ea

s.
 

U
pl

an
d 

tr
ee

 li
ne

s 
w

er
e 

ob
se

rv
ed

 a
lo

ng
 th

e 
w

es
te

rn
 b

ou
nd

ar
y.

  

 
 

7)
 

Vi
ew

 o
f a

n 
ex

ist
in

g,
 v

ac
at

ed
 h

ou
se

 o
bs

er
ve

d 
on

 th
e 

16
14

 W
. G

ra
nd

 R
iv

er
 A

ve
nu

e 
pr

op
er

ty
.  

8)
 

An
ot

he
r v

ie
w

 o
f t

he
 e

xi
st

in
g 

ho
us

e 
an

d 
as

so
ci

at
ed

 u
pl

an
d 

fie
ld

 a
nd

 la
w

n 
ob

se
rv

ed
 in

 th
e 

so
ut

h-
ce

nt
ra

l p
or

tio
n 

of
 th

e 
ov

er
al

l S
ite

.  
  



W
et

la
nd

 D
et

er
m

in
at

io
n 

&
 D

el
in

ea
tio

n 
 

W
. G

ra
nd

 R
iv

er
 A

ve
nu

e 
&

 C
en

tr
al

 P
ar

k 
D

riv
e 

 
 

 M
er

id
ia

n 
To

w
ns

hi
p,

 In
gh

am
 C

ou
nt

y 
M

ic
hi

ga
n 

PH
O

TO
G

RA
PH

IC
 L

O
G

 

 
 

 
3 

 
 

9)
 

Vi
ew

 o
f W

et
la

nd
 A

, a
 la

rg
el

y 
em

er
ge

nt
 w

et
la

nd
 w

ith
 o

ve
rh

an
gi

ng
 tr

ee
s,

 o
bs

er
ve

d 
w

ith
in

 th
e 

no
rt

hw
es

te
rn

 p
or

tio
n 

of
 th

e 
Si

te
.  

 
10

) 
A 

no
rt

h-
fa

ci
ng

 v
ie

w
 o

f W
et

la
nd

 B
, a

no
th

er
 e

m
er

ge
nt

 w
et

la
nd

 w
ith

 o
ve

rh
an

gi
ng

 
tr

ee
s 

ob
se

rv
ed

 a
lo

ng
 th

e 
no

rt
he

rn
 b

ou
nd

ar
y 

of
 th

e 
Si

te
.  

 

 
 

11
) 

Vi
ew

 o
f a

n 
up

la
nd

 b
re

ak
 th

at
 a

pp
ea

rs
 to

 s
ep

ar
at

e 
W

et
la

nd
s A

 &
 B

 in
 th

e 
no

rt
hw

es
t 

po
rt

io
n 

of
 th

e 
si

te
.  

12
) 

A 
no

rt
h-

fa
ci

ng
 v

ie
w

 o
f W

et
la

nd
 C

, a
n 

em
er

ge
nt

 w
et

la
nd

 in
 th

e 
no

rt
he

as
t c

or
ne

r 
of

 th
e 

Si
te

. N
ot

e 
up

la
nd

 sh
ru

bs
 (i

.e
. a

ut
um

n-
ol

iv
e)

 in
 b

ac
kg

ro
un

d 
of

 th
is

 p
ho

to
. 



W
et

la
nd

 D
et

er
m

in
at

io
n 

&
 D

el
in

ea
tio

n 
 

W
. G

ra
nd

 R
iv

er
 A

ve
nu

e 
&

 C
en

tr
al

 P
ar

k 
D

riv
e 

 
 

 M
er

id
ia

n 
To

w
ns

hi
p,

 In
gh

am
 C

ou
nt

y 
M

ic
hi

ga
n 

PH
O

TO
G

RA
PH

IC
 L

O
G

 

 
 

 
4 

 
 

13
) 

Vi
ew

 o
f W

et
la

nd
 D

, a
n 

em
er

ge
nt

 w
et

la
nd

, o
bs

er
ve

d 
in

 th
e 

no
rt

he
as

t p
or

tio
n 

of
 th

e 
Si

te
.  

14
) 

A 
no

rt
h-

fa
ci

ng
 v

ie
w

 o
f W

et
la

nd
 E

, a
n 

em
er

ge
nt

 w
et

la
nd

 w
ith

 o
ve

rh
an

gi
ng

 
tr

ee
s,

 o
bs

er
ve

d 
al

on
g 

th
e 

ea
st

er
n 

bo
un

da
ry

 o
f t

he
 S

ite
.  

 
 

15
) 

A 
so

ut
h-

fa
ci

ng
 v

ie
w

 o
f W

et
la

nd
 F

, a
n 

em
er

ge
nt

 w
et

la
nd

 w
ith

 o
ve

rh
an

gi
ng

 tr
ee

s,
 

al
on

g 
th

e 
ea

st
er

n 
si

te
 b

ou
nd

ar
y.

  
16

) 
An

 e
as

t-
fa

ci
ng

 v
ie

w
 o

f W
. G

ra
nd

 R
iv

er
 A

ve
nu

e 
al

on
g 

th
e 

so
ut

he
rn

 b
ou

nd
ar

y 
of

 
th

e 
Si

te
.  

 



 

 Wetland A: Flags A-1 close to A-20 
 Wetland B: Flags B-1 continue to B-11 (open at property line-PL); continue B-15 close to B-1 
 Wetland C: Flags C-1 open at PL; continue to C-10 open at PL 
 Wetland D: Flags D-1 close to D-9 
 Wetland E: Flags E-1 continue to E-7; (likely closes off-site) 
 Wetland F: Flags F-1 continue to F-9; (likely closes off-site)  



Project/Site: Sampling Date:

Applicant/Owner: State: Sampling Point:

Investigator(s): Section, Township, Range:

Landform (hillside, terrace, etc.): Local relief (concave, convex, none): Slope (%):

Subregion (LRR or MLRA): Lat: Long: Datum:

Soil Map Unit Name: NWI classification:

Are climatic / hydrologic conditions on the site typical for this time of year?

Are Vegetation , Soil , or Hydrology significantly disturbed? Are “Normal Circumstances” present?

Are Vegetation , Soil , or Hydrology naturally problematic?

SUMMARY OF FINDINGS –  Attach site map showing sampling point locations, transects, important features, etc.

If yes, optional Wetland Site ID:

Secondary Indicators (minimum of two required)

 

Surface Water Present?

Wetland Hydrology Present?

0-2

WSG84

Wetland Hydrology Indicators:

Wetland AWetland Hydrology Present?

Is the Sampled Area

within a Wetland?

Wetland system is observed in the northwest portion of the Site. 

Primary Indicators (minimum of one is required; check all that apply)                                     

x

Yes

Yes

Hydrophytic Vegetation Present?

Hydric Soil Present? 

Water-Stained Leaves (B9)

Yes

Algal Mat or Crust (B4)

(If needed, explain any answers in Remarks.)

Thin Muck Surface (C7)

B.Guevara; Marx Wetlands LLC

LRR L

(If no, explain in Remarks.) 

Wetland hydrology is typical for this wetland type during the driest period of the year. 

 

 

Yes

Remarks:  (Explain alternative procedures here or in a separate report.)

Yes

S22, T4N, R1W

toeslope/depression

HYDROLOGY

WETLAND DETERMINATION DATA FORM - Northcentral and Northeast Region 

X

PEM/Minor (PFO) edge

x

DP Fox dba Green Castle Properties, LLC

No

42.71956

concave

Kibbie loam, 0 to 3 percent slopes

9/17/2018

A

W. Grand River Avenue/Central Park Drive Meridian Twp/Ingham Co. City/County:

MI

-84.40849

Yes NoX

Surface Soil Cracks (B6)

Aquatic Fauna (B13)

Drainage Patterns (B10)

Moss Trim Lines (B16)

Dry-Season Water Table (C2)

No

Marl Deposits (B15)

x  

NoNox

x No

Surface Water (A1)

FAC-Neutral Test (D5)

x

Shallow Aquitard (D3)

Microtopographic Relief (D4)

Remarks: 

(includes capillary fringe)

Yes

 

 No

NoYes

Describe Recorded Data (stream gauge, monitoring well, aerial photos, previous inspections), if available:

Field Observations:

Water Table Present?

Saturation Present?

High Water Table (A2)

Saturation (A3)

Water Marks (B1)

Iron Deposits (B5)

Inundation Visible on Aerial Imagery (B7)

Presence of Reduced Iron (C4)

Recent Iron Reduction in Tilled Soils (C6)

Other (Explain in Remarks)

Oxidized Rhizospheres on Living Roots (C3)Sediment Deposits (B2)

Drift Deposits (B3)

Crayfish Burrows (C8)Hydrogen Sulfide Odor (C1)

NoYes

Depth (inches):

X

XX

NoYes xx Depth (inches): X

XX Depth (inches):

Saturation Visible on Aerial Imagery (C9)

Stunted or Stressed Plants (D1)

Geomorphic Position (D2)

Sparsely Vegetated Concave Surface (B8)

US Army Corps of Engineers Northcentral and Northeast Region – Interim Version (Revised)



VEGETATION Sampling Point:

Tree Stratum (Plot size:

1.

2. (A)

3.

4. (B)

5.

6. (A/B)

7.

Sapling/Shrub Stratum (Plot size: OBL species x 1 =

1. FACW species x 2 =

2. FAC species x 3 =

3. FACU species x 4 =

4. UPL species x 5 =

5. Column Totals: (A) (B)

6. Prevalence Index  = B/A =

7.

Herb Stratum (Plot size:

1.

2. Morphological Adaptations1 (Provide supporting

3.

4. Problematic Hydrophytic Vegetation1 (Explain)

5.

6.

7.

8.

9.

10.

11.

12.

Woody Vine Stratum (Plot size:

1.

2.

3.

4. Yes No

Remarks:  (Include photo numbers here or on a separate sheet.)

Rapid Test for Hydrophytic Vegetation

Dominance Test is >50%

Prevalence Index is ≤3.01

)

=Total Cover

FACU

FACW

Dominant 
Species?

Indicator 
Status

10

10

Absolute 
% Cover

Yes

Yes

FAC

FACW

5 No FACW

Toxicodendron radicans

105

)

FAC

Phalaris arundinacea 45

Carex vulpinoidea

Apocynum cannabinum

Juncus effusus

Symphyotrichum lateriflorum

Carex lupulina

Carex scoparia

10

10

10 Yes

Yes FACW

)

30-ft radius

5-ft radius

=Total Cover

=Total Cover

10

20

Vitis riparia

Yes

No

=Total Cover

5

OBLNo

Yes

Yes

10

No5
Tree – Woody plants 3 in. (7.6 cm) or more in 
diameter at breast height (DBH), regardless of height.

Definitions of Vegetation Strata:

Herb – All herbaceous (non-woody) plants, regardless 
of size, and woody plants less than 3.28 ft tall.

Hydrophytic 
Vegetation 
Present?

Woody vines – All woody vines greater than 3.28 ft in 
height.

X

1Indicators of hydric soil and wetland hydrology must 
be present, unless disturbed or problematic.

Sapling/shrub – Woody plants less than 3 in. DBH 
and greater than 3.28 ft (1 m) tall.

5

No FACW

FACW

FAC

FACW5

240

100.0%
Percent of Dominant Species 
That Are OBL, FACW, or FAC:

OBL

10

FACW

Yes

Schoenoplectus tabernaemontani

60

Fraxinus nigra

Rubus allegheniensis

Yes20

OBL

Yes

Total % Cover of:

Euthamia graminifolia FACW

30

10

FACYes

No

30

15-ft radius

Cornus amomum

Prevalence Index worksheet:

2.26

25

120

60

10

data in Remarks or on a separate sheet)

0

215

X

X

180

25

40

Hydrophytic Vegetation Indicators:

0

485

Multiply by:

A– Use scientific names of plants.

11

11

Acer saccharinum

Populus deltoides

Ulmus americana

Quercus bicolor

FACW

30-ft radius

Total Number of Dominant 
Species Across All Strata:

) Dominance Test worksheet:

Number of Dominant Species 
That Are OBL, FACW, or FAC:

No5

US Army Corps of Engineers Northcentral and Northeast Region – Interim Version (Revised)



Sampling Point:

1Type:  C=Concentration, D=Depletion, RM=Reduced Matrix, CS=Covered or Coated Sand Grains.

Thin Dark Surface (S9) (LRR R, MLRA 149B)

Iron-Manganese Masses (F12) (LRR K, L, R)

Piedmont Floodplain Soils (F19) (MLRA 149B)

Mesic Spodic (TA6) (MLRA 144A, 145, 149B)

Depth (inches):                   Hydric Soil Present? Yes No

%

Prominent redox concentrations

Texture Remarks

Redox FeaturesDepth

(inches) Color (moist) %

Matrix

Loc2

0-10 M95 7.5YR 4/6 Loamy/Clayey5

Type1

C10YR 3/2

Color (moist)

ASOIL

Profile Description:  (Describe to the depth needed to document the indicator or confirm the absence of indicators.)

Histosol (A1)

Indicators for Problematic Hydric Soils3:

 2 cm Muck (A10) (LRR K, L, MLRA 149B)

Coast Prairie Redox (A16) (LRR K, L, R)

2Location:  PL=Pore Lining, M=Matrix.

Hydric Soil Indicators:

Polyvalue Below Surface (S8) (LRR R,

Other (Explain in Remarks)

Stripped Matrix (S6)

Dark Surface (S7) (LRR R, MLRA 149B)

5 cm Mucky Peat or Peat (S3) (LRR K, L, R)

X

Sandy Redox (S5)

Depleted Below Dark Surface (A11)

 

MLRA 149B)

Black Histic (A3)

Histic Epipedon (A2)

Restrictive Layer (if observed):

Red Parent Material (TF2)

Very Shallow Dark Surface (TF12)

Dark Surface (S7) (LRR K, L)

Polyvalue Below Surface (S8) (LRR K, L)

Thin Dark Surface (S9) (LRR K, L)

3Indicators of hydrophytic vegetation and wetland hydrology must be present, unless disturbed or problematic.

Sandy Gleyed Matrix (S4)

Depleted Dark Surface (F7)

Redox Depressions (F8)

Redox Dark Surface (F6)

Hydrogen Sulfide (A4)

Stratified Layers (A5)

Thick Dark Surface (A12)

Sandy Mucky Mineral (S1)

Loamy Mucky Mineral (F1) (LRR K, L)

Loamy Gleyed Matrix (F2)

Depleted Matrix (F3)

Type:

Remarks:

X

None

US Army Corps of Engineers Northcentral and Northeast Region – Interim Version (Revised)



Project/Site: Sampling Date:

Applicant/Owner: State: Sampling Point:

Investigator(s): Section, Township, Range:

Landform (hillside, terrace, etc.): Local relief (concave, convex, none): Slope (%):

Subregion (LRR or MLRA): Lat: Long: Datum:

Soil Map Unit Name: NWI classification:

Are climatic / hydrologic conditions on the site typical for this time of year?

Are Vegetation , Soil , or Hydrology significantly disturbed? Are “Normal Circumstances” present?

Are Vegetation , Soil , or Hydrology naturally problematic?

SUMMARY OF FINDINGS –  Attach site map showing sampling point locations, transects, important features, etc.

If yes, optional Wetland Site ID:

Secondary Indicators (minimum of two required)

 

x

x

Surface Water Present?

Wetland Hydrology Present?

0-2

WSG84

Wetland Hydrology Indicators:

Wetland BWetland Hydrology Present?

Is the Sampled Area

within a Wetland?

Wetland system is observed in the northwest portion of the Site, along the northern boundary. 

Primary Indicators (minimum of one is required; check all that apply)                                     

x

Yes

Yes

Hydrophytic Vegetation Present?

Hydric Soil Present? 

Water-Stained Leaves (B9)

Yes

Algal Mat or Crust (B4)

(If needed, explain any answers in Remarks.)

Thin Muck Surface (C7)

B.Guevara; Marx Wetlands LLC

LRR L

(If no, explain in Remarks.) 

Wetland hydrology is typical for this wetland type during the driest period of the year. 

 

 

Yes

Remarks:  (Explain alternative procedures here or in a separate report.)

Yes

S22, T4N, R1W

toeslope/depression

HYDROLOGY

WETLAND DETERMINATION DATA FORM - Northcentral and Northeast Region 

X

PEM/Minor (PFO) edge

x

DP Fox dba Green Castle Properties, LLC

No

42.72033

concave

Kibbie loam, 0 to 3 percent slopes

9/17/2018

B

W. Grand River Avenue/Central Park Drive Meridian Twp/Ingham Co. City/County:

MI

-84.40808

Yes NoX

Surface Soil Cracks (B6)

Aquatic Fauna (B13)

Drainage Patterns (B10)

Moss Trim Lines (B16)

Dry-Season Water Table (C2)

No

Marl Deposits (B15)

x  

NoNox

x No

Surface Water (A1)

FAC-Neutral Test (D5)

x

Shallow Aquitard (D3)

Microtopographic Relief (D4)

Remarks: 

(includes capillary fringe)

Yes

 

 No

NoYes

Describe Recorded Data (stream gauge, monitoring well, aerial photos, previous inspections), if available:

Field Observations:

Water Table Present?

Saturation Present?

High Water Table (A2)

Saturation (A3)

Water Marks (B1)

Iron Deposits (B5)

Inundation Visible on Aerial Imagery (B7)

Presence of Reduced Iron (C4)

Recent Iron Reduction in Tilled Soils (C6)

Other (Explain in Remarks)

Oxidized Rhizospheres on Living Roots (C3)Sediment Deposits (B2)

Drift Deposits (B3)

Crayfish Burrows (C8)Hydrogen Sulfide Odor (C1)

NoYes

Depth (inches):

X

XX

NoYes xx Depth (inches): X

XX Depth (inches):

Saturation Visible on Aerial Imagery (C9)

Stunted or Stressed Plants (D1)

Geomorphic Position (D2)

Sparsely Vegetated Concave Surface (B8)

US Army Corps of Engineers Northcentral and Northeast Region – Interim Version (Revised)



VEGETATION Sampling Point:

Tree Stratum (Plot size:

1.

2. (A)

3.

4. (B)

5.

6. (A/B)

7.

Sapling/Shrub Stratum (Plot size: OBL species x 1 =

1. FACW species x 2 =

2. FAC species x 3 =

3. FACU species x 4 =

4. UPL species x 5 =

5. Column Totals: (A) (B)

6. Prevalence Index  = B/A =

7.

Herb Stratum (Plot size:

1.

2. Morphological Adaptations1 (Provide supporting

3.

4. Problematic Hydrophytic Vegetation1 (Explain)

5.

6.

7.

8.

9.

10.

11.

12.

Woody Vine Stratum (Plot size:

1.

2.

3.

4. Yes No

Remarks:  (Include photo numbers here or on a separate sheet.)

Rapid Test for Hydrophytic Vegetation

Dominance Test is >50%

Prevalence Index is ≤3.01

)

=Total Cover

FACU

FACW

Dominant 
Species?

Indicator 
Status

10

10

Absolute 
% Cover

Yes

Yes

FAC

FACW

5 No FACW

Toxicodendron radicans

100

)

FAC

Phalaris arundinacea 20

Carex vulpinoidea

Apocynum cannabinum

Juncus effusus

Symphyotrichum lateriflorum

Carex lupulina

Carex scoparia

10

10

5 Yes

Yes FACW

)

30-ft radius

5-ft radius

=Total Cover

=Total Cover

5

10

Vitis riparia

No

No

=Total Cover

5

OBLYes

No

Yes

5

No5
Tree – Woody plants 3 in. (7.6 cm) or more in 
diameter at breast height (DBH), regardless of height.

Definitions of Vegetation Strata:

Herb – All herbaceous (non-woody) plants, regardless 
of size, and woody plants less than 3.28 ft tall.

Hydrophytic 
Vegetation 
Present?

Woody vines – All woody vines greater than 3.28 ft in 
height.

X

1Indicators of hydric soil and wetland hydrology must 
be present, unless disturbed or problematic.

Sapling/shrub – Woody plants less than 3 in. DBH 
and greater than 3.28 ft (1 m) tall.

20

No FACW

FACW

FAC

FACW10

170

90.0%
Percent of Dominant Species 
That Are OBL, FACW, or FAC:

OBL

15

FACW

No

Schoenoplectus tabernaemontani

25

Fraxinus nigra

Rubus allegheniensis

Yes5

OBL

Yes

Total % Cover of:

Euthamia graminifolia FACW

5 No UPL

15

5

FACYes

Yes

35

15-ft radius

Cornus amomum

Prevalence Index worksheet:

2.18

35

85

40

5

data in Remarks or on a separate sheet)

5

170

X

X

120

35

20

Hydrophytic Vegetation Indicators:

25

370

Multiply by:

B– Use scientific names of plants.

9

10

Acer saccharinum

Populus deltoides

Ulmus americana

Quercus bicolor

FACW

30-ft radius

Total Number of Dominant 
Species Across All Strata:

) Dominance Test worksheet:

Number of Dominant Species 
That Are OBL, FACW, or FAC:

No

Populus tremuloides

5

US Army Corps of Engineers Northcentral and Northeast Region – Interim Version (Revised)



Sampling Point:

1Type:  C=Concentration, D=Depletion, RM=Reduced Matrix, CS=Covered or Coated Sand Grains.

Thin Dark Surface (S9) (LRR R, MLRA 149B)

Iron-Manganese Masses (F12) (LRR K, L, R)

Piedmont Floodplain Soils (F19) (MLRA 149B)

Mesic Spodic (TA6) (MLRA 144A, 145, 149B)

Depth (inches):                   Hydric Soil Present? Yes No

%

Prominent redox concentrations

Texture Remarks

Redox FeaturesDepth

(inches) Color (moist) %

Matrix

Loc2

0-10 M95 7.5YR 4/6 Loamy/Clayey5

Type1

C10YR 3/2

Color (moist)

BSOIL

Profile Description:  (Describe to the depth needed to document the indicator or confirm the absence of indicators.)

Histosol (A1)

Indicators for Problematic Hydric Soils3:

 2 cm Muck (A10) (LRR K, L, MLRA 149B)

Coast Prairie Redox (A16) (LRR K, L, R)

2Location:  PL=Pore Lining, M=Matrix.

Hydric Soil Indicators:

Polyvalue Below Surface (S8) (LRR R,

Other (Explain in Remarks)

Stripped Matrix (S6)

Dark Surface (S7) (LRR R, MLRA 149B)

5 cm Mucky Peat or Peat (S3) (LRR K, L, R)

X

Sandy Redox (S5)

Depleted Below Dark Surface (A11)

 

MLRA 149B)

Black Histic (A3)

Histic Epipedon (A2)

Restrictive Layer (if observed):

Red Parent Material (TF2)

Very Shallow Dark Surface (TF12)

Dark Surface (S7) (LRR K, L)

Polyvalue Below Surface (S8) (LRR K, L)

Thin Dark Surface (S9) (LRR K, L)

3Indicators of hydrophytic vegetation and wetland hydrology must be present, unless disturbed or problematic.

Sandy Gleyed Matrix (S4)

Depleted Dark Surface (F7)

Redox Depressions (F8)

Redox Dark Surface (F6)

Hydrogen Sulfide (A4)

Stratified Layers (A5)

Thick Dark Surface (A12)

Sandy Mucky Mineral (S1)

Loamy Mucky Mineral (F1) (LRR K, L)

Loamy Gleyed Matrix (F2)

Depleted Matrix (F3)

Type:

Remarks:

X

None

US Army Corps of Engineers Northcentral and Northeast Region – Interim Version (Revised)



Project/Site: Sampling Date:

Applicant/Owner: State: Sampling Point:

Investigator(s): Section, Township, Range:

Landform (hillside, terrace, etc.): Local relief (concave, convex, none): Slope (%):

Subregion (LRR or MLRA): Lat: Long: Datum:

Soil Map Unit Name: NWI classification:

Are climatic / hydrologic conditions on the site typical for this time of year?

Are Vegetation , Soil , or Hydrology significantly disturbed? Are “Normal Circumstances” present?

Are Vegetation , Soil , or Hydrology naturally problematic?

SUMMARY OF FINDINGS –  Attach site map showing sampling point locations, transects, important features, etc.

If yes, optional Wetland Site ID:

Secondary Indicators (minimum of two required)

 

Surface Water Present?

Wetland Hydrology Present?

0-2

WSG84

Wetland Hydrology Indicators:

Wetland CWetland Hydrology Present?

Is the Sampled Area

within a Wetland?

Wetland system is observed in the northeast corner of the Site. 

Primary Indicators (minimum of one is required; check all that apply)                                     

x

Yes

Yes

Hydrophytic Vegetation Present?

Hydric Soil Present? 

Water-Stained Leaves (B9)

Yes

Algal Mat or Crust (B4)

(If needed, explain any answers in Remarks.)

Thin Muck Surface (C7)

B.Guevara; Marx Wetlands LLC

LRR L

(If no, explain in Remarks.) 

Wetland hydrology is typical for this wetland type during the driest period of the year. 

 

 

Yes

Remarks:  (Explain alternative procedures here or in a separate report.)

Yes

S22, T4N, R1W

toeslope/depression

HYDROLOGY

WETLAND DETERMINATION DATA FORM - Northcentral and Northeast Region 

X

PEM

x

DP Fox dba Green Castle Properties, LLC

No

42.720321

concave

Kibbie loam, 0 to 3 percent slopes

9/17/2018

C

W. Grand River Avenue/Central Park Drive Meridian Twp/Ingham Co. City/County:

MI

-84.40785

Yes NoX

Surface Soil Cracks (B6)

Aquatic Fauna (B13)

Drainage Patterns (B10)

Moss Trim Lines (B16)

Dry-Season Water Table (C2)

No

Marl Deposits (B15)

x  

NoNox

x No

Surface Water (A1)

FAC-Neutral Test (D5)

x

Shallow Aquitard (D3)

Microtopographic Relief (D4)

Remarks: 

(includes capillary fringe)

Yes

 

 No

NoYes

Describe Recorded Data (stream gauge, monitoring well, aerial photos, previous inspections), if available:

Field Observations:

Water Table Present?

Saturation Present?

High Water Table (A2)

Saturation (A3)

Water Marks (B1)

Iron Deposits (B5)

Inundation Visible on Aerial Imagery (B7)

Presence of Reduced Iron (C4)

Recent Iron Reduction in Tilled Soils (C6)

Other (Explain in Remarks)

Oxidized Rhizospheres on Living Roots (C3)Sediment Deposits (B2)

Drift Deposits (B3)

Crayfish Burrows (C8)Hydrogen Sulfide Odor (C1)

NoYes

Depth (inches):

X

XX

NoYes xx Depth (inches): X

XX Depth (inches):

Saturation Visible on Aerial Imagery (C9)

Stunted or Stressed Plants (D1)

Geomorphic Position (D2)

Sparsely Vegetated Concave Surface (B8)

US Army Corps of Engineers Northcentral and Northeast Region – Interim Version (Revised)



VEGETATION Sampling Point:

Tree Stratum (Plot size:

1.

2. (A)

3.

4. (B)

5.

6. (A/B)

7.

Sapling/Shrub Stratum (Plot size: OBL species x 1 =

1. FACW species x 2 =

2. FAC species x 3 =

3. FACU species x 4 =

4. UPL species x 5 =

5. Column Totals: (A) (B)

6. Prevalence Index  = B/A =

7.

Herb Stratum (Plot size:

1.

2. Morphological Adaptations1 (Provide supporting

3.

4. Problematic Hydrophytic Vegetation1 (Explain)

5.

6.

7.

8.

9.

10.

11.

12.

Woody Vine Stratum (Plot size:

1.

2.

3.

4. Yes No

Remarks:  (Include photo numbers here or on a separate sheet.)

Rapid Test for Hydrophytic Vegetation

Dominance Test is >50%

Prevalence Index is ≤3.01

)

=Total Cover

FACW

Dominant 
Species?

Indicator 
Status

Absolute 
% Cover

No

Toxicodendron radicans

140

)

FAC

Juncus effusus 20

Carex vulpinoidea

Apocynum cannabinum

Agrostis gigantea

Symphyotrichum lanceolatum

Scirpus cyperinus

Prunella vulgaris

20

15

5 Yes

Yes FACW

)

30-ft radius

5-ft radius

=Total Cover

=Total Cover

5

10

Vitis riparia

Carex scoparia

Carex normalis

No

No

=Total Cover

FACWNo

5

FACYes

Yes

No

20

No5
Tree – Woody plants 3 in. (7.6 cm) or more in 
diameter at breast height (DBH), regardless of height.

Definitions of Vegetation Strata:

Herb – All herbaceous (non-woody) plants, regardless 
of size, and woody plants less than 3.28 ft tall.

Hydrophytic 
Vegetation 
Present?

Woody vines – All woody vines greater than 3.28 ft in 
height.

X

1Indicators of hydric soil and wetland hydrology must 
be present, unless disturbed or problematic.

Sapling/shrub – Woody plants less than 3 in. DBH 
and greater than 3.28 ft (1 m) tall.

5

20

No OBL

FAC

FACW

FAC

FACW10

5

100

100.0%
Percent of Dominant Species 
That Are OBL, FACW, or FAC:

OBL

15

OBL

Yes

Schoenoplectus tabernaemontani

10

Fraxinus nigra Yes10

OBL

Yes

Total % Cover of:

Euthamia graminifolia FACW

15-ft radius

Prevalence Index worksheet:

1.88

65

50

45

0

data in Remarks or on a separate sheet)

0

160

X

X

135

65

0

Hydrophytic Vegetation Indicators:

0

300

Multiply by:

C– Use scientific names of plants.

7

7

30-ft radius

Total Number of Dominant 
Species Across All Strata:

) Dominance Test worksheet:

Number of Dominant Species 
That Are OBL, FACW, or FAC:

US Army Corps of Engineers Northcentral and Northeast Region – Interim Version (Revised)



Sampling Point:

1Type:  C=Concentration, D=Depletion, RM=Reduced Matrix, CS=Covered or Coated Sand Grains.

Thin Dark Surface (S9) (LRR R, MLRA 149B)

Iron-Manganese Masses (F12) (LRR K, L, R)

Piedmont Floodplain Soils (F19) (MLRA 149B)

Mesic Spodic (TA6) (MLRA 144A, 145, 149B)

Depth (inches):                   Hydric Soil Present? Yes No

%

Prominent redox concentrations

Texture Remarks

Redox FeaturesDepth

(inches) Color (moist) %

Matrix

Loc2

0-10 M95 7.5YR 4/6 Loamy/Clayey5

Type1

C10YR 4/1

Color (moist)

CSOIL

Profile Description:  (Describe to the depth needed to document the indicator or confirm the absence of indicators.)

Histosol (A1)

Indicators for Problematic Hydric Soils3:

 2 cm Muck (A10) (LRR K, L, MLRA 149B)

Coast Prairie Redox (A16) (LRR K, L, R)

2Location:  PL=Pore Lining, M=Matrix.

Hydric Soil Indicators:

Polyvalue Below Surface (S8) (LRR R,

Other (Explain in Remarks)

Stripped Matrix (S6)

Dark Surface (S7) (LRR R, MLRA 149B)

5 cm Mucky Peat or Peat (S3) (LRR K, L, R)

Sandy Redox (S5)

Depleted Below Dark Surface (A11) X

 

MLRA 149B)

Black Histic (A3)

Histic Epipedon (A2)

Restrictive Layer (if observed):

Red Parent Material (TF2)

Very Shallow Dark Surface (TF12)

Dark Surface (S7) (LRR K, L)

Polyvalue Below Surface (S8) (LRR K, L)

Thin Dark Surface (S9) (LRR K, L)

3Indicators of hydrophytic vegetation and wetland hydrology must be present, unless disturbed or problematic.

Sandy Gleyed Matrix (S4)

Depleted Dark Surface (F7)

Redox Depressions (F8)

Redox Dark Surface (F6)

Hydrogen Sulfide (A4)

Stratified Layers (A5)

Thick Dark Surface (A12)

Sandy Mucky Mineral (S1)

Loamy Mucky Mineral (F1) (LRR K, L)

Loamy Gleyed Matrix (F2)

Depleted Matrix (F3)

Type:

Remarks:

X

None

US Army Corps of Engineers Northcentral and Northeast Region – Interim Version (Revised)



Project/Site: Sampling Date:

Applicant/Owner: State: Sampling Point:

Investigator(s): Section, Township, Range:

Landform (hillside, terrace, etc.): Local relief (concave, convex, none): Slope (%):

Subregion (LRR or MLRA): Lat: Long: Datum:

Soil Map Unit Name: NWI classification:

Are climatic / hydrologic conditions on the site typical for this time of year?

Are Vegetation , Soil , or Hydrology significantly disturbed? Are “Normal Circumstances” present?

Are Vegetation , Soil , or Hydrology naturally problematic?

SUMMARY OF FINDINGS –  Attach site map showing sampling point locations, transects, important features, etc.

If yes, optional Wetland Site ID:

Secondary Indicators (minimum of two required)

 

x

x

Surface Water Present?

Wetland Hydrology Present?

Crayfish Burrows (C8)Hydrogen Sulfide Odor (C1)

NoYes

Depth (inches):

X

XX

NoYes xx Depth (inches): X

XX Depth (inches):

Saturation Visible on Aerial Imagery (C9)

Stunted or Stressed Plants (D1)

Geomorphic Position (D2)

Sparsely Vegetated Concave Surface (B8)

High Water Table (A2)

Saturation (A3)

Water Marks (B1)

Iron Deposits (B5)

Inundation Visible on Aerial Imagery (B7)

Presence of Reduced Iron (C4)

Recent Iron Reduction in Tilled Soils (C6)

Other (Explain in Remarks)

Oxidized Rhizospheres on Living Roots (C3)Sediment Deposits (B2)

Drift Deposits (B3)

FAC-Neutral Test (D5)

x

Shallow Aquitard (D3)

Microtopographic Relief (D4)

Remarks: 

(includes capillary fringe)

Yes

 

 No

NoYes

Describe Recorded Data (stream gauge, monitoring well, aerial photos, previous inspections), if available:

Field Observations:

Water Table Present?

Saturation Present?

Surface Soil Cracks (B6)

Aquatic Fauna (B13)

Drainage Patterns (B10)

Moss Trim Lines (B16)

Dry-Season Water Table (C2)

x

No

Marl Deposits (B15)

x  

NoNox

x No

Surface Water (A1)

HYDROLOGY

WETLAND DETERMINATION DATA FORM - Northcentral and Northeast Region 

X

PEM

x

DP Fox dba Green Castle Properties, LLC

No

42.71866

concave

Urban land Capac-Colwood Complex, 0 to 4 percent slopes

9/17/2018

E

W. Grand River Avenue/Central Park Drive Meridian Twp/Ingham Co. City/County:

MI

-84.407098

Yes NoX

(If needed, explain any answers in Remarks.)

Thin Muck Surface (C7)

B.Guevara; Marx Wetlands LLC

LRR L

(If no, explain in Remarks.) 

Wetland hydrology is typical for this wetland type during the driest period of the year. 

 

 

Yes

Remarks:  (Explain alternative procedures here or in a separate report.)

Yes

S22, T4N, R1W

lowland 0-2

WSG84

Wetland Hydrology Indicators:

Wetland EWetland Hydrology Present?

Is the Sampled Area

within a Wetland?

Wetland system is observed along the eastern boundary line. 

Primary Indicators (minimum of one is required; check all that apply)                                     

x

Yes

Yes

Hydrophytic Vegetation Present?

Hydric Soil Present? 

Water-Stained Leaves (B9)

Yes

Algal Mat or Crust (B4)

US Army Corps of Engineers Northcentral and Northeast Region – Interim Version (Revised)



VEGETATION Sampling Point:

Tree Stratum (Plot size:

1.

2. (A)

3.

4. (B)

5.

6. (A/B)

7.

Sapling/Shrub Stratum (Plot size: OBL species x 1 =

1. FACW species x 2 =

2. FAC species x 3 =

3. FACU species x 4 =

4. UPL species x 5 =

5. Column Totals: (A) (B)

6. Prevalence Index  = B/A =

7.

Herb Stratum (Plot size:

1.

2. Morphological Adaptations1 (Provide supporting

3.

4. Problematic Hydrophytic Vegetation1 (Explain)

5.

6.

7.

8.

9.

10.

11.

12.

Woody Vine Stratum (Plot size:

1.

2.

3.

4. Yes No

0

280

Multiply by:

E– Use scientific names of plants.

6

6

Acer negundo

Salix nigra

30-ft radius

Total Number of Dominant 
Species Across All Strata:

) Dominance Test worksheet:

Number of Dominant Species 
That Are OBL, FACW, or FAC:

Prevalence Index worksheet:

1.56

100

60

20

0

data in Remarks or on a separate sheet)

0

180

X

X

60

100

0

Hydrophytic Vegetation Indicators:

Glechoma hederoma FACW

15 FACYes

50

15-ft radius

Rhamnus cathartica

120

100.0%
Percent of Dominant Species 
That Are OBL, FACW, or FAC:

OBL

15

OBL

No

Agrostis gigantea

25

Fraxinus nigra Yes10

OBL

Yes

Total % Cover of:

1Indicators of hydric soil and wetland hydrology must 
be present, unless disturbed or problematic.

Sapling/shrub – Woody plants less than 3 in. DBH 
and greater than 3.28 ft (1 m) tall.

Tree – Woody plants 3 in. (7.6 cm) or more in 
diameter at breast height (DBH), regardless of height.

Definitions of Vegetation Strata:

Herb – All herbaceous (non-woody) plants, regardless 
of size, and woody plants less than 3.28 ft tall.

Hydrophytic 
Vegetation 
Present?

Woody vines – All woody vines greater than 3.28 ft in 
height.

X

=Total Cover

No

No

10

Yes

)

30-ft radius

5-ft radius

=Total Cover

=Total Cover

5

Toxicodendron radicans

100

)

FAC

Phalaris arundinacea 65

Symphyotrichum lateriflorum 10

5

35

15

Absolute 
% Cover

Yes

Yes

OBL

FACW

Remarks:  (Include photo numbers here or on a separate sheet.)

Rapid Test for Hydrophytic Vegetation

Dominance Test is >50%

Prevalence Index is ≤3.01

)

=Total Cover

FACW

Dominant 
Species?

Indicator 
Status

US Army Corps of Engineers Northcentral and Northeast Region – Interim Version (Revised)



Sampling Point:

1Type:  C=Concentration, D=Depletion, RM=Reduced Matrix, CS=Covered or Coated Sand Grains.

Thin Dark Surface (S9) (LRR R, MLRA 149B)

Iron-Manganese Masses (F12) (LRR K, L, R)

Piedmont Floodplain Soils (F19) (MLRA 149B)

Mesic Spodic (TA6) (MLRA 144A, 145, 149B)

Depth (inches):                   Hydric Soil Present? Yes No

Type:

Remarks:

X

None

Restrictive Layer (if observed):

Red Parent Material (TF2)

Very Shallow Dark Surface (TF12)

Dark Surface (S7) (LRR K, L)

Polyvalue Below Surface (S8) (LRR K, L)

Thin Dark Surface (S9) (LRR K, L)

3Indicators of hydrophytic vegetation and wetland hydrology must be present, unless disturbed or problematic.

Sandy Gleyed Matrix (S4)

Depleted Dark Surface (F7)

Redox Depressions (F8)

Redox Dark Surface (F6)

Hydrogen Sulfide (A4)

Stratified Layers (A5)

Thick Dark Surface (A12)

Sandy Mucky Mineral (S1)

Loamy Mucky Mineral (F1) (LRR K, L)

Loamy Gleyed Matrix (F2)

Depleted Matrix (F3)

 

MLRA 149B)

Black Histic (A3)

Histic Epipedon (A2)

Other (Explain in Remarks)

Stripped Matrix (S6)

Dark Surface (S7) (LRR R, MLRA 149B)

5 cm Mucky Peat or Peat (S3) (LRR K, L, R)

X

Sandy Redox (S5)

Depleted Below Dark Surface (A11)

Profile Description:  (Describe to the depth needed to document the indicator or confirm the absence of indicators.)

Histosol (A1)

Indicators for Problematic Hydric Soils3:

 2 cm Muck (A10) (LRR K, L, MLRA 149B)

Coast Prairie Redox (A16) (LRR K, L, R)

2Location:  PL=Pore Lining, M=Matrix.

Hydric Soil Indicators:

Polyvalue Below Surface (S8) (LRR R,

ESOIL

10YR 2/1

Color (moist)

M98 10YR 4/6 Loamy/Clayey2

Type1

C

Redox FeaturesDepth

(inches) Color (moist) %

Matrix

Loc2

0-10

%

Prominent redox concentrations

Texture Remarks

US Army Corps of Engineers Northcentral and Northeast Region – Interim Version (Revised)



Project/Site: Sampling Date:

Applicant/Owner: State: Sampling Point:

Investigator(s): Section, Township, Range:

Landform (hillside, terrace, etc.): Local relief (concave, convex, none): Slope (%):

Subregion (LRR or MLRA): Lat: Long: Datum:

Soil Map Unit Name: NWI classification:

Are climatic / hydrologic conditions on the site typical for this time of year?

Are Vegetation , Soil , or Hydrology significantly disturbed? Are “Normal Circumstances” present?

Are Vegetation , Soil , or Hydrology naturally problematic?

SUMMARY OF FINDINGS –  Attach site map showing sampling point locations, transects, important features, etc.

If yes, optional Wetland Site ID:

Secondary Indicators (minimum of two required)

 

Surface Water Present?

Wetland Hydrology Present?

Crayfish Burrows (C8)Hydrogen Sulfide Odor (C1)

NoYes

Depth (inches):

X

XX

NoYes xx Depth (inches): X

XX Depth (inches):

Saturation Visible on Aerial Imagery (C9)

Stunted or Stressed Plants (D1)

Geomorphic Position (D2)

Sparsely Vegetated Concave Surface (B8)

High Water Table (A2)

Saturation (A3)

Water Marks (B1)

Iron Deposits (B5)

Inundation Visible on Aerial Imagery (B7)

Presence of Reduced Iron (C4)

Recent Iron Reduction in Tilled Soils (C6)

Other (Explain in Remarks)

Oxidized Rhizospheres on Living Roots (C3)Sediment Deposits (B2)

Drift Deposits (B3)

FAC-Neutral Test (D5)

x

Shallow Aquitard (D3)

Microtopographic Relief (D4)

Remarks: 

(includes capillary fringe)

Yes

 

 No

NoYes

Describe Recorded Data (stream gauge, monitoring well, aerial photos, previous inspections), if available:

Field Observations:

Water Table Present?

Saturation Present?

Surface Soil Cracks (B6)

Aquatic Fauna (B13)

Drainage Patterns (B10)

Moss Trim Lines (B16)

Dry-Season Water Table (C2)

No

Marl Deposits (B15)

x  

NoNox

x No

Surface Water (A1)

HYDROLOGY

WETLAND DETERMINATION DATA FORM - Northcentral and Northeast Region 

X

PEM

x

DP Fox dba Green Castle Properties, LLC

No

42.7195

concave

Kibbie loam, 0 to 3 percent slopes

9/17/2018

D

W. Grand River Avenue/Central Park Drive Meridian Twp/Ingham Co. City/County:

MI

-84.40798

Yes NoX

(If needed, explain any answers in Remarks.)

Thin Muck Surface (C7)

B.Guevara; Marx Wetlands LLC

LRR L

(If no, explain in Remarks.) 

Wetland hydrology is typical for this wetland type during the driest period of the year. 

 

 

Yes

Remarks:  (Explain alternative procedures here or in a separate report.)

Yes

S22, T4N, R1W

lowland 0-2

WSG84

Wetland Hydrology Indicators:

Wetland DWetland Hydrology Present?

Is the Sampled Area

within a Wetland?

Wetland system is observed in the northeast/north-central portion of the Site. 

Primary Indicators (minimum of one is required; check all that apply)                                     

x

Yes

Yes

Hydrophytic Vegetation Present?

Hydric Soil Present? 

Water-Stained Leaves (B9)

Yes

Algal Mat or Crust (B4)

US Army Corps of Engineers Northcentral and Northeast Region – Interim Version (Revised)



VEGETATION Sampling Point:

Tree Stratum (Plot size:

1.

2. (A)

3.

4. (B)

5.

6. (A/B)

7.

Sapling/Shrub Stratum (Plot size: OBL species x 1 =

1. FACW species x 2 =

2. FAC species x 3 =

3. FACU species x 4 =

4. UPL species x 5 =

5. Column Totals: (A) (B)

6. Prevalence Index  = B/A =

7.

Herb Stratum (Plot size:

1.

2. Morphological Adaptations1 (Provide supporting

3.

4. Problematic Hydrophytic Vegetation1 (Explain)

5.

6.

7.

8.

9.

10.

11.

12.

Woody Vine Stratum (Plot size:

1.

2.

3.

4. Yes No

0

290

Multiply by:

D– Use scientific names of plants.

7

7

30-ft radius

Total Number of Dominant 
Species Across All Strata:

) Dominance Test worksheet:

Number of Dominant Species 
That Are OBL, FACW, or FAC:

Prevalence Index worksheet:

1.81

70

50

40

0

data in Remarks or on a separate sheet)

0

160

X

X

120

70

0

Hydrophytic Vegetation Indicators:

Euthamia graminifolia FACW

15-ft radius

100

100.0%
Percent of Dominant Species 
That Are OBL, FACW, or FAC:

OBL

15

OBL

No

Schoenoplectus tabernaemontani OBL

Yes

Total % Cover of:

1Indicators of hydric soil and wetland hydrology must 
be present, unless disturbed or problematic.

Sapling/shrub – Woody plants less than 3 in. DBH 
and greater than 3.28 ft (1 m) tall.

10

10

Yes OBL

FAC

FAC

FACW25

Tree – Woody plants 3 in. (7.6 cm) or more in 
diameter at breast height (DBH), regardless of height.

Definitions of Vegetation Strata:

Herb – All herbaceous (non-woody) plants, regardless 
of size, and woody plants less than 3.28 ft tall.

Hydrophytic 
Vegetation 
Present?

Woody vines – All woody vines greater than 3.28 ft in 
height.

X

Phalaris arundinacea

Yes

Yes

=Total Cover

FACWNo

30

FACNo

Yes

Yes

15

No10

Yes

)

30-ft radius

5-ft radius

=Total Cover

=Total Cover

5

Toxicodendron radicans

155

)

FAC

Juncus effusus 15

Carex vulpinoidea

Rumex crispus

Carex normalis

Symphyotrichum lateriflorum

Agrostis gigantea

Carex scoparia

10

15

5

Absolute 
% Cover

Remarks:  (Include photo numbers here or on a separate sheet.)

Rapid Test for Hydrophytic Vegetation

Dominance Test is >50%

Prevalence Index is ≤3.01

)

=Total Cover

Dominant 
Species?

Indicator 
Status

US Army Corps of Engineers Northcentral and Northeast Region – Interim Version (Revised)



Sampling Point:

1Type:  C=Concentration, D=Depletion, RM=Reduced Matrix, CS=Covered or Coated Sand Grains.

Thin Dark Surface (S9) (LRR R, MLRA 149B)

Iron-Manganese Masses (F12) (LRR K, L, R)

Piedmont Floodplain Soils (F19) (MLRA 149B)

Mesic Spodic (TA6) (MLRA 144A, 145, 149B)

Depth (inches):                   Hydric Soil Present? Yes No

Type:

Remarks:

X

None

Restrictive Layer (if observed):

Red Parent Material (TF2)

Very Shallow Dark Surface (TF12)

Dark Surface (S7) (LRR K, L)

Polyvalue Below Surface (S8) (LRR K, L)

Thin Dark Surface (S9) (LRR K, L)

3Indicators of hydrophytic vegetation and wetland hydrology must be present, unless disturbed or problematic.

Sandy Gleyed Matrix (S4)

Depleted Dark Surface (F7)

Redox Depressions (F8)

Redox Dark Surface (F6)

Hydrogen Sulfide (A4)

Stratified Layers (A5)

Thick Dark Surface (A12)

Sandy Mucky Mineral (S1)

Loamy Mucky Mineral (F1) (LRR K, L)

Loamy Gleyed Matrix (F2)

Depleted Matrix (F3)

 

MLRA 149B)

Black Histic (A3)

Histic Epipedon (A2)

Other (Explain in Remarks)

Stripped Matrix (S6)

Dark Surface (S7) (LRR R, MLRA 149B)

5 cm Mucky Peat or Peat (S3) (LRR K, L, R)

Sandy Redox (S5)

Depleted Below Dark Surface (A11) X

Profile Description:  (Describe to the depth needed to document the indicator or confirm the absence of indicators.)

Histosol (A1)

Indicators for Problematic Hydric Soils3:

 2 cm Muck (A10) (LRR K, L, MLRA 149B)

Coast Prairie Redox (A16) (LRR K, L, R)

2Location:  PL=Pore Lining, M=Matrix.

Hydric Soil Indicators:

Polyvalue Below Surface (S8) (LRR R,

DSOIL

10YR 4/1

Color (moist)

M95 7.5YR 4/6 Loamy/Clayey5

Type1

C

Redox FeaturesDepth

(inches) Color (moist) %

Matrix

Loc2

0-10

%

Prominent redox concentrations

Texture Remarks

US Army Corps of Engineers Northcentral and Northeast Region – Interim Version (Revised)



Project/Site: Sampling Date:

Applicant/Owner: State: Sampling Point:

Investigator(s): Section, Township, Range:

Landform (hillside, terrace, etc.): Local relief (concave, convex, none): Slope (%):

Subregion (LRR or MLRA): Lat: Long: Datum:

Soil Map Unit Name: NWI classification:

Are climatic / hydrologic conditions on the site typical for this time of year?

Are Vegetation , Soil , or Hydrology significantly disturbed? Are “Normal Circumstances” present?

Are Vegetation , Soil , or Hydrology naturally problematic?

SUMMARY OF FINDINGS –  Attach site map showing sampling point locations, transects, important features, etc.

If yes, optional Wetland Site ID:

Secondary Indicators (minimum of two required)

 

x

x

Surface Water Present?

Wetland Hydrology Present?

Crayfish Burrows (C8)Hydrogen Sulfide Odor (C1)

NoYes

Depth (inches):

X

XX

NoYes xx Depth (inches): X

XX Depth (inches):

Saturation Visible on Aerial Imagery (C9)

Stunted or Stressed Plants (D1)

Geomorphic Position (D2)

Sparsely Vegetated Concave Surface (B8)

High Water Table (A2)

Saturation (A3)

Water Marks (B1)

Iron Deposits (B5)

Inundation Visible on Aerial Imagery (B7)

Presence of Reduced Iron (C4)

Recent Iron Reduction in Tilled Soils (C6)

Other (Explain in Remarks)

Oxidized Rhizospheres on Living Roots (C3)Sediment Deposits (B2)

Drift Deposits (B3)

FAC-Neutral Test (D5)

x

Shallow Aquitard (D3)

Microtopographic Relief (D4)

Remarks: 

(includes capillary fringe)

Yes

 

 No

NoYes

Describe Recorded Data (stream gauge, monitoring well, aerial photos, previous inspections), if available:

Field Observations:

Water Table Present?

Saturation Present?

Surface Soil Cracks (B6)

Aquatic Fauna (B13)

Drainage Patterns (B10)

Moss Trim Lines (B16)

Dry-Season Water Table (C2)

x

No

Marl Deposits (B15)

x  

NoNox

x No

Surface Water (A1)

HYDROLOGY

WETLAND DETERMINATION DATA FORM - Northcentral and Northeast Region 

X

PEM

x

DP Fox dba Green Castle Properties, LLC

No

42.71866

concave

Urban land Capac-Colwood Complex, 0 to 4 percent slopes

9/17/2018

F

W. Grand River Avenue/Central Park Drive Meridian Twp/Ingham Co. City/County:

MI

-84.407098

Yes NoX

(If needed, explain any answers in Remarks.)

Thin Muck Surface (C7)

B.Guevara; Marx Wetlands LLC

LRR L

(If no, explain in Remarks.) 

Wetland hydrology is typical for this wetland type during the driest period of the year. 

 

 

Yes

Remarks:  (Explain alternative procedures here or in a separate report.)

Yes

S22, T4N, R1W

lowland 0-2

WSG84

Wetland Hydrology Indicators:

Wetland FWetland Hydrology Present?

Is the Sampled Area

within a Wetland?

Wetland system is observed along the eastern boundary line. 

Primary Indicators (minimum of one is required; check all that apply)                                     

x

Yes

Yes

Hydrophytic Vegetation Present?

Hydric Soil Present? 

Water-Stained Leaves (B9)

Yes

Algal Mat or Crust (B4)

US Army Corps of Engineers Northcentral and Northeast Region – Interim Version (Revised)



VEGETATION Sampling Point:

Tree Stratum (Plot size:

1.

2. (A)

3.

4. (B)

5.

6. (A/B)

7.

Sapling/Shrub Stratum (Plot size: OBL species x 1 =

1. FACW species x 2 =

2. FAC species x 3 =

3. FACU species x 4 =

4. UPL species x 5 =

5. Column Totals: (A) (B)

6. Prevalence Index  = B/A =

7.

Herb Stratum (Plot size:

1.

2. Morphological Adaptations1 (Provide supporting

3.

4. Problematic Hydrophytic Vegetation1 (Explain)

5.

6.

7.

8.

9.

10.

11.

12.

Woody Vine Stratum (Plot size:

1.

2.

3.

4. Yes No

0

295

Multiply by:

F– Use scientific names of plants.

6

6

Acer negundo

Salix nigra

30-ft radius

Total Number of Dominant 
Species Across All Strata:

) Dominance Test worksheet:

Number of Dominant Species 
That Are OBL, FACW, or FAC:

Prevalence Index worksheet:

1.59

100

60

25

0

data in Remarks or on a separate sheet)

0

185

X

X

75

100

0

Hydrophytic Vegetation Indicators:

Glechoma hederoma FACW

15 FACYes

50

15-ft radius

Rhamnus cathartica

120

100.0%
Percent of Dominant Species 
That Are OBL, FACW, or FAC:

OBL

15

OBL

No

Agrostis gigantea

25

Fraxinus nigra Yes10

OBL

Yes

Total % Cover of:

1Indicators of hydric soil and wetland hydrology must 
be present, unless disturbed or problematic.

Sapling/shrub – Woody plants less than 3 in. DBH 
and greater than 3.28 ft (1 m) tall.

FAC

Tree – Woody plants 3 in. (7.6 cm) or more in 
diameter at breast height (DBH), regardless of height.

Definitions of Vegetation Strata:

Herb – All herbaceous (non-woody) plants, regardless 
of size, and woody plants less than 3.28 ft tall.

Hydrophytic 
Vegetation 
Present?

Woody vines – All woody vines greater than 3.28 ft in 
height.

X

No

=Total Cover

No

No

10

Yes

)

30-ft radius

5-ft radius

=Total Cover

=Total Cover

5

Toxicodendron radicans

105

)

FAC

Phalaris arundinacea 65

Symphyotrichum lateriflorum

Rumex crispus

10

5

5

35

15

Absolute 
% Cover

Yes

Yes

OBL

FACW

Remarks:  (Include photo numbers here or on a separate sheet.)

Rapid Test for Hydrophytic Vegetation

Dominance Test is >50%

Prevalence Index is ≤3.01

)

=Total Cover

FACW

Dominant 
Species?

Indicator 
Status

US Army Corps of Engineers Northcentral and Northeast Region – Interim Version (Revised)



Sampling Point:

1Type:  C=Concentration, D=Depletion, RM=Reduced Matrix, CS=Covered or Coated Sand Grains.

Thin Dark Surface (S9) (LRR R, MLRA 149B)

Iron-Manganese Masses (F12) (LRR K, L, R)

Piedmont Floodplain Soils (F19) (MLRA 149B)

Mesic Spodic (TA6) (MLRA 144A, 145, 149B)

Depth (inches):                   Hydric Soil Present? Yes No

Type:

Remarks:

X

None

Restrictive Layer (if observed):

Red Parent Material (TF2)

Very Shallow Dark Surface (TF12)

Dark Surface (S7) (LRR K, L)

Polyvalue Below Surface (S8) (LRR K, L)

Thin Dark Surface (S9) (LRR K, L)

3Indicators of hydrophytic vegetation and wetland hydrology must be present, unless disturbed or problematic.

Sandy Gleyed Matrix (S4)

Depleted Dark Surface (F7)

Redox Depressions (F8)

Redox Dark Surface (F6)

Hydrogen Sulfide (A4)

Stratified Layers (A5)

Thick Dark Surface (A12)

Sandy Mucky Mineral (S1)

Loamy Mucky Mineral (F1) (LRR K, L)

Loamy Gleyed Matrix (F2)

Depleted Matrix (F3)

 

MLRA 149B)

Black Histic (A3)

Histic Epipedon (A2)

Other (Explain in Remarks)

Stripped Matrix (S6)

Dark Surface (S7) (LRR R, MLRA 149B)

5 cm Mucky Peat or Peat (S3) (LRR K, L, R)

X

Sandy Redox (S5)

Depleted Below Dark Surface (A11)

Profile Description:  (Describe to the depth needed to document the indicator or confirm the absence of indicators.)

Histosol (A1)

Indicators for Problematic Hydric Soils3:

 2 cm Muck (A10) (LRR K, L, MLRA 149B)

Coast Prairie Redox (A16) (LRR K, L, R)

2Location:  PL=Pore Lining, M=Matrix.

Hydric Soil Indicators:

Polyvalue Below Surface (S8) (LRR R,

FSOIL

10YR 2/1

Color (moist)

M98 10YR 4/6 Loamy/Clayey2

Type1

C

Redox FeaturesDepth

(inches) Color (moist) %

Matrix

Loc2

0-10

%

Prominent redox concentrations

Texture Remarks

US Army Corps of Engineers Northcentral and Northeast Region – Interim Version (Revised)



W

ST
ST

ST

ST

ST

ST

ST

ST
ST

ST
ST

ST
ST ST ST ST

ST
ST

18400890-PRELIM.dwg          TA     11/8/2018   13:50

Tit
le:

 S
ub

mi
tte

d f
or

 R
ev

iew
V.

 D
ate

:10
.16

.18
Dr

aw
n:T

A
Ch

ec
ke

d:T
A/

JG
S.

 D
ate

:10
.16

.18

CH
IC

AG
O

CO
LU

M
BU

S
G

RA
ND

 R
AP

ID
S

HO
LL

AN
D

IN
DI

AN
AP

O
LI

S
ST

. L
O

UI
S

30
25

 M
ille

r R
d.

An
n A

rb
or

, M
I 4

81
03

Ph
on

e: 
73

4.9
29

.69
63

AN
N 

AR
BO

R

18
40

08
90

©
 20

18 
Ne

de
rve

ld,
 In

c.

ww
w.

ne
de

rve
ld.

co
m

80
0.2

22
.18

68

S
T

A
M

P
:

S
H

E
E

T
 
N

O
:

R
E

V
I
S

I
O

N
S

:

P
R

E
P

A
R

E
D

 
F

O
R

:

La
nd

 P
lan

nin
g

La
nd

sc
ap

e A
rch

ite
ctu

re
Ci

vil
 E

ng
ine

er
ing

La
nd

 S
ur

ve
yin

g
En

vir
on

me
nta

l C
on

su
ltin

g
Hi

gh
 D

efi
nit

ion
 S

ca
nn

ing
Fo

re
ns

ic 
En

gin
ee

rin
g

Fir
e I

nv
es

tig
ati

on

Ex
pe

rie
nc

e .
 . .

 th
e D

iffe
re

nc
e

P
R

O
J
E

C
T

 
N

O
:

 Part of the Southeast Quarter of Section 22, T4N, R1W,
Meridian Township, Ingham County, Michigan

Gr
ee

n C
as

tle
 P

ro
pe

rtie
s, 

LL
C

At
tn:

 C
oli

n S
ch

ief
ler

Su
ite

 80
0-

20
0 O

tta
wa

 A
ve

nu
e N

W
Gr

an
d R

ap
ids

, M
I  4

85
03

T
IM

M
 E
.

A
P
P
L
E
T
O
N

E
N

G
I
N

E
E

R

S

T

A

T

E

O

F
M

I
C

H

I

G

A

N

L
IC

E

N

S

E

D

P

R

O

F

E

S
S

I
O

N

A

L

E

N

G

I

N

E

E
R

N
o

.

4
2

5
6

4

FOX NISSAN

1614 & 1622 W. Grand River Avenue

Tit
le:

 R
ev

ise
d p

er
 T

wp
. C

om
me

nts
V.

 D
ate

:11
.08

.18
Dr

aw
n:T

A
Ch

ec
ke

d:T
A/

JG
S.

 D
ate

:11
.08

.18

C
-
1
0
0

Cover Sheet

F
O

X
 
N

I
S

S
A

N

A
U

T
O

M
O

T
I
V

E
 
D

E
A

L
E

R
S

H
I
P

S
P

E
C

I
A

L
 
U

S
E

 
P

E
R

M
I
T

 
A

P
P

L
I
C

A
T

I
O

N

D
E

S
I
G

N
 
T

E
A

M
 
C

O
N

T
A

C
T

S

AP
PL

IC
AN

T
GR

EE
N 

CA
ST

LE
 P

RO
PE

RT
IE

S,
 LL

C
SU

IT
E 

80
0-

20
0 O

TT
AW

A 
AV

EN
UE

 N
W

GR
AN

D 
RA

PI
DS

, M
I 4

85
03

AT
TN

: C
OL

IN
 S

CH
IE

FL
ER

EN
GI

NE
ER

/S
UR

VE
YO

R
NE

DE
RV

EL
D,

 IN
C.

30
25

 M
ILL

ER
 R

D.
AN

N 
AR

BO
R,

 M
I 4

81
03

P:
 73

4.9
29

.69
63

AT
TN

: J
AM

ES
 G

OR
EN

FL
O,

 A
SL

A

AR
CH

IT
EC

T
ST

UD
IO

 D
ET

RO
IT

21
11

 W
OO

DW
AR

D 
AV

E.
 S

TE
 10

01
DE

TR
OI

T,
 M

I  4
82

01
P:

 58
6.7

47
.97

17
AT

TN
: P

ET
ER

 P
EN

TE
SC

U

S
H

E
E

T
 
I
N

D
E

X

CI
VI

L P
LA

NS
CO

VE
R 

SH
EE

T
C-

10
0

EX
IS

TI
NG

 S
IT

E 
CO

ND
IT

IO
NS

 P
LA

N
C-

20
1

EX
IS

TI
NG

 C
ON

DI
TI

ON
S 

& 
RE

MO
VA

L P
LA

N
C-

20
2

EX
IS

TI
NG

 C
ON

DI
TI

ON
S 

& 
RE

MO
VA

L P
LA

N
C-

20
3

DI
ME

NS
IO

NA
L S

IT
E 

PL
AN

C-
20

5
DE

TA
ILS

 S
HE

ET
C-

50
0

AR
CH

IT
EC

TU
RA

L P
LA

NS
CO

MP
OS

IT
E 

FL
OO

R 
PL

AN
A1

.0
EX

TE
RI

OR
 E

LE
VA

TI
ON

S
A2

.1
EX

TE
RI

OR
 E

LE
VA

TI
ON

S
A2

.2

NO
T 

TO
 S

CA
LE

L
O

C
A

T
I
O

N
 
M

A
P

JO
LL

Y 
RD

.

W
. G

RA
ND

 R
IV

E 
AV

E.

VAN ALTA RD.

DOBIE RD.

OKEMOS RD.

S. HAGADORN RD.

HULETT RD.

E.
 M

T.
 H

OP
E 

RD
.

PARK LAKE RD.

OKEMOS RD.

OKEMOS RD.

MERIDAN RD.MERIDAN RD.

HA
SL

ET
T 

RD
.

SA
GI

NA
W

 H
W

Y.

S
I
T

E

L
E

G
A

L
 
D

E
S

C
R

I
P

T
I
O

N

(M
22

-4
-1

, 2
2-

4-
3)

 P
AR

T 
OF

 N
E 

1/4
 O

F 
SE

C 
22

 T
4N

R1
W

 D
ES

C 
AS

: C
OM

 A
T 

E 
1/4

 C
OR

 O
F

SE
C 

22
 - 

S8
9D

 57
' 4

0"
W

 A
LN

G 
S 

LN
 O

F 
NE

 1/
4 1

31
7.9

7 F
T 

TO
 P

OB
 - 

S8
9D

 57
' 4

0"
W

 A
LN

G
SD

 S
 LN

 33
1.0

6 F
T 

TO
 E

 LN
 O

F 
CE

NT
RA

L P
AR

K 
DR

 - 
AL

NG
 S

D 
E 

LN
 F

OL
LO

W
IN

G 
3

CO
UR

SE
S:

 N
E;

Y 
16

.71
 F

T 
ON

 C
UR

VE
 T

O 
LE

FT
, R

AD
 O

F 
39

5 F
T,

 C
HD

 B
RG

 N
 01

D 
12

'
44

"E
; N

 35
9.2

9 F
T 

& 
NW

'LY
 23

.97
 F

T 
ON

 C
UR

VE
 T

O 
LE

FT
, R

AD
 O

F 
39

5 F
T,

 C
HD

 B
RG

N0
1D

 44
' 1

9"
W

 - 
N8

9D
 57

' 4
0"

E 
33

1.1
7 F

T 
- S

00
D 

02
' 2

0"
E 

39
9.9

5 F
T 

TO
 P

OB
 3.

03
5 A

 M
/L

SP
LIT

 O
N 

02
/21

/20
11

 F
RO

M 
33

-0
2-

02
-2

2-
25

1-
00

8, 
33

-0
2-

02
-2

2-
25

1-
00

9;

M2
2-

22
 C

OM
 A

T 
PT

 12
68

 3/
4 F

T 
W

 O
F 

E 
1/4

 P
OS

T 
OF

 S
EC

 - 
W

 20
6 F

T 
- S

 74
8 F

T 
TO

 C
EN

OF
 U

S-
16

 H
W

Y 
- E

'LY
 A

LO
NG

 C
EN

 O
F 

SA
ID

 H
W

Y 
20

6 F
T 

- N
 T

O 
BE

G 
ON

 S
E 

1/4
 O

F 
SE

C
22

, T
4N

 R
1W

 - 
3 A

M2
2-

21
 C

OM
 A

T 
PT

 11
23

 3/
4 F

T 
W

 O
F 

E 
1/4

 P
OS

T 
OF

 S
EC

 22
 - 

W
 14

5 F
T 

- S
 T

O 
CE

N 
OF

US
-1

6 H
W

Y 
- E

'LY
 A

LO
NG

 C
EN

 O
F 

SA
ID

 H
W

Y 
TO

 P
T 

DU
E 

S 
OF

 B
EG

 - 
N 

TO
 B

EG
 O

N 
SE

1/4
 O

F 
SE

C 
22

, T
4N

 R
1W

 - 
2.4

25
 A

.

P
L

A
N

 
V

I
E

W

SC
AL

E:
1"

 =
 10

0'

P
R

O
P

.

B
U

I
L

D
I
N

G

23
09

4 S
Q.

FT
.

1 S
TO

RY

W

.
 
G

R

A

N

D

 
R

I
V

E

R

 
A

V

E

.

C
E

N
T

R
A

L
 
P

A
R

K
 
D

R
.

1. 
 S

IT
E 

AR
EA

: 
GR

OS
S 

AR
EA

 (I
NC

LU
DI

NG
 P

UB
LIC

 R
OA

D 
R.

O.
W

.):
 8.

66
  A

CR
ES

NE
T 

AR
EA

 (E
XC

LU
DI

NG
 P

UB
LIC

 R
OA

D 
R.

O.
W

.):
 8.

24
 A

CR
ES

2. 
 E

XI
ST

IN
G 

ZO
NI

NG
: C

-2
 C

OM
ME

RC
IA

L

3. 
SE

TB
AC

KS
:

GR
AN

D 
RI

VE
R 

(A
RT

ER
IA

L)
: 

10
0 F

T.
 F

RO
M 
℄ 

RD
.

CE
NT

RA
L P

AR
K 

DR
IV

E(
CO

LL
EC

TO
R)

: 
85

 F
T.

 F
RO

M 
℄ 

RD
RE

AR
 S

ET
BA

CK
:

15
 F

T.
*

SI
DE

 S
ET

BA
CK

:
15

 F
T.

*

* 1
00

 F
T.

 S
ET

BA
CK

 F
RO

M 
RE

SI
DE

NT
IA

L D
IS

TR
IC

T,
 O

R 
60

 F
T.

 S
ET

BA
CK

 W
IT

H 
DO

UB
LE

 R
OW

 O
F

IN
TE

RL
OC

KI
NG

 T
RE

ES
.

4. 
MA

X.
 B

LD
G.

 H
T:

 35
 F

T.

5. 
70

%
 M

AX
. B

UI
LD

IN
G 

CO
VE

RA
GE

6. 
BL

UI
LD

IN
G 

AR
EA

: 2
4,0

00
± 

SF

7. 
PA

RK
IN

G 
RE

QU
IR

EM
EN

TS
:

AU
TO

MO
TI

VE
 S

AL
ES

RE
QU

IR
ED

 P
AR

KI
NG

: 
1 S

P.
 F

OR
 20

0 S
F 

OF
 S

AL
ES

 A
RE

A 
PL

US
 1 

SP
AC

E 
FO

R 
EA

CH
 

DI
SP

LA
Y 

VE
HI

CL
E.

PR
OP

OS
ED

 P
AR

KI
NG

:
TO

TA
L S

PA
CE

S:
 

33
2 S

PA
CE

S 
PR

OV
ID

ED
IN

CL
UD

IN
G 

2 B
AR

RI
ER

 F
RE

E 
SP

AC
ES

S
I
T

E
 
D

A
T

A



W

W

CA
TC

H 
BA

SI
N

RI
M 

86
7.5

1

CA
TC

H 
BA

SI
N

RI
M 

86
6.6

6

B
E

N
C

H
M

A
R

K

AR
RO

W
 O

N 
HY

DR
AN

T
EL

EV
AT

IO
N 

86
9.5

0
NA

VD
 88

 D
AT

UM

HY
DR

AN
T

FG
 86

6.9
5

CA
TC

H 
BA

SI
N

RI
M 

86
5.8

7

ST
OR

M 
MH

RI
M 

86
6.5

2

ST
OR

M 
MH

RI
M 

86
6.9

6
SA

NI
TA

RY
 M

H
RI

M 
86

7.9
5

ST
OR

M 
MH

RI
M 

86
7.9

1

SA
NI

TA
RY

 M
H

RI
M 

86
8.3

5

ST
OP

 B
OX

RI
M 

86
8.1

2

CA
TC

H 
BA

SI
N

RI
M 

86
7.6

3
HY

DR
AN

T
FG

 86
8.0

1

B
E

N
C

H
M

A
R

K

AR
RO

W
 O

N 
HY

DR
AN

T
EL

EV
AT

IO
N 

87
1.1

2
NA

VD
 88

 D
AT

UM

CA
TC

H 
BA

SI
N

RI
M 

86
6.6

2

ST
OP

 B
OX

RI
M 

86
8.1

0

B
E

N
C

H
M

A
R

K

md
ot 

ho
riz

 co
ntr

ol 
dis

c 3
32

02
EL

EV
AT

IO
N 

86
9.2

6
NA

VD
 88

 D
AT

UM

ST
OR

M 
MH

RI
M 

86
9.9

1
CA

TC
H 

BA
SI

N
RI

M 
86

9.9
1

CA
TC

H 
BA

SI
N

RI
M 

87
1.7

4

TE
LE

PH
ON

E 
MH

RI
M 

87
4.1

7

T

ST
OP

 B
OX

RI
M 

87
5.0

9

SA
NI

TA
RY

 M
H

RI
M 

86
7.3

4
ST

OP
 B

OX
RI

M 
86

7.6
5

SA
NI

TA
RY

 M
H

RI
M 

86
8.3

2
SA

NI
TA

RY
 M

H
RI

M 
86

6.4
2

HY
DR

AN
T

FG
 86

7.8
4

B
E

N
C

H
M

A
R

K

AR
RO

W
 O

N 
HY

DR
AN

T
EL

EV
AT

IO
N 

87
0.6

5
NA

VD
 88

 D
AT

UM

CA
TC

H 
BA

SI
N

RI
M 

86
8.1

2

ST
OR

M 
MH

RI
M 

87
1.3

9

CA
TC

H 
BA

SI
N

RI
M 

87
1.0

7

SA
NI

TA
RY

 M
H

RI
M 

87
1.6

6
ST

OR
M 

MH
RI

M 
87

2.2
1

CA
TC

H 
BA

SI
N

RI
M 

87
2.6

2

ST
OR

M 
MH

RI
M 

87
4.5

3

CA
TC

H 
BA

SI
N

RI
M 

87
4.6

8

FL
AG

PO
LE

CA
TC

H 
BA

SI
N

BE
EH

IV
E

RI
M 

85
8.2

8

P

P

P

 W
AT

ER
 LE

VE
L

EN
D 

SE
CT

IO
N

IN
V 

85
3.5

7

EL
EC

CA
TC

H 
BA

SI
N

BE
EH

IV
E

RI
M 

85
6.4

3

86
5.2

6

ELEC

EL
EC

TR
IC

 M
ET

ER

865.35

86
7.6

5

P

867.69

CA
TC

H 
BA

SI
N

BE
EH

IV
E

RI
M 

85
8.3

7
EN

D 
SE

CT
IO

N
IN

V 
85

8.8
5

EN
D 

SE
CT

IO
N

IN
V 

85
9.1

3

CA
TC

H 
BA

SI
N

BE
EH

IV
E

RI
M 

85
8.6

3

HY
DR

AN
T

FG
 86

4.2
0

ST
OP

 B
OX

RI
M 

86
3.8

1

SA
NI

TA
RY

 M
H

RI
M 

86
3.5

2

CA
TC

H 
BA

SI
N

RI
M 

86
2.9

5

SA
NI

TA
RY

 M
H

RI
M 

86
3.6

4

CA
TC

H 
BA

SI
N

BE
EH

IV
E

RI
M 

86
6.2

6

CA
TC

H 
BA

SI
N

RI
M 

86
7.6

8

ST
OR

M 
MH

RI
M 

86
8.1

4

ST
OR

M 
MH

RI
M 

86
7.1

9

SA
NI

TA
RY

 M
H

RI
M 

87
6.1

1
ST

OR
M 

MH
RI

M 
87

6.6
2

S0
0°

02
'20

"E
 39

9.9
5' 

(R
&M

)

N89°57'40"E 331.17' (R&M)

S89°57'40"W 1317.97' (R&M)
S89°57'40"W 331.06' (R&M)

L =
 16

.71
'(R

&M
)

R 
= 

39
5.0

0'(
R&

M)
D

  =
 2°

25
'26

"(R
&M

)
CH

D.
 B

RG
 =

N0
1°

12
'44

"E
16

.71
'(R

&M
)

N0
0°

00
'00

"E
 35

9.2
9' 

(R
&M

)

L =
 23

.97
'(R

&M
)

R 
= 

39
5.0

0'(
R&

M)
D

  =
 3°

28
'39

"(R
&M

)
CH

D.
 B

RG
 =

N0
1°

44
'19

"W
23

.97
'(R

&M
)

N0
0°

00
'35

"E
 63

6.0
2' 

(M
)

N89°57'40"E 353.13' (M)

N0
0°

17
'14

"W
 74

1.6
2' 

(M
)

L 
= 

37
2.2

4'(
M)

R 
= 

57
29

.65
'(M

)
D

 
3°
43
'21

"(M
)

CH
D.

 B
RG

 =
S7

3°
33
'25

"E
37

2.1
8'(

M)

WEST 1123.75' (R)
WEST 351.00' (R)

SO
UT

H 
(R

)

NO
RT

H 
74

6.0
0' 

(R
)

EA
ST

ER
LY

 (R
)

PA
RC

EL
 1

PA
RC

EL
 2

PA
RC

EL
 3

ST
ST

ST
ST

ST
ST

ST.

12
"

12
"

12
"

G

R

A

N

D

 
R

I
V

E

R

 
A

V

E

N

U

E

 
(

M

-

4

3

)

 
(

1

0

0

'
 
W

I
D

E

)

PUBLICLY DEDICATED ASPHALT PAVEMENT W/ CONC. CURB

C
E

N
T

R
A

L
 
P

A
R

K
 
D

R
.
 
(
9
0
'
 
W

I
D

E
)

PU
BL

IC
LY

 D
ED

IC
AT

ED
AS

PH
AL

T 
PA

VE
ME

NT
 W

/ C
ON

C.
 C

UR
B

CB

CB

CB

CB

CB

CB

CB

CB

CB

CB

CB

MH

MH

MH

MH

MH

MH
MH

MH HY
D

EM

MH

EX
. G

RA
VE

L

EX
. A

SP
HA

LT
EX

. A
SP

HA
LT

OH

OH

OH

OH

OH

OH
OH

P.
O.

B.
PA

RC
EL

 1

P.
O.

B.
 P

AR
CE

LS
 2 

& 
3

EX
. D

EC
K

EX
. R

ET
. W

AL
L

EM

UP
UP

UP

UP

UP

UP

IR
ON

 F
EN

CE

STM

12
" S

TM

18" STM
12" STM

24
" S

TM

STM 12" STM
8" SANSAN

SA
N

SA
N

24
" S

TM

EX. GRAVEL

EX
. S

IG
N

SI
GN

15" STM 10" SAN

12" STM 10" SAN

10" SAN
15" STM

12" STM

10" SAN

12
" S

TM

ST
M

STM

12" STM

10
" S

AN

10" SAN
10" SAN

10
" S

AN
10

" S
AN

SAN

WM

WM

EX. 2" G

EX
. 2

" G
EX

. 2
" G

EX
. C

ON
C

EX. WALL

EX. CONC

EX
. C

.L.
 F

EN
CE

EX. WOOD FENCE

EX. RET. WALL

8" STM

EX. RET. WALL

EX
. C

.L.
 F

EN
CE

CO
NC

RET. WALL

EX
. D

EC
K

EX
. G

RA
VE

L

CONC

EX. CONC. WALK

12" STM

EX. CONC. WALK

EX. CONC. WALK

EX
. W

AL
L

12" STM

STM STM

EX. C.L. FENCE

ST
M

48" S
TM

METAL BARN

EX
. C

.L.
 F

EN
CE

EX. C.L. FENCE

STM

OH
OH

EX
. C

ON
C

SA
N 

LIF
T

ST
AT

IO
N

EX
. O

H 
W

IR
ES 24

.0'

EX
. O

H 
W

IR
ES

CONC

37.6'

42
.1'

25.3' 10
.9'

7.0
'

2.9'

24.3'

24.3'

32
.3'

32
.3'

14
.6'

14
.6'

28.3'
28.3'

18
.4'

5.9'

16
.8'

37.8'

9.2
'

1.4
'

26.9'

24
.9'

17.0'18
.7'

26.4'

0.5
' 24.8'

SH
ED

22
'X

8'25.3'

25.0'

59.4'

59.6'

23
.8'

88
.6'

34
.6'

30
.1'

EX
. O

H 
W

IR
ES

EX. OH WIRES

EX. OH WIRES

EX. OH WIRES

EX. POOL

EX. ASPHALT

EX. ASPHALT

EX. ASPHALT

EASEMENT FOR ROAD RIGHT-OF-WAY

PURPOSES TO COUNTY OF INGHAM

LIBER 11, MR PAGE 101, LIBER 11 MR

PAGE 20, LIBER 11, PAGE 153

200006
0.000
CB

PEDESTRIAN/BICYCLE PATHWAY EASEMENT

TO MERIDIAN TOWNSHIP LIBER 2822, PAGE 174

TA
X 

ID
: 3

3-
02

-0
2-

22
-4

26
-0

01

TA
X 

ID
: 3

3-
02

-0
2-

22
-4

01
-0

03

TA
X 

ID
: 3

3-
02

-0
2-

22
-2

52
-0

03

EX
. G

UY
 W

IR
ES

EX
. G

UY
 W

IR
ES

GU
Y 

W
IR

ES

EAST-WEST 1/4 LINE

EX
. P

OO
L

EX
. C

ON
C.

EX
. C

.L.
 F

EN
CE

GA
R

EX
. S

TE
P

EX
. S

TE
P

EX
. S

TE
PS

OH
OH

OH
OH

OH

12" STM

EX. WM

EX. 10" GAS

EX. 10" GAS

EX. 10" G

EX. UG

16
22

 W
.

GR
AN

D
RI

VE
R 

AV
E.

16
14

 W
. G

RA
ND

RI
VE

R 
AV

E.
1-

ST
OR

Y 
HO

US
E

OH
 W

IR
ES

EX
. T

RE
E 

LIN
E

EX
. T

RE
E 

LIN
E

EX
. C

ON
C.

EX
. D

EC
K

W
ET

LA
ND

 A
RE

A 
"B

"
0.0

1 A
CR

ES

W
ET

LA
ND

 A
RE

A 
"C

"
0.0

4 A
CR

ES

EX
. S

HE
D

EX
. C

.L.
 F

EN
CE

ZO
NE

D 
C-

2

ZO
NE

D 
C-

2

ZO
NE

D 
C-

2

EX
. G

AR
.

60
' S

ET
BA

CK
(S

CR
EE

NI
NG

 R
EQ

UI
RE

D)

15
' S

ET
BA

CK

60' SETBACK
(SCREENING REQUIRED)

100' SETBACK FROM ℄

15
' S

ET
BA

CK

15' SETBACK

85
' S

ET
BA

CK
 F

RO
M ℄

60' SETBACK
(SCREENING REQUIRED)

 A
23

 A
22

 A
21

 A
20  A
19

 A
18

 A
17

 A
16

 A
15

 A
14

 A
13

 A
12

 A
11

 A
10

ZO
NE

D 
PO

ZONED RA

ZO
NE

D 
C-

2

ZO
NE

D 
RA

E4

E3

F5

E1

W
ET

LA
ND

 A
RE

A 
"D

"
0.0

9 A
CR

ES

F6

F2

E2

E5

F3

F7

W
ET

LA
ND

 A
RE

A 
"E

"
0.0

5 A
CR

ES
F4

F1

W
ET

LA
ND

 A
RE

A 
"F

"
0.0

4 A
CR

ES

B2

B3

B1

B1
.5

B5

B4

B9
B1

0

C1

C2 C3

C4

C5

C6

D5
D6

D7

D1

D2

D3 D4

OH
OH

OH
OH

OH
OH

OH
OH

OH
OH

OH

X
X

X

EX
. M

ET
AL

 B
AR

N

X

SS
SS

SS
SS

SS
SS

SS

SS

SS
SS

SS
SS

SS
SS

SS

SS

SS
SS

SS
SS

SS
SS

SS

OH OH

OH

40' WIDE DRAIN EASEMENT TO
UNRUH DRAINAGE DISTRICT
LIBER 1123, PAGE 501

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G
G

G
G

G

G

G

ST
ST

ST

ST

ST
ST

ST

ST
ST

ST

ST ST

ST

ST

ST
ST

ST
ST

ST
ST

ST
ST

ST

E
X

I
S

T
I
N

G
 
B

U
I
L

D
I
N

G

EX
. G

RA
VE

L

EX. WALL

C
A

U
T

I
O

N
!

!

EX
IS

T.
 10

" G
AS

 M
AI

N

C
A

U
T

I
O

N
!

!

EX
IS

T.
 2"

 G
AS

 M
AI

N

UT

UT

EX
. C

ON
C.

 W
AL

K
EX

. C
ON

C.
 W

AL
K

G

G

G

G

G

G

G
G

G

G

G

G

G

G

EX. GAS

EX. OH WIRES

CONC

W
ET

LA
ND

 A
RE

A 
"A

"
0.2

6 A
CR

ES

EX
. H

OU
SE

EX
. H

OU
SE

EX
.

SH
ED

EX
. L

IG
HT

 P
OL

E 
(T

YP
.)

EX
. T

RE
E 

LIN
E

EX
. T

RE
E 

LIN
E

860

860

865

86
5865

859

85
9

86
1

862

863

86
4

86
4

86
4

864

864

86
6

866

86
6

866

867

867

868

86
8

85
5

86
0

86
5 86

5

865

86
5 865

86
5

865

85
685

7

85
8

85
8

85
8

859

85
9

85
9

861

862
863

86
3

863

86
3

86
3

864

86
4

864

86
4

86
4

86
6

866

86
6 866

866

86
7

86
7

86
7

86
7

86
7

86
7

867
867

867

86
7

86
8

86
8

86
8

86
8

86
8

86
8

860

865

86
5

865

870

875

859

861

862

863

864

866

867

868

869

871

872

873
873

873

874

870

868

869

871

872

873

85
5

86
0

86
5

85
685
785
885

9

861
862

863

86
4

866

865

86
5

86
5

86
1

86
2

86
2

86
2

86
386
4

865

86
3

86
4

86
6

860

865

861
86

2
86

3
86

4

866
867868

869

860

865

861

862

863

864

866

867

ST

ST

ST ST ST ST ST ST ST ST

ST
ST

ST
ST

ST

Culvert #99
Inv. Elev.= 858.31
12" Concrete

Catch Basin #105
Rim. Elev.= 867.59
12" Concrete Inv. ESE 863.94

Manhole #104
Rim. Elev.= 870.52
48" Inv. W & N
Center of Structure 854.62

Culvert #112
Inv. Elev.= 853.50
48" CMP

Catch Basin #117
Rim. Elev.= 856.40
12" Inv. E 852.85 Pipe #118

12" Concrete
Top of Pipe Elev.= 854.34
Add 1.1 for Inv.(?)

St
or

m 
Ma

nh
ole

 #1
00

11
7

Ri
m 

El
ev

. =
 86

7.0
4

48
" C

on
c. 

Inv
. 8

55
.69

 W
.

48
" C

on
c. 

Inv
. 8

55
.75

 E
.

12
" C

on
c. 

Inv
. 8

62
.44

 S
W

.

40' WIDE DRAIN EASEMENT TO

UNRUH DRAINAGE DISTRICT

LIBER 1127, PAGE 211

40' SETBACK
(WITH LANDSCAPE BUFFER)

40
' S

ET
BA

CK
(W

IT
H 

LA
ND

SC
AP

E 
BU

FF
ER

)

40' SETBACK
(WITH LANDSCAPE BUFFER)

20' R.O.W. SETBACK
(LANDSCAPE BUFFER)

L
E

G
A

L
 
D

E
S

C
R

I
P

T
I
O

N

18400890-CP1-SURVEY-BASE.dwg          TA     10/16/2018   12:31

PART OF THE SOUTHEAST 1/4  OF SECTION 22, T4N, R1W,
MERIDIAN TOWNSHIP,  INGHAM COUNTY,  MICHIGAN

FOX NISSAN

Gr
ee

n C
as

tle
 P

ro
pe

rtie
s, 

LL
C

At
tn:

 C
oli

n S
ch

ief
ler

Su
ite

 80
0 -

 20
0 O

tta
wa

 A
ve

nu
e N

W
Gr

an
d R

ap
ids

, M
I 4

95
03

Tit
le:

Su
bm

itte
d f

or
 R

ev
iew

V.
 D

ate
:10

.16
.18

Dr
aw

n:T
A

Ch
ec

ke
d:T

A/
JG

S.
 D

ate
:10

.16
.18

1614 & 1622 W. Grand River Avenue

AN
N 

AR
BO

R
CH

IC
AG

O
CO

LU
M

BU
S

HO
LL

AN
D

IN
DI

AN
AP

O
LI

S
ST

. L
O

UI
S

21
7 G

ra
nd

vil
le 

Av
e.,

 S
uit

e 3
02

Gr
an

d R
ap

ids
, M

I 4
95

03
Ph

on
e: 

61
6.5

75
.51

90

G
RA

ND
 R

AP
ID

S

18
40

08
90

©
 20

18 
Ne

de
rve

ld,
 In

c.

ww
w.

ne
de

rve
ld.

co
m

80
0.2

22
.18

68

S
T

A
M

P
:

S
H

E
E

T
 
N

O
:

R
E

V
I
S

I
O

N
S

:

P
R

E
P

A
R

E
D

 
F

O
R

:

La
nd

 P
lan

nin
g

La
nd

sc
ap

e A
rch

ite
ctu

re
Ci

vil
 E

ng
ine

er
ing

La
nd

 S
ur

ve
yin

g
En

vir
on

me
nta

l C
on

su
ltin

g
Hi

gh
 D

efi
nit

ion
 S

ca
nn

ing
Fo

re
ns

ic 
En

gin
ee

rin
g

Fir
e I

nv
es

tig
ati

on

Ex
pe

rie
nc

e .
 . .

 th
e D

iffe
re

nc
e

P
R

O
J
E

C
T

 
N

O
:

T
IM

M
 E
.

A
P
P
L
E
T
O
N

E
N

G
I
N

E
E

R

S

T

A

T

E

O

F
M

I
C

H

I
G

A

N

L
IC

E

N

S

E

D

P

R

O

F

E

S
S

I
O

N

A

L

E

N

G

I

N

E

E
R

N
o

.

4
2

5
6

4

C
-
2
0
1

Existing Site Conditions Plan

NO
T 

TO
 S

CA
LE

L
O

C
A

T
I
O

N
 
M

A
P

JO
LL

Y 
RD

.

W
. G

RA
ND

 R
IV

E 
AV

E.

VAN ALTA RD.

DOBIE RD.

OKEMOS RD.

S. HAGADORN RD.

HULETT RD.

E.
 M

T.
 H

OP
E 

RD
.

PARK LAKE RD.

OKEMOS RD.

OKEMOS RD.

MERIDAN RD.MERIDAN RD.

HA
SL

ET
T 

RD
.

SA
GI

NA
W

 H
W

Y.

S
I
T

E

S
C

A
L

E
:
 
1
"
 
=

 
5
0
'

0'
25

'
50

'
10

0'

M2
2-

21
 C

OM
 A

T 
PT

 11
23

 3/
4 F

T 
W

 O
F 

E 
1/4

 P
OS

T 
OF

 S
EC

 22
 - 

W
 14

5 F
T 

- S
 T

O 
CE

N 
OF

 U
S-

16
 H

W
Y 

- E
'LY

AL
ON

G 
CE

N 
OF

 S
AI

D 
HW

Y 
TO

 P
T 

DU
E 

S 
OF

 B
EG

 - 
N 

TO
 B

EG
 O

N 
SE

 1/
4 O

F 
SE

C 
22

, T
4N

 R
1W

 - 
2.4

25
 A

.
UT

ILI
TY

 L
OC

AT
IO

NS
 A

RE
 D

ER
IV

ED
 F

RO
M 

AC
TU

AL
 M

EA
SU

RE
ME

NT
S 

OR
AV

AI
LA

BL
E 

RE
CO

RD
S.

  
TH

EY
 S

HO
UL

D 
NO

T 
BE

 I
NT

ER
PR

ET
ED

 T
O 

BE
EX

AC
T 

LO
CA

TI
ON

S 
NO

R 
SH

OU
LD

 IT
 B

E 
AS

SU
ME

D 
TH

AT
 T

HE
Y 

AR
E 

TH
E

ON
LY

 U
TI

LIT
IE

S 
IN

 T
HI

S 
AR

EA
.

NO
TE

:
EX

IS
TI

NG
 U

TI
LIT

IE
S 

AN
D 

SE
RV

IC
E 

LIN
ES

 ID
EN

TI
FI

ED
 A

S 
"(P

LA
N)

" 
W

ER
E

OB
TA

IN
ED

 
FR

OM
 

AV
AI

LA
BL

E 
AS

-B
UI

LT
 

RE
CO

RD
 

DR
AW

IN
GS

. 
 

TH
E

CO
NT

RA
CT

OR
 S

HA
LL

 V
ER

IF
Y 

TH
E 

LO
CA

TI
ON

, D
EP

TH
 A

ND
 S

TA
TU

S 
OF

 A
LL

UT
ILI

TI
ES

 A
ND

 S
ER

VI
CE

 LI
NE

S 
PR

IO
R 

TO
 N

EW
 C

ON
NE

CT
IO

NS
.

Kn
ow

 w
ha

t's
 b

el
ow

.
    

CA
LL

 b
ef

or
e y

ou
 d

ig
.

Ai
r C

on
dit

ion
er

Be
nc

hm
ar

k

Ca
tch

 B
as

in 
- R

ou
nd

Ca
tch

 B
as

in 
- S

qu
ar

e

Cl
ea

no
ut

Ca
ble

 R
ise

r

El
ec

tric
 M

an
ho

le

El
ec

tric
 M

ete
r

El
ec

tric
 R

ise
r

Fla
g

Ga
s M

ete
r

Ga
s R

ise
r

Ga
s V

alv
e

Hy
dr

an
t

Lig
ht 

Po
le

Ma
ilb

ox

Ma
nh

ole

Ph
on

e R
ise

r

St
op

 B
ox

Si
gn

Sa
nit

ar
y S

ew
er

 M
an

ho
le

St
or

mw
ate

r M
an

ho
le

Te
lep

ho
ne

 M
an

ho
le

Tr
an

sfo
rm

er

Ut
ilit

y P
ole

Un
de

rg
ro

un
d G

as
 M

ar
ke

r

W
ate

r M
ete

r

W
ate

r M
an

ho
le

W
ate

r V
alv

e

W
ate

r W
ell

Ca
ble

 T
V

El
ec

tric

Ov
er

he
ad

 E
lec

tric

Un
de

rg
ro

un
d E

lec
tric

Fib
er

 O
pti

c

Ga
s

Ov
er

he
ad

 U
tili

ty

Sa
nit

ar
y

St
or

m

Te
lep

ho
ne

Ov
er

he
ad

 T
ele

ph
on

e

Un
de

rg
ro

un
d T

ele
ph

on
e

W
ate

rm
ain

Fe
nc

e

Gu
ar

d R
ail

Zo
nin

g S
etb

ac
k

Tr
ee

Ex
. G

ra
de

 C
on

tou
r

As
ph

alt

Co
nc

re
te

Gr
av

el

Bu
ild

ing

C E OE UE FO G OH SS ST T OT UT W

54
3

L
E

G
E

N
D

N
o

t
e
s

1.
TH

E 
SU

RV
EY

 IN
FO

RM
AT

IO
N 

SH
OW

N 
ON

 T
HI

S 
PL

AN
 W

AS
 T

AK
EN

 F
RO

M 
A

SU
RV

EY
 D

AT
ED

 6-
18

-2
01

8 B
Y 

NO
W

AK
 &

 F
RA

US
 E

NG
IN

EE
RS

, IN
C.

 P
ON

TI
AC

, M
I, A

S
PR

OV
ID

ED
 B

Y 
GR

EE
N 

CA
ST

LE
 P

RO
PE

RT
IE

S,
 LL

C,
 G

RA
ND

 R
AP

ID
S,

 M
I.



W

W

W

W

W

 17
8

86
8.3

2

 18
0

 18
1 18

2
 18

3

 18
4

 18
5

 18
6 18

7
 18

8

 18
9

 19
0

 19
1

 19
2

 19
3

 19
4

 19
5

 19
6

 19
7

 19
8

 19
9

 20
0

 20
1  20

2

 20
3

 20
4

 20
5

 20
6

 20
7

 20
8

 20
9

 21
0

 21
1

 21
2

 21
3

 21
4

 21
5

 21
6  21

7

 21
8

 21
9

 22
0

 22
1

 22
2

 22
3

 22
4

 22
5 22

6
 22

7
 22

8

 22
9

 23
0

 23
1

 23
2

 23
3

 23
5

 23
6

 23
7

 23
8

 23
9

 24
0

 24
1 24

2
 24

3
 24

4 24
5

 24
6

 24
7

 24
8

 24
9

 25
0

 25
1

 25
2

 25
3

 25
4 25

5

 25
7

 25
8

 25
9 26

0
 26

1
 26

2

 26
3

 26
4 26

5
 26

6
 26

7
 26

8

 26
9

 27
0

 27
1

 27
2  27

3
 27

4

 27
5

 27
6

 27
7

 27
8

 27
9

 28
0

 28
1

 28
2

 28
3 28

4

 28
5

 28
6 28

7

 28
8

 28
9

 29
0

 29
1

 29
2

 29
3

 29
4

 29
5

 29
6 29

7 29
8

 29
9

 30
0

 30
1

 30
2

 30
3

 30
4

 30
5

 30
6

 30
7

 30
8

 30
9 31

0

 31
1

 31
2

 31
3

 31
4

 31
5

 31
6

 31
7

 31
8

 31
9

 32
0

 32
1

 32
2

 32
4

 32
5 32

6

 32
7  32

8

 32
9

 33
0

 33
1

 33
2

 33
3

 33
4

 33
5

 33
6

 33
7

 33
8

 33
9

 34
0 34

1

 34
2

 34
3

 34
4

 34
5

 34
6

 34
7

 34
8

 34
9

 35
0

 35
1

 35
2

 35
3

 35
4

 35
5

 35
6

 35
7

 35
8

 35
9

 36
0

 36
1

 36
2

 36
3

 36
4

 36
5

 36
6

 36
7

 36
8

 36
9

 37
0

 37
1

 37
2

 37
3

 37
4

 37
5

 37
6

 37
7

 37
8

 37
9

 38
0

 38
1 38

2

 38
3

 38
4

86
8.0

1
GU 86

8.5
6

TC

86
9.2

0

86
9.2

1

86
7.8

9
GU

86
8.4

2
TC

86
8.2

9

86
8.3

0
86

8.2
0

TC
86

7.6
8

GU

ST
OP

 B
OX

RI
M 

86
8.1

2

HY
DR

AN
T

FG
 86

8.0
1

B
E

N
C

H
M

A
R

K

AR
RO

W
 O

N 
HY

DR
AN

T
EL

EV
AT

IO
N 

87
1.1

2
NA

VD
 88

 D
AT

UM

86
5.6

9

86
2.2

4

86
2.8

3 86
5.3

1

ST
OP

 B
OX

RI
M 

86
8.1

0

86
6.6

0

86
6.1

8
86

5.5
7

86
6.4

3

86
5.8

2

863.67 TC
863.22 GU

86
5.0

8

863.14 TC 863.09

86
3.7

9
TC

86
3.3

7
GU

863.89
TC

863.46
GU

863
.43

TC

863
.10

GU

B
E

N
C

H
M

A
R

K

md
ot 

ho
riz

 co
ntr

ol 
dis

c 3
32

02
EL

EV
AT

IO
N 

86
9.2

6
NA

VD
 88

 D
AT

UM

868.72
TC
868.24

GU

869.55
TC
869.10

GU

869.19
ST

OR
M 

MH
RI

M 
86

9.9
1

870.15
TC

869.66
GU

CA
TC

H 
BA

SI
N

RI
M 

86
9.9

1

87
1.4

5
TC

87
1.0

0
GU

87
1.0

5

872
.39

TC

871
.93

GU

872.14 872.23
871.70 GU

CA
TC

H 
BA

SI
N

RI
M 

87
1.7

4

872.24
TC

873.02
TC
872.56

GU

874.17

873.00

TE
LE

PH
ON

E 
MH

RI
M 

87
4.1

7

873.88
TC

873.41
GU

874.15 874.15

T

874.67
TC

874.20
GU

875.05

ST
OP

 B
OX

RI
M 

87
5.0

9

875.21 875.59
TC
875.11

GU

876.54
TC
876.08

GU

875.81

874.86

873.95

873.15

872.30

871.33

870.58

869.61

868.74

867.94

SA
NI

TA
RY

 M
H

RI
M 

86
7.3

4

86
6.4

1

866.48

86
6.6

4
GU

867
.36

GU

867
.76

TC

868.29
TC

867.79
GU

ST
OP

 B
OX

RI
M 

86
7.6

5

866.45
TC

866.29

86
6.5

9

866.87
866.99

867.07

SA
NI

TA
RY

 M
H

RI
M 

86
8.3

2

867.28

866.32

86
5.9

0

86
5.9

2

SA
NI

TA
RY

 M
H

RI
M 

86
6.4

2

866.02

86
7.0

0

HY
DR

AN
T

FG
 86

7.8
4

B
E

N
C

H
M

A
R

K

AR
RO

W
 O

N 
HY

DR
AN

T
EL

EV
AT

IO
N 

87
0.6

5
NA

VD
 88

 D
AT

UM

868.56
TC

CA
TC

H 
BA

SI
N

RI
M 

86
8.1

2

868.79
TC

868.36
GU

867.51 867.52

867.68

869.28
TC

868.78
GU

867.71

870.35
TC

869.89
GU

869.30
869.26

870.79
GU

871.23
TC

870.42
870.46

ST
OR

M 
MH

RI
M 

87
1.3

9

871.53
TC

CA
TC

H 
BA

SI
N

RI
M 

87
1.0

7

871.26

871.09

871.26
871.40

871.56

871.44

871.72872.14
TC

871.66
GU 872.46

TC
871.99

GU
872.98

TC
872.54

GU

871.80

SA
NI

TA
RY

 M
H

RI
M 

87
1.6

6
ST

OR
M 

MH
RI

M 
87

2.2
1

CA
TC

H 
BA

SI
N

RI
M 

87
2.6

2

871.25

871.52

873.78
TC

873.36
GU

871.46
871.18

871.19

871.56 871.46

871.22 871.53

871.76

874.70
TC

874.22
GU

87
1.9

687
1.9

5

ST
OR

M 
MH

RI
M 

87
4.5

3

875.16
TC

CA
TC

H 
BA

SI
N

RI
M 

87
4.6

8

875.56
TC

875.07
GU

873.11
873.07

872.76 TC 872.20 GU

87
1.8

1
GU 87

2.3
5

TC

871.98 TC 871.46 GU

870.73 TC 87
0.6

887
0.1

6
86

8.1
5 87

0.4
0

86
9.7

4
TC

86
9.6

3
GU 87

0.5
4

87
0.8

7

87
2.1

5

87
0.6

1

86
5.3

6
865

.62
863

.738
64

.40
86

3.2
9

86
3.2

0

86
5.4

1

10
"P

IN
E 

/no
tag86
3.6

9
86

1.9
8

86
0.6

8

FL
AG

PO
LE

86
8.6

9

870.41

86
9.1

7

86
6.8

2

86
0.5

4

86
2.6

4

CA
TC

H 
BA

SI
N

BE
EH

IV
E

RI
M 

85
8.2

8

85
9.6

7

85
9.6

8

86
0.3

6
86

7.1
1

86
6.8

8
86

2.1
5

86
1.4

1

86
3.4

5
86

6.9
5

866
.02

86
1.7

8

871.65

87
1.2

2

87
1.3

9

871.59

86
6.6

4

86
6.6

5

863
.80

864
.09

863
.02

863
.08

863.24
863.62

863.76

863.60

863.67

863
.81

863.61863.26
862.93862.85

860.75

864.12

864.56
864.52

86
5.7

1

866.62

86
6.8

3
F.

F.
 86

7.4
2

866.65

865.76

86
7.0

2 863.27

P

86
2.6

9

P

P

86
2.4

3
86

2.3
5

862.40

862
.58

862.31

86
2.7

8
862

.77

860.72

86
0.2

3

86
2.2

6

86
2.0

6

862.20
860.23

859.52

860
.58

860
.57

86
0.5

6
86

0.4
9

86
0.6

8

86
0.8

0
86

0.7
3

86
2.8

4

86
2.1

2 86
1.3

1
86

0.4
9

86
0.8

3

861.14 86
0.2

6 86
0.0

7
85

9.7
5

85
4.2

2

854
.14

 W
AT

ER
 LE

VE
LEN

D 
SE

CT
IO

N
IN

V 
85

3.5
7

85
3.9

5

86
0.4

0
86

0.1
3

85
4.1

1

85
9.2

2

85
4.2

1

85
9.2

1

85
9.5

1

85
4.1

1

85
8.7

4

85
9.0

4

85
4.1

9

85
9.1

9

85
4.0

4

860.69

86
3.1

8

86
3.6

6
86

3.8
2

86
3.3

6

863.61

86
4.3

5

863.7086
4.5

3 F.
F.

 65
0.9

0

86
5.1

4

864.48 865.85

86
5.4

6
EL

EC

86
5.5

2

865.55865.51
865.43

86
5.8

8
86

5.4
8

865.75865.66
865.41

86
5.4

5

86
5.5

4
86

5.4
8

86
5.4

1 86
5.4

2
86

5.5
9

865.66

24
"T

RE
E 

/no
tag

86
3.0

8

862.79 861.99 861.65 862.88

86
0.7

9

86
0.8

6

86
0.7

9

859.47

85
9.1

3

86
0.6

6

86
5.4

5

86
4.2

286
3.9

7

86
3.2

6

86
1.9

0

86
1.8

9

18
"P

IN
E 

/no
tta

gg
ed

15
"P

IN
E 

/no
tag

15
"P

IN
E 

/no
tag

86
0.3

0

86
0.8

8

85
9.6

2

85
9.6

0
85

9.5
9

85
8.9

0

85
9.0

5

85
9.0

9

85
9.3

5
85

9.8
5

85
9.7

9

85
9.9

8

86
0.0

4

86
0.2

3

86
1.4

9

86
1.8

6

86
1.7

8

86
3.6

7

86
3.8

3

86
3.6

0
86

4.0
9

86
4.6

2

86
4.5

9

86
3.5

7

86
3.6

5

86
3.8

286
3.8

1
86

3.9
9

86
3.8

8

85
7.7

0

85
9.2

2 85
4.1

9

85
8.9

8

85
4.3

2

CA
TC

H 
BA

SI
N

BE
EH

IV
E

RI
M 

85
6.4

3

85
6.6

6

85
9.0

2

85
6.9

5

85
6.9

4

85
8.7

1 85
4.4

5

85
8.7

2

85
4.1

3
859

.32
85

4.3
2

85
8.7

0

86
0.8

5
86

2.4
4

86
2.9

4

10
"P

IN
E 

/no
tag

86
5.2

1

86
5.3

6

863.35

86
0.5

0

86
1.9

4
86

1.0
4

86
0.8

5

86
5.3

2

86
5.6

5

86
5.4

2
86

3.0
0

863.05
862.97 862.96

865.47
865.44 865.39

865.36

86
5.2

6

86
5.0

9

865.43
865.24
865.19

F.
F.

 86
6.6

5

86
5.2

8
86

5.2
2

86
5.3

2 865.52

86
5.3

2

ELEC

EL
EC

TR
IC

 M
ET

ER

86
5.2

2
86

5.2
4

86
5.5

1

86
5.3

4

86
5.2

2
86

4.8
2

86
5.8

6
86

6.7
8

86
6.8

8

86
5.0

5

865.62 865.64

865.61 865.52

F.
F.

 86
3.9

3

865.3986
5.5

4
86

5.4
2

86
5.4

2
86

5.4
1

86
5.5

6

86
5.7

2
86

7.0
7

867.53

86
7.3

0
86

5.6
2

86
5.3

48
66

.98

86
7.0

6
86

5.5
386

6.9
6

865.35

86
5.5

2 86
5.4

8

F.
F.

 86
6.7

5

86
6.1

1

865.52
865.51865.43

865.43
865.54

865.35865.22

86
7.3

686
7.0

6

86
7.1

6

867.61

86
7.2

5

86
7.2

7
86

7.2
2

86
6.6

6

86
6.3

2

P 86
7.5

0
86

7.0
5

86
7.6

1
86

7.3
0

 20
17

9

86
3.7

0

86
8.2

286
7.2

3

86
5.7

6

86
6.7

9

86
6.4

9

86
6.0

5

86
6.4

5

85
9.6

6
86

1.3
0

85
9.6

0

85
9.5

0

85
9.4

5

85
8.7

2

85
8.8

4

85
9.3

5
85

8.6
4

85
9.1

8
85

9.6
7

85
8.6

8

85
8.5

0

85
8.6

9

CA
TC

H 
BA

SI
N

BE
EH

IV
E

RI
M 

85
8.3

7

85
9.1

0

EN
D 

SE
CT

IO
N

IN
V 

85
8.8

5

EN
D 

SE
CT

IO
N

IN
V 

85
9.1

3

85
8.8

4

85
8.4

5

85
8.4

0

85
8.3

8

85
8.8

8

85
9.0

2

85
9.5

1

85
9.2

6
86

0.2
7

86
0.4

0

85
9.2

5
85

8.4
4

85
8.6

6

85
8.9

2

85
8.5

7

85
8.5

8

85
8.4

4

85
8.3

5

85
8.5

8

85
8.8

1
85

9.0
3

85
8.7

6

85
8.9

9

85
8.5

8

85
8.3

5

85
8.8

7

85
8.5

8

85
8.5

3

85
8.4

1

CA
TC

H 
BA

SI
N

BE
EH

IV
E

RI
M 

85
8.6

3
85

8.3
7

85
8.7

3

85
8.4

0

85
8.5

0

85
8.6

0

85
8.8

6

85
9.1

8

85
9.3

0

85
9.5

4

86
4.5

3
TC

86
4.1

2
GU

864.57

86
4.1

8

86
4.7

7
TC

86
4.3

4
GU

86
5.2

7
GU

86
5.5

6
TC

86
5.1

7
TC

86
4.8

2
GU

86
5.0

5
TC

86
4.5

2
GU

86
4.0

3
GU

86
4.2

4
TC

86
4.3

0
TC

86
3.5

3
GU

HY
DR

AN
T

FG
 86

4.2
0

ST
OP

 B
OX

RI
M 

86
3.8

1

86
3.6

7
86

3.4
6

86
3.7

1

86
3.6

3
TC

86
3.1

1
GU

SA
NI

TA
RY

 M
H

RI
M 

86
3.5

2

86
3.6

0
TC

CA
TC

H 
BA

SI
N

RI
M 

86
2.9

5

SA
NI

TA
RY

 M
H

RI
M 

86
3.6

4

86
3.9

4
TC

86
3.3

7
GU

86
3.6

7
GU

86
4.1

3
TC

86
4.2

3
TC

86
3.6

9
GU

86
4.2

0
TC

86
3.6

3
GU

86
3.9

8
GU 86

4.4
6

TC

86
4.4

0

864.46 TC
864.00

GU

86
4.0

4
86

5.1
3

864.68
GU

865.23
TC
864.89

86
5.6

5
GU 86

6.2
2

TC

866.28
GU

86
7.2

1 86
6.8

8

86
6.9

3
86

7.0
9

86
6.1

2
86

8.7
1

CA
TC

H 
BA

SI
N

BE
EH

IV
E

RI
M 

86
6.2

6

86
5.7

1

86
5.4

5
86

7.6
6 86

7.5
8

86
7.1

4
TC

86
6.6

7
GU

86
7.5

6
TC

86
7.2

1
GU 86

7.8
5

TC
86

7.4
0

GU
86

8.0
8

TC
86

8.0
0

GU

868.28

86
7.8

4
86

7.8
4

86
7.7

286
7.8

6
GU

867.98 GU868.39 TC

86
8.6

1
TC

86
8.1

1
GU

86
7.8

8
GU

86
8.3

4
TC868.42 TC 867.71 GU

CA
TC

H 
BA

SI
N

RI
M 

86
7.6

8

86
8.3

6
TC

86
7.8

9
GU

86
8.8

6

86
8.4

7
GU

86
8.9

7
TC

86
9.5

5

86
9.2

5
GU

87
0.0

2
TC

87
0.9

0
TC

87
0.3

0
GU 87
0.6

6

85
9.9

0
86

1.3
6

86
0.1

6

85
9.4

5

85
8.8

8
85

9.2
3

86
0.2

3

86
1.4

7

85
9.3

7

85
8.6

7

85
8.8

2 85
8.0

4

85
7.5

9

85
7.5

7

85
7.7

2
85

8.0
7

85
7.6

4

85
7.2

7
85

8.6
8

86
0.5

6

86
3.7

1
86

2.1
6

86
0.8

8

85
9.8

7

85
8.8

5

85
8.9

2
85

9.6
2

86
4.6

5

86
2.1

6

86
1.2

4
86

4.0
4

863.45 860.48863.41863.46

86
4.8

786
5.4

7

864.22 861.97
864.99

86
2.2

5
86

4.1
7

86
7.0

2

86
6.9

4

86
6.1

5

86
2.3

2
86

1.1
0

86
1.4

4

86
1.5

4

ST
OR

M 
MH

RI
M 

86
8.1

4

86
6.3

7866.21

866.71
TC

866.22
GU

866.38
GU

866.81
TC

86
6.5

2
TC

86
6.0

8
GU

86
5.3

6
GU 86

5.7
6

TC

865.59
TC865.26

GU

86
5.1

1
86

4.7
6

86
4.7

6

86
4.1

8

86
4.3

2
TC

86
3.8

0
GU

86
3.6

3
GU

86
4.0

1
TC

86
4.4

3
TC

86
3.8

9
GU

86
4.1

4
GU

86
4.5

1
TC

86
4.6

0
TC

86
4.0

3
GU

86
5.3

0
GU

86
5.6

5
TC

86
5.7

9
TC

86
5.2

7
GU

86
4.7

9
GU

86
5.3

6
TC864.82 TC 864.73

GU

86
4.3

0

86
4.1

0

86
4.2

0
TC

86
4.0

4
GU 86

4.1
9

TC

OH

S89°57'40"W 1317.97' (R&M)

S89°57'40"W 331.06' (R&M)

N0
0°

00
'35

"E
 63

6.0
2' 

(M
)

N89°57'40"E 353.13' (M)

N0
0°

17
'14

"W
 74

1.6
2' 

(M
)

L 
= 

37
2.2

4'(
M)

R 
= 

57
29

.65
'(M

)
D

 
3°
43
'21

"(M
)

CH
D.

 B
RG

 =
S7

3°
33
'25

"E
37

2.1
8'(

M)

WEST 1123.75' (R)

WEST 351.00' (R)

SO
UT

H 
(R

)

NO
RT

H 
74

6.0
0' 

(R
)

EA
ST

ER
LY

 (R
)

PA
RC

EL
 2

PA
RC

EL
 3

T/
 B

AN
K

EX
. E

DG
E 

W
AT

ER

12
"

12
"

12
"

G

R

A

N

D

 
R

I
V

E

R

 
A

V

E

N

U

E

 
(

M

-

4

3

)

 
(

1

0

0

'
 
W

I
D

E

)

PUBLICLY DEDICATED
ASPHALT PAVEMENT W/ CONC. CURB

10
0.0

0' 
R.

O.
W

.

CB

CB

CB

CB

CB

CB

CB

CB

CB

CB

CB

CB

CB

CB

MH

MH

MH

MH

MH

MH

MH

MH

MH

MH
MH

HY
D

HY
D

EM

MH

EX
. G

RA
VE

L

EX
. A

SP
HA

LT

EX
. A

SP
HA

LT

OH

OH

OH

OH

OH

OH

OH

OH

OH

OH
OH

OH
OH

P.
O.

B.
PA

RC
EL

 1

P.
O.

B.
 P

AR
CE

LS
 2 

& 
3

FI
FI

FIFI
FI

FI FI
FI

FI

EX. RET. WALL

EM

UP
UP

UP

UP

UP

UP

UP

UP
UP

LP
LP

UP

G
SB

SB

FM
ON

AS
PH

ASPH

ASPH

ASPH

UP

SB

EX
. S

IG
N

SI
GN

15" STM 10" SAN

12" STM
10" SAN

10" SAN

15" STM

12" STM

10" SAN
12

" S
TM

ST
M

STM

12" STM

10
" S

AN

10" SAN

10" SAN

10
" S

AN

10
" S

AN

SAN

WM

WM

EX. 2" G

EX
. 2

" G
EX

. 2
" G

G
FP

EX
. C

ON
C

EX. WALL

EX. CONC

EX
. C

.L.
 F

EN
CE

EX. WOOD FENCE

EX. RET. WALL

8" STM

EX. RET. WALL

T/
BA

NK

B/
BA

NK

EX
. C

.L.
 F

EN
CE

CO
NC

RET. WALL

EX
. D

EC
K

EX
. G

RA
VE

L
CONC

EX. CONC. WALK

12" STM

EX. CONC. WALK

EX. CONC. WALK

EX
. W

AL
L

12" STM

LP

STM STM

EX. C.L. FENCE

ST
M

48" S
TM

EX
. C

.L.
 F

EN
CE

HY
D

STM

ASPH

OH
OH

OH

EX
. C

ON
C

OH

SA
N 

LIF
T

ST
AT

IO
N

EX
. O

H 
W

IR
ES

24
.0'

EX
. O

H 
W

IR
ES

CONC

37.6'

42
.1'

25.3'

10
.9'

7.0
'

2.9'

24.3'

24.3'

32
.3'

32
.3'

14
.6'

14
.6'

28.3'

28.3'

AS
PH

18
.4'

5.9'

16
.8'

37.8'

9.2
'

1.4
'

26.9'

24
.9'

17.0'18
.7'

26.4'

0.5
'

24.8'

EX
. O

H 
W

IR
ES

EX. OH WIRES

EX. OH WIRES

EX. OH WIRES

EX. POOL

EX. ASPHALT

EX. ASPHALT

EX. ASPHALT

EASEMENT FOR ROAD RIGHT-OF-WAY PURPOSES TO COUNTY OF INGHAM

LIBER 11, MR PAGE 101, LIBER 11 MR PAGE 20, LIBER 11, PAGE 153

200006
0.000
CB

TA
X 

ID
: 3

3-
02

-0
2-

22
-4

26
-0

01

TA
X 

ID
: 3

3-
02

-0
2-

22
-4

01
-0

03

EX
. G

UY
 W

IR
ES

EX
. G

UY
 W

IR
ES

GU
Y 

W
IR

ES

EAST-WEST 1/4 LINE

EX
. S

TE
P

EX
. S

TE
P

EX
. S

TE
PS

OH
OH

OH
OH

OH
OH

OH
OH

OH

12" STM

EX. WM

EX. 10" GAS

EX. 10" GAS

EX. 10" G

EX. UG

16
22

 W
. G

RA
ND

 R
IV

ER
 A

VE
.

16
14

 W
. G

RA
ND

 R
IV

ER
 A

VE
.

1-
ST

OR
Y 

HO
US

E

OH
 W

IR
ES

EX
. T

RE
E 

LIN
E

EX
. T

RE
E 

LIN
E

EX
. C

ON
C. EX

. D
EC

K

ZO
NE

D 
C-

2

ZO
NE

D 
C-

2

EX
. G

AR
.

15
' S

ET
BA

CK

60' SETBACK
(SCREENING REQUIRED)

100' SETBACK FROM ℄

15
' S

ET
BA

CK

15' SETBACK

MATCHLINE

MATCHLINE

ZO
NE

D 
PO

ZO
NE

D 
C-

2

E4

E3

F5

E1

F6

F2

E2

E5

F3

F7

W
ET

LA
ND

 A
RE

A 
"E

"
0.0

5 A
CR

ES

F4

F1

W
ET

LA
ND

 A
RE

A 
"F

"
0.0

4 A
CR

ES

OH
OH

OH
OH

OH
OH

OH
OH

OH
OH

OH
OH

OH
OH

OH
OH

OH
OH

OH

X

SS
SS

SS
SS

SS
SS

SS
SS

SS
SS

SS
SS

SS

SS

SS

SS
SS

SS
SS

SS
SS

SS
SS

SS
SS

SS

SS
SS

SS
SS

SS
SS

SS
SS

SS
SS

SS

SS

SS

SS

SS

SS

OH OH

OH

OH

40' WIDE DRAIN EASEMENT TO UNRUH DRAINAGE

DISTRICT LIBER 1123, PAGE 501

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G
G

G
G

G
G

G

G

G

G

G

G

ST
ST

ST
ST

ST

ST

ST

ST

ST

ST

ST
ST

ST
ST

ST

ST
ST

ST
ST

STST

ST

ST

ST

ST

ST

ST

ST
EX

. G
RA

VE
L

EX. WALL

C
A

U
T

I
O

N
!

!

EX
IS

T.
 10

" G
AS

 M
AI

N

C
A

U
T

I
O

N
!

!

EX
IS

T.
 2"

 G
AS

 M
AI

N
UT

UT

UT

UT

UT

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G
G

G
G

G

G

G
G

G
EX. GAS

EX. OH WIRES

CONC

EX
. H

OU
SE

EX
. H

OU
SE

EX
.

SH
ED

EX
. L

IG
HT

 P
OL

E 
(T

YP
.)

EX
. T

RE
E 

LIN
E

EX
. T

RE
E 

LIN
E

860

860

865

86
5

865

859

85
9

86
1

862

863

86
4

86
4

86
4

864

864

866

867

85
5

86
0

86
5 86

5

865

86
5

865

86
5

865

85
6

85
7

85
8

85
8

85
8

859

85
9

85
9

861

862

863

86
3

863

86
3

86
3

864

86
4

864

86
4

86
4

86
6 866

866

86
7

867
867

86
8

86
8

86
8

860

865

86
5

865

870

875

859

861

862

863

864

866

867

868

869

871

872

873
873

873

874

870

868

869

871

872

873

85
5

86
0

86
5

85
685

785
885

9

861

862

863

86
4

866

86
5

86
1

86
2

86
2

86
2

86
386

4

865

86
3

86
4

86
6

860

865

861

86
2

86
3

86
4

866
867

868
869

860

865

861

862

863

864

866

867

ST

ST

ST

ST
ST ST ST ST ST ST ST ST ST ST ST ST ST ST

ST
ST

ST
ST

ST
ST

ST
ST

ST

Culvert #99
Inv. Elev.= 858.31
12" Concrete

Catch Basin #105
Rim. Elev.= 867.59
12" Concrete Inv. ESE 863.94

Manhole #104
Rim. Elev.= 870.52
48" Inv. W & N
Center of Structure 854.62

Culvert #112
Inv. Elev.= 853.50
48" CMP

Catch Basin #117
Rim. Elev.= 856.40
12" Inv. E 852.85

Pipe #118
12" Concrete
Top of Pipe Elev.= 854.34
Add 1.1 for Inv.(?)

St
or

m 
Ma

nh
ole

 #1
00

11
7

Ri
m 

El
ev

. =
 86

7.0
4

48
" C

on
c. 

Inv
. 8

55
.69

 W
.

48
" C

on
c. 

Inv
. 8

55
.75

 E
.

12
" C

on
c. 

Inv
. 8

62
.44

 S
W

.

40' WIDE DRAIN EASEMENT TO UNRUH DRAINAGE

DISTRICT LIBER 1127, PAGE 211

40' SETBACK
(WITH LANDSCAPE BUFFER)

20' R.O.W. SETBACK
(LANDSCAPE BUFFER)

L
E

G
A

L
 
D

E
S

C
R

I
P

T
I
O

N

18400890-CP1-SURVEY-BASE.dwg          TA     10/16/2018   12:15

PART OF THE SOUTHEAST 1/4  OF SECTION 22, T4N, R1W,
MERIDIAN TOWNSHIP,  INGHAM COUNTY,  MICHIGAN

FOX NISSAN

Gr
ee

n C
as

tle
 P

ro
pe

rtie
s, 

LL
C

At
tn:

 C
oli

n S
ch

ief
ler

Su
ite

 80
0 -

 20
0 O

tta
wa

 A
ve

nu
e N

W
Gr

an
d R

ap
ids

, M
I 4

95
03

Tit
le:

Su
bm

itte
d f

or
 R

ev
iew

V.
 D

ate
:10

.16
.18

Dr
aw

n:T
A

Ch
ec

ke
d:T

A/
JG

S.
 D

ate
:10

.16
.18

1614 & 1622 W. Grand River Avenue

AN
N 

AR
BO

R
CH

IC
AG

O
CO

LU
M

BU
S

HO
LL

AN
D

IN
DI

AN
AP

O
LI

S
ST

. L
O

UI
S

21
7 G

ra
nd

vil
le 

Av
e.,

 S
uit

e 3
02

Gr
an

d R
ap

ids
, M

I 4
95

03
Ph

on
e: 

61
6.5

75
.51

90

G
RA

ND
 R

AP
ID

S

18
40

08
90

©
 20

18 
Ne

de
rve

ld,
 In

c.

ww
w.

ne
de

rve
ld.

co
m

80
0.2

22
.18

68

S
T

A
M

P
:

S
H

E
E

T
 
N

O
:

R
E

V
I
S

I
O

N
S

:

P
R

E
P

A
R

E
D

 
F

O
R

:

La
nd

 P
lan

nin
g

La
nd

sc
ap

e A
rch

ite
ctu

re
Ci

vil
 E

ng
ine

er
ing

La
nd

 S
ur

ve
yin

g
En

vir
on

me
nta

l C
on

su
ltin

g
Hi

gh
 D

efi
nit

ion
 S

ca
nn

ing
Fo

re
ns

ic 
En

gin
ee

rin
g

Fir
e I

nv
es

tig
ati

on

Ex
pe

rie
nc

e .
 . .

 th
e D

iffe
re

nc
e

P
R

O
J
E

C
T

 
N

O
:

T
IM

M
 E
.

A
P
P
L
E
T
O
N

E
N

G
I
N

E
E

R

S

T

A

T

E

O

F
M

I
C

H

I
G

A

N

L
IC

E

N

S

E

D

P

R

O

F

E

S
S

I
O

N

A

L

E

N

G

I

N

E

E
R

N
o

.

4
2

5
6

4

C
-
2
0
2

Existing Conditions & Removal Plan

S
C

A
L

E
:
 
1
"
 
=

 
3
0
'

0'
15

'
30

'
60

'

M2
2-

21
 C

OM
 A

T 
PT

 11
23

 3/
4 F

T 
W

 O
F 

E 
1/4

 P
OS

T 
OF

 S
EC

 22
 - 

W
 14

5 F
T 

- S
 T

O 
CE

N 
OF

US
-1

6 H
W

Y 
- E

'LY
 A

LO
NG

 C
EN

 O
F 

SA
ID

 H
W

Y 
TO

 P
T 

DU
E 

S 
OF

 B
EG

 - 
N 

TO
 B

EG
 O

N 
SE

1/4
 O

F 
SE

C 
22

, T
4N

 R
1W

 - 
2.4

25
 A

.

UT
ILI

TY
 L

OC
AT

IO
NS

 A
RE

 D
ER

IV
ED

 F
RO

M 
AC

TU
AL

 M
EA

SU
RE

ME
NT

S 
OR

AV
AI

LA
BL

E 
RE

CO
RD

S.
  

TH
EY

 S
HO

UL
D 

NO
T 

BE
 I

NT
ER

PR
ET

ED
 T

O 
BE

EX
AC

T 
LO

CA
TI

ON
S 

NO
R 

SH
OU

LD
 IT

 B
E 

AS
SU

ME
D 

TH
AT

 T
HE

Y 
AR

E 
TH

E
ON

LY
 U

TI
LIT

IE
S 

IN
 T

HI
S 

AR
EA

.

NO
TE

:
EX

IS
TI

NG
 U

TI
LIT

IE
S 

AN
D 

SE
RV

IC
E 

LIN
ES

 ID
EN

TI
FI

ED
 A

S 
"(P

LA
N)

" 
W

ER
E

OB
TA

IN
ED

 
FR

OM
 

AV
AI

LA
BL

E 
AS

-B
UI

LT
 

RE
CO

RD
 

DR
AW

IN
GS

. 
 

TH
E

CO
NT

RA
CT

OR
 S

HA
LL

 V
ER

IF
Y 

TH
E 

LO
CA

TI
ON

, D
EP

TH
 A

ND
 S

TA
TU

S 
OF

 A
LL

UT
ILI

TI
ES

 A
ND

 S
ER

VI
CE

 LI
NE

S 
PR

IO
R 

TO
 N

EW
 C

ON
NE

CT
IO

NS
.

Kn
ow

 w
ha

t's
 b

el
ow

.
    

CA
LL

 b
ef

or
e y

ou
 d

ig
.

Ai
r C

on
dit

ion
er

Be
nc

hm
ar

k

Ca
tch

 B
as

in 
- R

ou
nd

Ca
tch

 B
as

in 
- S

qu
ar

e

Cl
ea

no
ut

Ca
ble

 R
ise

r
El

ec
tric

 M
an

ho
le

El
ec

tric
 M

ete
r

El
ec

tric
 R

ise
r

Fla
g

Ga
s M

ete
r

Ga
s R

ise
r

Ga
s V

alv
e

Hy
dr

an
t

Lig
ht 

Po
le

Ma
ilb

ox

Ma
nh

ole
Ph

on
e R

ise
r

St
op

 B
ox

Si
gn

Sa
nit

ar
y S

ew
er

 M
an

ho
le

St
or

mw
ate

r M
an

ho
le

Te
lep

ho
ne

 M
an

ho
le

Tr
an

sfo
rm

er

Ut
ilit

y P
ole

Un
de

rg
ro

un
d G

as
 M

ar
ke

r
W

ate
r M

ete
r

W
ate

r M
an

ho
le

W
ate

r V
alv

e

W
ate

r W
ell

Ca
ble

 T
V

El
ec

tric
Ov

er
he

ad
 E

lec
tric

Un
de

rg
ro

un
d E

lec
tric

Fib
er

 O
pti

c
Ga

s
Ov

er
he

ad
 U

tili
ty

Sa
nit

ar
y

St
or

m
Te

lep
ho

ne
Ov

er
he

ad
 T

ele
ph

on
e

Un
de

rg
ro

un
d T

ele
ph

on
e

W
ate

rm
ain

Fe
nc

e
Gu

ar
d R

ail
Zo

nin
g S

etb
ac

k
Tr

ee

Ex
. G

ra
de

 C
on

tou
r

As
ph

alt

Co
nc

re
te

Gr
av

el

Bu
ild

ing

C E OE UE FO G OH SS ST T OT UT W

54
3

L
E

G
E

N
D

2

2
3

5

3
6

RE
MO

VE
 E

XI
ST

IN
G 

CO
NC

RE
TE

 D
RI

VE

2

RE
MO

VE
 E

XI
ST

IN
G 

HO
US

E/
GA

RA
GE

/S
HE

D
3

RE
MO

VE
 E

X.
 W

AL
L

1

R
E

M
O

V
A

L
 
/
 
D

E
M

O
L

I
T

I
O

N
 
N

O
T

E
S

4

RE
MO

VE
 E

XI
ST

IN
G 

PO
OL

/P
AT

IO
5

RE
MO

VE
 E

XI
ST

IN
G 

W
AL

L
6

RE
MO

VE
 E

XI
ST

IN
G 

GR
AV

EL
 D

RI
VE

RE
MO

VE
 E

XI
ST

IN
G 

FE
NC

E
7

CO
OR

DI
NA

TE
 W

IT
H 

UT
ILI

TY
 C

OM
PA

NY
FO

R 
UT

ILI
TY

 LI
NE

 R
EM

OV
AL

3



 25
0

 25
1

 25
2

 25
3

 25
4 25

5

 25
7

 25
8

 25
9 26

0
 26

1
 26

2

 26
3

 26
4 26

5
 26

6
 26

7
 26

8

 26
9

 30
5

 30
6

 30
7

 31
2

 31
3

 31
4

 31
5

 31
6

 31
7

 31
8

 31
9

 32
0

 32
1

 32
2

 32
3

 32
4

 32
5 32

6

 32
7  32

8

 38
0

 38
1 38

2

 38
3

 38
4

 38
5  38

6 
38

7
 38

8
 38

9 
39

0 3
91

 39
2

 39
3

 39
4  3

95  39
6

 39
7

 39
8

 39
9

 40
0

 40
1

 40
2 40

3  40
4

 40
5

 40
6

 40
7

 40
8

 40
9

 41
0

 41
1

 41
2

 41
3

 41
4

 41
5

 41
6

 41
7

 41
8

 41
9 42

0

 42
1

 42
2

 42
3

 42
4

 42
5

 42
6

 42
7

 42
8

 42
9

 43
0

 43
1

 43
2

 43
3

 43
4

 43
5

 43
6

 43
7

 43
8

 43
9

 44
0

 44
1

 44
2

 44
3 44

4
 44

5
 44

6 44
7

 44
8

 44
9

 45
0

 45
1

 45
2

 45
3

 45
4  45

5
 45

6
 45

7

 45
8  45

9 46
0

 46
1  46

2

GAS MARKER

86
8.6

6
TC

86
8.0

8
GU

86
8.4

4
TC

86
7.9

0
GU

86
8.2

2
TC

86
7.6

8
GU

86
8.0

6
TC

CA
TC

H 
BA

SI
N

RI
M 

86
7.5

1

86
7.4

3
TC

86
6.9

4
GU

86
6.9

1
GU

86
7.3

7
TC

86
7.2

8
TC

86
6.8

1
GU

86
7.1

4
TC

CA
TC

H 
BA

SI
N

RI
M 

86
6.6

6

86
7.3

2
TC

86
6.8

3
GU

86
6.8

5
GU

86
7.3

2
TC

86
7.0

7
TC

86
6.5

9
GU

EL
EV

AT
IO

N 
86

9.5
0

NA
VD

 88
 D

AT
UM

HY
DR

AN
T

FG
 86

6.9
5

86
6.6

9
TC

86
6.2

2
GU

86
6.4

6
TC

86
5.9

8
GUCA

TC
H 

BA
SI

N
RI

M 
86

5.8
7

86
6.5

0
TC

86
6.0

3
GU

ST
OR

M 
MH

RI
M 

86
6.5

2

86
7.4

2
86

7.4
0

86
7.2

5
86

7.1
2

ST
OR

M 
MH

RI
M 

86
6.9

6

86
7.3

3
86

7.7
1

SA
NI

TA
RY

 M
H

RI
M 

86
7.9

5

ST
OR

M 
MH

RI
M 

86
7.9

1

86
8.1

6

SA
NI

TA
RY

 M
H

86
8.5

8

86
8.0

1
GU 86

8.5
6

TC

86
9.2

0

86
9.2

1

86
7.8

9
GU

86
8.4

2
TC

86
8.2

9

86
8.3

0
86

8.2
0

TC
86

7.6
8

GU

ST
OP

 B
OX

RI
M 

86
8.1

2

CA
TC

H 
BA

SI
N

RI
M 

86
7.6

3

86
8.0

6

86
8.1

2

HY
DR

AN
T

FG
 86

8.0
1

86
7.3

4
GU

86
7.8

4
TC

86
8.0

1
86

7.6
9

86
7.4

7
TC

86
6.9

8
GU

86
7.0

9
TC

CA
TC

H 
BA

SI
N

RI
M 

86
6.6

2

86
7.5

0

86
7.5

9

86
7.6

8

86
7.3

5
TC

86
6.8

6
GU

86
7.1

4
GU

86
7.6

2
TC

86
8.0

2

86
8.1

3
86

8.5
3

86
8.4

0

86
7.8

9
TC

86
7.4

1
GU

86
8.5

8

86
8.6

8
86

8.8
0

86
8.7

2

86
8.2

8
TC

86
7.7

6
GU

86
9.0

4

86
8.9

4

86
8.5

8
TC

86
8.0

2
GU

86
5.6

9

86
2.2

4

86
2.8

3 86
5.3

1

ST
OP

 B
OX

RI
M 

86
8.1

0

86
6.6

0

86
6.1

8
86

5.5
7

867.68

86
7.1

4

86
7.2

4

86
6.4

3

86
5.8

2

86
6.2

3

86
6.5

0

86
5.8

4

863.67 TC
863.22 GU

86
5.0

8

863.14 TC 863.09

86
3.7

9
TC

86
3.3

7
GU

863.89
TC

863.46
GU

86
6.4

1

86
5.8

6

86
5.9

9

86
8.3

3

86
8.0

6

86
3.8

1
86

3.9
9

86
3.8

8

859
.32

85
8.7

0

86
0.8

5
86

2.4
4

86
2.9

4

10
"P

IN
E 

/no
tag

86
5.6

5

86
5.3

2

ELEC

EL
EC

TR
IC

 M
ET

ER

86
5.2

2
86

5.2
4

86
5.5

1

86
5.3

4

86
5.2

2
86

4.8
2

86
5.8

6
86

6.7
8

86
6.8

8

86
5.0

5

865.62 865.64

865.61 865.52

F.
F.

 86
3.9

3

86
5.5

4

86
5.5

6

86
5.7

2
86

7.0
7

867.53

86
7.3

0
86

5.6
2

86
5.3

48
66

.98

86
7.0

6
86

5.5
386

6.9
6

865.35

86
5.5

2 86
5.4

8

F.
F.

 86
6.7

5

86
6.1

1

865.52
865.51865.43

865.43
865.54

865.35865.22

86
7.3

6

86
7.0

3
86

7.2
2

86
7.4

5
86

7.4
0

86
6.9

2

86
7.6

5
F.

F.
 86

8.4
2

867.40
867.50867.60

867.49

86
7.0

6

86
7.1

6

F.
F.

 86
8.0

3

F.
F.

 86
7.6

8

F.
F.

 86
7.6

8

867.72

86
7.6

3

867.61

86
7.2

5

86
7.2

7
86

7.2
2

86
6.6

6

86
6.3

2

P 86
7.5

0
86

7.0
5

86
7.6

1
86

7.3
0

867.69

867.41 86
6.9

1

86
7.7

486
7.5

9

867.74

867.41868.17

F.
F.

 86
7.5

8
F.

F.
 86

7.6
5 86

7.6
5

86
4.5

3
TC

86
4.1

2
GU

864.57

86
4.1

8

86
4.7

7
86

4.3
4

86
3.7

1
86

2.1
6

86
4.6

5

86
6.3

1

86
7.0

2

86
6.9

4

86
6.7

8 86
6.7

7 86
5.9

5 86
5.0

1
86

5.0
8

86
6.1

5

86
6.8

4

86
6.6

0
86

6.5
5 86

6.1
6

86
6.6

1
86

6.2
1 86

6.4
1

86
5.9

8
86

5.7
0

86
5.8

8

86
6.5

1

86
5.9

2

86
5.1

3
86

5.1
786

5.5
486

5.5
5

86
5.7

9

86
5.6

9
86

5.4
7

86
5.2

7

86
5.3

6

86
5.1

3

86
4.6

5

86
4.9

2

86
5.1

5

86
5.1

7

86
4.7

1
86

4.6
9

86
3.8

9

86
4.0

3865.20

86
5.1

7

86
5.1

2

86
4.9

6

86
5.2

186
5.0

3
86

5.0
5

86
4.9

2
86

5.0
7

86
5.2

3
86

5.1
8

86
5.2

2
86

5.4
5

86
5.2

2
86

5.3
0

86
5.3

6

86
5.3

6

86
5.5

8

86
5.5

9
86

5.6
9

86
5.5

286
5.7

5

86
6.0

0

86
5.8

3
86

5.8
8

86
5.7

1

86
5.4

3
86

5.8
8

86
6.0

8

86
6.0

1

86
6.2

5

86
6.4

2

86
5.9

5

86
5.9

4

86
5.4

2

86
5.4

486
5.7

4
86

6.0
2

86
5.5

0

86
5.6

5

86
6.0

1

86
6.1

3

86
6.8

5

867.34

86
6.0

5

86
6.5

4

867.53

86
6.3

9

867.4086
6.8

0

86
6.9

2

867.14

86
6.8

7

86
7.0

6

86
7.1

5

86
7.4

5

86
7.8

0

867.58 86
7.8

1

86
7.5

2

86
7.3

3
86

7.6
3

86
7.7

6

86
8.0

6
86

7.9
6

86
7.6

7

867.97

86
7.8

0
86

7.4
1

86
7.6

9

86
7.2

0

86
6.9

6

86
6.9

9

86
6.6

3
86

6.1
1

86
6.8

9

86
6.1

2

86
6.3

6

86
5.9

2
86

6.0
7

86
6.6

1
86

6.7
0

86
6.1

2
86

6.0
7

86
6.8

7

86
6.4

2
86

6.4
9

86
6.8

7

86
6.4

3
86

6.3
6

86
6.0

7

86
6.0

4

86
6.6

2

86
5.9

6

86
5.7

5
86

5.6
4

86
5.6

4

86
6.6

1

86
5.8

5

86
5.8

0
86

5.8
5

86
6.1

3
86

5.9
5

86
6.3

5

86
6.1

5

86
6.3

686
9.1

8

86
6.6

4
86

6.3
4

86
6.2

0

86
6.2

1

86
6.2

6

86
6.4

2

86
6.0

7
86

6.1
9

86
6.4

8

86
6.4

4
86

6.3
9

86
6.5

4

86
6.2

5
86

6.7
7

86
6.9

3

86
5.9

5

86
6.0

5
86

2.3
2

86
1.1

0

86
1.5

4

86
4.3

0
86

4.2
0

TC
86

4.0
4

GU 86
4.1

9
TC

S0
0°

02
'20

"E
 39

9.9
5' 

(R
&M

)

N89°57'40"E 331.17' (R&M)

S89°57'40"W 1317.97' (R&M)

S89°57'40"W 331.06' (R&M)

L =
 16

.71
'(R

&M
)

R 
= 

39
5.0

0'(
R&

M)
D

  =
 2°

25
'26

"(R
&M

)
CH

D.
 B

RG
 =

N0
1°

12
'44

"E
16

.71
'(R

&M
)

N0
0°

00
'00

"E
 35

9.2
9' 

(R
&M

)

D
  =

 3°
28

'39
"(R

&M
)

CH
D.

 B
RG

 =
N0

1°
44

'19
"W

23
.97

'(R
&M

)

N89°57'40"E 353.13' (M)
WEST 351.00' (R)

PA
RC

EL
 1

ST
ST

ST
ST

ST.

C
E

N
T

R
A

L
 
P

A
R

K
 
D

R
.
 
(
9

0
'
 
W

I
D

E
)

PU
BL

IC
LY

 D
ED

IC
AT

ED

AS
PH

AL
T 

PA
VE

ME
NT

 W
/ C

ON
C.

 C
UR

B

CB

CB
CB CB

CB

MH

MH
MH

MH

MH

HY
D

HY
D

P.
O.

B.
PA

RC
EL

 1

P.
O.

B.
 P

AR
CE

LS
 2 

& 
3

FI
FI

FIFI
FI

FI

FI
FI FI

EX
. D

EC
K

EM

UP

FM
ON

IR
ON

 F
EN

CE

STM

12
" S

TM

18" STM

12" STM

24
" S

TM

STM 12" STM

8" SANSAN

SA
N

SA
N

24
" S

TM

EX. GRAVEL

SB
SB

FM
ON

AS
PH

AS
PH

RET. WALL

EX
. D

EC
K

EX
. G

RA
VE

L

METAL BARN

EX. C.L. FENCE

18
.4'

5.9'

1.4
'

17.0'18
.7'

26.4'

0.5
'

24.8'

SH
ED

22
'X

8'

25.3'

25.0'

59.4'

59.6'

23
.8'

88
.6'

34
.6'

30
.1'

TA
X 

ID
: 3

3-
02

-0
2-

22
-2

52
-0

03

EX
. P

OO
L

EX
. C

ON
C.

EX
. C

.L.
 F

EN
CE

GA
R

EX
. S

TE
P

16
22

 W
. G

RA
ND

 R
IV

ER
 A

VE
.

EX
. C

ON
C. EX

. D
EC

K

W
ET

LA
ND

 A
RE

A 
"B

"
0.0

1 A
CR

ES

W
ET

LA
ND

 A
RE

A 
"C

"
0.0

4 A
CR

ES

EX
. S

HE
D

EX
. C

.L.
 F

EN
CE

ZO
NE

D 
C-

2

60
' S

ET
BA

CK
(S

CR
EE

NI
NG

 R
EQ

UI
RE

D)

60' SETBACK
(SCREENING REQUIRED)

15' SETBACK

85
' S

ET
BA

CK
 F

RO
M ℄

60' SETBACK
(SCREENING REQUIRED)

 A
23

 A
22

 A
21

 A
20  A

19

 A
18

 A
17

 A
16

 A
15

 A
14

 A
13

 A
12 A
11

 A
10

MATCHLINE

MATCHLINE

ZONED RA

ZO
NE

D 
RA

W
ET

LA
ND

 A
RE

A 
"D

"
0.0

9 A
CR

ES

B2

B3

B1

B1
.5

B4 B1
0

C1

C2 C3

C4

C5

C6

D5
D6

D7

D1

D2

D3 D4

X
X

X
X

X
X

X

EX
. M

ET
AL

 B
AR

N

SS
SS

SS

OH OH OH OH

OH

OH

OH

OH

ST

ST
ST

ST
ST

ST

ST

ST
ST

ST
ST

ST
ST

ST
ST

ST
ST

E
X

I
S

T
I
N

G
 
B

U
I
L

D
I
N

G

EX
. C

ON
C.

 W
AL

K
EX

. C
ON

C.
 W

AL
K

G

G

G

W
ET

LA
ND

 A
RE

A 
"A

"
0.2

6 A
CR

ES

EX
. H

OU
SE

865

864

864

86
6

866

86
6

866

867

867

868

86
8

86
5 86

5

865

86
5

865

86
3

86
3

864

86
4

86
4

86
6

866

86
6 866

866

86
7

86
7

86
7

86
7

86
7

86
7

867
867

867

86
7

86
8

86
8

86
8

86
8

86
8

86
8

86
0

86
5

861

862

863

86
4

866

865

86
5

40' SETBACK
(WITH LANDSCAPE BUFFER)

40
' S

ET
BA

CK
(W

IT
H 

LA
ND

SC
AP

E 
BU

FF
ER

)

40' SETBACK
(WITH LANDSCAPE BUFFER)

L
E

G
A

L
 
D

E
S

C
R

I
P

T
I
O

N

18400890-CP1-SURVEY-BASE.dwg          TA     10/16/2018   12:17

PART OF THE SOUTHEAST 1/4  OF SECTION 22, T4N, R1W,
MERIDIAN TOWNSHIP,  INGHAM COUNTY,  MICHIGAN

FOX NISSAN

Gr
ee

n C
as

tle
 P

ro
pe

rtie
s, 

LL
C

At
tn:

 C
oli

n S
ch

ief
ler

Su
ite

 80
0 -

 20
0 O

tta
wa

 A
ve

nu
e N

W
Gr

an
d R

ap
ids

, M
I 4

95
03

Tit
le:

Su
bm

itte
d f

or
 R

ev
iew

V.
 D

ate
:10

.16
.18

Dr
aw

n:T
A

Ch
ec

ke
d:T

A/
JG

S.
 D

ate
:10

.16
.18

1614 & 1622 W. Grand River Avenue

AN
N 

AR
BO

R
CH

IC
AG

O
CO

LU
M

BU
S

HO
LL

AN
D

IN
DI

AN
AP

O
LI

S
ST

. L
O

UI
S

21
7 G

ra
nd

vil
le 

Av
e.,

 S
uit

e 3
02

Gr
an

d R
ap

ids
, M

I 4
95

03
Ph

on
e: 

61
6.5

75
.51

90

G
RA

ND
 R

AP
ID

S

18
40

08
90

©
 20

18 
Ne

de
rve

ld,
 In

c.

ww
w.

ne
de

rve
ld.

co
m

80
0.2

22
.18

68

S
T

A
M

P
:

S
H

E
E

T
 
N

O
:

R
E

V
I
S

I
O

N
S

:

P
R

E
P

A
R

E
D

 
F

O
R

:

La
nd

 P
lan

nin
g

La
nd

sc
ap

e A
rch

ite
ctu

re
Ci

vil
 E

ng
ine

er
ing

La
nd

 S
ur

ve
yin

g
En

vir
on

me
nta

l C
on

su
ltin

g
Hi

gh
 D

efi
nit

ion
 S

ca
nn

ing
Fo

re
ns

ic 
En

gin
ee

rin
g

Fir
e I

nv
es

tig
ati

on

Ex
pe

rie
nc

e .
 . .

 th
e D

iffe
re

nc
e

P
R

O
J
E

C
T

 
N

O
:

T
IM

M
 E
.

A
P
P
L
E
T
O
N

E
N

G
I
N

E
E

R

S

T

A

T

E

O

F
M

I
C

H

I
G

A

N

L
IC

E

N

S

E

D

P

R

O

F

E

S
S

I
O

N

A

L

E

N

G

I

N

E

E
R

N
o

.

4
2

5
6

4

C
-
2
0
3

Existing Conditions & Removal Plan

S
C

A
L

E
:
 
1
"
 
=

 
3
0
'

0'
15

'
30

'
60

'

M2
2-

21
 C

OM
 A

T 
PT

 11
23

 3/
4 F

T 
W

 O
F 

E 
1/4

 P
OS

T 
OF

 S
EC

 22
 - 

W
 14

5 F
T 

- S
 T

O 
CE

N 
OF

US
-1

6 H
W

Y 
- E

'LY
 A

LO
NG

 C
EN

 O
F 

SA
ID

 H
W

Y 
TO

 P
T 

DU
E 

S 
OF

 B
EG

 - 
N 

TO
 B

EG
 O

N 
SE

1/4
 O

F 
SE

C 
22

, T
4N

 R
1W

 - 
2.4

25
 A

.

UT
ILI

TY
 L

OC
AT

IO
NS

 A
RE

 D
ER

IV
ED

 F
RO

M 
AC

TU
AL

 M
EA

SU
RE

ME
NT

S 
OR

AV
AI

LA
BL

E 
RE

CO
RD

S.
  

TH
EY

 S
HO

UL
D 

NO
T 

BE
 I

NT
ER

PR
ET

ED
 T

O 
BE

EX
AC

T 
LO

CA
TI

ON
S 

NO
R 

SH
OU

LD
 IT

 B
E 

AS
SU

ME
D 

TH
AT

 T
HE

Y 
AR

E 
TH

E
ON

LY
 U

TI
LIT

IE
S 

IN
 T

HI
S 

AR
EA

.

NO
TE

:
EX

IS
TI

NG
 U

TI
LIT

IE
S 

AN
D 

SE
RV

IC
E 

LIN
ES

 ID
EN

TI
FI

ED
 A

S 
"(P

LA
N)

" 
W

ER
E

OB
TA

IN
ED

 
FR

OM
 

AV
AI

LA
BL

E 
AS

-B
UI

LT
 

RE
CO

RD
 

DR
AW

IN
GS

. 
 

TH
E

CO
NT

RA
CT

OR
 S

HA
LL

 V
ER

IF
Y 

TH
E 

LO
CA

TI
ON

, D
EP

TH
 A

ND
 S

TA
TU

S 
OF

 A
LL

UT
ILI

TI
ES

 A
ND

 S
ER

VI
CE

 LI
NE

S 
PR

IO
R 

TO
 N

EW
 C

ON
NE

CT
IO

NS
.

Kn
ow

 w
ha

t's
 b

el
ow

.
    

CA
LL

 b
ef

or
e y

ou
 d

ig
.

Ai
r C

on
dit

ion
er

Be
nc

hm
ar

k

Ca
tch

 B
as

in 
- R

ou
nd

Ca
tch

 B
as

in 
- S

qu
ar

e

Cl
ea

no
ut

Ca
ble

 R
ise

r
El

ec
tric

 M
an

ho
le

El
ec

tric
 M

ete
r

El
ec

tric
 R

ise
r

Fla
g

Ga
s M

ete
r

Ga
s R

ise
r

Ga
s V

alv
e

Hy
dr

an
t

Lig
ht 

Po
le

Ma
ilb

ox

Ma
nh

ole
Ph

on
e R

ise
r

St
op

 B
ox

Si
gn

Sa
nit

ar
y S

ew
er

 M
an

ho
le

St
or

mw
ate

r M
an

ho
le

Te
lep

ho
ne

 M
an

ho
le

Tr
an

sfo
rm

er

Ut
ilit

y P
ole

Un
de

rg
ro

un
d G

as
 M

ar
ke

r
W

ate
r M

ete
r

W
ate

r M
an

ho
le

W
ate

r V
alv

e

W
ate

r W
ell

Ca
ble

 T
V

El
ec

tric
Ov

er
he

ad
 E

lec
tric

Un
de

rg
ro

un
d E

lec
tric

Fib
er

 O
pti

c
Ga

s
Ov

er
he

ad
 U

tili
ty

Sa
nit

ar
y

St
or

m
Te

lep
ho

ne
Ov

er
he

ad
 T

ele
ph

on
e

Un
de

rg
ro

un
d T

ele
ph

on
e

W
ate

rm
ain

Fe
nc

e
Gu

ar
d R

ail
Zo

nin
g S

etb
ac

k
Tr

ee

Ex
. G

ra
de

 C
on

tou
r

As
ph

alt

Co
nc

re
te

Gr
av

el

Bu
ild

ing

C E OE UE FO G OH SS ST T OT UT W

54
3

L
E

G
E

N
D

1)
TH

E 
CO

NT
RA

CT
OR

 S
HA

LL
 N

OT
IF

Y 
TH

E 
UT

ILI
TY

 C
OM

PA
NI

ES
 A

T 
LE

AS
T 

TH
RE

E 
W

EE
KS

 P
RI

OR
 T

O 
TH

E 
BE

GI
NN

IN
G 

OF
CO

NS
TR

UC
TI

ON
 O

PE
RA

TI
ON

S.
 T

HE
RE

 A
RE

 E
XI

ST
IN

G 
UN

DE
RG

RO
UN

D 
UT

ILI
TI

ES
 W

HI
CH

 C
RO

SS
 T

HE
 P

RO
PO

SE
D

RE
PL

AC
EM

EN
T 

W
OR

K 
AR

EA
S.

 A
LT

HO
UG

H 
TH

EI
R 

EX
AC

T 
LO

CA
TI

ON
 C

AN
NO

T 
BE

 D
ET

ER
MI

NE
D,

 IT
 IS

 K
NO

W
N 

TH
ES

E 
UT

ILI
TI

ES
AR

E 
LO

CA
TE

D 
W

HE
RE

 D
IG

GI
NG

 IS
 R

EQ
UI

RE
D.

 T
HE

 C
ON

TR
AC

TO
R 

SH
AL

L C
ON

DU
CT

 T
HE

 R
EQ

UI
RE

D 
EX

CA
VA

TI
ON

 IN
 T

HE
SE

AR
EA

S 
W

IT
H 

EX
TR

EM
E 

CA
UT

IO
N.

2)
AL

L E
XI

ST
IN

G 
UT

ILI
TY

 IN
FO

RM
AT

IO
N 

SH
OW

N 
IS

 T
AK

EN
 F

RO
M 

EX
IS

TI
NG

 R
EC

OR
DS

, A
ND

 F
IE

LD
 V

ER
IF

IE
D 

W
HE

RE
 A

CC
ES

SI
BL

E
ON

LY
. IN

FO
RM

AT
IO

N 
OB

TA
IN

ED
 F

RO
M 

EX
IS

TI
NG

 R
EC

OR
DS

 M
AY

 N
OT

 B
E 

CO
MP

LE
TE

 O
R 

AC
CU

RA
TE

. T
HE

 LO
CA

TI
ON

 O
F 

AL
L

EX
IS

TI
NG

 U
TI

LIT
IE

S 
SH

OW
N 

ON
 T

HI
S 

PL
AN

 H
AV

E 
BE

EN
 D

ET
ER

MI
NE

D 
FR

OM
 T

HE
 B

ES
T 

IN
FO

RM
AT

IO
N 

AV
AI

LA
BL

E 
AN

D 
AR

E
GI

VE
N 

FO
R 

TH
E 

CO
NV

EN
IE

NC
E 

OF
 T

HE
 C

ON
TR

AC
TO

R.
 T

HE
 E

NG
IN

EE
R 

AS
SU

ME
S 

NO
 R

ES
PO

NS
IB

ILI
TY

 F
OR

 T
HE

IR
AC

CU
RA

CY
. T

HE
 C

ON
TR

AC
TO

R 
SH

AL
L F

IE
LD

 V
ER

IF
Y 

FO
R 

AC
CU

RA
CY

, L
OC

AT
IO

N 
AN

D 
CO

ND
IT

IO
N.

3)
BE

FO
RE

 A
NY

 W
OR

K 
IS

 S
TA

RT
ED

 O
N 

TH
E 

PR
OJ

EC
T 

AN
D 

AG
AI

N 
BE

FO
RE

 F
IN

AL
 A

CC
EP

TA
NC

E 
BY

 T
HE

 C
IT

Y 
AN

D 
BY

 T
HE

OW
NE

R,
 R

EP
RE

SE
NT

AT
IV

ES
 O

F 
TH

E 
CI

TY
, T

HE
 O

W
NE

R 
AN

D 
TH

E 
CO

NT
RA

CT
OR

 S
HA

LL
 M

AK
E 

AN
 IN

SP
EC

TI
ON

 O
F 

TH
E

EX
IS

TI
NG

 S
EW

ER
S 

W
IT

HI
N 

TH
E 

W
OR

K 
LIM

IT
S 

W
HI

CH
 A

RE
 T

O 
RE

MA
IN

 IN
 S

ER
VI

CE
 A

ND
 W

HI
CH

 M
AY

 B
E 

AF
FE

CT
ED

 B
Y 

TH
E

W
OR

K.
 T

HE
 C

ON
DI

TI
ON

 O
F 

TH
E 

EX
IS

TI
NG

 U
TI

LIT
IE

S 
AN

D 
TH

EI
R 

AP
PU

RT
EN

AN
CE

S 
SH

AL
L B

E 
DE

TE
RM

IN
ED

 F
RO

M 
FI

EL
D

OB
SE

RV
AT

IO
NS

 A
ND

 E
XI

ST
IN

G 
VI

DE
O 

TA
PE

S.
 R

EC
OR

DS
 O

F 
TH

E 
IN

SP
EC

TI
ON

S 
SH

AL
L B

E 
KE

PT
 IN

 W
RI

TI
NG

 B
Y 

TH
E

CO
NT

RA
CT

OR
.

4)
TH

E 
CO

NT
RA

CT
OR

 IS
 R

ES
PO

NS
IB

LE
 F

OR
 O

BT
AI

NI
NG

 A
LL

 P
ER

MI
TS

 R
EQ

UI
RE

D 
FO

R 
DE

MO
LIT

IO
N 

W
OR

K.
5)

AL
L E

XI
ST

IN
G 

UT
ILI

TI
ES

, S
EW

ER
S 

AN
D 

W
AT

ER
 LI

NE
S 

AR
E 

TO
 R

EM
AI

N 
UN

DI
ST

UR
BE

D 
UN

LE
SS

 O
TH

ER
W

IS
E 

NO
TE

D 
ON

 T
HE

PL
AN

S.
 T

HE
 C

ON
TR

AC
TO

R 
SH

AL
L C

ON
TA

CT
 A

ND
 C

OO
RD

IN
AT

E 
W

IT
H 

AL
L A

PP
LIC

AB
LE

 U
TI

LIT
Y 

CO
MP

AN
IE

S,
 M

UN
IC

IP
AL

IT
IE

S
AN

D 
AG

EN
CI

ES
 B

EF
OR

E 
CO

MM
EN

CI
NG

 A
NY

 W
OR

K.
6)

TH
E 

CO
NT

RA
CT

OR
 S

HA
LL

 C
OO

RD
IN

AT
E 

W
IT

H 
AL

L U
TI

LIT
Y 

CO
MP

AN
IE

S 
RE

GA
RD

IN
G 

RE
MO

VA
L O

F 
EX

IS
TI

NG
 P

OL
ES

,
OV

ER
HE

AD
 W

IR
ES

, U
ND

ER
GR

OU
ND

 U
TI

LIT
IE

S,
 G

UY
 W

IR
ES

, G
AS

 LI
NE

S,
 E

TC
. A

LL
 A

DJ
US

TM
EN

T 
OR

 R
EC

ON
ST

RU
CT

IO
N 

W
OR

K,
EX

CE
PT

 F
OR

 T
HO

SE
 S

TR
UC

TU
RE

S 
OT

HE
RW

IS
E 

NO
TE

D 
ON

 T
HE

 P
LA

NS
, S

HA
LL

 B
E 

PE
RF

OR
ME

D 
BY

 T
HE

 C
ON

TR
AC

TO
R.

EX
IS

TI
NG

 A
PP

UR
TE

NA
NC

ES
 S

UC
H 

AS
 U

TI
LIT

Y 
PO

LE
S 

AN
D 

VA
LV

ES
 B

OX
 S

HA
LL

 N
OT

 B
E 

DI
ST

UR
BE

D 
BY

 T
HE

 C
ON

TR
AC

TO
R

DU
RI

NG
 C

ON
ST

RU
CT

IO
N.

7)
TH

E 
CO

NT
RA

CT
OR

 S
HA

LL
 M

AI
NT

AI
N 

EX
IS

TI
NG

 U
TI

LIT
Y 

SE
RV

IC
E 

TO
 A

LL
 A

DJ
OI

NI
NG

 P
RO

PE
RT

IE
S.

8)
AL

L D
EB

RI
S 

SH
AL

L B
E 

RE
MO

VE
D 

FR
OM

 T
HE

 S
IT

E,
 A

ND
 N

O 
ST

OC
KP

ILI
NG

 O
N 

SI
TE

 S
HA

LL
 B

E 
AL

LO
W

ED
 U

NL
ES

S 
AP

PR
OV

ED
 B

Y
TH

E 
OW

NE
R 

OR
 T

HE
IR

 R
EP

RE
SE

NT
AT

IV
ES

.
9)

TH
E 

CO
NT

RA
CT

OR
 S

HA
LL

 LI
MI

T 
SA

W
CU

T 
AN

D 
PA

VE
ME

NT
 R

EM
OV

AL
 T

O 
ON

LY
 T

HO
SE

 A
RE

AS
 W

HE
RE

 R
EQ

UI
RE

D 
OR

 A
S

SH
OW

N.
 A

LL
 P

AV
EM

EN
TS

 T
O 

BE
 R

EM
OV

ED
 S

HA
LL

 B
E 

SA
W

CU
T 

AN
D 

RE
MO

VE
D 

TO
 F

UL
L D

EP
TH

 A
T 

AL
L P

AV
EM

EN
T 

LIM
IT

S 
OR

EX
IS

TI
NG

 JO
IN

TS
. IF

 A
NY

 D
AM

AG
E 

IS
 IN

CU
RR

ED
 T

O 
AN

Y 
OF

 T
HE

 S
UR

RO
UN

DI
NG

 P
AV

EM
EN

T,
 T

HE
 C

ON
TR

AC
TO

R 
SH

AL
L B

E
RE

SP
ON

SI
BL

E 
FO

R 
IT

S 
RE

MO
VA

L A
ND

 R
EP

AI
R 

AT
 N

O 
AD

DI
TI

ON
AL

 C
OS

T 
TO

 A
NY

ON
E 

EL
SE

, IN
CL

UD
IN

G 
TH

E 
CI

TY
 O

R 
OW

NE
R.

10
)A

SP
HA

LT
 A

RE
AS

 S
HO

W
N 

TO
 B

E 
SA

W
CU

T 
AN

D 
RE

MO
VE

D 
FU

LL
 D

EP
TH

 A
RE

 A
CT

UA
L F

AC
E 

OF
 P

RO
PO

SE
D 

CU
RB

S.
 IT

 W
ILL

 B
E

NE
CE

SS
AR

Y 
TO

 M
AK

E 
OF

F-
SE

T 
SA

W
CU

TS
 T

O 
PR

OV
ID

E 
CL

EA
RA

NC
E 

FO
R 

PR
OP

OS
ED

 C
UR

BS
: T

HE
 C

ON
TR

AC
TO

R 
SH

AL
L

DE
TE

RM
IN

E 
TH

E 
AM

OU
NT

 O
F 

OF
F-

SE
T 

NE
CE

SS
AR

Y 
TO

 C
ON

ST
RU

CT
 T

HE
 P

RO
PO

SE
D 

CU
RB

S.
 A

DD
IT

IO
NA

L C
UT

S 
MA

Y 
BE

DE
SI

RE
D 

TO
 F

AC
ILI

TA
TE

 T
HE

 R
EM

OV
AL

 O
F 

TH
E 

EX
IS

TI
NG

 P
AV

EM
EN

T,
 B

UT
 T

HE
RE

 W
ILL

 B
E 

NO
 E

XT
RA

 P
AY

ME
NT

 F
OR

AD
DI

TI
ON

AL
 C

UT
S.

 P
AV

EM
EN

T 
SH

AL
L B

E 
RE

MO
VE

D 
W

IT
HO

UT
 D

AM
AG

IN
G 

OR
 U

ND
ER

MI
NI

NG
 T

HE
 R

EM
AI

NI
NG

 P
AV

EM
EN

T.
 IF

AD
JA

CE
NT

 P
AV

EM
EN

T 
IS

 D
AM

AG
ED

, T
HE

 C
ON

TR
AC

TO
R 

SH
AL

L M
AK

E 
AD

DI
TI

ON
AL

 F
UL

L D
EP

TH
 S

AW
CU

TS
 A

ND
 R

EM
OV

E 
TH

E
DA

MA
GE

 A
RE

AS
 A

S 
NE

CE
SS

AR
Y.

11
)A

LL
 P

AV
EM

EN
T 

RE
MO

VA
L A

RE
AS

 S
HA

LL
 B

E 
FU

LL
 P

AV
EM

EN
T 

CR
OS

S-
SE

CT
IO

N 
RE

MO
VA

L D
OW

N 
TO

 N
AT

IV
E 

SO
IL 

LA
YE

R 
IN

AC
CO

RD
AN

CE
 W

IT
H 

TH
E 

GE
OT

EC
HN

IC
AL

 R
EP

OR
T.

12
)A

LL
 T

RE
ES

 W
IT

HI
N 

TH
E 

GR
AD

IN
G 

LIM
IT

S 
SH

AL
L B

E 
RE

MO
VE

D 
UN

LE
SS

 O
TH

ER
W

IS
E 

NO
TE

D.

R
E

M
O

V
A

L
 
/
 
D

E
M

O
L

I
T

I
O

N
 
N

O
T

E
S

RE
MO

VE
 E

XI
ST

IN
G 

CO
NC

RE
TE

 D
RI

VE

2

RE
MO

VE
 E

XI
ST

IN
G 

HO
US

E/
GA

RA
GE

/S
HE

D
3

RE
MO

VE
 E

X.
 W

AL
L

1

R
E

M
O

V
A

L
 
/
 
D

E
M

O
L

I
T

I
O

N
 
N

O
T

E
S

4

RE
MO

VE
 E

XI
ST

IN
G 

PO
OL

/P
AT

IO
5

RE
MO

VE
 E

XI
ST

IN
G 

W
AL

L
6

RE
MO

VE
 E

XI
ST

IN
G 

GR
AV

EL
 D

RI
VE

2

3

3

RE
MO

VE
 E

XI
ST

IN
G 

FE
NC

E
7

7

5



W

W

W

B
E

N
C

H
M

A
R

K

md
ot 

ho
riz

 co
ntr

ol 
dis

c 3
32

02
EL

EV
AT

IO
N 

86
9.2

6
NA

VD
 88

 D
AT

UM

PA
RC

EL
 1

PA
RC

EL
 2

PA
RC

EL
 3

G

R

A

N

D

 
R

I
V

E

R

 
A

V

E

N

U

E

 
(

M

-

4

3

)

 
(

1

0

0

'
 
W

I
D

E

)

C
E

N
T

R
A

L
 
P

A
R

K
 
D

R
.
 
(
9
0

'
 
W

I
D

E
)

MH

MH
MH

MH

OH

OH

OH

OH

OH

OH

OH
OH

OH

UP

8" SANSAN

SA
N

SA
N

10" SAN

10" SAN

10" SAN

10" SAN

10
" S

AN

10" SAN
10" SAN

10
" S

AN
10

" S
AN

SAN

EX. 2" G

EX
. 2

" G
EX

. 2
" G

EX
. C

.L.
 F

EN
CE

EX
. W

AL
L

EX. C.L. FENCE

EX
. C

.L.
 F

EN
CE

SA
N 

LIF
T

ST
AT

IO
N

EX. OH WIRES

EX. OH WIRES

EX. OH WIRESEASEMENT FOR ROAD RIGHT-OF-WAY

PURPOSES TO COUNTY OF INGHAM

LIBER 11, MR PAGE 101, LIBER 11 MR

PAGE 20, LIBER 11, PAGE 153

PEDESTRIAN/BICYCLE PATHWAY EASEMENT

TO MERIDIAN TOWNSHIP LIBER 2822, PAGE 174

TA
X 

ID
: 3

3-
02

-0
2-

22
-4

26
-0

01

TA
X 

ID
: 3

3-
02

-0
2-

22
-4

01
-0

03

TA
X 

ID
: 3

3-
02

-0
2-

22
-2

52
-0

03

OH
OH

OH
OH

OH
OH

OH

EX. 10" GAS

EX. 10" GAS

EX. 10" G

EX. UG

EX
. C

.L.
 F

EN
CE

ZO
NE

D 
C-

2

ZO
NE

D 
C-

2

ZO
NE

D 
C-

2

60
' S

ET
BA

CK
(S

CR
EE

NI
NG

 R
EQ

UI
RE

D)

15
' S

ET
BA

CK
60' SETBACK
(SCREENING REQUIRED)

100' SETBACK FROM ℄

15
' S

ET
BA

CK

15' SETBACK

85
' S

ET
BA

CK
 F

RO
M ℄

60' SETBACK
(SCREENING REQUIRED)

ZO
NE

D 
PO

ZONED RA

ZO
NE

D 
C-

2

ZO
NE

D 
RA

X
X

X
X

SS
SS

SS
SS

SS
SS

SS
SS

SS

SS

SS

SS
SS

SS
SS

SS
SS

SS
SS

SS
SS

SS
SS

SS
SS

SS
SS

SS
SS

SS

SS

SS

SS

40' WIDE DRAIN EASEMENT TO
UNRUH DRAINAGE DISTRICT
LIBER 1123, PAGE 501

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G
G

G
G

G
G

G

G

G

EX. WALL

C
A

U
T

I
O

N
!

!

EX
IS

T.
 10

" G
AS

 M
AI

N

C
A

U
T

I
O

N
!

!

EX
IS

T.
 2"

 G
AS

 M
AI

N

UT

UT

UT

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G
G

G

G

G

G
G

G

G

G

EX. GAS

EX. OH WIRES

40' WIDE DRAIN EASEMENT TO

UNRUH DRAINAGE DISTRICT

LIBER 1127, PAGE 211

40' SETBACK
(WITH LANDSCAPE BUFFER)

40
' S

ET
BA

CK
(W

IT
H 

LA
ND

SC
AP

E 
BU

FF
ER

)

40' SETBACK
(WITH LANDSCAPE BUFFER)

20' R.O.W. SETBACK
(LANDSCAPE BUFFER)

SE
RV

IC
E 

DR
IV

E

OH
D

OH
D

OH
D

OHD

OH
D

OH
D

OH
D

OH
D

OH
D

OHD OHD

OHD OHD

CAR WASH
CA

NO
PY

PA
RC

EL
 1

PA
RC

EL
 2

PA
RC

EL
 3

G

R

A

N

D

 
R

I
V

E

R

 
A

V

E

N

U

E

 
(

M

-

4

3

)

 
(

1

0

0

'
 
W

I
D

E

)

C
E

N
T

R
A

L
 
P

A
R

K
 
D

R
.
 
(
9
0
'
 
W

I
D

E
)

MH

MH
MH

MH

UP

8" SANSAN

SA
N

SA
N

10" SAN

10" SAN

10" SAN

10" SAN

10
" S

AN

10" SAN
10" SAN

10
" S

AN
10

" S
AN

SA
N

EX. 2" G

EX
. 2

" G
EX

. 2
" G

EX
. C

.L.
 F

EN
CE

EX
. W

AL
L

EX. C.L. FENCE

EX
. C

.L.
 F

EN
CE

SA
N 

LIF
T

ST
AT

IO
N

EX. OH WIRES

EX. OH WIRES

EX. OH WIRES

PEDESTRIAN/BICYCLE PATHWAY EASEMENT

TO MERIDIAN TOWNSHIP LIBER 2822, PAGE 174

TA
X 

ID
: 3

3-
02

-0
2-

22
-4

26
-0

01

TA
X 

ID
: 3

3-
02

-0
2-

22
-4

01
-0

03

TA
X 

ID
: 3

3-
02

-0
2-

22
-2

52
-0

03

OH

EX. 10" GAS

EX. 10" G

EX. UG

EX
. C

.L.
 F

EN
CE

ZO
NE

D 
C-

2

ZO
NE

D 
C-

2

ZO
NE

D 
C-

2

60
' S

ET
BA

CK
(S

CR
EE

NI
NG

 R
EQ

UI
RE

D)

15
' S

ET
BA

CK

60' SETBACK
(SCREENING REQUIRED)

100' SETBACK FROM ℄

15
' S

ET
BA

CK

15' SETBACK

85
' S

ET
BA

CK
 F

RO
M ℄

60' SETBACK
(SCREENING REQUIRED)

ZO
NE

D 
PO

ZONED RA

ZO
NE

D 
C-

2

ZO
NE

D 
RA

SS

SS

SS

EX. WALL

EX. GAS

EX. OH WIRES

40' SETBACK
(WITH LANDSCAPE BUFFER)

40
' S

ET
BA

CK
(W

IT
H 

LA
ND

SC
AP

E 
BU

FF
ER

)

40' SETBACK
(WITH LANDSCAPE BUFFER)

20' R.O.W. SETBACK
(LANDSCAPE BUFFER)

SE
RV

IC
E 

DR
IV

E

OH
D

OH
D

OH
D

OHD

OH
D

OH
D

OH
D

OH
D

OH
D

OHD OHD

OHD OHD

CAR WASH

CA
NO

PY

18400890-PRELIM.dwg          TA     11/8/2018   13:48

Tit
le:

 S
ub

mi
tte

d f
or

 R
ev

iew
V.

 D
ate

:10
.16

.18
Dr

aw
n:T

A
Ch

ec
ke

d:T
A/

JG
S.

 D
ate

:10
.16

.18

CH
IC

AG
O

CO
LU

M
BU

S
G

RA
ND

 R
AP

ID
S

HO
LL

AN
D

IN
DI

AN
AP

O
LI

S
ST

. L
O

UI
S

30
25

 M
ille

r R
d.

An
n A

rb
or

, M
I 4

81
03

Ph
on

e: 
73

4.9
29

.69
63

AN
N 

AR
BO

R

18
40

08
90

©
 20

18 
Ne

de
rve

ld,
 In

c.

ww
w.

ne
de

rve
ld.

co
m

80
0.2

22
.18

68

S
T

A
M

P
:

S
H

E
E

T
 
N

O
:

R
E

V
I
S

I
O

N
S

:

P
R

E
P

A
R

E
D

 
F

O
R

:

La
nd

 P
lan

nin
g

La
nd

sc
ap

e A
rch

ite
ctu

re
Ci

vil
 E

ng
ine

er
ing

La
nd

 S
ur

ve
yin

g
En

vir
on

me
nta

l C
on

su
ltin

g
Hi

gh
 D

efi
nit

ion
 S

ca
nn

ing
Fo

re
ns

ic 
En

gin
ee

rin
g

Fir
e I

nv
es

tig
ati

on

Ex
pe

rie
nc

e .
 . .

 th
e D

iffe
re

nc
e

P
R

O
J
E

C
T

 
N

O
:

 Part of the Southeast Quarter of Section 22, T4N, R1W,
Meridian Township, Ingham County, Michigan

Gr
ee

n C
as

tle
 P

ro
pe

rtie
s, 

LL
C

At
tn:

 C
oli

n S
ch

ief
ler

Su
ite

 80
0-

20
0 O

tta
wa

 A
ve

nu
e N

W
Gr

an
d R

ap
ids

, M
I  4

85
03

T
IM

M
 E
.

A
P
P
L
E
T
O
N

E
N

G
I
N

E
E

R

S

T

A

T

E

O

F
M

I
C

H

I

G

A

N

L
IC

E

N

S

E

D

P

R

O

F

E

S
S

I
O

N

A

L

E

N

G

I

N

E

E
R

N
o

.

4
2

5
6

4

FOX NISSAN

1614 & 1622 W. Grand River Avenue

Tit
le:

 R
ev

ise
d p

er
 T

wp
. C

om
me

nts
V.

 D
ate

:11
.08

.18
Dr

aw
n:T

A
Ch

ec
ke

d:T
A/

JG
S.

 D
ate

:11
.08

.18

C
-
2
0
5

Dimensional Site Plan

G
E

N
E

R
A

L
 
N

O
T

E
S

S
C

A
L

E
:
 
1
"
 
=

 
4
0
'

0'
20

'
40

'
80

'

1)
AL

L D
IM

EN
SI

ON
S 

TO
 C

UR
B 

LIN
E 

AR
E 

TO
 T

HE
 F

AC
E 

OF
 C

UR
B.

2)
AL

L W
OR

K 
W

IT
HI

N 
GR

AN
D 

RI
VE

R 
AV

EN
UE

 R
.O

.W
. W

ILL
 R

EQ
UI

RE
 A

 P
ER

MI
T 

FR
OM

 M
.D

.O
.T

.
3)

AL
L W

OR
K 

W
IT

HI
N 

CE
NT

RA
L P

AR
K 

DR
IV

E 
R.

O.
W

. W
ILL

 R
EQ

UI
RE

 A
 P

ER
MI

T 
FR

OM
 M

ER
ID

IA
N 

TO
W

NS
HI

P
4)

AL
L T

RA
FF

IC
 C

ON
TR

OL
 S

HA
LL

 B
E 

PE
R 

TH
E 

LA
TE

ST
 E

DI
TI

ON
 O

F 
TH

E 
M.

M.
U.

T.
C.

D.

L
E

G
E

N
D

EX
IS

TI
NG

 B
IT

UM
IN

OU
S

EX
IS

TI
NG

 C
ON

CR
ET

E

PR
OP

OS
ED

 B
IT

UM
IN

OU
S

PR
OP

OS
ED

 C
ON

CR
ET

E

P
R

O
P

.

B
U

I
L

D
I
N

G

23
,09

4 S
Q.

FT
.

1 S
TO

RY

SH
AR

ED
 A

CC
ES

S 
DR

IV
E

4' 
W

D.
 B

UI
LD

IN
G 

LA
ND

SC
AP

IN
G(

TY
P.

)

DU
MP

ST
ER

 E
NC

LO
SU

RE

RE
TA

IN
IN

G 
W

AL
L

RE
TA

IN
IN

G 
W

AL
L

60

17

9
9

21
21

21
21

30 30

28

14
14

35

ST
OR

MW
AT

ER
 Q

UA
LIT

Y 
BA

SI
N(

FI
RS

T 
FL

US
H)

EX
. W

ET
LA

ND

EX
. W

ET
LA

ND

24.0'

25
.5'

24
.0'

24
.0'

24
.0'

34.8'

43.9'

24
.0'

40
.0'

24
.0'

40
.0'

29.9'

24
.0'

24
.0'

40
.0'

24
.0'

20.0'

24.0'

40.0'

38.9'

20.0'(TYP.)

9.0
'(T

YP
.)

28.0'

24
.0'

R15.0'

R15.0'

R39.0'R15.
0'

R3
.0'

R10.0'

R15
.0'

R35.0'

R35.0'

R15.0'

R1
5.0

'

R3
5.0

'

20.0'

15.5'

15.5'

R15.0'

R1
5.0

'

94.4'
4.9'

27
.0'

18
8.8

'

96.6'

136.6'

20.0'

30
.2'

100.0'

75.4'

13
9.6

'

143.5'

SC
RE

EN
IN

G 
TR

EE
S

20.0'WETLAND

SETBACK

20.0' WETLAND
SETBACK

R3
5.0

'

24
.0'

20
.0'

15
.5'

R25.0'

R49.0'

70
.5'

71.8'

R2
5.0

'

R25.0'

R25.
0'

11.0'

R15.0'

24.0'

61
.1'

26
2.3

'

PR
OP

. C
UR

B 
& 

GU
TT

ER
(T

YP
.)

PR
OP

. G
RA

VE
L S

HO
UL

DE
R 

ON
 N

OR
TH

ED
GE

(F
OR

 F
UT

UR
E 

EX
PA

NS
IO

N)

L
A

N
D

S
C

A
P

I
N

G
 
N

O
T

E
S

1.
ST

RE
ET

 T
RE

ES
 A

RE
 R

EQ
U

IR
ED

 A
LO

N
G 

AL
L 

PR
IN

CI
PA

L 
AN

D 
AR

TE
RI

AL
 R

O
AD

S 
PE

R 
86

-3
67

.

2.
A 

M
IN

IM
U

M
 4

0 
FO

O
T 

LA
N

DS
CA

PE
 B

U
FF

ER
 A

N
D 

A 
4 

FO
O

T 
VE

RT
IC

AL
 S

CR
EE

N
 S

HA
LL

 B
E 

PR
O

VI
DE

D 
AL

O
N

G 
AL

L
PR

O
PO

SE
D 

PA
RK

IN
G 

LO
TS

 (W
IT

H 
50

 O
R 

M
O

RE
 V

EH
IC

LE
 C

AP
AC

IT
Y)

 A
DJ

AC
EN

T 
TO

 R
ES

ID
EN

TI
AL

LY
 Z

O
N

ED
 L

AN
D.

VE
RT

IC
AL

 S
CR

EE
N

 S
HA

LL
 C

O
N

SI
ST

 O
F 

M
AS

O
N

RY
 W

AL
L,

 P
LA

N
T 

M
AT

ER
IA

L,
 O

R 
LA

N
DS

CA
PE

D 
EA

RT
H 

BE
RM

.

3.
A 

M
IN

IM
U

M
 1

5 
FO

O
T 

GR
EE

N
BE

LT
 S

HA
LL

 B
E 

PR
O

VI
DE

D 
AL

O
N

G 
AL

L 
PR

O
PO

SE
D 

PA
RK

IN
G 

LO
TS

 A
DJ

AC
EN

T 
TO

CO
M

M
ER

CI
AL

LY
 Z

O
N

ED
 L

AN
D

4.
A 

M
IN

IM
U

M
 2

0 
FO

O
T 

GR
EE

N
BE

LT
 A

N
D 

A 
3 

FO
O

T 
VE

RT
IC

AL
 S

CR
EE

N
 S

HA
LL

 B
E 

PR
O

VI
DE

D 
AL

O
N

G 
AL

L 
PR

O
PO

SE
D

PA
RK

IN
G 

LO
TS

 A
DJ

AC
EN

T 
TO

 A
 P

U
BL

IC
 S

TR
EE

T.
 V

ER
TI

CA
L 

SC
RE

EN
 S

HA
LL

 C
O

N
SI

ST
 O

F 
M

AS
O

N
RY

 W
AL

L,
 P

LA
N

T
M

AT
ER

IA
L,

 O
R 

LA
N

DS
CA

PE
D 

EA
RT

H 
BE

RM
.

5.
LA

N
DS

CA
PE

D 
AR

EA
S 

SH
AL

L 
BE

 P
RO

VI
DE

D 
TH

RO
U

GH
O

U
T 

TH
E 

PA
RK

IN
G 

AR
EA

 IN
 T

HE
 A

M
O

U
N

T 
O

F 
20

0 
SF

 P
ER

EV
ER

Y 
TE

N
 (1

0)
 P

AR
KI

N
G 

SP
AC

ES
 (R

EQ
U

IR
ED

 P
ER

IM
ET

ER
 L

AN
DS

CA
PI

N
G 

DO
ES

 N
O

T 
AP

PL
Y 

TO
 A

RE
A.

) A
M

IN
IM

U
M

 O
F 

TW
O

 (2
) C

AN
O

PY
 T

RE
ES

 S
HA

LL
 B

E 
PR

O
VI

DE
D 

FO
R 

EV
ER

Y 
TE

N
 (1

0)
 P

AR
KI

N
G 

SP
AC

ES
.

33
2 

PA
RK

IN
G 

SP
AC

ES
 / 

10
 =

 3
4 

x 
20

0 
SF

 =
 6

,8
00

 S
F 

LA
N

DS
CA

PI
N

G 
RE

Q
'D

.

33
2 

PA
RK

IN
G 

SP
AC

ES
 / 

10
 =

 3
4 

x 
2 

= 
68

 C
AN

O
PY

 T
RE

ES
 R

EQ
'D

.

6.
PA

RK
IN

G 
AR

EA
S 

AN
D 

DR
IV

ES
 S

HA
LL

 B
E 

SE
PA

RA
TE

D 
FR

O
M

 T
HE

 E
XT

ER
IO

R 
W

AL
L 

O
F 

A 
BU

IL
DI

N
G,

 E
XC

LU
DI

N
G

PE
DE

ST
RI

AN
 E

N
TR

AN
CE

S 
O

R 
LO

AD
IN

G 
AR

EA
S,

 B
Y 

A 
LA

N
DS

CA
PE

D 
PL

AN
TI

N
G 

AR
EA

 O
F 

AT
 L

EA
ST

 4
 F

O
O

T 
IN

W
ID

TH
.

7.
LA

N
DS

CA
PE

 M
AI

N
TE

N
AN

CE
 - 

LA
N

DS
CA

PI
N

G 
SH

AL
L 

BE
 M

AI
N

TA
IN

ED
 IN

 G
O

O
D 

CO
N

DI
TI

O
N

 T
O

 P
RE

SE
N

T 
A

HE
AL

TH
Y,

 N
EA

T,
 A

N
D 

O
RD

ER
LY

 A
PP

EA
RA

N
CE

 F
RE

E 
FR

O
M

 R
EF

U
SE

 A
N

D 
DE

BR
IS

.  
AL

L 
U

N
HE

AL
TH

Y 
AN

D 
DE

AD
M

AT
ER

IA
L 

SH
AL

L 
BE

 R
EP

LA
CE

D 
W

IT
HI

N
 T

HI
RT

Y 
(3

0)
 D

AY
S,

 O
R 

AS
 S

O
O

N
 A

S 
W

EA
TH

ER
 P

ER
M

IT
S.

8.
LA

N
DS

CA
PI

N
G 

SU
BS

TI
TU

TI
O

N
 - 

AN
Y 

SU
BS

TI
TU

TI
O

N
S 

O
F 

PL
AN

T 
M

AT
ER

IA
L 

FR
O

M
 A

PP
RO

VE
D 

SI
TE

 P
LA

N
 W

IL
L 

BE
AP

PR
O

VE
D 

BY
 T

HE
 P

LA
N

N
IN

G 
DE

PA
RT

M
EN

T 
PR

IO
R 

TO
 IN

ST
AL

LA
TI

O
N

.

G
E

N
E

R
A

L
 
D

E
S

C
R

I
P

T
I
V

E
 
N

O
T

E
S

1.
TH

IS
 P

RO
JE

CT
 P

RO
PO

SE
S 

TO
 C

O
N

ST
RU

CT
 A

 2
5,

00
0 

GS
F 

FA
CI

LI
TY

 T
O

 B
E 

O
PE

RA
TE

D 
AS

 A
 N

IS
SA

N
 A

U
TO

M
O

TI
VE

 D
EA

LE
RS

HI
P.

  U
SE

S
IN

CL
U

DE
 T

HE
 S

AL
ES

 A
N

D 
SE

RV
IC

E 
O

F 
N

EW
 A

N
D 

U
SE

D 
VE

HI
CL

ES
, A

N
D 

RE
TA

IL
 P

AR
TS

.

2.
U

SE
 S

TA
TE

M
EN

T:
 F

O
X 

N
IS

SA
N

PR
O

PO
SE

D 
U

SE
:

AU
TO

M
O

TI
VE

 R
ET

AI
L 

SA
LE

S 
AN

D 
SE

RV
IC

E.

3.
AL

L 
AB

O
VE

 G
RO

U
N

D-
, B

U
IL

DI
N

G-
, A

N
D 

RO
O

F-
M

O
U

N
TE

D 
M

EC
HA

N
IC

AL
 E

Q
U

IP
M

EN
T 

AN
D 

U
TI

LI
TI

ES
 S

HA
LL

 B
E 

SC
RE

EN
ED

 W
HE

RE
PR

AC
TI

CA
L.

 IF
 L

O
CA

TI
O

N
S 

AR
E 

U
N

KN
O

W
N

, F
U

TU
RE

 L
O

CA
TI

O
N

S 
AN

D 
LA

N
DS

CA
PE

 S
CR

EE
N

IN
G 

W
IL

L 
BE

 R
EV

IE
W

ED
 A

N
D 

AP
PR

O
VE

D 
BY

BO
TH

 T
HE

 B
U

IL
DI

N
G 

AN
D 

PL
AN

N
IN

G 
DE

PA
RT

M
EN

TS
 P

RI
O

R 
TO

 IN
ST

AL
LA

TI
O

N
.

4.
LI

GH
TI

N
G 

- A
LL

 F
IX

TU
RE

S 
SH

AL
L 

BE
 L

ED
 A

N
D 

HA
VE

 F
U

LL
 C

U
T-

O
FF

 L
EN

SE
S 

AN
D 

BE
 D

IR
EC

TE
D 

DO
W

N
W

AR
D 

AW
AY

 F
RO

M
 R

O
AD

W
AY

S
AN

D 
AD

JA
CE

N
T 

PR
O

PE
RT

IE
S 

W
HE

RE
 R

EQ
U

IR
ED

.

5.
BU

SI
N

ES
S 

SI
GN

S 
- N

O
 S

IG
N

S 
AR

E 
AP

PR
O

VE
D 

AS
 P

AR
T 

O
F 

TH
IS

 S
IT

E 
PL

AN
 A

PP
RO

VA
L 

AN
D 

PR
IO

R 
TO

 E
RE

CT
IN

G 
A 

SI
GN

, A
N

AP
PL

IC
AT

IO
N

 A
N

D 
AP

PR
O

PR
IA

TE
 S

U
BM

IS
SI

O
N

S 
SH

AL
L 

BE
 M

AD
E 

TO
 T

HE
 B

U
IL

DI
N

G 
DE

PA
RT

M
EN

T 
FO

R 
RE

VI
EW

, A
PP

RO
VA

L 
AN

D
IS

SU
AN

CE
 O

F 
A 

SI
GN

 P
ER

M
IT

.

6.
AL

L 
O

N
SI

TE
 S

IG
N

S 
(F

IR
E,

 N
O

 P
AR

KI
N

G,
 E

TC
) S

HA
LL

 B
E 

PA
ID

 F
O

R 
AN

D 
IN

ST
AL

LE
D 

BY
 T

HE
 O

W
N

ER
.

7.
IN

TE
RN

AL
 S

IG
N

S 
SH

AL
L 

M
EE

T 
VI

LL
AG

E 
ST

AN
DA

RD
S 

AN
D 

SH
AL

L 
BE

 P
AI

D 
FO

R 
AN

D 
IN

ST
AL

LE
D 

AT
 T

HE
 O

W
N

ER
S 

EX
PE

N
SE

.

40
.0'

 S
ET

BA
CK

 W
IT

H
LA

ND
SC

AP
E 

BU
FF

ER

40.0' SETBACK WITH
LANDSCAPE BUFFER

40
.0'

 S
ET

BA
CK

 W
IT

H
LA

ND
SC

AP
E 

BU
FF

ER

20
.0'

 R
.O

.W
. S

ET
BA

CK
(LA

ND
SC

AP
E 

BU
FF

ER
)

PR
OP

. S
HA

RE
D

AC
CE

SS
 E

AS
EM

EN
T

49.0'

30
.0'

CU
ST

OM
ER

 P
AR

KI
NG

I
M

P
E

R
V

I
O

U
S

 
A

R
E

A
 
C

A
L

C
U

L
A

T
I
O

N

1"
 =

 20
0'

TO
TA

L S
IT

E 
AR

EA
: N

ET
 A

RE
A(

EX
CL

UD
IN

G 
PU

BL
IC

 R
OA

D 
R.

O.
W

.):
 8.

24
 A

C.

TO
TA

L I
MP

ER
VI

OU
S 

AR
EA

 W
IT

HI
N 

NE
T 

AR
EA

: 3
.84

 A
C.

PE
RC

EN
T 

IM
PE

RV
IO

US
:  4

6.6
%

= 
IM

PE
RV

IO
US

 A
RE

A

LE
GE

ND



U
P

D
N

79
 SF

VE
STI

BU
LE

10
1

27
30

 SF

SH
OW

RO
OM

10
2

88
1 

SF

CU
STO

ME
R

LO
UN

GE
10

3

37
1 

SF

SE
RV
ICE

AD
VIS

OR
S

12
8

29
27

 SF

SE
RV
ICE

DR
IVE 12
9

16
3 

SF

SE
RV
ICE

 M
GR

12
7

28
5 

SF

QU
IET

LO
UN

GE
12

0

28
5 

SF

OP
EN

 SA
LE
S

10
4

10
4 

SF

SA
LE
S

10
5

10
6 

SF

SA
LE
S

10
6

10
6 

SF

SA
LE
S

10
7

10
6 

SF

SA
LE
S

10
8

19
4 

SF

SA
LE
S M

GR
10

9
12

6 
SF

F&
I

11
0

12
2 

SF

F&
I

11
1

12
1 

SF

OF
FIC

E
11

2
15

6 
SF

OF
FIC

E 
MG

R
11

3

10
42

 SF

PA
RT
S

11
6

90
 SF

PA
RT
S M

GR
11

7

12
5 

SF

CA
SH

IER
 /

RE
TA
IL

11
9

68
51

 SF

SE
RV
ICE

DE
PA

RT
ME

NT
13

5

44
0 

SF

GE
NE

RA
L

OF
FIC

E
11

4

38
0 

SF

CO
NF

. /
BR

EA
K 
RO

OM
11

5

DE
AL

ER
SH

IP
 Z

O
NE

S

SH
O

W
RO

O
M

SA
LE

S 
O

FF
IC

E

SA
LE

S 
O

TH
ER

CU
ST

O
M

ER
 L

O
UN

G
E

NE
W

 V
EH

IC
LE

 D
EL

IV
ER

Y

SE
RV

IC
E 

RE
CE

PT
IO

N

SE
RV

IC
E 

SH
O

P

SE
RV

IC
E 

O
TH

ER

PA
RT

S

PA
RT

S 
O

TH
ER

AL
IG
NM

EN
T

EX
PR

ES
S 
SE
RV

ICE

DETAIL BAY

17
' -

 6
"

69
' -

 3
 5

/8
"

10
4'

 - 
0 

3/
8"

32
' -

 0
"

17
5'

 - 
3"

30
' -

 0
"

20' - 0"96' - 8"44' - 0"

160' - 8"

26
8 

SF

TO
OL

S
13

1

11
6 

SF

TE
CH

 T
OIL

ET
13

2

68
 SF

TE
CH

 T
OIL

ET
13

3

84
6 

SF

CA
R 
WA

SH
13

6

PIT
PIT

36
 SF

JAN
ITO

R
12

3

16
6 

SF

WO
ME

N
12

5

16
6 

SF

ME
N

12
6

71
 SFI.T
.

13
7

SE
RV

ICE

22
2'

 - 
10

"

50' - 0"46' - 8"

96' - 8"

DETAIL BAY

DETAIL BAY

SE
RV

ICE

SE
RV

ICE
16

8 
SF

WO
RK

 R
OO

M
12

4

17
6 

SF

TE
CH

LO
CK
ER

S
13

4

34
9 

SF

RE
TA
IL

PA
RT
S

12
1

RE
F 92
 SF

TE
CH

 P
AR

TS
11

8

11
3 

SF

CIR
C

12
2

59
0 

SF

NE
W

VE
HIC

LE
DE

LIV
ER

Y
14

0

15
0 

SF

TIR
E 

EQ
UIP

14
1

11
68

 SF

DE
TA
ILI

NG
14

2
SE
RV

ICE

SE
RV

ICE

SE
RV

ICE

SE
RV

ICE

SE
RV

ICE

25
4 

SF

TO
OL

S
14

3

19
1 

SF

PA
RT
S

RE
CE

IVI
NG

14
7

41
0 

SF

OI
L

00
2

11
23

 SF

PIT 00
1

15
79

 SF

PA
RT
S

ME
ZZA

NIN
E

20
1

40
7 

SF

ME
CH

 /
EL
EC 20
2

CL
IEN

T

PR
OJ
EC

T

JO
B 

NO
.

SH
EE

T

SH
EE

T 
NO

.

TH
IS 

DO
CU

ME
NT

 A
ND

 T
HE

 IN
FO

RM
AT

IO
N 

CO
NT

AIN
ED

 T
HE

RE
IN
 

IS 
TH

E 
SO

LE
 P

OS
SE
SSI

ON
 O

F 
ST
UD

IO
 D

ET
RO

IT 
AN

D 
SH

AL
L 
NO

T 
BE

 A
LT
ER

ED
 O

R 
MO

DIF
IED

 W
ITH

OU
T 
TH

E 
EX

PR
ES
S 
W
RIT

TE
N

PE
RM

ISS
IO
N 

OF
 S
TU

DI
O 

DE
TR

OI
T. 

 A
NY

 M
OD

IFI
CA

TIO
N 

OR
AL

TE
RA

TIO
N 

TH
ER

EO
F 
SH

AL
L 
IN
DE

MN
IFY

 A
ND

 H
OL

D 
HA

RM
LE

SS
ST
UD

IO
 D

ET
RO

IT 
OF

 A
LL
 E

XP
EN

SE
S, 

CL
AIM

S 
AN

D/
OR

 L
IAB

ILI
TY

RE
SU

LT
IN
G 

FR
OM

 SU
CH

 M
OD

IFI
CA

TIO
NS

 O
R 

AL
TE

RA
TIO

NS
.


20

18
 S
TU

DI
O 

DE
TR

OI
T 
LL
C

SE
AL

CH
EC

KE
D

DR
AW

N
FIL

E

ISS
UE

D
DO

 N
OT

 S
CA

LE
 D

RA
W
IN
GS

DP
 F
OX

 V
EN

TU
RE

S L
LC

20
0 

OT
TA
WA

 A
VE
 N

W
SU
ITE

 8
00

GR
AN

D 
RA

PID
S, 

MI
 4

95
03

FO
X 
NIS

SA
N

PR
OP

OS
ED

 N
EW

 F
AC
ILI

TY
16

14
 G

RA
ND

 R
IVE

R 
AV
E.

OK
EM

OS
, M

I

18
41 A1
.0SM

B
PN

P

CO
MP

OS
ITE

 F
LO

OR
 P

LA
N

10
.12

.18
SU
P

N
 3

/3
2"

 =
 1

'-0
"

CO
MP

OS
ITE

 F
IRS

T 
FL
OO

R 
PL
AN

D
EP

AR
TM

EN
T 

AR
EA

 B
Y 

FL
O

O
R

D
EP

AR
TM

EN
T

LE
VE

L
AR

EA
 (N

SF
)

C
U

ST
O

M
ER

 L
O

U
N

G
E

FI
N

IS
H

 F
IR

ST
 F

LO
O

R
11

66
 S

F
11

66
 S

F
N

EW
 V

EH
IC

LE
D

EL
IV

ER
Y

FI
N

IS
H

 F
IR

ST
 F

LO
O

R
59

0 
SF

59
0 

SF
PA

R
TS

FI
N

IS
H

 F
IR

ST
 F

LO
O

R
10

42
 S

F
PA

R
TS

M
EZ

ZA
N

IN
E

15
79

 S
F

26
21

 S
F

PA
R

TS
 O

TH
ER

FI
N

IS
H

 F
IR

ST
 F

LO
O

R
91

8 
SF

91
8 

SF
SA

LE
S 

O
FF

IC
E

FI
N

IS
H

 F
IR

ST
 F

LO
O

R
11

48
 S

F
11

48
 S

F
SA

LE
S 

O
TH

ER
FI

N
IS

H
 F

IR
ST

 F
LO

O
R

16
32

 S
F

SA
LE

S 
O

TH
ER

M
EZ

ZA
N

IN
E

40
7 

SF
20

39
 S

F
SE

R
VI

C
E 

O
TH

ER
PI

T
15

33
 S

F
SE

R
VI

C
E 

O
TH

ER
FI

N
IS

H
 F

IR
ST

 F
LO

O
R

13
09

 S
F

28
42

 S
F

SE
R

VI
C

E 
R

EC
EP

TI
O

N
FI

N
IS

H
 F

IR
ST

 F
LO

O
R

32
98

 S
F

32
98

 S
F

SE
R

VI
C

E 
SH

O
P

FI
N

IS
H

 F
IR

ST
 F

LO
O

R
68

51
 S

F
68

51
 S

F
SH

O
W

R
O

O
M

FI
N

IS
H

 F
IR

ST
 F

LO
O

R
28

09
 S

F
28

09
 S

F
TO

TA
L 

(N
SF

)
24

28
2 

SF
PI

T
16

64
 S

F
BU

IL
D

IN
G

 F
O

O
TP

R
IN

T
23

09
4 

SF
PA

R
TS

 M
EZ

ZA
N

IN
E

23
81

 S
F

TO
TA

L 
BU

IL
D

IN
G

 A
R

EA
 (G

SF
)

27
13

9 
SF

N
 3

/3
2"

 =
 1

'-0
"

PIT
 P

LA
N

N
 3

/3
2"

 =
 1

'-0
"

ME
ZZA

NIN
E 
PL
AN



FIN
ISH

 F
IRS

T 
FL
OO

R
10

0' 
- 0

"

ME
ZZA

NIN
E

11
3' 

- 2
"

T.O
. P

AR
AP

ET
 - 

SH
OW

RO
OM

12
8' 

- 0
"

T.O
. G

LA
ZIN

G 
- S

HO
WR

OO
M

12
1' 

- 6
 1

/2
"

T.O
. P

AR
AP

ET
 - 

SE
RV
ICE

 D
RIV

E
11

9' 
- 0

"

EP
-5

GL
-2

SF-
1

AC
M-
2

AC
M-
1

AC
M-
3

EP
-5

AC
M-
3

GL
-2

AC
M-
1

EP
-5

EP
-5

12' - 0"7' - 0"

19' - 0"

21' - 6 1/2"6' - 5 1/2"

28' - 0"

18' - 0"

T.O
. T

AB
LE
T

13
1' 

- 3
"

B.O
. F

OU
ND

AT
IO
N 

(RE
F)

96
' -

 6
"

FIN
ISH

 F
IRS

T 
FL
OO

R
10

0' 
- 0

"

ME
ZZA

NIN
E

11
3' 

- 2
"

T.O
. P

AR
AP

ET
 - 

SH
OW

RO
OM

12
8' 

- 0
"

T.O
. G

LA
ZIN

G 
- S

HO
WR

OO
M

12
1' 

- 6
 1

/2
"

T.O
. P

AR
AP

ET
 - 

SE
RV
ICE

 D
RIV

E
11

9' 
- 0

"

AC
M-
1

AC
M-
3

AC
M-
2

AC
M-
1

SF-
1

GL
-2

AC
M-
3

EP
-5

6' - 6" 12' - 6"

19' - 0"

7' - 0" 12' - 0"

19' - 0"

6' - 5 1/2" 21' - 6 1/2"

28' - 0"

T.O
. T

AB
LE
T

13
1' 

- 3
"

B.O
. F

OU
ND

AT
IO
N 

(RE
F)

96
' -

 6
"

CL
IEN

T

PR
OJ
EC

T

JO
B 

NO
.

SH
EE

T

SH
EE

T 
NO

.

TH
IS 

DO
CU

ME
NT

 A
ND

 T
HE

 IN
FO

RM
AT

IO
N 

CO
NT

AIN
ED

 T
HE

RE
IN
 

IS 
TH

E 
SO

LE
 P

OS
SE
SSI

ON
 O

F 
ST
UD

IO
 D

ET
RO

IT 
AN

D 
SH

AL
L 
NO

T 
BE

 A
LT
ER

ED
 O

R 
MO

DIF
IED

 W
ITH

OU
T 
TH

E 
EX

PR
ES
S 
W
RIT

TE
N

PE
RM

ISS
IO
N 

OF
 S
TU

DI
O 

DE
TR

OI
T. 

 A
NY

 M
OD

IFI
CA

TIO
N 

OR
AL

TE
RA

TIO
N 

TH
ER

EO
F 
SH

AL
L 
IN
DE

MN
IFY

 A
ND

 H
OL

D 
HA

RM
LE

SS
ST
UD

IO
 D

ET
RO

IT 
OF

 A
LL
 E

XP
EN

SE
S, 

CL
AIM

S 
AN

D/
OR

 L
IAB

ILI
TY

RE
SU

LT
IN
G 

FR
OM

 SU
CH

 M
OD

IFI
CA

TIO
NS

 O
R 

AL
TE

RA
TIO

NS
.


20

18
 S
TU

DI
O 

DE
TR

OI
T 
LL
C

SE
AL

CH
EC

KE
D

DR
AW

N
FIL

E

ISS
UE

D
DO

 N
OT

 S
CA

LE
 D

RA
W
IN
GS

DP
 F
OX

 V
EN

TU
RE

S L
LC

20
0 

OT
TA
WA

 A
VE
 N

W
SU
ITE

 8
00

GR
AN

D 
RA

PID
S, 

MI
 4

95
03

FO
X 
NIS

SA
N

PR
OP

OS
ED

 N
EW

 F
AC
ILI

TY
16

14
 G

RA
ND

 R
IVE

R 
AV
E.

OK
EM

OS
, M

I

18
41 A2
.1SM

B
PN

P

EX
TE
RIO

R 
EL
EV
AT
IO
NS

10
.12

.18
S.U

.P.

SC
AL

E:
 1

/8
" 
=
 1

'-0
"

A1
.23

EA
ST 

EL
EV
AT
IO
N

SC
AL

E:
 1

/8
" 
=
 1

'-0
"

1
SO

UT
H 

EL
EV
AT
IO
N

EX
TE

RIO
R 

MA
TE

RIA
LS

M
AT

ER
IA

L
FI

N
IS

H

C
U

R
TA

IN
W

AL
L 

FR
AM

IN
G

C
O

LO
R

: I
N

TE
G

R
AL

LY
 C

O
LO

R
ED

, 
O

R
 P

AI
N

T 
EP

-5

AL
U

M
IN

U
M

 C
O

M
PO

SI
TE

 
PA

N
EL

G
LA

SS
: 1

" C
LE

AR
 IN

SU
LA

TE
D

, 
SO

LA
R

BA
N

 L
O

W
-E

 7
0X

L

AC
M

-1

SF
-1

AL
PO

LI
C

 -
BS

X 
SI

LV
ER

 
M

ET
AL

LI
C

; R
AI

N
 S

C
R

EE
N

C
O

N
C

R
ET

E 
M

AS
O

N
R

Y 
U

N
IT

C
M

U
-1

EX
TE

R
IO

R
 G

LA
ZI

N
G

G
L-

2

KA
W

N
EE

R
 1

60
0U

T 
SY

ST
EM

 1
; 

PO
W

D
ER

 C
O

AT
 (P

C
-2

, R
AL

 7
02

4 
G

R
AP

H
IT

E 
G

R
AY

)

C
O

LO
R

: S
H

ER
W

IN
 W

IL
LI

AM
S 

#S
W

28
32

 C
O

LO
N

IA
L 

R
EV

IV
AL

 
G

R
AY

EX
TE

R
IO

R
 P

AI
N

T
EP

-1

AL
U

M
IN

U
M

 C
O

M
PO

SI
TE

 
PA

N
EL

AC
M

-2
IL

LU
M

IN
AT

ED
 R

ED
 F

IB
ER

 G
LA

SS
; 

M
AT

C
H

 A
LP

O
LI

C
 -

VA
LF

LO
N

 
10

74
2 

R
ED

AL
U

M
IN

U
M

 C
O

M
PO

SI
TE

 
PA

N
EL

AC
M

-3
AL

PO
LI

C
 -

N
SG

 N
IS

SA
N

 G
R

AY
; 

R
AI

N
 S

C
R

EE
N

C
O

LO
R

: S
H

ER
W

IN
 W

IL
LI

AM
S 

#S
W

70
76

 C
YB

ER
SP

AC
E

EX
TE

R
IO

R
 P

AI
N

T
EP

-5

C
O

LO
R

: M
AT

C
H

 A
C

M
-1

C
AP

 F
LA

SH
C

F-
1



FIN
ISH

 F
IRS

T 
FL
OO

R
10

0' 
- 0

"

ME
ZZA

NIN
E

11
3' 

- 2
"

T.O
. P

AR
AP

ET
 - 

SH
OW

RO
OM

12
8' 

- 0
"

T.O
. G

LA
ZIN

G 
- S

HO
WR

OO
M

12
1' 

- 6
 1

/2
"

T.O
. P

AR
AP

ET
 - 

SE
RV
ICE

 D
RIV

E
11

9' 
- 0

"

T.O
. T

AB
LE
T

13
1' 

- 3
"

EP
-5

EP
-5

GL
-2SF-
1

AC
M-
3

AC
M-
1

GL
-2

SF-
1

AC
M-
1

AC
M-
2

SF-
1

GL
-2

18' - 0"

28' - 0"

B.O
. F

OU
ND

AT
IO
N 

(RE
F)

96
' -

 6
"

FIN
ISH

 F
IRS

T 
FL
OO

R
10

0' 
- 0

"

ME
ZZA

NIN
E

11
3' 

- 2
"

T.O
. P

AR
AP

ET
 - 

SH
OW

RO
OM

12
8' 

- 0
"

T.O
. G

LA
ZIN

G 
- S

HO
WR

OO
M

12
1' 

- 6
 1

/2
"

T.O
. P

AR
AP

ET
 - 

SE
RV
ICE

 D
RIV

E
11

9' 
- 0

"

EP
-5

EP
-5

AC
M-
1

AC
M-
3

EP
-5

12' - 6"6' - 6"

19' - 0"

19' - 0"

28' - 0"

18' - 0"

T.O
. T

AB
LE
T

13
1' 

- 3
"

B.O
. F

OU
ND

AT
IO
N 

(RE
F)

96
' -

 6
"

CL
IEN

T

PR
OJ
EC

T

JO
B 

NO
.

SH
EE

T

SH
EE

T 
NO

.

TH
IS 

DO
CU

ME
NT

 A
ND

 T
HE

 IN
FO

RM
AT

IO
N 

CO
NT

AIN
ED

 T
HE

RE
IN
 

IS 
TH

E 
SO

LE
 P

OS
SE
SSI

ON
 O

F 
ST
UD

IO
 D

ET
RO

IT 
AN

D 
SH

AL
L 
NO

T 
BE

 A
LT
ER

ED
 O

R 
MO

DIF
IED

 W
ITH

OU
T 
TH

E 
EX

PR
ES
S 
W
RIT

TE
N

PE
RM

ISS
IO
N 

OF
 S
TU

DI
O 

DE
TR

OI
T. 

 A
NY

 M
OD

IFI
CA

TIO
N 

OR
AL

TE
RA

TIO
N 

TH
ER

EO
F 
SH

AL
L 
IN
DE

MN
IFY

 A
ND

 H
OL

D 
HA

RM
LE

SS
ST
UD

IO
 D

ET
RO

IT 
OF

 A
LL
 E

XP
EN

SE
S, 

CL
AIM

S 
AN

D/
OR

 L
IAB

ILI
TY

RE
SU

LT
IN
G 

FR
OM

 SU
CH

 M
OD

IFI
CA

TIO
NS

 O
R 

AL
TE

RA
TIO

NS
.


20

18
 S
TU

DI
O 

DE
TR

OI
T 
LL
C

SE
AL

CH
EC

KE
D

DR
AW

N
FIL

E

ISS
UE

D
DO

 N
OT

 S
CA

LE
 D

RA
W
IN
GS

DP
 F
OX

 V
EN

TU
RE

S L
LC

20
0 

OT
TA
WA

 A
VE
 N

W
SU
ITE

 8
00

GR
AN

D 
RA

PID
S, 

MI
 4

95
03

FO
X 
NIS

SA
N

PR
OP

OS
ED

 N
EW

 F
AC
ILI

TY
16

14
 G

RA
ND

 R
IVE

R 
AV
E.

OK
EM

OS
, M

I

18
41 A2
.2SM

B
PN

P

EX
TE
RIO

R 
EL
EV
AT
IO
NS

10
.12

.18
S.U

.P

SC
AL

E:
 1

/8
" 
=
 1

'-0
"

1
WE

ST 
EL
EV
AT
IO
N

SC
AL

E:
 1

/8
" 
=
 1

'-0
"

2
NO

RT
H 

EL
EV
AT
IO
N

EX
TE

RIO
R 

MA
TE

RIA
LS

M
AT

ER
IA

L
FI

N
IS

H

C
U

R
TA

IN
W

AL
L 

FR
AM

IN
G

C
O

LO
R

: I
N

TE
G

R
AL

LY
 C

O
LO

R
ED

, 
O

R
 P

AI
N

T 
EP

-5

AL
U

M
IN

U
M

 C
O

M
PO

SI
TE

 
PA

N
EL

G
LA

SS
: 1

" C
LE

AR
 IN

SU
LA

TE
D

, 
SO

LA
R

BA
N

 L
O

W
-E

 7
0X

L

AC
M

-1

SF
-1

AL
PO

LI
C

 -
BS

X 
SI

LV
ER

 
M

ET
AL

LI
C

; R
AI

N
 S

C
R

EE
N

C
O

N
C

R
ET

E 
M

AS
O

N
R

Y 
U

N
IT

C
M

U
-1

EX
TE

R
IO

R
 G

LA
ZI

N
G

G
L-

2

KA
W

N
EE

R
 1

60
0U

T 
SY

ST
EM

 1
; 

PO
W

D
ER

 C
O

AT
 (P

C
-2

, R
AL

 7
02

4 
G

R
AP

H
IT

E 
G

R
AY

)

C
O

LO
R

: S
H

ER
W

IN
 W

IL
LI

AM
S 

#S
W

28
32

 C
O

LO
N

IA
L 

R
EV

IV
AL

 
G

R
AY

EX
TE

R
IO

R
 P

AI
N

T
EP

-1

AL
U

M
IN

U
M

 C
O

M
PO

SI
TE

 
PA

N
EL

AC
M

-2

AL
U

M
IN

U
M

 C
O

M
PO

SI
TE

 
PA

N
EL

AC
M

-3
AL

PO
LI

C
 -

N
SG

 N
IS

SA
N

 G
R

AY
; 

R
AI

N
 S

C
R

EE
N

C
O

LO
R

: S
H

ER
W

IN
 W

IL
LI

AM
S 

#S
W

70
76

 C
YB

ER
SP

AC
E

EX
TE

R
IO

R
 P

AI
N

T
EP

-5

C
O

LO
R

: M
AT

C
H

 A
C

M
-1

C
AP

 F
LA

SH
C

F-
1

IL
LU

M
IN

AT
ED

 R
ED

 F
IB

ER
 G

LA
SS

; 
M

AT
C

H
 A

LP
O

LI
C

 -
VA

LF
LO

N
 

10
74

2 
R

ED



 

 

To:  Planning Commission  
 
From:  Peter Menser, Principal Planner 
 
  Justin Quagliata, Assistant Planner 
 
Date:  November 20, 2018 
 
Re: Special Use Permit #18111 (Fedewa Holdings), construct a 15-unit 

townhouse complex comprised of two buildings totaling 21,735 square feet 
at 1730 Chief Okemos Circle. 

 
 
Fedewa Holdings has requested a special use permit to construct a 15-unit townhouse complex 
comprised of two buildings totaling approximately 21,735 square feet at 1730 Chief Okemos 
Circle.  The 1.52 acre subject site is zoned RC (Multiple Family, maximum 14 units per acre).  One 
of the buildings would contain nine, 1,615 square foot units each consisting of three bedrooms and 
2-1/2 bathrooms, an attached 2-car garage, and decks in the rear.  The second building would 
contain six, 1,200 square foot units each consisting of two bedrooms and 2-1/2 bathrooms, an 
attached 2-car garage, and decks in the rear.  Each building would be two-stories and would not 
contain basements. 
 
Master Plan 
 
The Future Land Use Map from the 2017 Master Plan designates the subject site in the MR-
Residential 5.0 – 14.0 dwelling units per acre category.  
 

FUTURE LAND USE MAP 
 

 



 
Special Use Permit #18111 (Fedewa Holdings) 
Planning Commission (November 26, 2018) 
Page 2 

 

  

Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community. 

 

Zoning 
 
The subject site is zoned RC (Multiple Family, maximum 14 units per acre).  With 80 feet of lot 
frontage on Chief Okemos Circle and 1.52 acres (66,019 square feet) in lot area, the site does not 
meet the minimum 100 foot lot width standard of the RC zoning district.  The Zoning Board of 
Appeals granted a variance from the minimum lot width requirement in 1989 (ZBA #89-05-24-2).  
The variance continues to be valid as the configuration of the lot has not changed since the initial 
variance approval.  The following table illustrates the minimum lot width and lot area requirements 
for the RC zoning district. 
 

Zoning District Lot Width (feet) Lot Area (square feet) 

RC (Multiple Family) 100 
11,000 for two families, no 

minimum for multiple family 

   
ZONING MAP 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 



 
Special Use Permit #18111 (Fedewa Holdings) 
Planning Commission (November 26, 2018) 
Page 3 

 

  

Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community. 

 

Physical Features 
 
The site is currently undeveloped and is generally level, with elevations ranging from 878 feet above 
mean sea level near the northeastern corner of the site and gradually rising to 884 feet above mean 
seal level near the northwest property line.  Vegetation mainly consists of overgrown brush.  The 
applicant submitted a tree survey which depicts trees greater than 12 inches in diameter on the 
property. 
 
The Township Wetland Map and the Flood Insurance Rate Map indicate neither wetlands nor 
floodplain are present on or near the site.  The site has no special designation on the Township 
Greenspace Plan.     
 
Streets and Traffic 
 
The site fronts on Chief Okemos Circle, which is a two lane public road with curb and gutter classified 
as a Local Street on the Street Setbacks and Service Drives Map in the zoning ordinance.  The Ingham 
County Road Department (ICRD) does not have traffic count information for Chief Okemos Circle. 
 
The applicant submitted a trip generation analysis which estimates future vehicle trips that could 
be generated by the proposed townhouse complex.  The Institute of Transportation Engineers (ITE) 
trip generation rates for Multifamily Housing (Low-Rise) (Land Use Code 220) were selected to 
represent the proposed development.  The following table summarizes findings from the submitted 
trip generation analysis.   
 

Description Size 
AM Peak Hour PM Peak Hour 

Weekday 
In Out Total In Out Total 

Multifamily Housing 
(Low-Rise), Code 220 

15 
Units 

2 6 8 7 4 11 110 

   
A traffic assessment is required for new special uses which could generate between 50 and 99 
directional trips during a peak hour of traffic.  A peak hour of traffic is the hour of highest volume of 
traffic entering and exiting the site during the a.m. or p.m. hours.  A traffic impact study is required 
for new special uses which would generate over 100 directional trips during a peak hour of traffic, 
or over 750 trips on an average day.  An average day is the average 24-hour total of all vehicle trips 
counted to and from a study site from Monday through Friday.  Based on the projected traffic 
volumes neither a traffic assessment nor traffic impact study is required. 
 
CATA bus service is available approximately one-tenth mile east of the site at the intersection of 
Chief Okemos Circle and Dobie Road.  Route 22/23 travels to Meridian Mall, Meijer, and the Michigan 
State University campus.  
 
Public Utilities 
 
Municipal water and sanitary sewer are available to serve the subject site.  The location and capacity 
of utilities will be reviewed in detail during site plan review if the special use permit is approved. 
 



 
Special Use Permit #18111 (Fedewa Holdings) 
Planning Commission (November 26, 2018) 
Page 4 

 

  

Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community. 

 

Staff Analysis 
 
The applicant is requesting a special use permit to construct a 15-unit townhouse complex 
comprised of two buildings.  All multiple family housing projects with more than two units must 
receive special use permit approval from the Planning Commission.  Special use permits for multiple 
family housing are evaluated using the nine general special use permit criteria listed in Section 86-
126 of the Zoning Ordinance and specific standards for multiple family projects found in Section 86-
376.   
 
The RC zoning district allows a maximum density of 14 dwelling units per acre.  The applicant is 
proposing fifteen units; with density of 9.9 dwelling unit per acre, the project is consistent with the 
maximum permitted for the 1.52 acre site.  Compliance with design standards listed in Section 86-
376(g) of the zoning ordinance are shown on the following chart.  
 

Design Objective Standard Proposed 
   
Minimum lot width 100 feet 80 feet (1989 variance) 
Maximum building coverage 35% 17.8% 
Minimum open space 35% 65.5% 
Front yard setback 25 feet  19 feet 
Side yard setback 15 feet 25 feet 
Rear yard setback 40 feet 40 feet 
Distance from a single-family zoning district 
boundary 

50 feet 40 feet 

Minimum distance between buildings (when 
widest dimensions face each other) 

60 feet 75 feet 

Maximum building height 35 feet 32 feet 

Maximum building dimension 200 feet 
156 feet in length (east bldg.) 
226 feet in length (west bldg.) 

 
Zoning Ordinance Section 86-367 (Street Setbacks and Services Drives Map) states the front yard 
setback on local streets is 25 feet from the street right-of-way line.  The submitted site plan shows 
decks on the east building encroaching six feet into the front yard setback, therefore a variance from 
the Zoning Board of Appeals is required. 
 
Zoning Ordinance Section 86-376(g)(4)(e) states multiple-family buildings containing three or 
more units must be setback a minimum of 50 feet from any single-family residential zoning district 
boundary.  The submitted site plan depicts the west building is located 40 feet from the adjacent 
single-family zoning district boundary to the west, therefore a 10 foot variance from the Zoning 
Board of Appeals is required. 
 
 
 
 



 
Special Use Permit #18111 (Fedewa Holdings) 
Planning Commission (November 26, 2018) 
Page 5 

 

  

Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community. 

 

Zoning Ordinance Section 86-376(4)(f)(7)(iii) states no single building or connected building may 
exceed 200 feet in any one dimension, and that all buildings shall be arranged to permit emergency 
vehicle access, by some practical means, to all sides.  The submitted site plan indicates the west 
building is 226 feet in length, therefore a 26 foot variance from the Zoning Board of Appeals is 
required. 
 
Zoning Ordinance Section 86-756(10) states where a parking area adjoins a residential district a 
landscaped buffer at least 20 feet wide must be provided between the parking area and the adjoining 
property.  As proposed the future expansion capacity parking would, if constructed, be located 15 
feet from the residential zoning district to the south, therefore a 5 foot variance from the Zoning 
Board of Appeals is required.  Additionally, a dumpster located in a parking area is subject to parking 
area setbacks.  As depicted on the submitted site plan, the dumpster is located 15 feet from the 
residential zoning district to the south.  A variance from the Zoning Board of Appeals would be 
required if the dumpster is not located at least 20 feet from the south property line. 
 
The submitted building elevations indicate vinyl siding is the primary building material with accents 
of rough-split vinyl shakes, and cultured stone surrounding garage doors.  Asphalt shingles would 
cover the roof. 
 
If the project is approved by the Planning Commission, the applicant will be required to submit for Site 
Plan Review before work on the project can begin.  Site Plan Review is a detailed staff-level analysis of 
the project which includes reviews of storm water, utilities, landscaping, grading, and other issues to 
ensure compliance with all applicable ordinances as well as confirmation of approvals from local 
agencies such as the Ingham County Drain Commissioner’s Office and Road Department.  As a condition 
of special use permit approval, the Planning Commission may require landscaping around buildings 
and in open spaces to appropriately screen surrounding properties.   
 
Planning Commission Options 
 
The Planning Commission may approve, approve with conditions, or deny the special use permit.  A 
resolution will be provided at a future meeting. 
 
Attachments 
1. Special use permit application. 
2. Trip generation analysis prepared by Traffic Engineering Associates, Inc., dated October 18, 

2018, and received by the Township on October 30, 2018. 
3. Site plan prepared by BRS Engineering, dated August 20, 2018 (revision date November 1, 2018), 

and received by the Township on October 30, 2018. 
4. Building elevations prepared by Jerry Fedewa Homes Inc., dated October 26, 2018, and received 

by the Township on October 30, 2018. 
 
 
G:\Community Planning & Development\Planning\SPECIAL USE PERMITS (SUP)\2018\SUP 18111 (Fedewa Holdings)\SUP 
18111.pc1.doc 



 
Page 1 

CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN 
DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT 

5151 MARSH ROAD, OKEMOS, MI  48864 
PLANNING DIVISION PHONE: (517) 853-4560,  FAX: (517) 853-4095 

 
SPECIAL USE PERMIT APPLICATION 

 

Before submitting this application for review, an applicant may meet with the Director of Community 
Planning and Development to discuss the requirements for a special use permit and/or submit a 
conceptual plan for review to have preliminary technical deficiencies addressed prior to submittal of the 
application.  If the property or land use is located in the following zoning districts RD, RC, RCC, RN then 
the applicant must meet with the Planning Director to discuss technical difficulties before filing a formal 
application.  
 

Part I 
A. Applicant ____________________________________________________________________________ 
 Address of Applicant ___________________________________________________________________ 
 Telephone - Work  ______________  Home ______________ Fax  ______________ Email __________ 
 Interest in property (circle one): Owner  Tenant  Option  Other 
 (Please attach a list of all persons with an ownership interest in the property.) 
 
B. Site address / location / parcel number ____________________________________________________ 
 Legal description (please attach if necessary) _______________________________________________ 
 Current zoning _______________________________________________________________________ 
 Use for which permit is requested / project name ____________________________________________  
 Corresponding ordinance number ________________________________________________________  
                                                                                                                          
C. Developer (if different than applicant) _____________________________________________________ 
 Address ____________________________________________________________________________ 
 Telephone – Work ____________________ Home __________________ Fax ____________________ 
 
D. Architect, Engineer Planner or Surveyor responsible for design of project if different from applicant: 
 Name ______________________________________________________________________________ 
 Address ____________________________________________________________________________ 
 Telephone – Work ___________________ Home ____________________Fax  ___________________ 
 
E. Acreage of all parcels in the project: Gross _____ Net _____ 
 
F. Explain the project and development phases: 
 
G. Total number of: 
 Existing: structures_____  bedrooms____  offices____  parking spaces____  carports ___ garages_____ 

Proposed: structures____ bedrooms____  offices____  parking spaces____  carports ___ garages_____ 
     
H. Square footage:  existing buildings____ proposed buildings____ 
 Usable Floor area:  existing buildings____ proposed buildings____ 
 
I. If employees will work on the site, state the number of full time and part time employees working per shift 

and hours of operation: 
 
J. Existing Recreation:   Type _____________________________________ Acreage _________ 
 Proposed Recreation:   Type _____________________________________ Acreage _________ 
 Existing Open Space:   Type _____________________________________ Acreage _________ 
 Proposed Open Space: Type _____________________________________ Acreage _________ 

Greg Fedewa


Greg Fedewa
5570 Okemos Rd. East Lansing, MI 48823

Greg Fedewa
(517) 339-0020

Greg Fedewa
fedewagr@gmail.com

Greg Fedewa


Greg Fedewa


Greg Fedewa


Greg Fedewa
(517) 339-4022

Greg Fedewa
1730 Chief Okemos Circle, Okemos MI. 48864

Greg Fedewa
33-02-02-22-451-001

Greg Fedewa
RC

Greg Fedewa
Multi Family Project/ Chief Okemos Circle 

Greg Fedewa
86-376 (g)

Greg Fedewa
5570 Okemos Rd. East Lansing, MI 48823

Greg Fedewa
(517) 339-0020

Greg Fedewa
(517) 339-4022

Greg Fedewa


Greg Fedewa
G.S Fedewa Builders 

Greg Fedewa
1.52

Greg Fedewa
1.52

Greg Fedewa
N/A

Greg Fedewa
1.52

Greg Fedewa
Vacant Land 

Greg Fedewa


Greg Fedewa
Open Green Space 

Greg Fedewa
Open Green Space 

Greg Fedewa


Greg Fedewa
1.52

Greg Fedewa


Greg Fedewa
N/A

Greg Fedewa


Greg Fedewa
Build 15 multi family units in a single phase. 

Greg Fedewa
39

Greg Fedewa
15

Greg Fedewa


Greg Fedewa


Greg Fedewa
60

Greg Fedewa
1,615 sq ft. and 1,200 sq.ft. 

Greg Fedewa
Brett Stockhill

Greg Fedewa


Greg Fedewa
1,615 sq ft. and 1,200 sq.ft. 

Greg Fedewa
1

Greg Fedewa
1

Greg Fedewa
Vacant Land 

Greg Fedewa
MP 6869 LOT 4 CHIEF OKEMOS SUBDIVISION.

Greg Fedewa


Greg Fedewa
Fedewa Holdings 

Greg Fedewa
(517)719-5094

Greg Fedewa
2



 
Page 2 

 
K. If Multiple Housing: 
 Total acres of property  ______________ 
 Acres in floodplain __________________ Percent of total _____                                            
 Acres in wetland (not in floodplain) _____ Percent of total _____                           
 Total dwelling units _________________  
 Dwelling unit mix: Number of single family detached:  for Rent _____ Condo _____ 
    Number of duplexes:    for Rent _____ Condo _____ 
    Number of townhouses:   for Rent _____ Condo _____ 
    Number of garden style apartments:  for Rent _____ Condo _____ 
    Number of other dwellings:   for Rent _____ Condo _____ 
 
L. The following support materials must be submitted with the application: 
 

 1. Nonrefundable Fee.  
 

 2. Legal Description of the property.  
 

 3. Evidence of fee or other ownership of the property.  
 

 4. Site Plan containing the information listed in the attachment to this application.  
 

 5. Architectural sketches showing all sides and elevations of the proposed buildings or structures, 
including the project entrance, as they will appear upon completion.  The sketches should be 
accompanied by material samples or a display board of the proposed exterior materials and 
colors.   

 

 6. A Traffic Study, prepared by a qualified traffic engineer, based on the most current edition of 
Evaluating Traffic Impact Studies: A Recommended Practice for Michigan Communities, 
published by the State Department of Transportation.  

   

a. A traffic assessment will be required for the following: 
   1)   New special uses which could, or expansion or change of an existing special use 

where increase in intensity would, generate between 50 to 99 directional trips 
during a peak hour of traffic. 

   2)  All other special uses requiring a traffic assessment as specified in the Township 
Code of Ordinances, Chapter 86, Article IV, Division 2. 

   

b. A traffic impact study will be required for the following: 
   1) New special uses which would, or expansion or change of an existing special use 

where increase in intensity would, generate over 100 directional trips or more 
during a peak hour of traffic, or over 750 trips on an average day. 

   2)  All other special uses requiring a traffic assessment as specified in the Township 
Code of Ordinances, Chapter 86, Article IV, Division 2. 

 

 7. Natural features assessment which includes a written description of the anticipated impacts on the 
natural features at each phase and at project completion that contains the following: 

 

  a. An inventory of natural features proposed to be retained, removed, or modified.  Natural 
features shall include, but are not limited to, wetlands, significant stands of trees or 
individual trees greater than 12 inches dbh, floodways, floodplains, waterbodies, identified 
groundwater vulnerable areas, slopes greater than 20 percent, ravines, and vegetative 
cover types with potential to sustain significant or endangered wildlife. 

 

  b. Description of the impacts on natural features. 
 

  c. Description of any proposed efforts to mitigate any negative impacts. 
 

The natural features assessment may be waived by the Director of Community Planning and 
Development in certain circumstances. 

   

Greg Fedewa
0

Greg Fedewa
0

Greg Fedewa
0%

Greg Fedewa
0%

Greg Fedewa
1.52

Greg Fedewa


Greg Fedewa


Greg Fedewa
15

Greg Fedewa


Greg Fedewa
15

Greg Fedewa




 
Page 3 

M. Any other information specified by the Director of Community Planning and Development which is 
deemed necessary to evaluate the application. 

 

N. In addition to the above requirements, for zoning districts, RD, RC, RCC, RN, and CV and Group 
Housing Residential Developments the following is required: 

 

 1. Existing and proposed contours of the property at two foot intervals based on United States 
Geological Survey (USGS) data. 

 2. Preliminary engineering reports in accordance with the adopted Township water and sewer 
standards, together with a letter of review from the Township Engineer. 

 3. Ten copies of a report on the intent and scope of the project including, but not limited to: Number, 
size, volume, and dimensions of buildings; number and size of living units; basis of calculations of 
floor area and density and required parking; number, size, and type of parking spaces; 
architectural sketches of proposed buildings. 

 4. Seven copies of the project plans which the Township shall submit to local agencies for review 
and comments. 

 
O. In addition to the above requirements, a special use application in zoning district RP requires the following 

material as part of the site plan: 
 

 1. A description of the operations proposed in sufficient detail to indicate the effects of those 
operations in producing traffic congestion, noise, glare, air pollution, water pollution, fire hazards 
or safety hazards or the emission of any potentially harmful or obnoxious matter or radiation. 

 2. Engineering and architectural plans for the treatment and disposal of sewerage and industrial 
waste tailings, or unusable by-products. 

 3. Engineering and architectural plans for the handling of any excessive traffic congestion, noise, 
glare, air pollution, or the emission of any potentially harmful or obnoxious matter or radiation. 

 
P. In addition to the above requirements, a special use application for a use in the Floodway Fringe of 

zoning district CV requires the following: 
 

 1. A letter of approval from the State Department of Environmental Quality. 
 2. A location map including existing topographic data at two-foot interval contours at a scale of one 

inch representing 100 feet. 
 3. A map showing proposed grading and drainage plans including the location of all public drainage 

easements, the limits, extent, and elevations of the proposed fill, excavation, and occupation. 
 4. A statement from the County Drain Commissioner, County Health Department, and Director of 

Public Works and Engineering indicating that they have reviewed and approved the proposal. 
 
Q. In addition to the above requirements, a special use application for a use in the Groundwater Recharge 

area or zoning district CV requires the following: 
 

 1. A location map including existing topographic data at two-foot interval contours. 
 2. A map showing proposed grading and drainage plans including the location of all public drainage 

easements, the limits and extent of the proposed fill, excavation, and occupation. 
 3. A statement from the County Drain Commissioner, County Health Department, and Director of 

Public Works and Engineering indicating that they have reviewed and approved the proposal.  
 
R. In addition to the above requirements, the Township Code of Ordinances, Article VI, should be reviewed 

for the following special uses: group housing residential developments, mobile home parks, 
nonresidential structures and uses in residential districts, planned community and regional shopping 
center developments, sand or gravel pits and quarries, sod farms, junk yards, sewage treatment and 
disposal installations, camps and clubs for outdoor sports and buildings greater than 25,000 square feet 
in gross floor area. 



 
Page 4 

Part II      SUP REQUEST STANDARDS 
Township Code of Ordinances, Section 86-126 

 
Applications for Special Land Uses will be reviewed with the standards stated below.  An application that 
complies with the standards stated in the Township Ordinance, conditions imposed pursuant to the 
Ordinance, other applicable Ordinances, and State and Federal statutes will be approved. Your 
responses to the questions below will assist the Planning Commission in its review of your application.   

(1) The project is consistent with the intent and purposes of this chapter. 

(2) The project is consistent with applicable land use policies contained in the Township's Master Plan of 
current adoption. 

(3) The project is designed, constructed, operated, and maintained so as to be harmonious and 
appropriate in appearance with the existing or intended character of the general vicinity and that such a 
use will not change the essential character of the same area. 

(4) The project will not adversely affect or be hazardous to existing neighboring uses. 
 
(5) The project will not be detrimental to the economic welfare of surrounding properties or the community. 
 
(6) The project is adequately served by public facilities, such as existing roads, schools, stormwater 

drainage, public safety, public transportation, and public recreation, or that the persons or agencies 
responsible for the establishment of the proposed use shall be able to provide any such service. 

 
(7) The project is adequately served by public sanitation facilities if so designed. If on-site sanitation 

facilities for sewage disposal, potable water supply, and storm water are proposed, they shall be 
properly designed and capable of handling the longterm needs of the proposed project. 

 
(8) The project will not involve uses, activities, processes, materials, and equipment and conditions of 

operation that will be detrimental to any persons, property, or the general welfare by reason of 
excessive production of traffic, noise, smoke, fumes, glare, or odors.  

 
(9) The project will not directly or indirectly have a substantial adverse impact on the natural resources of 

the Township, including, but not limited to, prime agricultural soils, water recharge areas, lakes, rivers, 
streams, major forests, wetlands, and wildlife areas. 

 
Part III 
I (we) hereby grant permission for members of the Charter Township of Meridian’s Boards and/or Commissions, 
Township staff member(s) and the Township’s representatives or experts the right to enter onto the above 
described property (or as described in the attached information) in my (our) absence for the purpose of gathering 
information including but not limited to the taking and the use of photographs.  
 
     Yes      No  (Please check one) 

 
By the signature(s) attached hereto, I (we) certify that the information provided within this application and 
accompanying documentation is, to the best of my (our) knowledge, true and accurate 
 
__________________________________________________   ________________ 
Signature of Applicant         Date                          
 
__________________________________________________     
Type/Print Name 
 

Fee: __________________    Received by/Date: _____________________________ 

Greg Fedewa


Greg Fedewa


Greg Fedewa


Greg Fedewa
The Proposed project has several

Greg Fedewa


Greg Fedewa
X

Greg Fedewa


Greg Fedewa
The proposed 

Greg Fedewa


Greg Fedewa
The project is adequately

Greg Fedewa


Greg Fedewa


Greg Fedewa


Greg Fedewa


Greg Fedewa
$500.00

Greg Fedewa
Jerry Fedewa 

Greg Fedewa
10/26/2018



 
Jerry Fedewa 
Jerry Fedewa Homes Inc. 
5570 Okemos Road  
East Lansing, MI  48823 
 

   October 18, 2018 
Dear Mr. Fedewa: 
 
Traffic Engineering Associates, Inc. (TEA) conducted a trip generation analysis to 
determine the approximate future vehicle trips which could be generated by the proposed 
residential development located on Chief Okemos Circle in Meridian Charter Township, 
Ingham County, Michigan.  
 
 
PROJECT DESCRIPTION 
 
The proposed residential development will have 15 townhouse units on approximately 1.5 
acres with one (1) proposed driveway location on Chief Okemos Circle. The purpose of 
this study is to provide a trip generation for the proposed new residential development. 
 
 
TRAFFIC ANALYSIS 
 
For this analysis, trip generation rates were derived from the ITE TRIP GENERATION 
MANUAL (10th edition). The ITE trip generation rates for Multifamily Housing (Low-Rise) 
(Land Use Code 220), were selected as representing the 15 townhouse units.  The ITE 
description of Multifamily Housing (Low-Rise) is as follows: 
 
Low-rise multifamily housing includes apartments, townhouses, and condominiums 
located within the same building with at least three other dwelling units and that have one 
or two levels (floors). 
 
It is projected that the proposed residential development will generate 8 vehicle trips 
during the AM peak hour, 11 vehicle trips during the PM peak hour, and a weekday total 
of 110 vehicle trips. 
 

Vehicle Trip Generation Summary 
 

Description Size AM Peak Hour PM Peak Hour Weekday In Out Total In Out Total 
Multifamily Housing 
(Low-Rise), Code 220 

15 
Units 2 6 8 7 4 11 110 

 



2 
 

 

 
FINDINGS 
 
In accordance with the guidelines set forth in “Evaluating Traffic Impact Studies, A 
Recommended Practice for Michigan Communities,” sponsored by the Tri-County 
Regional Planning Commission and the Michigan Department of Transportation, if a 
proposed site is expected to generate at least 100 directional trips during the peak hour 
or at least 750 trips during an average day, a traffic impact statement is required.  If the 
traffic generated by the site is expected to be between 50 and 99 directional trips during 
a peak hour, a traffic impact assessment shall be required.  Using the Meridian Charter 
Township traffic impact guidelines, neither a traffic assessment nor traffic impact 
statement would be required for this development based on projected volumes. 
 
If you have any questions, please write or call. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
Heather L. Zull, PE  





....--.. 
0::: 
........... 
0 
I") 

• 
LO 
r-,... 
I") 

,.......,. 
~ ...._... --o:t 
0 . 
LO 
co 
I") 

TREE SURVEY 

140 100.42'(M) 100.00'(R) 

C,2e 

0127 
0 
126 

0 125 
0 

124 

0123 

o 122 

O 121 

120 

o 119 

141 o 142 
0143 

1440 0 145 

o 118 

O 117 

0116 

0115 

0114 

112 °113 

0111 

0110 

0109 
0108 

0147 

0146 

0148 150 
0149 

129 
130 0 

1310 ,-... 
0::: ........... 

132 ---o:t 
1330 • r-,... 
1340 0) 

,-... 
::;E 
'-' -CX) 
-o:t 

• r-,... 
CX) 

N 

106 199.83'(M&R) 

100.26, (M) 1 oo.32' (R) 
· 136 

0 

138 
135 

107 1 05 10~ 1 o3 ~ 102 0 1 O'I 

OA.... 
'v 

PROPERTY DESCRIPTION: 
LOT 4, CHIEF OKEMOS, A SUBDIVISION 
ON PART OF THE SE 1/4 OF SECTION 
22, T4N, R1W, MERIDIAN TWP., 
INGHAM COUNTY, MICHIGAN. 

TREE TRUNK DIA. 
139 NO. SPECIES 

100 28mpl (MAPLE) 
101 20box (BOXELDER) 
102 14cher (CHERRY) 
103 16ctwd (COTTONWOOD) 
104 16ctwd 
105 1 Ocher 
106 16ctwd 
107 1 Owal (WALNUT) 
108 16cher 
109 1 Ocher 
110 08cher 
1 1 1 08cher 
112 26hack (HACKBERRY) 
113 20cher 
114 14cher 
115 10hack 

~ 116 12cher 
117 16mpl 

()A.... 118 ,,......, 14cher 
0::: V 119 18cher 
'-' - 120 14hick (HICKORY) CX) 
r-,... 

121 1 Ohack • 
0) 
CX) 122 14hack 
N 123 16cher ......... 

124 08ook ~ 
........... 125 24ook -0 

126 10hock 0 
• 

0 127 1 Ocher 
0) 

128 12cher N 
129 06elm 
130 16oak 
131 08ook 
132 14elm 
133 14ook-2 (2 STEMS) 
134 08cher 
135 16cher 
136 14spr 
137 14wal 

U) 138 14spr (SPRUCE) 

0 139 18spr 

::E 140 06elm 
w 141 12cher 
~w 142 1 Ocher 
0 ....J 143 06opple (..) 

144 06cher LL 0::: 145 10elm w-_u 146 12ook 
::i::: 147 12oak 
(.) 148 14oak-2 

100 149 06apple 
0 150 06apple 

THIS IS NOT A BOUNDARY SURVEY. Terry L. Wiegman, P.S. No. 39100 
(Authorized Agent) LEGEND 

o - Tree Location ~ - Line Not To Scale 

107 - Tree No. R - Record Measurement 
o - Fnd. Cor. ( as noted) M - Field Mec1surement ·-------

BENCHMARK SURVEYING, LLC 
9851 MISSAUKEE LANE, HASLETI, Ml 48840 

(517) 230-186>5 * tw@benchmorksurv·eying.us 

IJ/////////1/~ , 
\\ 11 . t, OF MI ~ · 

\\·\ ,< i-.."'\ • 'I" ''''Cf..;> ~ ~ \ '\ \'"' \ • I f ,( G,: -I • ~--''TERRY L. ''•,,:~ ~ 
~ _:· w'IEGMAN ·· .. * ~ 
~ = LAND : ~ ~ - . . ~ 

~ c:. SURVEYOR _: §§ 
Field work by: ~ "'~ -._ No, _: cy ~ 

Date: 
TW 

11/3/18 ~~---,, 39100 ,,'--~~ ~ 
For: G.S. FEDEWA BUILDERS, INC. Sheet 1 of 1 D t f f' Id k - J'I"" ', ,, 0~v\\'0 ..:....:_:__:.__:..:......:...::.:...=..;.;.:_:_::..:.;:;::,:..;::.:..:..::.:....:.:..:..:..:__ ____ ---1,--=.:..:.:~~:::::;:::....:..:.....::;:::::;;:..--1 a e o , e w or : ~ , .l) · , , , ... , . , ' S 0~ \ \ . , 
Location: 1730 CHIEF OKEMOS CIRCLE O 20 40 18_ 062 ~ LAND //11\ 

OKEMOS, Ml •-=---==i ~////////// . c=-==- Proj. No. @ 
SCJ\LE: 1" = 40' C Copyright 2014 Drawn by: TW Dwg. No. 18-062TREES 

~~~-·--- ---~ 

• 



B
R

S
E

 N
O

T
E

:  
A

LL
 T

R
E

E
S

 W
IT

H
IN

 T
H

E
 S

IT
E

 H
A

V
E

 B
E

E
N

 P
R

E
V

O
U

S
LY

 R
E

M
O

V
E

D
 B

Y
 O

T
H

E
R

S
.  

N
O

 A
D

D
IT

IO
N

A
L 

R
E

M
O

V
A

LS
 A

R
E

 P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

 F
O

R
 T

H
IS

 D
E

V
E

LO
P

M
E

N
T

.
A

LL
 IN

F
O

R
M

A
T

IO
N

 O
N

 T
H

IS
 S

H
E

E
T

 IS
 F

O
R

 G
E

N
E

R
A

L 
R

E
F

E
R

E
N

C
E

 O
N

LY
.  

D
O

 N
O

T
 S

C
A

LE
.

C
01

00

" 

. 
, • ' ' 

FO
R

: 
M

IK
E 

BO
NE

 

B
U

IL
D

IN
G

 
FI

N
. 

FL
O

O
R

 
E

LE
V

 =
 

7
7

.6
5

 

..
..

..
..

..
.

. ... !
. I 

::
::

::
 ·. 

::
:.

 :.
 \ 

..
..

..
..

..
 " 

. 

' JI 
..

..
..

. 
\\ 

..
. 

.· ...
.. ,\

 

0 0 

·,
~

 
~
 

-
-

'-
-

T
O

PO
G

R
A

PH
IC

A
L

 

~
 

~
 

.,,.,
. 

10
· 

SD
R

U
C

E
V

 

B
UI

LD
IN

G
 

FI
N

. 
FL

O
O

R
 

EL
EV

 
=

 
8

2
.2

2
 

1~
8

1
 

1 SU
RV

EY
 

, 
I 

. 
I 

: 
/ 

C
H

IE
F 

O
KE

M
O

S 
C

IR
C

LE
 

l I 0 I 0 l/
 

I I 

~ 
:: 

II 
:<

 
'' 

/~
 

ii 
II 

l 
ll 

'I 
~ 

II
 

I 

I 
" 

· ·
 s:r

 .
 M

.H
. 

#1
 ,

 
~ 

II 
l 

/B
E

N
C

H
M

A
R

K
 

. 
·.

. 
· 

: 
. 

. 
7\

 JI 
$1

11
! 

>
 

w
~

'1
/,

. 
,,

 
,~

s 
..

. 
>

' 
..

..
 

''';
}:

 
I 

. 
, 

' 
. 

1, 
' 

\ 
~ 

• 
. 

• 
. 

J 
,
,
 

~
 

. :
::

 ..
 ,1

' 
If 

\~ 
\ 

.. 
. 

>
 

·
·
·
·
·
/
 

/'
 

\ 
..

 . 

I 
...

.. 1
, 

(, 
'\

 
..

 . 
:. 

::
 L

 
\~ 

..
 

' 
..

 

M
.H

. 
·#1

-•
.• 

_
,
 . ~

 
BU

IL
D

IN
G

 
F

ill
. 

FL
O

O
q 

E
LE

V
 =

 
7

7
 :

'3
 

\ 
16

" 
S

P
R

U
C

E
 

1
6

" 
S

P
R

U
C

E
 V

 
.,_

, 
V

 
:o

 .. 
s~

P
U

CE
 

M
2

9
0

. 

"'1
 

f 
'1

0 
\\

 

8
"

CE
D

A
~

 
,, 

1
6

" 
S

fR
U

d
E

 

~
 1 o

· 
&

\ 
~
 

R
IJ

C
E

 V
 "' N 

1 o
· 

s
P

R
u

tE
 V

 
o 

~
O

P 
.i)U

~f"
:y:-

~8 i>
~

 
~ 

W
"'

"S
PR

U
C
E

V
 

10
· 

SP
R

U
C

E 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
'!

)
~

 
./ 

10
·· 

s
;:

ic
E

~
 

'"
-7

 
~
~
-
~
 

~
~

4
7'

 
R

9
7

4
,.

 

-

( I 

/ 

:.,
_ 

12
"" 

A
S
H

O
 

----
--0

1 2
 • 

,€
:L

M
 

) Q. 
EL

M
 

I 

\ ----
--- i 

\ \ 

v 1
0

" 
S

P
R

U
C

E
 

lO
" 

E
LM

 0 

" "' ' 
( 

2
4

" 
A

SH
 0 16

" 
C

H
E

R
R

Y
 

LC
JT

 4
 

C
l ' 11 )

" 
O

A
K

 

-
----

'--
-

m
 

~
 

i \ 

%
 

',!?
 

-
/ 

. d
:l:~

v 

I 14
 

I 
,Is

·· 
O

A
K

 ,
 

. 

I 

8 

-
-

0

10
· 

C
H

E
R

R
Y

 1
8

" 
A

S
P

E
. 

0
16

" 
M

A
P

LE
 

((
) ... N
 :::
, 

...
 

I •
 ::

: 
. 

. 
' 

~I
 ·

··•
··· .

....
 i 

'°I 
. :-

: 
: .

 ·.·. 
·1

 
O

'>
 

..
 -
..

 -
..

..
..

 
-

'ii
 <

:::
•-:

! 
..

..
..

..
..

..
. 

-:.:-
:-:-:

: ·:
-:-:

·.->
:.: 

.. _
. 

· r
. 

>- a::
 

::
:·

 .. 
0 

..
. 

1· 
a..

 
·:

: 
·: 

. 
a::

 .
..

..
..

. 
. 

,c
( 

·-
:-

:-
..

 : 
·.

-
u 

..
..

..
 , .
. 

....
... 

\ 

~
-

~
 

gJ-
---

.---
~

. 
\ 

0 
I 

14
•• 

M
A

P
LE

 

8
" 

C
H

E
R

R
Y

 
12

" 
A

S
P

E
N

 
1

0
" 

A
S

P
EN

 
. . 

I 
.. 

·1·
 

·11
 

d ~ :::
, 

8 

'<
) "· 

\ 

~
- ~
 

I 
'--

-
~

O
G

E
 O

F 
B

R
U

S
H

 
-

/ 

8
3

 

I. I I 

I l /
 

~ 
"' 

_,_
,_,

_ 
,-

x-
x-

x
-

-
x-

x-
x-

M
3

6
5

J
)
(
)
/
~

/-
x-

x-
-

x-
-
)
(
.
-
x

-

S
A

N
IT

A
R

Y
 

M
A

N
H

O
LE

 
#1

 
TO

C
 

=
 

8
1

.6
3

 
8

" 
E

A
S

T
 

=
 

7
0

.8
3

 
6

" 
N

W
 

=
 

7
1.

2
0

 
B

" 
SW

 
-

71
.1

8 

-
-
-
-
-

=
 

D
E

E
D

 
LI

N
E

 

~
~

~
~

*
"
=

F
E

N
C

E
 

I/
/:

\ 
/c

:q
 

=
 

A
S

P
H

A
LT

 

LE
G

EN
D

 

,.,
so

 
=

 
E

X
IS

TI
N

G
 

S
P

O
T 

E
LE

V
A

TI
O

N
 

"-
--

"'"o
~ 

=
 

E
X

IS
TI

N
G

 
C

O
N

TO
U

R
 

E
LE

V
A

TI
O

N
 

-
-

-
=

 
TO

P
 

O
F 

B
A

N
K

 

-
· 

· 
-

=
 

E
D

G
E

 
O

F 
B

R
U

S
H

 

=
 

=
 

=
 

=
 

S
A

N
IT

A
R

Y
 S

EW
ER

 

-
-
-
-
-
"
-
-
-

--
-

S
TO

R
M

 
S

EW
E

R
 

S
TO

R
M

 
M

AN
 H

O
LE

 
#1

 
TO

C
 =

 
6

1.
4

4 
1

2
" 

E
A

S
T 

=
 

7
2

.9
5

 
1

2
" 

W
E

S
T 

=
 

7
2

.9
2

 

®
 

=
 

S
A

N
IT

A
R

Y
 M

A
N

H
O

LE
 

@
 

=
 

D
R

A
IN

A
G

E
 

M
A

N
H

O
LE

 

~
 

=
 

FI
R

E
 

H
Y

D
R

A
N

T
 

¢ 
=

 
LI

G
H

T 
P

O
LE

 

" 
=

 
U

T
IL

IT
Y

 P
E

D
E

S
TA

L 

0 
=

 
D

IC
ID

U
O

U
S

 
TI

R
EE

 

w
 

=
 

C
O

N
IF

E
R

O
U

S
 

TI
R

EE
 

-
-w

-
-

-
W

AT
IE

R
 

LI
N

E
 

-
-

G
 -

-
=

 
G

A
S

 
LI

N
E

 

-
-

-
-

=
 

R
O

A
D

 
R

IG
H

T 
O

F 
W

AY
 

·. :
::

: -
. 

. 
..

..
 

.
.
.
.
 

....
 ·1

 · 
.
.
.
.
.
.
 

. 
·1

 .. 
. .

 . 
. 

. 
.
.
.
.
.
.
 

..
. 

. .
 

. 

\ \ \ \ 
~

~
@

--
..

_
-.

..
 

S
C

A
LE

 
1'

' 
=

 2
0

' 

\ 
·
~

 
\ \ J 

S
EC

 2
1 

B
E

N
C

H
 

M
A

R
K

: 
TO

P
 

O
F 

B
IG

 
AR

M
 

O
F 

FI
R

E 
H

Y
D

R
A

N
T

 
A

T
 

S
O

U
T

H
E

A
S

T
 

C
O

R
N

E
R

 
O

F 
LO

T 
4 

E
LE

V
 

=
 

8
2

.6
1 

A
LL

 
E

LE
V

A
TI

O
N

S
 

A
R

E
 

8
0

0
 F

E
E

T 
P

LU
S

 

LE
G

A
L 

D
E

S
C

R
IP

TI
O

N
: 

4
0

' 
6

0
' 

N
EW

M
AN

 
R

D
 

SE
C

 
22

 

ii! 

R
D

 
c;

;, 

SI
T

E
.I

I 
ffi 0 a 

S
E

C
 2

7 

LO
C

A
TI

O
N

 
M

A
P 

N
O

 
S

C
A

LE
 

! ·®
· ~ 

SE
C

 
23

 

LO
T 

4,
 

C
H

IE
F 

O
K

E
M

O
S

 
S

U
B

D
IV

IS
IO

N
, 

P
A

R
T

 
O

F 
TH

E
 

S
O

U
TH

E
A

S
T

 1
/4

 O
F

 S
E

C
TI

O
N

 
2

2
, 

T
4N

, 
R

1W
, 

M
E

R
ID

IA
N

 
TO

W
N

S
H

IP
, 

IN
G

H
A

M
 

C
O

U
N

TY
, 

M
IC

H
IG

A
N

. 

TH
IS

 
P

LA
N

 
W

A
S

 
M

A
D

E
 

A
T

 
TH

E
 

D
IR

E
C

TI
O

N
 

O
F 

TH
E

 
P

A
R

T
IE

S
 

N
A

M
E

D
 

H
E

R
E

O
N

 
A

N
D

 
IS

 
IN

TI
E

N
D

E
D

 
S

O
LE

LY
 F

O
R

 
TH

E
IR

 
IM

M
E

D
IA

TI
E

 
U

S
E

. 
N

O
 

S
U

R
V

E
Y

 H
A

S
 

B
E

E
N

 
M

A
D

E
 

A
N

D
 

N
O

 
P

R
O

P
E

R
TY

 L
IN

E
S

 
W

ER
E 

M
O

N
U

M
E

N
TI

E
D

, 
U

N
LE

S
S

 
O

TH
E

R
W

IS
E

 
S

P
E

C
IF

IC
A

L
LY

 
N

O
TI

ED
, 

A
N

D
 

N
O

 
D

IM
E

N
S

IO
N

S
 

A
R

E
 

IN
TI

E
N

D
E

D
 

FO
R

 
U

S
E

 
IN

 
E

S
TA

B
LI

S
H

IN
G

 
P

R
O

E
R

TY
 

LI
N

E
S

. 

rfr;
';:v

r1
nD

_1:
~

~-~
 

re
c 

2 
° 1

oc
3 

" 
U

L
 

u 
...

..
. 

•j I 
L

 .
 -

. 
·,-

. 
.: 

I 
~
 

,_
, 

__
_ 

,..,
 

~·
 

·-
.1

-
' 

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

---

, 

~
-
,
~

 r
1-

Jd
 

LA
R

R
Y

 
A'.

 
B

R
Y

A
N

 
D

A
 T

E 
P

R
O

FE
S

S
IO

N
A

L 
S

U
R

V
E

YO
R

 N
O

. 
2

5
8

3
2 

A
LL

 
D

IM
E

N
S

IO
N

S
 

A
R

E
 

IN
 

FE
E

T 
A

N
D

 
D

E
C

IM
A

LS
 

TH
E

R
E

O
F 

K
EB

S 
IN

C
. 

K
YE

S 
EN

G
IN

EE
R

IN
G

 •
 B

RY
AN

 L
AN

D 
SU

RV
EY

S 
6

0
1

9
 

M
ar

sh
 

R
oo

d 
H

as
le

tt
, 

M
ic

h
ig

an
 

4
8

8
40

 
P

h
. 

(5
1

7
) 

3
3

9
-1

0
1

4
 

D
R

A
W

N
 

BY
 

E
K

B
 

FI
EL

D 
W

OR
K 

BY
 

R
F 

S
H

E
E

T 
1 

O
F

 
1 

20
4 

S
. 

C
oc

hr
on

 
A

ve
. 

C
ha

rl
ot

te
, 

M
ic

hi
ga

n 
4

8
8

1
3

 
P

h
. 

(5
1

7
) 

5
4

3
-7

0
7

6
 

SE
C

TI
O

N 
2

2
, 

T4
N

, 
R

1W
 

JO
B 

N
U

M
B

ER
: 

9
8

-T
-5

8
3

2
1

 



Ex.
 B

uild
ing

 
465

5 D
obi

e R
d 

I • I • I • I • I • I • I • I •
 I • I • I • I • I • I • I • I •
 I ' I • I ' I ' I • I ' I ' I ' I ' I ' I ' I ' I ' I ' I ' I ' 

RC
 

Ex
. B

uild
ing

 
1 72

0 C
hie

f O
kem

os 
Cir

cle
 Ap

t. ' 

• • I ' I ' I ' I • I ' I • I ' I ' I ' I ' I • I ' I ' I ' 
f±!

 
of

 t:</ ."-i
 ,' Q; I ' I • I ' I ' I ' I • I ' I • I ' I • I ' 

' 

~ ~ ""'"' u (/)_
 0 ~ 0 ~ µ,l ""'"' ::c: u 

I 
\ • \ • \ •

 \ • \ • \ •
 \ • \ • \ •
 \ • \ • \ •
 \ • \ • \ • \ •
 \ \~ •• \'5 \~ \ • \ • \ •

 \ • \ • \ •
 \ • \ • 

I 
• 

' 
\ 

I 
• 

\ • \ • 

L
 li
 

NO
RT

H 
L 0 

5' 
20'

 
40'

 
SC

AL
E: 

1 "=
 20

'-0"
 

EX
. D

RIV
EW

AY
 

I 50'
 

r-

' 
\ 

I 
• 

' 
\ 

I 
• 

' 
\ 

---1-
-----

-----
-----

-----
-----

----.
.,.,_ _

_ .).f
~!-

-~H
==

~25
~'=

rt~
=:-

-!i.'
6~0

' 1E~~
X.-

!_R
~O

W~
-t-~

-,--
----

-.-•
 ----

----
----

---·
 

·,. 
i;----

-----
-----

-----
-----

..... ....
.. 

;;; 
~:;.:

:::_:
::::::

_: :_
 ....

..........
..... 

' 
I 

DE
CK

 LI
GH

T, 
TY

P. 
~
 

-------
----

----
----

--
----

----
~ 
t 

'•, 
' 

.. ..
..... 

..... 
"' 

' 
---

-~
--

' 
., 

6?•
 

' 
.....

.....
.... 

·····
··· 

.,, 
' 

43
' 

' 
' 

' 
., 

' 
·····

·· ..
.....

... .
. 

.,, 
' 

' 
' 

., 
. . . .

 . 
' 

' 
' 

' 
., 

' 
. . . .

 . . . .
 . . . .
 . . . .
 . . . .

 . 
'' 

. ' 
' 

·---
' 

., 
. 

---
-, 

' 
. 

' 
' 

' 
'·,.,.,_ 

C
 1 

\ 
f: 

6 U
NIT

 B
 DG

 #2
 

'. ___
 J___

 
' 

• I 
AC

CE
SS

 W
AL

K 
DE

CK
 

SIT
E 

SIG
N 

I' 
20' 

Ex
. B

uild
ing

 
174

5 H
am

ilto
n R

d 

'· 
' 

" 
' 

' 
'· 

' 
" 

' 
' 

'· 
' 

·i· 
' 

' 
'· 

' 
. 

' 
' 

'·,.
 

154
' 

! 
;;\" 

C, 
'·

, 
' 

0 
"'

 
' 

·~ 
. 

, 
I 

••-u
11 

·, 
. 

,, 
•,,

 
I 

'· 
. 

'• 
I 

'· 
. 

'•
 

I 

'•, 
' 

--
"' 

., 
' 

' 
"' 

Cl 
'·

 
I 

I 

'· 
' 

' 
-­

'·
 

I 
I 

'•
 

I 
'•

 
\ 

I 
'•

, 
1 

I 
.. , 

I 
I 

•
, 

I 
• 

• 
,.. 

I 
I 

,.
. 

I 
I 

, .. 
I 

I 
--

--
--

--
-~

 
I 

/56
, 

---
---

---
---

---
---

---
---

---
-­

----
----

---
I 

·---
----

----
----

----
----

----
----

-
! 

'... .
 . . . . .
 . . . . .
 . . . . .
 . . . . .
 . . . .
 . . . . .
 . .....

......
......

......
 , .. .

 
~
 

~
 

0 
f..:.I

 \.:)
 

0 ,,, -a-
,,, 

~
 

~ 

~ 
µv

 
0 ,,, 

~
 

I I I 
~
 

:.Ob
-A 

0 I 
-

' 
'a' 

"''q
 

: 
-

-a­ ~
 

-a­ ~
 

--
. 

, 
. 

' I ' I ' I ' I ' I 

r-
---

---
-

1 I I 

t:: 0 ~ u . 

. Un
Na

me
d 

Ex
. D

riv
e 

BIC
YC

LE
 PA

RK
ING

 
EX

PA
NS

ION
 PA

RK
ING

 (4
) 

DU
MP

ST
ER

 EN
CL

OS
UR

E 
ON

 CO
NC

RE
TE

 PA
D 

W
 / F
EN

CE
 EN

CL
OS

UR
E 

AN
D B

OL
LA

RD
S 

Ex
. B

uild
ing

 

(.!) ~
 a::: lJJ 

~ 
LU 

~! 
~-

~ 
~~
 

( I
'\ <:

5 <::
, I

 e 
'..;

J 
.... 

~o
 

<
 :%.~.:: ~

 
lJJ ~

 .,.i
v-~

 
~
~
 .... i

 
Q

 ~
 lb

 
Cl)

 tti 
~
 

-~ 
a:: .... -

~~
 r 

en ~
!lt 

I •
 I 

er.>
 a::: -- o:i ~
 

Cl)
 

" 
0::: 

~ 
w

 z
 

o o
=>

o 
...J

<(
ON

 
O

uo
 

-
0 

:::> C
l:'. ~

 d, 
CC 

en 
<("

" 
0 

IM
 

<( 
~
 (!

)..:
. 

>
 LJ.J z

;,:; 
>

 ~ 
"" 

w
 O (!

) LJ
.J 

O
oz

Z 
w

 [;:; U
) ~
 

u. U
') 
~
 a. 

Cl)
 

...I
 

(9 
tii ~ 

• " I" ci ~ iii I
 ~ • -1~ i5 : 0 o ~ . " 
w

 
0 ~ 

a : '.)
 J 

Cr.
> 

~ § " ~ " u ~ 8 ' • ~ • ~ u < 
F-

---
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
-

i,.-
'/ 

--
---

i--~
--.1

.--'
 

' 
OP

EN
 

I 
...... 

~
 

SP 
AC

E 
1 ·r-

-.. 
·~

 

II I 
11 

I 
: 

1 
n 

w
 

'1~ 1
 

• 
: 

I~
; 

c'a'JI
I 

llr::'o':J
II 

llca'.::J
II 

: ~
 : 

~
 µ,l 

I 
I 

I 
I 

I
~

-
I 

I 
D

 : 
' 

i 
: 

112
 

20' 
rt

--
--

lgl-1
 I 

I I!
 

~--~~
~~i'1

<5J\i
------

---~-
1-1--

~--~ 
------

----
______

__ :~ 
------

----
------

----
~ __ ""'"' __ "'"

' __ fflll: ____
 

---
---

---
-

--
--

--
--

--
J ~Ip.

; !
 

! 
AP

PR
OX

 SI
ZE

 
I 

I 
-------

-----
------

--
~
/
~
 

'•' 
'•' 

,, 
O' 

I 
'1

' 
'1'

 
, '

 
g

• 
. 

r,, 

Ex
. P

ark
ing

 
174

9 H
am

ilto
n R

d 
Cl 

Ex
. B

uild
ing

 
Cl)

 w
 

~
 0 I z 

LJ.J 
~
 

RC
 

~~
g~

" 
~ 

I 
'1

' 
z
~
~
 

--···
·····

·····
·····

·····
·····

·····
·····

·····
·····

·····
·····

·····
··j'··

·, 
r~
ii
r~
~~
~ 

R
 . 

.. 
:s: 5

 
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

 __
J 

LA
ND

SC
AP

E .. B
UF

FE
lt···

· ··
······

······
······

······
······

······
······

·····,
······

······
·····~

······
······

······
······

······
······

······
···'-·

--
LIN

E, 
TY

P. 

1-o
us

 
i 

W
 ...JU

JO
 

17 4
1 C

hie
f O

kem
os 

Cir
cle

 Ap
t. 

d ~ 
~ 
~ 

5 
0::: 

N
 ~ 

I<( 
Q

 
-

0 
>-

u (/)
-LJ.. ~

 
<( 

Cl)
 

LJ.J 
-

...J
 

I-
-

" 
---

---
--

CA
RP

OR
T 

~z
i38

 ~
 

:::
)O

~ 
-

----
----

----
----

----
----

----
----

----
----

----
----

-~-
--i-

----
----

----
----

----
----

----
----

----
----

----
----

----
----

----
----

----
----

----
----

----
----

----
----

----
--

w
 ' ~

 LJ.J
 

Cl)
 

~
l.C

)~
~

 
----

----
----

----
-\--

---
----

----
-•--

----
----

----
----

----
---·

~--
----

----
----

----
----

----
----

----
----

----
----

----
----

----
NO

TE
S: 

1. 
SID

EW
AL

K R
EP

LA
CE

ME
NT

 AC
RO

SS
 PR

OP
OS

ED
 EN

TR
AN

CE
 SH

AL
L B

E 7
" T

HIC
KE

NE
D 

SE
CT

ION
 

WI
TH

 3"
 SA

ND
 BA

SE
 UN

DE
R A

LL
 PA

TH
WA

YS
. 

2. T
HE

RE
 AR

E N
O K

NO
WN

 CO
NT

AM
INA

TIO
NS

 OR
 HA

ZA
RD

OU
S M

AT
ER

IAL
S O

N S
ITE

. 
3. T

HE
 PR

OJ
EC

T W
ILL

 NO
T A

DV
ER

SE
LY

 AF
FE

CT
 OR

 BE
 HA

ZA
RD

OU
S T

O E
XIS

TIN
G N

EIG
HB

OR
ING

 US
ES

. 
4. N

O E
AS

EM
EN

TS
 AR

E K
NO

W 
TO

 EX
IST

 ON
 PR

OP
OS

ED
 SI

TE
. R

EF
ER

 TO
 PL

AT
 AN

D I
NC

LU
DE

D P
RO

PE
RT

Y S
UR

VE
Y. 

5. B
UIL

DIN
G F

OO
TP

RIN
T I

S F
OR

 PR
ES

EN
TA

TIO
N P

UR
PO

SE
S O

NL
Y A

ND
 NO

T T
O B

E 
US

ED
 FO

R C
ON

ST
RU

CT
ION

 LA
YO

UT
 PU

RP
OS

ES
. 

6. 
AL

L T
RE

E P
RO

TE
CT

ION
 IF

 RE
Q'D

 SH
AL

L B
E I

NS
TA

LL
ED

 BY
 TH

E C
ON

TR
AC

TO
R 

PR
IOR

 TO
 CO

MM
EN

CE
ME

NT
 OF

 DE
MO

LIT
ION

 AN
D/O

R N
EW

 
CO

NS
TR

UC
TIO

N A
ND

 RE
MA

IN 
IN 

PL
AC

E F
OR

 TH
E D

UR
AT

ION
 OF

 TH
E P

RO
JEC

T. 
7. O

WN
ER

/CO
NT

RA
CT

OR
 SH

AL
L A

CQ
UIR

E A
 LA

ND
 CL

EA
RIN

G P
ER

MI
T F

RO
M 

ME
RID

IAN
 TW

P. 
8. 

AL
L C

ON
ST

RU
CT

ION
 SH

AL
L B

E I
N A

CC
OR

DA
NC

E W
ITH

 TH
E M

ER
IDI

AN
 TW

P. 
EN

GIN
EE

RIN
G 

DE
SIG

N A
ND

 CO
NS

TR
UC

TIO
N S

TA
ND

AR
DS

. 
9. 

PE
RM

IT 
RE

Q'D
 FO

R A
LL

 W
OR

K W
ITH

IN 
TH

E H
AM

ILT
ON

 RO
AD

 RO
W.

 
10.

 O
WN

ER
/CO

NT
RA

CT
OR

 SH
AL

L O
BT

AIN
 AL

L N
EC

ES
SA

RY
 PE

RM
ITS

, L
ICE

NS
ES

, A
ND

 
AP

PR
OV

AL
S F

RO
M 

TH
E I

NG
HA

M 
CO

UN
TY

 DR
AIN

 CO
MM

ISS
ION

ER
'S O

FF
ICE

, IN
GH

AM
 

CO
UN

TY
 RO

AD
 CO

MM
ISS

ION
, A

ND
 M

ER
IDI

AN
 TW

P P
RIO

R T
O A

NY
 CO

NS
TR

UC
TIO

N. 
11.

 A
LL

 EX
IST

ING
 CO

NC
RE

TE
 AN

D B
ITU

MI
NO

US
 TO

 BE
 RE

MO
VE

D 
SH

AL
L B

E S
A W

CU
T. 

AL
L C

ON
CR

ET
E A

ND
 BI

TU
MI

NO
US

 RE
MO

VA
LS

 SH
AL

L B
E T

AK
EN

 OF
F-S

ITE
 TO

 A
 LO

CA
TIO

N 
TO

 BE
 DE

TE
RM

INE
D B

Y T
HE

 CO
NT

RA
CT

OR
. 

DE
CK

 
OP

EN
 SP

AC
E 

j ~
 8 C\.I 

RAA
 

DE
CK

 LI
GH

T, 
TY

P. 
• ,,._ 

LA
ND

SC
AP

E I
SL

AN
D, 

TY
P. 

SIT
E S

UM
MA

RY
 

AR
EA

= 6
6,0

19 
SF 

(1.5
2 A

CR
E) 

ZO
NIN

G: 
RC

 M
UL

TI-
FA

MI
LY

 
AL

LO
W A

BL
E D

EN
SIT

Y =
 14 

UN
ITS

/ AC
RE

 
PR

OP
. 1

5 U
NI

TS
= 9

.9 U
NI

TS
/AC

RE
 

BU
ILD

ING
 H

EIG
HT

= 3
7' 

YA
RD

 SE
TB

AC
KS

: 1
5' N

OR
TH

, 1
5' W

ES
T, 

15'
 EA

ST
, 1

5' S
OU

TH
 

LA
ND

SC
AP

E B
UF

FE
R: 

25'
 NO

RT
H~

 50
' W

ES
T, 

25'
 EA

ST
, 2

5' S
OU

TH
 

AR
EA

 W
ITH

IN 
SE

TB
AC

KS
= 3

1 5
3<"S

 SF
 

OP
EN

 SP
AC

E (
SID

E &
 BA

CK
 YA

RD
)= 

43,
272

 SF
= 6

5.5
% 

PA
RK

ING
: 

30 
GA

RA
GE

 SP
 AC

ES
, 

4E
XP

AN
SIO

N 

0 .
... 

0 
u. w

 
I u PR

OJ
EC

T 
MG

R. 
DA

TE 
BRS

 
8/

20
/1

8 
DR

AW
N 

BY 
""" 

BRS
 

8/2
0/1

8 
EN

GIN
EE

R 
DA

TE 
BRS

 
8/2

0/1
8 

CA
D 

FIL
E 

ED
IT 

SC
ALE

 
1"

=2
0'

 
DR

AW
ING

 

PLO
T 

SC
l'H

 

PR
OJ

EC
T 

00
01

 

C2
.0 

SH
EE

T 
NO

. 



• I • I , I , I • I 
I ' I ' I ' 

, 
I ' I ' I ' I ' I ' 

' 
' 

' 
' 

' 
' 

' 
' 

' 
' 

' 
' 

' 
' 

; 
' 

' 
' 

' 
' 

' 
' 

' 
' 

' 
' 

' 
' 

' 
' 

' 
' 

' 

' I ' I ' 
' • 

' 
' 

' 
' 

' 
' 

' 
' 

' 
' 

' 
' 

' 
' 

' 
' 

' 
' 

' 
' 

' 
' 

' 
' 

' 
' 

' 
' 

' 
' 

' 
' 

' 
' 

' 
; 

. 
' 

' 
'· 

' 
' 

' 
' 

. 
., 

' 
' 

. 
' 

' 
'• 

' 
' 

' 
' 

' 
., 

' 
' 

. 
' 

' 
'· 

' 
' 

' 
' 

' 
. 

' 
,. 

' 
' 

' 
' 

' 
• 

1--
' 

'• 
·-

·-
·-

· 
I 

• 
I 

·-
·-

·-
• 

'· 
' 

-----
-----

' 
' 

I 
·-

·-
· 

' 
. 

-----
----

' 
' 

' 
----­

' 
' 

-----
' 

., 
' 

-----
-----

-
' 

. , 
' 

-----
-----

-
' 

·-
' 

-----
-

' 
-

' 
-----

--
. 

•, 
' 

·-·-
---

--L
 

., 
' 

-----
-

' 
I 

. 
' 

' 
I 

' 
, 

•, 
I 

. 
' 

, 
, 

, 
, 

, 
, 

, 
, 

, 
, 

, 
, 

, 
, 

, 
, 

, 
.,, 

, 
,,

 
, 

, 
, 

, 
, 

, 
, 

., 
, 

, 
, 

, 
, 

, 
, 

, 
, 

, 
I 

, 
, 

,, 
,' 

,' 
,, 

,'
 

, 
, 

, 
, 

, 
,' 

,, 
, 

,'
 

,' 
,' 

,' 
,' 

,' 
, 

J 
, 

, 
, 

, 
, 

, 
, 

, 
,T'l

T,-f
TT.

.' 
INr?

_ 
, 

, 
, 

, 
, 

, 
, 

, I 
'I 

,' 
,, 

, 
,' 

,' 
, 

, 
,, .

QU
 ~
 

? 
,'(J

 ,
' 

, 
, 

,'
 

,,
 

, 
,'

 
,'

 
, 

I 

'•
 

I 
' 

' 
' 

I 
·, 

' 
• 

I 
'· 

' 
' 

I 
·, 

' 
•, 

I 
. 

' 
'•

 
I 

' 
' 

•, 
I 

. 
' 

'•
 

I 
' 

' 

··-
., 

' 
----

---
. 

' 
----

----
--

'• 
' 

-----
---

' 
' 

-----
-----

-
., 

' 
----

----
--

., 
' 

--
--

--
-

• 
I 

----
----

'· 
' 

--
--

--
--

' 
I 

-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

.. ,
 

I 
----

---
... ____
 -.; 

,
,
,
,
,
,
,
,
 

,
,
,
,
,
,
,
,
,
,
,
,
,
1

 
, , , , 

,, ,,
 ,

 ,'
 ,

' 
, 

, 
,' 

,' 
, 

,' 
,' 

, 
, 

,' 
,' 

,, 
,, 

,' 
,' 

,"" 
,
,
,
,
,
,
,
,
,
,
,
,
,
,
 

,
,
 

,,
,1

 
;
;
;
;
;
;
 

;
;
;
;
;
;
;
 

;
;
 

;
;
 

I 
,
,
,
,
,
,
,
 

,
,
 

,
,
 

,
,
,
,
,
,
,
j
 

, 
, 

, 
, 

, 
, 

, 
, 

, 
, 

, 
, 

, 
, 

, 
, 

, 
, 

, 
, 

, 
, 

, 
, 

, 
, 

, 
, 

, 
, 

, 
, 

, 
, 

, 
, 

, 
, 

, 
, 

, 
, 

, 
, 

, 
, 

, 
, 

, 
, 

, 
, 

, 
, 

, 
, 

, 
, 

, 
, 

, 
, 

, 
, 

, 
, 

, 
, 

, 
, 

, 
, 

, 
, 

, 
, 

, 
, 

, 
, 

, 
, 

, 
, 

, 
, 

, 
, 

, , 
, , , ,
 , , 

, , , , 
, 

, , , , 
, 

, 
, 

, 
, 

, 
, 

, 
, 

, 
, 

, 
, 

, 
, 

, 
, 

, 
, 

, 
, 

, 
, 

, 
, 

, 
, 

, 
, 

, 
, 

, 
, 

, 
, 

, 
, 

, 
, 

, 
, 

, 
, 

, 
, 

, 
, 

, 
, 

, 
, 

, 
, 

, 
, 

, 
, 

, 
, 

, 
, 

, 
, 

, 
, 

, 
, 

, 
, 

, 
, 

, 
, 

, 
, 

, 
, 

, 
, 

, 
, 

, 
, 

, 
, 

, 
, 

, 
, 

, 
, 

, 
, 

, 
, 

, 
, 

, 
, 

, 
, 

, 
, 

, 
, 

, 
, 

, 
, 

, 
, 

, 
, 

, 
, 

, 
, 

, 
, 

, 
, 

, 
, 

, 
, 

, 
, 

, 
, 

, 
, 

, 
, 

, 
• c

,, 
, 

, 
, 

, 
, 

, 
, 

, 
, 

, 
, 

, 
, 

, 
, 

, 
, 

, 
, 

, 
, 

, 
, 

, 
, 

, 
, 

, 
, 

, 
, 

, 
, 

, 
, 

, 
, 

, 
, 

, 
, 

, 
, 

, 
, 

, 
, 

, 
, 

, 
, 

, 
, 

, 
, 

, 
, 

, 
, 

, 
, 

, 
, 

, 
, 

, 
, 

, 
, 

, 
, 

, 
, 

, 
, 

, 
, 

, 
, 

, 
, 

, 
, 

, 
, 

, 
, 

, 
, 

, 
, 

, 
, 

, 
, 

, 
, 

, 
, 

, 
, 

, 
, 

, 
, 

, 
, 

, 
, 

, 
, 

, 
, 

, 
, 

, 
, 

, 
, 

, 
, 

, 
, 

, 
, 

, 
, 

, 
, 

, 
, 

, 
, 

, 
, 

, 
, 

, 
, 

, 
, 

, 
, 

, 
, 

, 
, 

, 
, 

, 
, 

, 
, 

, 
, 

, 
, 

, 
, 

, 
, 

, 
, 

, 
, 

, 
, 

, 
, 

, 
, 

, 
, 

, 
, 

, 
, 

, 
, 

, 
, 

, 
, 

, 
, 

, 
, 

, 
, 

, 
, 

, 
, 

, 
, 

, 
, 

, 
, 

, 
, 

L
 
, 

, 

\ • \ • \ •
 \ • \ • \ •
 \ • \ • \ 

NO
RT

H 
• \ • \ 

5' 
20'

 
40'

 
• I 

0 
• I • \ 

SC
AL

E: 
1 "=

 20
'-0"

 
• I • \ • \ •

 \ • \ • \ •
 \ • \ • \ •
 \ • \ • \ •
 \ • \ • \ •
 \ • \ • \ • \ •
 \ • \ • \ •
 \ 

----
----

----
----

----
----

--
---

---
---

---
---

--.
l..

.--
---

---
---

---
-, 

' ' 
I 

' 
I 

' 
' 

I 
I 

I 

, , , , ,
 , , , ,
 , , 

----
----

~--
----

--~
 

----
----

----
----

----
----

----
----

----
----

----
----

----
--i-

----
----

----
----

----
----

----
----

----
----

----
----

----
----

----
----

----
----

----
----

----
----

----
----

----
----

----
----

----
----

----
----

----
----

----
----

----
----

----
----

---~
----

----
----

----
----

----
----

----
----

----
----

----
----

----
--

TO
TA

L S
ITE

 (N
OT

 IN
CL

UD
ING

 AR
EA

 IN
 RO

W)
 

EX
IST

ING
 PE

RV
IOU

S =
 66,

019
 SF

 
BU

ILD
ING

 1
 =
 8,2

95 
SF 

=
 12.

6%
 

BU
ILD

ING
 2

 =
 3,4

32 
SF

= 5
.2%

 
PA

RK
IN

G/W
AL

KS
= 1

4,3
37 

SF
= 2

1.7
% 

PE
RV

IOU
S A

RE
A=

 35
,37

5 S
F=

 53
.6%

 

66,
019

 SF
 

50'
 

(.!) ~
 a::: lJJ 

~ 
LU 

~! 
~-

~ 
~~
 

rnc:
s<:>

'e 
'..;

J 
.... 

~o
 

<
 :%.~.:: ~

 
lJJ ~

 .,.i
v-~

 
~
~
 .... i

 
Q

 ~
 lb

 
Cl)

 tti 
~
 

-~ 
a:: .... -

~~
 r 

en ~
!lt 

e ~ >
 • " z 0 " > u " ci z Cl)
 UJ ~ 0 I 

I •
 I 

er.>
 a::: I Y
 ] :::; ~ 

Cl)
 a::: UJ 

z 
o o

=>
o 

_J-
:i:O

N 
O

oo
 

-
0 

=> 0
:: ::

:; d
, 

CC 
en <

i:"'
 

0 
IM

 
<( 

:::; 
(!) 

..:. 
>

 UJ z
;,:; 

>
 ~ 

""" 
UJ 

O
 (!) 

UJ 
Q

oz
Z 

UJ 
[;:; 

en~
 

LL 
"' 
~ 

a. 
Cl)

 
_J

 
(9 

tii ~ 

• '- "" " " m • u > ~
 " ~ u 0 " " a : '.)

 J 
Cr.

> 

z 
-

$ (
9 ~

 :::;"
 

oz
0 ~

 
_ o

::z 
1-

00
=i

 
UJ 

_Je
no 

_J =
,0

0 
u cc

:::;~ 
a::: 

UJ 
<i: 

-N
~

I 
u 

_oC!
J 

Cl
)~

ttz
 

Q
-IC

/J 
~z

oo
 

UJ 
=> 0

:::; 
~
 

'~
U

J 
l.C

)~
~ 

0..-
-

0 
LL UJ - I u PR

OJ
EC

T 
MG

R. 
DA

TE 

~ § " ~ " u ~ 8 ' • ~ • ~ u < , ~ " >- a::: ~ ~ => Cl)
 

Cl)
 => 0 ~ UJ 0.. UJ I- Cl)
 

BRS
 

8/
20

/1
8 

DR
AW

N 
BY

 
""" 

BRS
 

8/2
0/1

8 
EN

GIN
EE

R 
DA

TE 
BRS

 
8/2

0/1
8 

CA
D 

FIL
E 

ED
IT 

SC
ALE

 
1"

=2
0'

 
DR

AW
ING

 

PLO
T 

SC
l'H

 

PR
OJ

EC
T 

00
01

 

C2
.1 

SH
EE

T 
NO

. 



S
U

P
 F

O
R

 S
IT

E
 P

L
A

N
 R

E
V

IE
W

C
lie

n
t:

  
G

 S
 F

e
d
e
w

a
 B

u
ild

e
rs

P
ro

je
c

t:
  

C
h
ie

f 
O

k
e
m

o
s
 C

ir
c
le

 T
o
w

n
h
o
m

e
s

Lo
c

a
ti
o

n
: 
 

C
h
ie

f 
O

k
e
m

o
s
 C

ir
c
le

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
: 
 

O
k
e
m

o
s
, 

In
g
h
a
m

 C
o
, 

M
I

D
a

te
: 
 

B
y
: 
 

B
R

S
E

n
g
in

e
e
ri

n
g

R
e
vi

s
e
d
 t
o
 5

 u
n
its

 &
 p

a
rk

in
g

A
R

E
A

 O
F

H
E

IG
H

T
 O

F
F

O
R

M
U

L
A

W
A

T
E

R
W

A
T
E

R
W

A
T
E

R
F

O
R

S
U

R
F

A
C

E
S

U
R

F
A

C
E

B
E

T
W

E
E

N
P

A
R

T
IA

L
P

A
R

T
IA

L

E
L
E

V
A

T
IO

N
E

L
E

V
A

T
IO

N
S

U
R

F
A

C
E

S
V

O
L
U

M
E

V
O

L
U

M
E

A
, 

A
1
, 

A
2

H

(f
t)

(f
t̂

2
)

(f
t)

(f
t̂

3
)

8
1
.0

7
9
7
7

F
re

e
b
o
a
rd

F
re

e
b
o
a
rd

1
.0

(A
1
+

A
2
/2

) 
* 

H
7
1
2
8
.5

8
0
.0

6
2
8
0

M
a
x.

 W
a
te

r 
S

u
rf

a
c
e

P
o
n
d
 V

o
lu

m
e

2
.0

(A
1
+

A
2
/2

) 
* 

H
9
7
6
6
.0

7
8
.0

3
4
8
6

P
o
n
d
 O

u
tle

t

F
ir

s
t 
F

lu
s
h
 V

o
lu

m
e

1
.0

(A
1
+

A
2
/2

) 
* 

H
2
9
3
7
.5

7
7
.0

2
3
8
9

S
u
m

p

V
O

L
U

M
E

 P
R

O
V

ID
E

D
 (

c
f)

 =
 

1
2
7

0
3
.5

D
e

te
rm

in
e

 R
u

n
o

ff
 C

o
e

ff
ic

ie
n

ts
 -

 "
C

"

R
o

a
d

/B
ld

g
 =

  
0

.9
5

L
a

w
n
 =

  
0

.2
5

b
0

9
0

0
re

v3

S
tr

u
c
tu

re
R

o
a

d
/B

u
ild

in
g

L
a

w
n

T
o

ta
l

R
u
n
o

ff

N
u
m

b
e

r
A

re
a

A
re

a
A

re
a

C
o

e
ff
ic

ie
n
t

e
xi

s
t

6
6

0
1

9
.0

0
6

6
0

1
9

.0
0

0
.2

5

p
ro

p
.

2
2

7
4

7
.0

0
4

3
2

7
2

.0
0

6
6

0
1

9
.0

0
0

.4
9

O
R

IF
IC

E
 C

A
L
C

U
L
A

T
IO

N
S

Q
=

C
 *

 A
 *

 (
2
 *

 g
 *

 H
)^

0
.5

0
.0

0
=

O
u
tle

t 
flo

w
lin

e
w

h
e
re

 C
 =

 0
.6

2

0
.2

0
=

M
a
x.

 a
llo

w
a
b
le

 o
u
tf
lo

w
w

h
e
re

 g
 =

 3
2
.2

 f
t/
s
^2

M
a
xi

m
u
m

E
le

va
tio

n
 o

f
C

e
n
te

rl
in

e
 o

f
D

ia
m

e
te

r 
o
f

A
re

a
 o

f

It
e
m

W
a
te

r 
S

u
rf

a
c
e

O
ri

fi
c
e

H
e
a
d

O
ri

fi
c
e

O
ri

fi
c
e

F
lo

w
P

o
n
d

H
1

H
2

H
=

H
1
-H

2
D

A
Q

D
e
p
th

(f
t)

(f
t)

(f
t)

(i
n
)

(f
t^

2
)

(c
fs

)

1
2
" 

P
V

C
 S

D
R

 3
5

2
.0

0
0
.4

9
1
.5

1
1
1
.7

8
0
.7

6
4
.6

3
2
.0

0

1
0
" 

P
V

C
 S

D
R

 3
5
 

2
.0

0
0
.4

1
1
.5

9
9
.9

0
0
.5

3
3
.3

5
2
.0

0

8
" 

P
V

C
 S

D
R

 3
5
 

2
.0

0
0
.3

3
1
.6

7
7
.9

2
0
.3

4
2
.2

0
2
.0

0

6
" 

P
V

C
 S

D
R

 3
5
 

2
.0

0
0
.2

5
1
.7

5
5
.9

2
0
.1

9
1
.2

6
2
.0

0

4
" 

P
V

C
 S

D
R

 3
5
 

2
.0

0
0
.1

7
1
.8

3
3
.9

8
0
.0

9
0
.5

8
2
.0

0

3
" 

P
V

C
 S

D
R

 3
5
 

2
.0

0
0
.1

2
1
.8

8
2
.9

0
0
.0

5
0
.3

1
2
.0

0

2
"
 P

V
C

 S
D

R
 3

5
 

2
.0

0
0
.0

8
1
.9

2
1
.9

2
0
.0

2
0
.1

4
2
.0

0

1
" 

P
V

C
 S

D
R

 3
5
 

2
.0

0
0
.0

4
1
.9

6
0
.9

2
0
.0

0
0
.0

3
2
.0

0

1
/2

" 
P

V
C

 S
D

R
 3

5
2
.0

0
0
.0

2
1
.9

8
0
.4

6
0
.0

0
0
.0

1
2
.0

0

D
E

T
E

N
T

IO
N

 P
O

N
D

 D
E

S
IG

N
 C

A
L

C
U

L
A

T
IO

N

P
ro

je
ct

 N
am

e:
C

hi
ef

 O
k

em
o

s 
C

ir
cl

e 
T

o
w

nh
o
m

es
C

o
nt

. 
D

ra
in

ag
e 

A
re

a 
(A

cr
es

):
1

.5
2

E
xi

st
in

g 
R

un
o

ff
 C

o
ef

fic
ie

nt
 "

C
" 

V
al

ue
:

0
.2

5

S
ite

 L
o
ca

tio
n:

C
hi

ef
 O

k
em

o
s 

C
ir

cl
e

P
ro

p
o

se
d

 R
un

o
ff

 C
o

ef
fic

ie
nt

 "
C

" 
V

al
ue

:
0

.4
9

O
k

em
o

s,
 I

ng
ha

m
 C

o
, 

M
I

I=
R

ai
nf

al
l 1

0
 y

r,
 2

4
 h

r.
:

3
.3

7
in

ch
es

E
xi

st
in

g 
R

un
o

ff
 (

C
F

S
):

1
.2

8
C

*
I*

A

A
llo

w
ab

le
 R

el
ea

se
 R

at
e 

p
er

 A
cr

e 
(C

F
S

/ 
A

cr
e)

0
.1

5
(p

er
 I

C
D

C
)

G
 S

 F
ed

ew
a 

B
ui

ld
er

s
M

ax
im

um
 A

llo
w

ab
le

 R
el

ea
se

 R
at

e 
(C

F
S

)
0

.2
3

(A
re

a*
IC

D
C

 R
at

e)

M
ax

im
um

 U
S

E
D

 R
el

ea
se

 R
at

e 
(C

F
S

)
0

.2
3

(O
w

ne
r 

re
q

ue
st

ed
 v

al
ue

)

A
B

C
D

E
F

G
H

I
J

K

1
00

-Y
e
a
r

1
00

-Y
e
ar

P
ro

p
o

s
ed

P
ro

p
o

se
d

M
ax

im
u

m
R

e
q

u
ir

ed
B

a
n

k
fu

ll
F

ir
st

 F
lu

s
h

T
o

ta
l

2
4
-H

o
u

r
2
4-

H
o

u
r

1
0
0y

r-
24

h
r

1
00

y
r-

24
h

r
A

ll
o

w
a
b

le
10

0
y

r-
2
4h

r
2
y

r-
2
4
h

r
(1

/2
 I

n
c
h

)
R

e
q

u
ir

e
d

 

T
o

ta
l

R
ai

n
fa

ll
 A

v
g

.
A

v
g

. 
R

u
n

o
ff

R
u

n
o

ff
R

el
ea

se
S

to
ra

g
e

(2
.4

2
 I

n
c
h

e
s
)

S
to

ra
g

e
S

to
ra

g
e

D
u

ra
ti

o
n

D
u

ra
ti

o
n

R
a
in

fa
ll

In
te

n
si

ty
F

lo
w

ra
te

V
o

lu
m

e
R

a
te

V
o

lu
m

e
V

o
lu

m
e

V
o

lu
m

e
V

o
lu

m
e

(M
in

u
te

s)
(H

o
u

rs
)

(I
n

c
h

e
s)

(I
n

c
h

/H
r)

(C
F

S
)

(C
F

T
)

(C
F

S
)

(C
F

T
)

(C
F

T
)

(C
F

T
)

(C
F

T
)

5
0

.0
8

0
.7

8
9

.3
6

6
.9

5
2

,0
8

6
0

.2
3

2
,0

5
2

6
,0

6
7

1
,3

4
8

6
,0

6
7

1
0

0
.1

7
1

.1
4

6
.8

4
5
.0

8
3

,0
4

9
0

.2
3

2
,9

8
1

6
,0

6
7

1
,3

4
8

6
,0

6
7

1
5

0
.2

5
1

.4
0

5
.6

0
4
.1

6
3

,7
4

4
0

.2
3

3
,6

4
3

6
,0

6
7

1
,3

4
8

6
,0

6
7

2
0

0
.3

3
1

.7
0

5
.1

0
3
.7

9
4

,5
4

6
0

.2
3

4
,4

1
1

6
,0

6
7

1
,3

4
8

6
,0

6
7

3
0

0
.5

0
2

4
.0

0
2
.9

7
5

,3
4

8
0

.2
3

5
,1

4
6

6
,0

6
7

1
,3

4
8

6
,0

6
7

4
0

0
.6

7
2

.2
4

3
.3

7
2
.5

0
5

,9
9

9
0

.2
3

5
,7

2
9

6
,0

6
7

1
,3

4
8

6
,0

6
7

5
0

0
.8

3
2

.4
9

2
.9

8
2
.2

2
6

,6
5

0
0

.2
3

6
,3

1
2

6
,0

6
7

1
,3

4
8

6
,3

1
2

6
0

1
.0

0
2

.7
3

2
.7

3
2
.0

3
7

,3
0

1
0

.2
3

6
,8

9
6

6
,0

6
7

1
,3

4
8

6
,8

9
6

9
0

1
.5

0
3

.0
9

2
.0

6
1
.5

3
8

,2
6

3
0

.2
3

7
,6

5
6

6
,0

6
7

1
,3

4
8

7
,6

5
6

1
2

0
2

.0
0

3
.4

5
1

.7
3

1
.2

8
9

,2
2

6
0

.2
3

8
,4

1
6

6
,0

6
7

1
,3

4
8

8
,4

1
6

1
8

0
3

.0
0

3
.9

2
1

.3
1

0
.9

7
1

0
,4

8
3

0
.2

3
9

,2
6

8
6
,0

6
7

1
,3

4
8

9
,2

6
8

2
4

0
4

.0
0

4
.1

3
1

.0
3

0
.7

7
1

1
,0

5
3

0
.2

3
9

,4
3

3
6
,0

6
7

1
,3

4
8

9
,4

3
3

3
0

0
5

.0
0

4
.3

5
0

.8
7

0
.6

5
1

1
,6

2
4

0
.2

3
9

,5
9

9
6
,0

6
7

1
,3

4
8

9
,5

9
9

3
6

0
6

.0
0

4
.5

6
0

.7
6

0
.5

6
1

2
,1

9
4

0
.2

3
9

,7
6

4
6
,0

6
7

1
,3

4
8

9
,7

6
4

5
4

0
9

.0
0

4
.7

6
0

.5
3

0
.3

9
1

2
,7

1
6

0
.2

3
9

,0
7

1
6
,0

6
7

1
,3

4
8

9
,0

7
1

7
2

0
1

2
.0

0
4

.9
5

0
.4

1
0
.3

1
1

3
,2

3
7

0
.2

3
8

,3
7

7
6
,0

6
7

1
,3

4
8

8
,3

7
7

9
0

0
1

5
.0

0
5

.0
8

0
.3

4
0
.2

5
1

3
,5

7
2

0
.2

3
7

,4
9

7
6
,0

6
7

1
,3

4
8

7
,4

9
7

1
0

8
0

1
8
.0

0
5

.2
0

0
.2

9
0
.2

1
1

3
,9

0
6

0
.2

3
6

,6
1

6
6
,0

6
7

1
,3

4
8

6
,6

1
6

1
2

6
0

2
1
.0

0
5

.3
3

0
.2

5
0
.1

9
1

4
,2

4
0

0
.2

3
5

,7
3

5
6
,0

6
7

1
,3

4
8

6
,0

6
7

1
4

4
0

2
4
.0

0
5

.4
5

0
.2

3
0
.1

7
1

4
,5

7
5

0
.2

3
4

,8
5

5
6
,0

6
7

1
,3

4
8

6
,0

6
7

2
8

8
0

4
8
.0

0
6

.3
0

0
.1

3
0
.1

0
1

6
,8

4
8

0
.2

3
-2

,5
9

2
6
,0

6
7

1
,3

4
8

6
,0

6
7

R
e
q

u
ir

ed
 1

0
0y

r-
24

h
r 

D
e
te

n
ti

o
n

 S
to

ra
g

e
 (

C
F

T
)

9
,7

6
4

R
eq

u
ir

e
d
 S

to
ra

g
e 

(C
F

T
)

9
,7

6
4





"'
""

' .. "
'"

' 
,._

,,,
,.,

. 

~ ~ 4 0 2 J 4 - ,. 2 di D
 - t Cl!

 Cl Jt .. ~ ..J
 

a.. 

"-
V

 

N
o

~
il
-l

 
c
u

~
a

 

oc 0 
JII 

... 
' ' 

~ 
V

 
Q

 
i 

f-
0 

4 ) 
&

 
JJ 

0 
.J

 
1-

JJ 

S
o

U
T

l-
4

 
c
u

~
a

 

4 

'~
 

•:..
· 

'11
}-

. ..
:,._

) '- ' 
\ 

._
, .. \ ''._

.. .. 18
 

, I 

'
~

-
·
 

1'
 

. 
-<, < 

,_ 
/ 

I 

Cl
 '° 1,

. " r ... 

-
-
-
-
-

/ 
. 

me
.=.

,~.
.:.-

.:.:
:..,

. 
I:

;:·
·.:

::-
-
-
-
-
-

r 
c
'"

'/
v
t 

8/
o,

B
 \.

.-.
~/

 
1 

<(
) 

___
_..,

> 
f,

ov
1,

~
, 

',,
e

 
&~

,~
f ;

)'
 1

 
. --

-
__ _

 
. 

,Js 
~ 

u.s
r,,

 ~ 
c..

,r.
 A

 a
d.

 

5 

1./
 

,l
' 

,_ ,. r}
 

>"' J'
 

<r
 

~~
 

IJ
,f 

6 

p,
f•

• 
8,. 

,,. 
i,

 
C

 
:!£

 
! ~

 ~ 
~ 

·t
 :l 

!,
'j 

I 
I/~ 

. 
"
·
 

• 
Q

. 
(:

::
lr

,w
 

1
ry

.(
 
~ 

"
l 

l 
~
 

" 
~ 

fJ
,9

 
·i

 J
-'

 
;.~

 
J'

 #
 

,:l
g 

1~, 
I 
t-

t 
"
"
'
 

,_
_

 
"
J
I)

, 
? 

~
~

o
f 

"'
_

, 
~

>
 

..,.I
 

,. ..
 u

 I
 

•'1
: 

~Q
I 

~
? 

N
 

5 

" v 

J 
,l

 /I),.
 

~1 
:J. 

u.::
 ..,

 .
. 

..., 
I?

 
..

 
1'"

'-. 
• 

'£1
4 

t,
./

>
-
. 

, 
(J

u 
~

t
 

,f'
dJ

 
i 

f 
• 

D
,+

J,
 

q
z(

 l
e 

. 
i,

f 
V

 
~
 

4 
c_

 
:,

 
J(

) 
:,

 
.t

 
~ 

~r
. 

-u 
°"' 

,.::'. 
v 

S-
if

 
r/

 
~
 

D
 

·<
:-

(J
 

,\l
 

.,, 

6 

J :r
 

"l
 

(l ' • ~ r:{
: V\
 ' ~ § 0 t (J
 :£1
 

..
 ~ ,,, " tl1,
 

" (f.
 

j'
 :,

., 
~ 

f 
'o

 
' 

~ 
i 

4 
-

, 
rf

 "-
-r

 
" 

"'
 

Hr.
 

i ·
""

 I
( 
o 

e 
.:'. 

4 
:,

 
'1

 
..,

_ 
·N

 
o 

O
 

t'
} 

0 
fl

' 
q-

~
 

: 
lo

-'-
1

; 
~ 

J:.
 

.::
:J

 
.,..

 
;;. 

<'
 

.2
' 

<
l 

t!
t.

M
. 

.J
 

\.0
 
-
~

 
w

 
t:

_
_

 
~ 

, 
<:"

J 
~:.

:, 
LJ

 
\J

 

~
I
 

" 
' 

·~ i.::
 J <I
) 
~
 

l!..
 " 11
 

I\
J 

I JI ! II 

r 
Y

 
f.

/ 
;;

 
1: 

C
 Jl

 
-

-
C

 
«

>
.k

-~
\ 

-
-

,,y-
~ 

0 
V

 
O

 
~ 

"'I"
 

. 
,,, 

I 
-

-
~

 
/7

4)
..J

q 
If

} 
q

:-
; 

c;j_
 

I 
~
 (

) 
_j

 
~

I
 

0~
 

-~
~ 

/D
 

-
t
i 

·,t
"'Y

 
--

-
. 

U
 

•11
1 

• 
vf

' 
~
 

~C
l 

--
v

, 
~
 

J'
 

~:
z 

I.I
 

N
 

~ 
:!I 

'-
~ 

, 
c:1

C\
s 

~ 
f 

Ii-
1 

d, 
' 

;, 
-
.:

 
-

f 
1l

) 
I 

., 
-.. 

\{ 
~ 

·"! 
<

 
'1 

!"-
.'Q

l;{
<o

~ 
-+ 

1
?

"u
n

c
7

 
~

,}
' 

J~f
':-.,

r,, 
ti 

tS
'c

,n
c
 

;,.
.,?

( 
0 

&
_R

tm
oe

~:
'i

"
'f

"
p

l:
C

.A
l.

.c
-:

 
~

=
4

0
' 

N
J
 

'-1
():

,-"
o 

~~
~-

---
z_

~~
~:

~·¥
;:~

°'.
_.'

::;
;:,~

,\?
11
~t

 ..
. ,

,,
=

··
··

-·
··

~
~

~
-~

--
=

=
=

~
; 

•-
· 

'2
:'•P

.1 ~
:~

':
_

<
T

~
 ... ~
 

/~
-•

--
-=

-~
 

=
-=

-~
~

--
-

-
e..

 
M

ai
Z!

1"
""

""
",m

:::
::r

e:
::r

ar
,".

..:
z.-

~:
-._

~·
., 

~
 

"' 
,..

.,_
;e

,;:
4 

'2
.IG

 r
T

. 
o,

.. 
IS

 
~

e
:-

w
••

 
....

 ,P
1

r 
s
. 

s 
\.

,,Q
.C

.•
 
ii
n

 
f-

"r
. 

o.
,. 

e 
'5

~
•,

. 
~,

,..
., 

s
, 

s 
, 

.
L

-
.
-
-
-

-
-

-
-

0 
1.-

~-
fl

l 
• 

~t
.:.

 
q

: 
l 

l 

,-Y
J 

/ 
td

 
. 

e 
,c

 
. .-

.\ 
r~

 

~..
 

. 
r
' 

V
.
 
f 

,_ 
~-

r'
>\

, 
\. 

I 
u,

 
N

 
l 

.· 
/ 

.I,,
. 

©
 

N
o

7
E

 
1? 

C
ou

rs
e 

B
 :t

. C
e.

.,c
. 

r 
--

--
-

"' 
.•. 

Av
 ,,.

,__
 

"' 
' 

.. -
I 

~
 

1 
\ 

~
~
 

~
 

,, 
~
 

I,.
. 

,:
i 

I.
 

~
 

0
0

~
 

t;,.
, 

C
I}

 
~ 

-a-
(J

 
"
-

t.
 

"' 
""

 
• 

e 
l
'"

:
,
 

4
-

~
"
't

i(
l'

°
 

~
t-

t.
!J

 
~

g
 

~
og

 
if'

l..
Q

. 
<

!l
. 

t
J
O

(
l
 

.I
, 

~ 
-
_

 
>
~
~
 

~
 

(\j
t;J

 
~
 

~(
} 

.. 
D

 
"
~

i
-
t
l
)
 

, 

ll!!
 

~ 
t 

.,.:
 

;, 
" 

-,.
c 
~
 -

~
 

C
 

c..
., 

"l
 .

..
. 

0 

D
.M

.-

JJ -

A
s.

,s
u

'-
"
~

t>
 

1
0

0
. 
0

0
 

I "
1

 
:!

,~
' 

O
A

 'K
..

 

U
5

G
'5

 
D

q
fu

m
 

8
8

2
,o

S
 j

 
-

~~
0t

­
,, 

({
:,

' 
~
 

C
o

n
fr

a
c
fo

r
 

b"
' 

L. 
""I 

t{
-

1-
' 

fu
-h

a
rk

 
a

n
d

 
pr

es
er

ve
 

lo
c.~

l-,
;1

1 
o

f'
 ,

:;
er

vi
',e

 
le

a
d

s
 

fo
r-

T
ov

vN
sH

1
~

Jr
e
c
..

c
rd

s.
 

0 

-
=~1

 
,}

': 

(-
4

 -
c
 

lt
J 

"I
I 

--c
t 

V
 

0.
. .

•
 

J'-
" 

~--~
~ 

1 

u 

"'°~
 Z 5

, 
,q

G
, 3

 
tJ

 01
/.

 
8,

 J
qr

,, 
~ 

f l 1/1
 

t: 
i-1

'. 
I o

 
t 

"'
 

~
~
 

"' () j 
.. 

:t"
' 

., 
~"

 
a .., 

1(
)3

 

'-"
 

• Q
 .,. ...:
 

. 
t#

 

I 
}1

.f
[ 

Q
 .
/
 I::

' 
oQ

.<
 

Q
 

. 
··

' -
··' 

I•
 I

 !
 (

· 
"'::

l 
. 

. 
. 

J 

1
~

· 
. 

-,
 

0'
h 

.· 
::;-

; T
yp

1e
r~

J 
, J

 
~-

)~
::t

h,
L 

__
 !__

-_
_

 

fo
'lo

; f
 p

 Jq 
« 

S
 

·-
-·

 

., 
7 

·-
/
/
 

~"
fo

"'.
'E

_a
,_c

_f
.,,!

__
 

P
ro

<
ce

ss
ed

 G
r•

ve
/G

i)
 

1
w

ri
ff

e
~

 '1
 ra

ve
l-;

;;,
;;~

;,·~
 s

ho
vv

,;''
j 

J~
n&

m,
+1

1 
-1

v 
l"

l<
,r

iA
M

 
C

o
u

N
T

'I
 

f"
.o

R
D

 

C
0

1
<

1
r"

1
1

5
S

I0
1

sJ
 

3
t«

n
d

ac
d

!.
 

tn
us

t 
b

e
 

1· 

i:,
 

11
) 

"
"
 °t

, 
N

 ~
I\

 
0:

. 
0 

al 0 D
 

3 
2 

JI 

1
0

0
 

JO
O

 

·-r
-

~ --.,_
 

'.:
Jl

rb
m

 if
/-e

,;;J
 

1t
, 

th
e

 
C

o
u

tJ
T

Y
 

b
e
~

re
 u

,e
 

- ' 0 
-,

=
 ·

··
p

 

I 
. o

f 
p

ro
ce

ss
ed

 9
ra

ve
/ 

J 
1:.,

 
··

-
~

-
;:

 
.
.
.
 

-
',J

".
:·

~
--

--
.r

,' 
.~ .

..
 '",

,.:
,,~

.!_
.: _

__ 
~~

:: 
-
-

-
·-

··
· 

""
"·

~
--

--
-~

-
~ ti .J

 
tO

 

N
O

T
t:

 

A
u

 ...
 

M
A

T
l=

-R
l.

0
..

\.
..

S
. 

A
N

t>
 

C
o

~
S

'T
lt

.U
C

.T
\(

)\
..

l 
i
t
)
 

B
l!

:-
~

o
'f

1
i:

-:
-,

w
•t

:i
o

 
e
.'

( 
:r

1
-.

"'
-)

U
A

•"
(,

 
A

~
1

=
i 

'S
:.

f"
'&

C
.l

f:
.\

c
.A

T
IO

~
~

 
f-

O
R

. 
c:

5f
=

W
1:

-1
11

t. 
C

o
W

•
'T

S
:t

\.
K

T
\~

~
 

A
S

. 
P

-•
•'

C
l"

'A
.-

.•
t>

 
I!

,,
"(

' 
0

1
'-

1v
1 .

..
. ,

.,
.,

 ..
..

..
 

{J
 

• 
I·

~
'!

, 
R

 t
,,

G
, l
l L

A
."

l°
I O

,_
. .

..
 

I 

/ 

4
f5

°0
 

I 
4 I 

'\
--

-

2 I 

F
lo

w
 i1

f}e
 

Bt
r.s

--z
:...

.--
==

j=
 

j-=
I=

---
" 

.5
0 I 

4
S

 
t-

-
-
-
-
+

-

li
o

u
'o

f!
 

J,J
o, 

4
5

'-
'2

 '
D

o
B

IE
 

l:!
:t>

. 
S

.W
, 

C
o

r 
<

:o
n 

c~
 S

 l
tt

 b
 

P
§n

:J
, 

E
le

v.
 

8
8

5
, 

1.
, ---

---
j 

"T
\4

1
z 

c 
\4

/;
l,

,.
lt

.,
.'=

"'
II

. 
T

o
w

 h
l"

!.
.\

.\
\ '

P
 

5
A

N
IT

A
"'

-'
( 

'5
1

!:
W

. '=
"'-

: 
8

"
 

V
1

T
. 

C
.w

:,.
. '
{
 

A
S

T
\,

J\
t 

N
C

,,
 

C
:. 

I~
 -

'5
7

 T
 

R
ll
1

!,
e

,e
,.

._
 
~
 ..

. .,
.1

<.
1s

-r 
C

U
>

•
L

l•
•
•
 

C
o"

 
L

!
:~

C
~

 
"'T

O
 

~
A

.C
-\

.,
,4

 
LO

"'T
"' 

'?
1

1
tl

:-
C

A
"l

,T
 

M
••

··
H

4
 

._
..

. 
-

3
S

O
 

L
'e

>
. 

c
.o

v
~

"
 

c.
 :I:

'. 
"S

,T
a;

.1
=

-•
 

S
A

.N
O

 
'e

>
A

.C
..

'f
('

f"
-\

i.
.\

..
 

A
~

\.
. 

T
"i

:t
.•

"-
lC

:.
~

1!
:-

'5
,,

..
 

M
a

N
H

0
1

..
E

S
 

: 
1

<
e

in
t-

C
!>

r1
cr

ef
e 

-
H

~
T

f/
1

 
C

7
w

~
 5

 
T

).
:.

1
~

s
-"

 
2..

 

3 
z 

Ja
·i

.n
 

/.
.!

--
--

--
-

N
O

T
E

. 

~
 

'P
ro

f'
.'

le
 

e
le

v
a

+
,'

o
n

.s
 

d
r
a

w
n

 
o

n
 

a
5

-5
u

m
e
d

 
da

-h
,T

Y>
, 

U
S

G
S

 
c
o

rr
e
e
fe

d
 

e
/e

v
q

,l
-,

;n
s
 

o
b

ta
in

e
d

 
b'

::i
 

cd
d

,,
.;

q
 

A
n

~
 

C
o

rr
e
c
fe

d
 

e
le

v
a

+
,o

n
s 

a
re

 
b

o
x

ed
 1

n 
/ a

a2
.ij

 
7

8
2

 
ff

. 
w

h
e
n

 6
h

<
>

w
• 

;,-.'
., 

~-
-·

···
--

--
-~

 
. 

-
.....

.....
.. ~

.
 

-
--

~
-

-
r
-

~
.-

--
. 

I ,-
--

--
-1

0
1

>
' v

c 
-

--
--

' 

1.
9(

, 
%

 
.,,

._
;..

--
--

...
-,

j 
,!f

l rl/
f.l

 

y 

., _
_

_
..

-0
 

d. 

95
.7

 \0
0

 

'!J
S 

-I
 

l:::"
,.., 

....
. , .

....
. 

G
II

ID
U

 ..
..

. 
f:

:-
1.

...
.,,

 
-

.
-
-
-
,
-
-
-
-
_

 -
~
 

A
-
."

'-
!\

 
--

' 
--

~
 

, 
'.t

l-
'~

 S
I.

!_
._

_
 

-
~ ~
 ~
 

: 
, 

. 
. 

i}
i(

:]
i]

 
_.

...
I 

\ 
!I 

1• 
...

...
.._

 
' 

. 
/ 

~
,,

..
 

-
~

 
! 

. 
q

5
+

 
-
-

·:
9

4
,7

 
--

--
....-

-

![
tf

7
~

 
I 

-, 
,, 

'-.. 
f1 

-~
 

I 
I 

-
-

---
-

r 
. 

I 
r11

 

\0
0

 

9
'5

 

j.
 __ "' ("' .... "" 

" ~ ! ;;: .. 

~
 

<1
" 

~
 >
 

"-

/.
5

,;
 

g,
. 

14
) 

~
 

,:,-
. 

"' ,j-
' .,.. ;;
 ... O'
J 

\I
) 

1
' "" 

Q
;,.

 

l's
.. 'I'
 

0
-

0 <I
I i 

1
0

0
 

95
 

.•. :_ 
i 
I .

 _
 

; l 
/,

,v
e
rr

 
. 

.. 
' 

8 
. 

• 
! 

• 
2. 

;' 
q

,,
_

9
5

 
-

8
9

.9
5

;;
,,

 
C

Bq
,7

 
-

'8
7

/,
3

 
,, 

i
' 

'"
~

"
'·

-
~

"
"
 

·-
··

-'
--

··
--

·-
--

--
""

"'
'!

 
. .

, 
.,

,.
,,

,-
. 

;-
-·

 
.Jc

!,·
, 

.:;
;r

:c
;;

 
'·

"·
-·

··
·-

"·
 

.,
 ....

. _
, _

_
 

'·,
ti!

 
.. 

'-
'·

 
-

. 
~
 ..

 
@

 
0

. 
4

0
"1

.,
 

5
. 

s.
 

a
" 

@
. 

o.
 4

.o
"f

. 
s 

.s,
 -

-
-
-
-
-
-
,
_

.
'.

 

t .J
 

,
-
,
 

~~~
--

1
,0

 
-

H
 

; 

~ ~c
i 
~
 

21
(1

 
g 

P
R

£
L

J
M

I 
N

/.
IR

.Y
 

P
R

.O
P

0
S

£
D

 
P

L
A

N
S

! 

~
o

 

C
o

m
p

u
f-

eJ
 'J

~
d.

e 
oF

 p
rr

:,
po

se
cl

 T
w

f 
S

e
w

e
r 

/8
'-

B
.'

lo
 

8
5

 

.il~
 ~
 

H
 

<l
l 

F
w

<
I 

G
,o

d
, 

To
 
'•

 D
,,

n
•
-
.<

d
 
.
,
 

Ii
i{

;.
,,

,.
 

T
o

w
1

1
sh

1
p

 
T

t1
rn

s 
O

u
t 

F
in

a
 I

 
:,:.

~ 
..-

P
la

n
s
 

o
f 

D
o

 b
,;

, 
R

o
a

d
 

S
a

r1
1

 {
;a

,-
y 

S
c
 w

e
,.

 
A

 :
 

__
.-

--
:-

-=
=

::
:.

::
-

1.~
 1,

 o
/o

 
. 

1
0

0
 

g 
-
-
-
-

.,,
,. 
-
.
.
.
_

_
_

~
 

o,
 

t-
-<

4-
--

--
-

"
--

/0
0

' 
Y

.C
.·

--
' 

-~
 

:'# ~ 

I 
'-

-
1

0
0

' 
V

.C
.,..

,...
..-

-
·~ 

=
--

·-
-
-
-
-
-
-

,-
. 

. 
--

..-
,. 

,0
1 

): 
-..

 
1 .

. -,
 •

 
0 

,. 
s
• ,;

 

1 --
"' .... a

- >
 

0
..

 

\,.1
 

: 

:}
! 

j(
}(

>
'l
'C

--
-,

--
1

 

t 9t
,3

 9
5

 

~
o

 

I 
../

 
r 

.--
-"1

 
i
)
 

;.__
_, 

r-
r 

....
.--

]_
) 

r• 
S

!i
 

--
,~

r-
-
--

-.. 
--

--
-_

, 
-~

--
--

··
r·

 
, 

L
 

L 
o 

,;
, 

"-
..

..
-.

:,
_

j1
rc

.f
1

 
l/

J
C

 
rv

o
f.

;<
c
 

W
 

. 
c
5

f
 

C
 

.....
 

'.Y
. 

,. 
"
'/

,
/
 

-
, 

R
E

--

I 

o
n

e
. 

yf
!;.

.f/
2 

1
-t

e
(/

 
, 

,.,
,_

~:
.:2

5X
 

3
.2

5
"
>

 
t#

:,
 

n 
.. 

0 
vv

 
,o

,c
/ 

I"
,.

.~
,.

 

e.
 /

} 
t-

e;
 Y

',£
 

j!
\;

 (
;?

 ,, c
lY

S
 

.5
/;c

; 1
/ 

I 
I 

..
. 

C
 

I/
 

:...
-· 

j}
 -e

 
a

"
 

o·
n 

<
? 

"
-
-

.~
C 

"
"
·
 

/ 
,·

{
' 

/
,
-
(
·
 

" 
-

,
.
.
 

S
O

 
; 

~
 

.._
,:_

_,;
_. 

_ _
!;

/~
-"

 ~
; 

.::
-,9

(:
~"

°!
'."

"-
,.....

._ 
P

i/
/ 

4
1

e
:J

/ 
,.,,

..._
(,5

 
R

E
V

. 
'+

 
1-

it
r.

65
' 

N
a

d
e
 

V
e

rf
.C

<
-1

rv
e

.s
 

1
0

0
F

f.
1

o
n
1

n-,J
, 

I
~

 
.. 

-
-

.
.
 .
,
 ·
-
-

7o
 

"-.
,; 

n 
-

/ 
.4

"
 

-'-
ii#

• 
v'

.'"
"'

 .
..

..
. 

--
-

..
 _

 
--

--
-=

<
--

' ..
 t.

L
.}

_ 
iq

 
r-

; 
.,

-
, 

R
E

V
 

3 
3 

~
zu

."
C

 
L 

.u
. 

" 
) 

• 
d

"f
 

' 
. 

-,;
 

-
-

·-
--

--
--

--
_ 

-
-
-
~

 
''
" 

--
L

-.
..

_
..

f-
L

 <
-L

L
 

· 
-.._

 _
,....

_...
 

e
n

_
~

e
,i

 1
5 

r,
 e

 
!.

'1
 

, 
c.

.n
hn

e 

1\
/'\

1:
:-

R
\t

)\
A

N
 

C
\-

IA
R

T
'c

:-
~

 
T

O
W

W
'S

a\
-4

\P
 

!.
N

e
..

 \.
-'A

W
\ 

C
O

U
\-

JT
'(

 
M

\C
I-

L
l<

-A
l.

l 

S
A

N
IT

O
.Q

.'
(
 

~
1

:-
W

 ..
..

..
 

-

c~
,1:

::~
 

C
u

-
.
 G

.u
T

'!
"r

.R
~

 
p,

...
..,

,~
 

S
(O

R
/'

1
 D

f?
~

1
N

5
 

0
K

e
:-

M
o

s
. 

':>
 c-

C
., 

\0
\-

J 
2

2
 

co
7!!

:tn
! ~

••
• 

,-
-

\"
 

_ 
?:<

 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

-_
 

_ 
R

E
V

. 
z..

 
f.t

'la
.r,

 '
6

5
 

4
d

d
 

s/
o,

r-
....

 d
ra

.1
ri

 
-

re
v,

~<
? 

n
.J

Q
.J

 p
l"

!f
d

":
 4

 
(.) 

f1 
" 

\/
1 

'~
<

;/
 

-
-
-

:""
' 

'g 
: 

0-
;, 

; 
~ 

"-__
 .: 

Jt--
~

:l
 

0
-,

 
.jl

 
"'

 I
 

cz
 

B
" 

B
 

. 
-_;

,; 
i.

-
R

E
V

. 
/ 

11
·8

·&
3

 
U

S
6

S
 

O
,:

,.
ft

,,
n

 
,f

/ 0
-f

e
~

 
-I

J
I'

!.
 

\-
I-

I"
:.

 4
0

' 
¥

) 
C

, 
(tJ

 
• 

I
s
 

..._
, 

V
' 

It)
 

' 
-

, .
. 

• 
O

•
 

' 
_. 

' 

f.
A

.-
S

T
 

L
J:

..
p

..
)s

,u
, .. .a

._,
 N

i\
C

\.
I.

 

e~ 
0 

c;;i
, 

• 
'9

 
\(

) 
'\/

 
, 

~ 
!,l

"{
 

<,
9 

('
 

ee,
' 

I 
f
l
/
'
 

1 
S

C
A

L
E

: 
.. 

, 
!>

O
, 

"
'"

'b
7

 
~ 

-
• 

......
_ 

, 
~
 

0-
-

c,.
. 

()
',

 
J:. 

0-
-.

 
0

,.
. 

(f
l 

.A
S

 
),

,,
~

)>
 

8
€

,8
,J

J 
I,

 
6

~
 

D
R

A
W

N
B

Y
:-

:f
..

f.
 

C
H

E
C

K
E

D
B

Y
:,

.,
 

•
-

\
/
-
\
:
.
4

 
P

'"
' 

-
1 

-
-

A
 

v 
.. -

,,
 

r:
 

. L
i.

,.
. 

·-
, 

) 
! 

,,
;;

O
IL

 I 
7

i 
"'

rn
 

t.
.-

1
st

!!
:J

<
'/

1
1

'0
'v

e
 

2
?
. 

-
C

 •
 8

9
 

.,,_
 

~
 

BSTOCKHILL
Text Box
C0402



i 
' 

{
r
 

/ 

{
~

-
~

.-
°
G

O
, 

4G
;I 

SO
O

 4
4

S
•
 

. . 
' 

;, 
_)

),:
.··

. 
_. 

~ 
. 

....
 ,, 

rj
 

,,
';

] 

. 

",
i,,

 

id
1 'Jr

• 
~

t
 

- .. ~
 

.
/
 

,.-,
 

<l
>' . 

. 
[. 

' 
" ; . 

.I
i'!

' 
"l

,: 
' 

'.t r:' 'isl
 i :;; ., 

!.
· , 

·i·t
· .. ,

 
.'.,

 _
·.,.

-1,
". 

·1·
.' .. 1

'· 
·. 

/ 
: \

' 
.-

·-
.-,·

. •., 

I --:"
" . "'
·· .

.. 

f i,)
', 

.',
'i 

:,:
_;

, 
' 

',.-
--:

--"
 

., ' .. 

..;
.t·

 i" 

IE
 

--
~

 

!_\ 
::,

 _,·
 ..

 : 
. 

@,
 ...

.. ·.
 '

 .
. ·· 

.. ~
 

-
. 

., 
. 

-~
-}

 
11

11
 

t 

•.· • : 
:)

i 
. 

';
;
:
' 

. 
.. 

I 

~ ·1
· ~· ~
s 

I 
o

::
=

=
 

( 

-:-.
" 

•• ··,1
··' 

·::
 -:;

, ...• :; 
~ ... :. 

·;·
.,.

::.
-. 

;,
 

--,:
f:-'

-
}:

 

;_
:f

' 
..

 :;1
!1 

,, 
·,· 

•i:
'. 

-' 

,,
:r

J 
1 ::] 

'-
~

t·
":

:{
 <£

Ji'.
 

'• 
;,

 -

,,,~
f{I'

' 
-.,,

. __ ,, 

'L 
·-

=
 '• 

\ 

' 

+
 3 

I 

~
 

~
 

~
 

r~ 
. 

'::
:)

 
('

) "' 1-
j 

t'
-

8 
M

J:
 P

LU
G

, 
\ 

~
 

8
"X

~
··

 T
l:

.l
i 

I 
., 

1 .
 ,i 

~
 .,

 
G

V
. 

{!
 
8

0
X

 
J 

-~
 

F
IR

C
 

N
Y

D
-'

<
!A

N
T

 
I 

'l 
3

-
C

o/
JC

 T
H

R
U

S
T

 
8

L
 /U

,. 
! 

,~ 
I 

---
--

'\.\
. 

' 
: 

ii 
I 

: 
'
\
 

~
 

i 
! 

'
\
:
 .

.. 
,,

, 
L

 
I 

i 

~
 -

"
 

1 
!1 

l 
I 

I 

-
·
 

t-
· 

i !~
 2 -,-

-
=.-

A 
i<

 
' 

ii
 l

.':
]f

 
\\

, 
111

11 ·
1

 'I 
I..:

 
1 
~
 ... -
~

~
-

~ 
i_

 
J;,

I 
I 

;/
_

;:
::

•'
\e

.,
.,

-'
T

il
.7

ir
i~

-..
.....

... -
--

--
. 

·-
--

--
-1

1/
:E

,N
D

 C
O

N
/;

'. 
T

N
/e

l.
lS

T
8

L
K

. 
;:_

lift
 

1 :. 
'! 

lti
 

I 
)( 

-
·
~

 
. ,

--
-

''
I
 

,,
 

[I
 

I 
• 

~ 
I 

--
--

~
-
..

..
..

..
 

~
:,

, 
--

-
', 

I 
I 

• 
• 

/ 
-
-
~

 ~
~

:,
;:

:z
--

• 
\ 

-:
r,

:-
-~

 
-

-
-

--
--

-
-

-
-
-
-
-

. 
-

' 
\ 

'· 
i-

J
 

·1 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
.
:
:
:
:
:
~

 
.-

:-
~

-
-
-
' 

-
·
-
-
-
-
-
-
,
.
-
-
;
,
-
,
-

--
~

--
,-

--
--

--
J"

""
'C

..
 ·-

--
~

--
~

--
--

.. ·-
--

--
--

·J
 

/ 
. 

S;
 

i 
t 

·--
-·,

--.
-l-

....
:.:

:--
. ..:_

 
'~,

,'.,.
..· 

<
 
·,_

i 
c._

:__
_; 

, 
c...

.:.,_
..,.;

; 
. .t

,?
 

• 
· 

,I 
j 

1-J
• 

I 
. 

\ 
--

--
-:

:-
--

.-
--

..
: 

.::;
..,.

, 
'-

,-
· 

, 
· 

j 
l 

, 
·{ 

t 
·--

---
-.. :

::::
::-

. 
,_._

 ----·
-·-c-

~~:
 J --

~'
~ 

5-
--'

-
··

--
--

-"
--

·-
-·

--
· 

!.··
 ..

. '
' 

·-
··

 
_

_
 

1 r
·,c

o-
,c

. 
sn

:1
"'

!?
? 

.,•
 

,,,,
 

1s
"C

'"
~e

 . ..
f:.

::"
:'!

:.2
...

.'7
 _

_
 !_f

i'!-
~--

J"'
''I' 

I 
~i

,;;
' 

. 
,_,

_/ 
-\ 

1-B
 ~~

·-
;'f

s~
;,,

.~
-.

 O
.:

: .
. -'7

-~'
= 

.. -
-·~-

---7
 -

,· ~+
~t

'+
'4 

-l 
I 

' 
j 

I 
) 

I 
' 

-·
-

--
__

__
 _

J.
 __

__
_ 

-
-
-
-

--
--

, 
I 

' 
-

. j
 

I 
I 

i 
I :

1 
. 

: . 
. 

) 

I 
\. 

-~:
:::::

~--
1s

-: ... --=:
.-

./
 ~

;~
-

.--
1r

=-
.:~

'--.
. J;.:

-;v
-;~

~x 
~
 .

 Jo
 t 

, 
!I 

' 
\\

 
--· 

---
. .-

. 
,-

' 
----

--
~
 

' 
' 

, 
' 

'
"
-
.
.
.
.
 

-
-
~

-
-
-
-

.-
-
-
·-

-
-

'
!
.
'
'
 

· 
.•

 '
'<

• 
-
~

-
:5

-
~

/?
J
 

__
__

 ... _
.-

-.
 

. 
. 

. 
~

i !
 , 

\\ 
! 

I 
' 

I 
I 

. 
l 

~
-
-
-

<
i.~

--
-

. 
I 

' 
I 

,. 
I 

I 
I 

. 
· 

t 
,,

..
~

 
_ _

.
 

-
-

"-
·.

 
• 

, ?:
'~,.

 .....
. 

! 
i _

_ _
::

:~
:.

:;
:.

-.
.-

--
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

· 
I 

·
·
-

cP
r:

,.
 

,: 
l'v

t"
' 

r 
:;

vo
r:

:.
•';

D
. 

~·
:e

c.
" 

(1,
1 
i /

 Q
 

~J' 
; 

~
 

..--
---

) 
,
\
~

 
-

. 

~
-
-
-
-
-
-

2 
\ 

;_ 
~!

(, 
~ 

C
O

N
T

R
A

, 
-:

-n
r,

 
1

/J
tl

:.
 

B
E

 
/-

/E
L

D
 

R
E

5
P

O
N

S
1

1
3

i.
E

. 
t:"

()f
? 

A
N

Y
 

D
A

M
A

G
E

: 
T

O
 

M
A

P
L

E
 

T
l?

E
E

S
 

=
 

-
· 

-
·
 

-

__ 
.. __ .:

, 

t--
:--

:'.-
: 

...,.
. 

-
~

 

I 
11 

-.c
---

---
-

' 
~
 I 

1=
· 

--
·I

=
±

. 

--
le

·· 
-
· .±

 
±

 
---

/i
,.

· 

I , - ~
 

, t ~
 /I I / i i 

I .
I 

1
1

J'
,l 

f
l
 

e 

..,
,_

,,.
,_

 
_,

>.
.;;

;..
~:

 ..
. 

,:~
S:

 ,s
,;r

.,._
;, 

.i
.:

L
. 

--1
= 

t--
---

-::
:T

~ 

/-
· -

=::
I' 

·-

t-_
.=

t=
:.-

-.. 
-
-
t-

-
-+

-·
 

··
+

--
--

--
--

-1
--

l-

-· 

F
 :c

t =
=I=

 :::
I-::

:c-
J::

.c.
:t-

.. 
i=

 
·-

I=
_

-
-

t-
··

-
1

-
-
t-

··
 

R
E

V
. 

A
E

V
. 

R
E

V
. 

' 

l:
::

_
--

1
--

-1
--

--
1

--
--

+
-

··
I=

 

·:t
~+

--
--

··
-

./
);

v
J
I 

¥ ~
 

B
l 

a 
-

_, -+-

C
H

A
R

TE
R

 
TO

W
N

S
H

fP
 O

F 
M

E
R

ID
IA

N
 

,N
 

·-
__

__
 ,,.

 

~ f
 N 

G
H

A
M

 4
iO

U
N

T
Y

,~
 M

lC
H

IG
A

N
 

W
A

TE
R

 
S

Y
S

T
E

M
 

· 

C
H

tE
F

O
K

E
~

O
S

 
PL

A
T 

;.
 

I 

R
E

V
, 

I;;
, 

l fo
.'"

-
·
,
.
 -

l 
"E

V
. 

I/
 

/4
/3

0
/ 

Q
,f

)
lr

//
V

A
/.

 
:
J
:
S

$
v
,i

, 

A
Y

R
E

S
, 

L
E

W
IS

. 
N

0
R

ft
1

S
 a

 M
A

Y
 

C
O

N
$

U
L

'r
1

N
<

J
 
E

N
G

IN
lt

lR
$

 
A

N
N

 

1•
 •

 4
0

' 
H

O
R

 
S

C
A

L
I!

: 
1•

~ 
~
 •

O
"V

l!
R

 

A
l't

tlO
R

, 
IM

C
H

IG
A

!i
' 

~
 

, .
 

0-
A:

AW
N 

av
: 

t)
 ,L

/-
--

--
--

r~
tl

lt
4

?
t<

E
D

 .Y
: 

Q
.t

C
£M

&
D

 
ftl

1'
 

,;, 

3.
 •.C.·

·••11
7 .····. 
u.:

.2·
 < 4

.,.-.
.. ; 2

 
_. ~
 ._:-,·

-_. n
. 

-.
 .__. 

:}
·t 

,_.
, 

·{
 

.... 
,. 

·-··
 

"/
, 

~
=

-
.-'..

'..%
 .,

,•i
.,;'

.'J
..-

c; 
.,.,

;,-
,-.

~ 

C>
; i 

-·~ 

' 

,.
,;

 ' 

' 

i J 

--·-
· '':;
 ., J'. "-- .;
. ~} J " -.;

;., 

BSTOCKHILL
Text Box
C0403



NO
RT

H 
0 

5' 
20'

 
40'

 
50'

 
SC

AL
E: 

1"~
20'

-0"
 

NOT
ES 

II C
ON

TRA
CTO

R 
SH

ALL
 VE

RIF
Y A

ll E
XIS

TIN
G 

&
 PR

OP
OS

ED
 

UT
ILIT

Y L
OC

AT J
ONS

 PR
IOR

 T
O 

CO
NST

RU
CT I

ON
. 

21 
CO

NTR
ACT

OR
 IS

 R
ESP

ON
SIB

LE 
FO

R 
TH

E 
LOC

ATI
ON

. PR
OT

EC
TIO

N 
AN

D R
EP

AIR
 O

F 
UT

ILIT
IES

 EN
CO

UN
TER

ED
 D

UR
ING

 CO
NST

RU
CTI

ON
 

WH
ETH

ER
 S

HO
NN

 ON
 P

LAN
S 

OR
 N

OT.
 

31 
CO

NTR
ACT

OR
 IS

 TO
 S

T A
KE

 P
LAN

TIN
GS

 PR
IOR

 TO
 

PLA
CE

ME
NT 

AND
 O

BTA
IN 

APP
RO

VAL
 FR

OM
 LA

ND
SC

APE
 A

RC
HIT

EC
T. 

41 
AAN

 I A
ME

RIC
AN 

ASS
OC

IAT
ION

 O
F 

NU
RS

ER
YM

AN
! ST

AN
DA

RD
S 

FO
R 

NU
RS

ER
Y S

TOC
K 

AND
 P

LAN
TIN

G 
PR

OC
ED

UR
ES 

SH
ALL

 AP
PLY

. 
51 

ALL
 SH

RU
BS

 SH
ALL

 BE
 IN

STA
LLE

D 
WIT

H 
TRI

ANG
ULA

R 
SPA

CIN
G U

NLE
SS 

OT
HE

RW
ISE

 N
OT

ED
. 

6/ 
PLA

NTI
NG

 SO
IL M

IXT
UR

E 
SH

ALL
 BE

 P
RE

PA
RE

D 
ON

-SIT
E 

BY 
MIX

ING
 TH

RE
E 

PA
RT

S 
OF 

TOP
SO

IL 
TO 

ON
E 

PAR
T 

EX
IST

ING
 S

ITE
 S

OIL
S 

TO 
ON

E 
PA

RT
 P

EA
T. 

ADD
ING

 5
 PO

UN
DS 

OF 
SU

PE
RP

HO
SP

HA
TE 

FE
RT

ILIZ
ER

 TO
 

EAC
H 

CU
BIC

 YA
RD 

OF
 M

IXT
UR

E. 
71 

All
 PL

AN
TIN

G 
BE

DS
 TO

 BE
 S

HR
ED

DE
D 

BAR
K 

MU
LCH

 
UN

LES
S O

THE
RW

ISE
 N

OT
ED

. 
81 

PLA
NT 

BE
DS

 TH
RO

UG
HO

UT 
AR

E 
ED

GE
D 

WIT
H 

PLA
STI

C 
ED

GIN
G.T

YPE
 

TO 
BE

 A
PPR

OV
ED

 BY
 TH

E 
ON

NER
. 

91 
LAN

DS
CA

PE 
FAB

RIC
 SH

ALL
 BE

 D
UPO

N 
TYP

AR
 •3

207
 OR

 A
PPR

OV
ED

 E
OU

NE
LAN

T. 
IOI 

SH
RE

DD
ED

 M
ULC

H 
SH

ALL
 BE

 10
07. 

WO
OD 

FIB
ER

 -
SU

BM
IT 

SAM
PLE

 
TO 

LAN
DS

CA
PE 

AR
CH

ITE
CT

 B
EFO

RE
 P

LAC
EM

EN
T. 

Ill 
All

 CA
NO

PY 
TR

EE
S 

MU
ST 

HA
VE 

A
 MIN

IMU
M 

CA
LIP

ER
 O

F 
2 

INC
HE

S. 
121

 TR
EE

S 
PLA

NT
ED

 W
I/TH

IN 
LAW

N 
AR

EAS
 A

RE
 TO

 BE
 S

UR
RO

UN
DED

 B
Y 

4' D
IAM

ETE
R 

CIR
CLE

 O
F 

BAR
K M

ULC
H. 

131
 G

RA
SS 

SE
ED

 M
IX 

TO 
BE

 P
ER

 O
NN

ER
 S

PEC
IFIC

ATO
IN. 

14! 
PLA

NTI
NG

S 
RE

OU
IRE

D 
AR

E 
SHO

NN
: O

TH
ER

 P
LAN

TIN
GS

 
Wi

ll B
E 

AD
DE

D 
TO 

LAN
DSC

API
NG

 AS
 RE

OU
JRE

D 
BY 

ON
NER

. 
151 

TH
E 

LAN
DS

CA
PE 

CO
NTR

ACT
OR

 S
HA

LL 
GU

AR
AN

TEE
 A

ll P
LAN

TIN
GS

 FO
R 

A
 PER

IOD
 

OF
 O

NE 
YEA

R 
CO

MM
ENC

ING
 AT

 T
HE

 D
ATE

 O
F 

FIN
AL 

AC
CE

PTA
NC

E 
BY 

ON
NER

. 
16! 

SE
E 

LAN
DS

CA
PE 

DE
TAI

LS 
SH

EE
T 

FO
R 

INS
TAL

LAT
ION

 O
F 

PLA
NTI

NG
 M

ATE
RIA

LS.
 

/7)
 A

ll D
EA

D 
WO

OD 
SHA

LL 
BE

 R
EM

O/E
D 

FRO
M 

TR
EE

S 
TO 

BE
 S

AVE
D 

DU
RIN

G C
ON

STR
UC

TIO
N. 

SIT
E 

HA
S 

BE
EN

 P
RE

VIO
US

LY 
CL

EA
RE

D 
BY 

OT
HE

RS
. 

TR
EE

S 
AR

OU
ND

 P
ER

IME
TE

R 
SH

ALL
 B

E 
PR

OT
EC

TE
D 

AN
D 

RE
TA

/NE
D. 

PE
RIM

ET
ER

 T
RE

ES
 S

HO
WN

 A
RE

 E
ST

IMA
TE

D 
BA

SE
D 

ON
 A

ER
IAL

. 
TR

EE
 IN

VE
NT

OR
Y 

HA
S 

NO
T 

BE
EN

 C
ON

DU
CT

ED
. 

~
 

~
 

®
 

• / / , / ,/ / / , / , 
: 

/ , / , 
' 

/ 
w 1-

-~
1 ---

-
-1-

---
---

-~1
 ------

------
--~1 

.-w, 
/,l

 
~
 

) 
~
 

·1
6

 
/ 

EX
. TR

EE
 L

INE
 

TO
 R

EM
AIN

, TY
P. 
I @l 

i 
!/ 

·• 
~
 I

 
/ 

) ' 
, 

I 
/ 

' 
, 

@
 

// 

EU
RE

E/8
"U

SH
 "

" 
I 

TO 
RE

MA
IN.T

YP
. 

EX
.TR

EE
 ID

EN
TIF

IED
 

BY
 TR

EE
 S

UR
VE

Y.T
YP

. 

EX
.TR

EE
 L

INE
 

TO 
RE

MA
IN, 

TYP
. I 

~) ·-
~
 

/ 
) 

'--.
....

EX
.TR

EE
/{N

E 
iO\

 
TO 

RE
M)J

N,T
YP

. \.
M 

/ , / 
@

 @
 

i) 
@

 
. 

,/ '-
,,w

, 
---

---
---

---
---

---
---

--
~
 I 

' l / 
16

 
t 

----
1 

I 
, 

)-
-

--
--

--
--

, 
··~. 

!/ 
---~

)---
----

---®
----

-~ 
~ 

16) 
, 

,. 
i, 

-,il\t:
,·r---

-
. 

... 
:, ___

____
_ ~
 

... 
. 

·-··-
··-··

-··-
··-··

-··-
··-··

-··-
··-··

-··-
··-··

-··-
··-··

-··-
··-··

-.J:
ail 

@
 

: 
I 

I 
._

,,.
,:,

._
 

~
 

, ..
 ,.

.. 
"!" 

: 
' 

, 
: 

. "' 
.....

.....
.... 

')•.
....

....
 

: 
i 

EX
.TR

EE
 T

O 
BE

 
: 

' 
......

......
......

..... ~
 ... -..

 ,,_
,,_,,

 ,,_
,,_,,

_,,_
~·-·I

t! i
 
I 

RE
MO

VE
D 

FO
R 

CO
NS

TRU
CTI

ON
 

16) 16) ) 

~~
j ~)
: 

161 

• 
I 

---
---

1 
I 

, I
 

: 
-

• 
I 

-~=-
-----

1 
. 

1-
---

,-
i 

----
----

i 
I 

-) , 

I I I I 
I _J_

 
I 

' 
' 

I 
• 

I 
I 

• 
I 

! 
I 

-
-j

--
l 

II 
I 

i 
I 

I 
-

-.-
-1

 
I 

• 
I 

I 
I I I I I I I 

BIi
'' 

D[ 

I I 

f----
----- , _ ' 

@
 

t-
-

: 
! 

LN
IDS

CN
'E 

TR
EE

S 
, 

. 
• 

• 
IJN

'NI
ES

E 
MN

'LE
I, 

>,_-
: 

, 
2' C

AI.I
PE

R.1
3 R

EO.
 

• 
I 

-----
-) 

' I 
~
~
-

1-
...:. 

t-
--

-~
 

C
 

L
 

[ 
,. 

I I 
I I 

1---
----,

-

Ill 
I I I 

• 
I 

-
-

I 
~
 

~ , -) , 
!fl 

-) , 

1 I 
t-

-
I 

-
-

II 
I 

I 
""1-

-1 
...!

--1
 I 

Ill 
I I I I I I I I I 

r= [I r di .I 11 

1111 
w

 10~
*---;

, 
II 

M
 J ~

11
'~ 

~I 

Ill 
I I L

 
I t- i 

t--
-, (- ' 

s. 
'i.,I 

h 
I 

. 
. 

. 
. 

--1
--i

--1
 

®
 

®
 

i 
J 

-
-

-
--1

-:-
-

I 
, 

. 
t:~oo

o s
 GALJ, 

,: 
i 

1 
39R

EO
. 

I 
: 

• 
; 

I 
111 

. 
I 

"II"
' 

[I r 
L

 
I 

I I 
I 

I 

J._ 
: 

c [I 
@

 
~"~I 

@
 @

 
/ 

/ 
I 

: 
,.

 _
__

_ 
_ 

" ,. 
--' ' 

' '
 

-------
-

,,,., 
/ 

/ 
'i-

-
: 

I 
·-

--
--

--
. 

. 
-~ ' 

·---
-

y 
/ 

I 
• -

..,
. 

•-
--

--
. 

/
,
 

I 
111

" 
' 
-
-
-
,
 

--
-.

_
 

-
; 

/ 
' 

. '
 

-----
1 1 

• 
/ 

• 
-
-

i 
• 

' 
--

--
-

' 
"/ 

. ' 
-

I 
• 

' 
). 

\'
 

' 
' 

' 
., 

' 
! 

' 
• 

' 
i 

' 
: 

/ 
: 

j\ 
' 

! 
' '

 

16) 1
6): 

' -,c 

l~
l !®

 
I ' I 

16) 
~•I 

' 
/ 

Iii 
! '

 
' 

' 
/ 

' 
' "

 
' 

I I 
/ 

I I I I 

-
~)

~ 
.........

 """"
"' ... ,

 ........
........

....... 
"'""""

' "" .
........

...... ~
 tY

'' 
I 

I 
I 

>< 
' 

) 
.....

.....
. , .. 

' 
. 

. 
I 

I 
'. 

' 
. 

I 
\, 

r-·
---

--
. 

-
----

----
---

+---
----

---
----

----
----

---
\ 

! 
' 

---
---

---
---

---
--·

 
•··-

··-·
·-··

-··-
---

··-
.. -·

·-··
-··-

··-·
·· 

,----
-----

-----
-~-X

.~R
E.£

-~JN
€---

-----
-----

-----
-----

-----
-----

• 
' 

TO 
RE

MA
IN, 

TYP
, 

1 
I 

I 
I 

, 
I 

I 
I 

I 
I 

1 
I 

I 
I 

I 
I 

1 
I 

I 
I 

I 
I 

1 
I 

• 3 
WO

RK
ING

 D
AY

S 
BEF

OR
E 

YO
U 

DIG
 

CA
LL 

MIS
S 

DIG
 

1-
80

0-
48

2-
717

1 
(TO

LL
 F

RE
E) 

'1
J7

' F
or 

the
 lo

cat
ion

 
Ill I

 i \ 
of 

un
de

rgr
ou

nd
 u

tilit
ies

 

(.!) ~
 a::: lJJ 

~ 
LU 

~! 
~-

~ 
~~
 

( I
'\ <:

5 <::
, I

 e 
'..;

J 
.... 

~o
 

<
 :%.~.:: ~

 
lJJ ~

 .,.i
v-~

 
~
~
 .... i

 
Q

 ~
 lb

 
Cl)

 tti 
~
 

-~ 
a:: .... -

~~
 r 

en ~
!lt 

I •
 I 

er.>
 a::: -- o:i :::; 

Cl)
 

• 
a::: 

~ 
UJ 

z 
o o

=>
o 

_J-:
i:O

N 
Oo

o 
-

0 
=> Cl

:'. ::
:; d

, 
CC 

en <
i: ""

 
0 

IM
 

<( 
:::; 

(!) 
..:. 

>
 UJ z

;,:; 
>

 ~ 
... 

UJ 
O

 (!) 
UJ 

O
oz

Z 
W

 [;:; 
en~

 
LL 

"' 
~ 

a. 
Cl)

 
_J

 
(9 

tii 

" "Is­ ci ~ iii I
 ~ • -1~ i5 : 0 o ~ . " 
u 0 ~ 

~ a : '.)
 J 

Cr.
> 

~ § " ~ " u ~ 8 ' • ~ • ~ u < , 
lgl-l

Nln
l•I !

 
Cl)

 UJ ~ 0 I z 
UJ

:::; 
5(

9-
' 

. 
z 

oz
~~

 
1-o

os 
<( _J 

UJ 
_Jen

o 
a. 

_J =
,0

0 
UJ 

u c
c:::;

~ 
a. 

a::: 
UJ 

<i: 
-N

~
I 

<( 
u 

_oC!
J 

u 
Cl)

 Cl
) tt z

 C
l) 

QI
-IC

/J 
0 

~z
oo

 
z 

UJ 
=> 0

:::; 
<( 

I 
C")

 UJ
 

_J 
~

L
!)

~
~

 
0.,.

.. 
0 

LL UJ - I u PR
OJ

EC
T 

MG
R. 

DA
TE 

BRS
 

8/2
0/1

8 
DR

AW
N 

BY 
""" 

BRS
 

8/2
0/1

8 
EN

GIN
EER

 
DAT

E 
BRS

 
8/2

0/1
8 

CAD
 F

ILE
 

ED
IT 

SC
ALE

 
1"=

20
' 

DR
AW

ING
 

PLO
T 

SC
l'H

 

PR
OJE

CT
 

QQ
Q1

 

C5
.0 

SH
EE

T 
NO

. 



Lu
m

in
a

ir
e

 S
c
h

e
d

u
le

Sy
m

b
o

l
L
a

b
e

l
Q

u
a

n
ti

ty
M

a
n

u
fa

ct
u

re
r

C
a

ta
lo

g 
N

u
m

b
e

r
D

e
sc

ri
p

ti
o

n

C
u

to
ff

 

C
la

ss
La

m
p

N
u

m
b

e
r 

La
m

p
s

Fi
le

n
a

m
e

Lu
m

e
n

s 

p
e

r 

La
m

p

L
ig

h
t 

lo
ss

 

F
a

c
to

r
W

a
tt

a
ge

L
u

m
e

n
s

D
e

c
k

W
S
R

1
4

L
it

h
o

n
ia

 L
ig

h
ti

n
g

W
SR

 L
E

D
1

 1
0

A
7

0
0

0
/4

0
K

 

SR
4

 M
V

O
L
T

A
R

C
H

IT
E

C
T

U
R

A
L
 W

A
L
L 

S
C

O
N

SE
F
u

ll
1

0
 L

E
D

 4
0

K
1

W
SR

_
L
E

D
_

1
_

1
0

A
7

0
0

_
4

0
K

_
SR

4
_

M
V

O
LT

.i
e

s
1

9
5

0
1

2
4

2
7

3
0

0

P
a

rk
in

g 
A

re
a

A
V

P
9

A
m

e
ri

c
a

n
 E

le
ct

ri
c

A
V

P
-1

0
M

-R
3

-A
Y

A
V

P
 S

E
R

IE
S 

1
0

0
W

 M
H

 T
Y

P
E

 3
 

M
E

D
 S

E
M

IC
U

T
O

F
F

S
e

m
i

1
0

0
W

 C
L
E

A
R

 C
E

R
A

M
IC

 

M
H

1
A

V
P

_
1

0
M

_
R

3
_

A
Y

.i
e

s
9

0
0

0
1

1
0

0
8

1
0

0
0

E
n

tr
a

n
ce

 W
a

y
5

B
P

M
W

5
L
it

h
o

n
ia

 L
ig

h
ti

n
g

5
B

P
M

W
-L

E
D

5
" 

3
0

0
0

K
 6

2
0

 L
u

m
e

n
s 

1
2

0
v 

M
a

tt
e

 

W
h

it
e

 L
E

D
 M

o
d

u
le

, 
8

0
C

R
I

F
u

ll
3

0
0

0
K

 L
E

D
1

5
B

P
M

W
_

L
E

D
.i

e
s

6
3

9
1

1
1

.1
6

3
1

9
5

T
o

ta
l 
=

1
1

1
4

9
5

Lu
m

e
n

s 
C

a
lc

u
la

ti
o

n
S
F

A
C

Si
te

:
6

6
0

1
9

1
.5

1
5

5
9

A
llo

w
e

d
 (

1
5

0
,0

0
0

/A
C

):
2

2
7

3
3

8

B
u

il
d

in
g:

1
2

0
8

2
0

.2
7

7
3

6
P

ro
p

o
se

d
:

1
1

1
4

9
5

N
e

t:
5

3
9

3
7

1
.2

3
8

2
2



6/30/16 BRS RECORD DRAWING 2

C
A

L
L

 M
IS

S
 D

IG

(T
O

L
L

 F
R

E
E

)

8
0

0
-
4

8
2

-
7

1
7

1
1
9
7
4
.

N
O

T
IF

Y
 T

H
E

 V
A

R
IO

U
S

 U
T

IL
IT

Y
 O

W
N

E
R

S
 I

N

A
C

C
O

R
D

A
N

C
E

 W
IT

H
 M

IC
H

IG
A

N
 P

.A
. 
N

O
. 
5
3
 O

F

IT
 I

S
 T

H
E

 C
O

N
T

R
A

C
T

O
R

'S
 R

E
S

P
O

N
S

IB
IL

IT
Y

 T
O

T
IO

N
S

 P
R

IO
R

 T
O

 T
H

E
 S

T
A

R
T

 O
F

 C
O

N
S

T
R

U
C

T
IO

N
.

T
H

E
 E

X
A

C
T

 U
T

IL
IT

Y
 L

O
C

A
T

IO
N

S
 A

N
D

 E
L

E
V

A
-

7
2
 H

O
U

R
S

B
E

F
O

R
E

 Y
O

U
 D

IG

D
R

A
W

IN
G

 A
R

E
 O

N
L

Y
 A

P
P

R
O

X
IM

A
T

E
. 

 N
O

U
N

D
E

R
G

R
O

U
N

D
 U

T
IL

IT
IE

S
 A

S
 S

H
O

W
N

 O
N

 T
H

IS
 

T
H

E
 L

O
C

A
T

IO
N

S
 A

N
D

 E
L

E
V

A
T

IO
N

S
 O

F
 E

X
IS

T
IN

G

T
H

E
R

E
O

F
. 

T
H

E
 C

O
N

T
R

A
C

T
O

R
 S

H
A

L
L

 B
E

E
X

C
L

U
S

IV
E

L
Y

 R
E

S
P

O
N

S
IB

L
E

 F
O

R
 D

E
T

E
R

M
IN

IN
G

A
S

 T
O

 T
H

E
 C

O
M

P
L

E
T

E
N

E
S

S
 O

R
 A

C
C

U
R

A
C

Y
 

G
U

A
R

A
N

T
E

E
 I

S
 E

IT
H

E
R

 E
X

P
R

E
S

S
E

D
 O

R
 I

M
P

L
IE

D

!
!
!
 C

A
U

T
I
O

N
 !

!
!

O
F

 B
I
T

U
M

I
N

O
U

S
 P

A
V

I
N

G
 P

L
A

C
E

D
 I

N
 2

 -
 1

 1
/2

"
L

I
F

T
S

.

M
I
N

I
M

U
M

 O
F

 8
"
 O

F
 C

O
M

P
A

C
T

E
D

 C
L

A
S

S
 2

 S
A

N
D

 S
U

B
-
B

A
S

E
, 

A
 M

I
N

I
M

U
M

 O
F

 6
"
 O

F
 2

2
A

 R
O

A
D

 G
R

A
V

E
L

 B
A

S
E

 A
N

D
 3

"
 

7
. 
T

H
E

 P
A

R
K

IN
G

 A
N

D
 D

R
IV

E
 A

R
E

A
S

 S
H

A
L

L
 H

A
V

E
 T

H
E

 F
O

L
L

O
W

IN
G

: 
G

R
A

D
IN

G
 A

N
D

 C
O

M
P

A
C

T
IO

N
 O

F
 T

H
E

 S
U

B
G

R
A

D
E

, 
A

 

S
H

A
L

L
 C

O
M

P
L

Y
 W

IT
H

 B
A

R
R

IE
R

 F
R

E
E

 R
E

Q
U

IR
E

M
E

N
T

S
.

6
. 

A
L

L
 I

N
T

E
R

S
E

C
T

IO
N

S
 O

F
 S

ID
E

W
A

L
K

S
, 

D
R

IV
E

S
 A

N
D

 P
A

R
K

IN
G

 A
R

E
A

S
 A

T
 T

H
E

 S
H

O
W

N
 B

A
R

R
IE

R
 F

R
E

E
 R

A
M

P
 L

O
C

A
T

IO
N

S
 

I
T

.

C
U

R
B

 A
N

D
 G

U
T

T
E

R
 I

N
 P

A
R

K
IN

G
 A

R
E

A
 S

H
A

L
L

 H
A

V
E

 A
 M

IN
IM

U
M

 O
F

 4
"
 O

F
 C

O
M

P
A

C
T

E
D

 C
L

A
S

S
 2

 S
A

N
D

 P
L

A
C

E
D

 B
E

L
O

W
 

5
. 

C
U

R
B

 A
N

D
 G

U
T

T
E

R
 I

N
 R

O
A

D
 R

IG
H

T
 O

F
 W

A
Y

 S
H

A
L

L
 H

A
V

E
 1

1
"
 O

F
 C

O
M

P
A

C
T

E
D

 C
L

A
S

S
 2

 S
A

N
D

 P
L

A
C

E
D

 B
E

L
O

W
 I

T
. 

O
F

 3
5

0
0

 P
.S

.I
. 

I
N

 A
C

C
O

R
D

A
N

C
E

 W
I
T

H
 M

.D
.O

.T
. 

S
P

E
C

I
F

I
C

A
T

I
O

N
S

 S
E

C
. 

6
.0

9
.

R
E

IN
F

O
R

C
IN

G
 B

A
R

S
 P

L
A

C
E

D
 A

S
 S

H
O

W
N

. 
C

O
N

C
R

E
T

E
 S

H
A

L
L

 B
E

 G
R

A
D

E
 3

5
S

 O
R

 3
5

P
 W

IT
H

 A
 2

8
 D

A
Y

 S
T

R
E

N
G

T
H

4
. 
C

U
R

B
 A

N
D

 G
U

T
T

E
R

 S
H

A
L

L
 B

E
 A

S
 S

H
O

W
N

 O
N

 T
H

E
 P

L
A

N
S

. 
C

U
R

B
 A

N
D

 G
U

T
T

E
R

 S
H

A
L

L
 C

O
N

T
A

IN
 T

W
O

 1
/2

"
 S

T
E

E
L

 

M
A

X
IM

U
M

 U
N

IT
 W

E
IG

H
T

.

R
E

M
O

V
E

D
 A

N
D

 R
E

P
L

A
C

E
D

 W
IT

H
 S

A
T

IS
F

A
C

T
O

R
Y

 M
A

T
E

R
IA

L
 P

L
A

C
E

D
 I

N
 6

"
 L

A
Y

E
R

S
 A

N
D

 C
O

M
P

A
C

T
E

D
 T

O
 9

5
%

 O
F

 I
T

S
 

3
. 

A
N

Y
 U

N
D

E
S

IR
A

B
L

E
 M

A
T

E
R

IA
L

 E
N

C
O

U
N

T
E

R
E

D
 B

E
N

E
A

T
H

 T
H

E
 R

O
A

D
, 

D
R

IV
E

W
A

Y
, 

P
A

R
K

IN
G

 L
O

T
 O

R
 B

U
IL

D
IN

G
 S

H
A

L
L

 B
E

 

R
E

C
O

N
S

T
R

U
C

T
IO

N
 W

IT
H

IN
 T

H
E

 R
O

A
D

 R
IG

H
T

 O
F

 W
A

Y
.

2
. 
A

L
L

 E
X

IS
T

IN
G

 T
H

IC
K

N
E

S
S

E
S

 O
F

 M
A

T
E

R
IA

L
S

 W
IT

H
IN

 P
U

B
L

IC
 R

O
A

D
W

A
Y

S
 S

H
A

L
L

 B
E

 M
A

T
C

H
E

D
 D

U
R

IN
G

 T
H

E
 

A
R

E
 O

B
T

A
IN

E
D

. 
IT

 S
H

A
L

L
 B

E
 T

H
E

 C
O

N
T

R
A

C
T

O
R

S
 R

E
S

P
O

N
S

IB
IL

IT
Y

 T
O

 O
B

T
A

IN
 A

L
L

 P
E

R
M

IT
S

 R
E

Q
U

IR
E

D
.

T
H

IC
K

N
E

S
S

E
S

).
 N

O
 W

O
R

K
 S

H
A

L
L

 B
E

 P
E

R
F

O
R

M
E

D
 W

IT
H

IN
 T

H
E

 R
O

A
D

 R
IG

H
T

-O
F

-W
A

Y
 U

N
T

IL
 T

H
E

 A
P

P
R

O
P

R
IA

T
E

 P
E

R
M

IT
S

 

S
P

E
C

IF
IC

A
T

IO
N

S
 O

F
 T

H
E

 I
N

G
H

A
M

 C
O

U
N

T
Y

 R
O

A
D

 C
O

M
M

IS
S

IO
N

 (
IN

C
L

U
D

IN
G

 B
U

T
 N

O
T

 L
IM

IT
E

D
 T

O
 M

A
T

E
R

IA
L

S
 A

N
D

 

1
. 

A
L

L
 W

O
R

K
 W

IT
H

IN
 T

H
E

 R
O

A
D

 R
IG

H
T

-O
F

-W
A

Y
 S

H
A

L
L

 C
O

M
P

L
Y

 W
IT

H
 T

H
E

 C
O

N
S

T
R

U
C

T
IO

N
 S

T
A

N
D

A
R

D
S

 A
N

D
 

R
O

A
D

S
, 
P

A
R

K
IN

G
 A

N
D

 C
O

N
C

R
E

T
E

G
E

O
T

E
X

T
IL

E
 M

A
T

E
R

IA
L

.

3
. 
S

T
O

R
M

 S
E

W
E

R
 P

IP
E

 S
H

A
L

L
 B

E
 G

A
L

V
A

N
IZ

E
D

 C
M

P
 A

S
 S

P
E

C
IF

IE
D

 O
N

 P
L

A
N

S
. 
 A

L
L

 J
O

IN
T

S
 S

H
A

L
L

 B
E

 W
R

A
P

P
E

D
 I

N
 

S
T

R
U

C
T

U
R

E
S

 S
H

A
L

L
 B

E
 P

L
A

C
E

D
 O

N
 A

 B
E

D
 O

F
 4

"
 O

F
 C

O
M

P
A

C
T

E
D

 S
A

N
D

.

2
. 

A
L

L
 D

R
A

IN
A

G
E

 S
T

R
U

C
T

U
R

E
S

 S
H

A
L

L
 B

E
 T

H
E

 M
A

T
E

R
IA

L
 A

S
 S

P
E

C
IF

IE
D

 I
N

 P
L

A
N

 D
E

T
A

IL
S

. 
 T

H
E

 B
A

S
E

 O
F

 A
L

L
 

D
R

A
IN

 C
O

M
M

IS
S

IO
N

E
R

 A
N

D
 S

H
A

L
L

 B
E

 S
U

B
J
E

C
T

 T
O

 T
H

E
IR

 I
N

S
P

E
C

T
IO

N
 A

N
D

 A
P

P
R

O
V

A
L

.

1
. 

A
L

L
 S

T
O

R
M

 S
E

W
E

R
 C

O
N

S
T

R
U

C
T

IO
N

 S
H

A
L

L
 C

O
M

P
L

Y
 W

IT
H

 T
H

E
 C

O
N

S
T

R
U

C
T

IO
N

 S
T

A
N

D
A

R
D

S
 O

F
 T

H
E

 I
N

G
H

A
M

 C
O

U
N

T
Y

 

S
T

O
R

M
 S

E
W

E
R

1
. 
A

L
L

 W
A

T
E

R
 L

E
A

D
S

 S
H

A
L

L
 B

E
 1

.2
5
"
 T

Y
P

E
 K

 C
O

P
P

E
R

.

W
A

T
E

R
 S

E
R

V
IC

E

1
. 
A

L
L

 S
A

N
IT

A
R

Y
 S

E
W

E
R

 L
E

A
D

S
 S

H
A

L
L

 B
E

 6
"
 A

N
D

 L
A

ID
 T

O
 A

 M
IN

IM
U

M
 S

L
O

P
E

 O
F

 1
.0

0
%

.

S
A

N
IT

A
R

Y
 S

E
W

E
R

 L
E

A
D

S

S
T

R
E

E
T

S
.

M
IN

IM
IZ

E
 I

N
C

O
N

V
E

N
IE

N
C

E
 T

O
 R

E
S

ID
E

N
T

S
 D

U
E

 T
O

 I
N

T
E

R
R

U
P

T
IO

N
S

 I
N

 S
E

W
E

R
 O

R
 W

A
T

E
R

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

 O
R

 B
L

O
C

K
A

G
E

 O
F

 

1
0
. 
IT

 S
H

A
L

L
 B

E
 T

H
E

 C
O

N
T

R
A

C
T

O
R

'S
 R

E
S

P
O

N
S

IB
IL

IT
Y

 T
O

 S
C

H
E

D
U

L
E

 C
O

N
S

T
R

U
C

T
IO

N
 I

N
 S

U
C

H
 A

 M
A

N
N

E
R

 A
S

 T
O

 

M
A

N
H

O
L

E
S

, 
C

A
T

C
H

 B
A

S
IN

S
 A

N
D

 R
E

L
A

T
E

D
 S

T
R

U
C

T
U

R
E

S
.

9
. 

U
P

O
N

 C
O

M
P

L
E

T
IO

N
 O

F
 C

O
N

S
T

R
U

C
T

IO
N

, 
T

H
E

 C
O

N
T

R
A

C
T

O
R

 S
H

A
L

L
 R

E
M

O
V

E
 A

L
L

 M
U

D
 A

N
D

 D
E

B
R

IS
 F

R
O

M
 S

E
W

E
R

S
, 

A
N

D
 T

H
E

N
 S

E
E

D
E

D
 A

N
D

 M
U

L
C

H
E

D
.

8
. 

U
P

O
N

 C
O

M
P

L
E

T
IO

N
 O

F
 G

R
A

D
IN

G
, 

A
L

L
 D

IS
T

U
R

B
E

D
 A

R
E

A
S

 S
H

A
L

L
 B

E
 C

O
V

E
R

E
D

 W
IT

H
 A

 M
IN

IM
U

M
 O

F
 4

"
 O

F
 T

O
P

S
O

IL
 

P
O

S
S

IB
L

E
 T

O
 T

H
E

IR
 C

O
N

D
IT

IO
N

 P
R

IO
R

 T
O

 T
H

IS
 C

O
N

S
T

R
U

C
T

IO
N

. 
T

H
IS

 S
H

A
L

L
 B

E
 T

H
E

 C
O

N
T

R
A

C
T

O
R

'S
 R

E
S

P
O

N
S

IB
IL

IT
Y

.

7
. 

A
L

L
 F

A
C

IL
IT

IE
S

 A
N

D
 G

R
O

U
N

D
S

 D
A

M
A

G
E

D
 B

Y
 C

O
N

S
T

R
U

C
T

IO
N

 S
H

A
L

L
 B

E
 R

E
P

A
IR

E
D

 A
N

D
 R

E
T

U
R

N
E

D
 A

S
 N

E
A

R
L

Y
 A

S
 

T
Y

P
IC

A
L

 T
R

E
N

C
H

 D
E

T
A

IL
 O

N
 T

H
IS

 S
H

E
E

T
 S

H
A

L
L

 B
E

 U
S

E
D

 F
O

R
 A

L
L

 O
T

H
E

R
 U

T
IL

IT
IE

S
.

D
E

T
A

IL
S

 S
H

O
W

N
 O

N
 T

H
E

 M
E

R
ID

IA
N

 T
O

W
N

S
H

IP
 D

E
T

A
IL

S
 S

H
A

L
L

 B
E

 U
S

E
D

 F
O

R
 S

A
N

IT
A

R
Y

 S
E

W
E

R
 A

N
D

 W
A

T
E

R
 M

A
IN

. 
T

H
E

 

T
H

E
 P

L
A

N
S

. 
B

E
D

D
IN

G
 S

H
A

L
L

 B
E

 C
O

N
S

ID
E

R
E

D
 I

N
C

ID
E

N
T

A
L

 T
O

 T
H

E
 P

L
A

C
IN

G
 O

F
 T

H
E

 U
T

IL
IT

Y
. 
T

H
E

 T
Y

P
IC

A
L

 T
R

E
N

C
H

 

6
. 

A
L

L
 U

T
IL

IT
Y

 B
E

D
D

IN
G

 S
H

A
L

L
 B

E
 A

 M
IN

IM
U

M
 O

F
 C

L
A

S
S

 "
B

"
 A

S
 P

E
R

  
A

S
T

M
 C

-1
2

, 
U

N
L

E
S

S
 O

T
H

E
R

W
IS

E
 S

P
E

C
IF

IE
D

 O
N

 

IT
'S

 M
A

X
IM

U
M

 U
N

IT
 W

E
IG

H
T

.

P
R

O
C

T
O

R
 (

A
S

T
M

 D
1

5
5

7
-7

0
).

 I
N

 A
R

E
A

S
 O

T
H

E
R

 T
H

A
N

 N
O

T
E

D
 A

B
O

V
E

, 
A

L
L

 M
A

T
E

R
IA

L
 S

H
A

L
L

 B
E

 C
O

M
P

A
C

T
E

D
 T

O
 9

0
%

 O
F

 

S
T

R
U

C
T

U
R

E
 S

H
A

L
L

 B
E

 C
O

M
P

A
C

T
E

D
 T

O
 9

5
%

 O
F

 T
H

E
 M

A
T

E
R

IA
L

'S
 M

A
X

IM
U

M
 U

N
IT

 W
E

IG
H

T
 B

A
S

E
D

 O
N

 T
H

E
 M

O
D

IF
IE

D
 

5
. 

A
L

L
 M

A
T

E
R

IA
L

 P
L

A
C

E
D

 B
E

L
O

W
 O

R
 W

IT
H

IN
 T

H
E

 I
N

F
L

U
E

N
C

E
 O

F
 R

O
A

D
S

, 
C

U
R

B
IN

G
, 

C
O

N
C

R
E

T
E

, 
P

A
V

IN
G

 O
R

 A
N

Y
 

D
IF

F
E

R
E

N
T

 T
H

A
N

 S
H

O
W

N
 O

N
 T

H
E

 P
L

A
N

S
, 

T
H

E
 E

N
G

IN
E

E
R

 S
H

A
L

L
 B

E
 N

O
T

IF
IE

D
 I

M
M

E
D

IA
T

E
L

Y
.

E
L

E
V

A
T

IO
N

S
 A

N
D

 L
O

C
A

T
IO

N
S

 O
F

 U
N

D
E

R
G

R
O

U
N

D
 U

T
IL

IT
IE

S
. 

IF
 E

L
E

V
A

T
IO

N
S

 O
R

 L
O

C
A

T
IO

N
S

 A
R

E
 S

U
B

S
T

A
N

T
IA

L
L

Y

4
. 
IT

 S
H

A
L

L
 B

E
 T

H
E

 C
O

N
T

R
A

C
T

O
R

'S
 R

E
S

P
O

N
S

IB
IL

IT
Y

 T
O

 V
E

R
IF

Y
, 
P

R
IO

R
 T

O
 B

E
G

IN
N

IN
G

 C
O

N
S

T
R

U
C

T
IO

N
, 
A

L
L

 C
R

IT
IC

A
L

 

H
E

R
E

O
N

 T
H

A
T

 M
A

Y
 C

R
O

S
S

, 
P

A
R

A
L

L
E

L
, 
L

IE
 C

O
N

T
IG

U
O

U
S

 T
O

 O
R

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

 T
H

IS
 S

IT
E

.

P
.C

. 
IS

 N
O

T
 R

E
S

P
O

N
S

IB
L

E
 F

O
R

 A
N

Y
 O

T
H

E
R

 S
E

W
E

R
S

, 
D

R
A

IN
S

, 
O

R
 R

E
L

A
T

E
D

 S
T

R
U

C
T

U
R

E
S

 N
O

T
 F

O
U

N
D

 A
N

D
 N

O
T

 S
H

O
W

N
 

O
B

T
A

IN
E

D
 F

R
O

M
 E

X
IS

T
IN

G
 P

L
A

N
S

 P
R

E
P

A
R

E
D

 B
Y

 O
T

H
E

R
S

 A
N

D
 F

IE
L

D
 O

B
S

E
R

V
A

T
IO

N
S

. 
S

T
E

P
H

E
N

S
 C

O
N

S
U

L
T

IN
G

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
, 

3
. 
T

H
E

 L
O

C
A

T
IO

N
, 
S

IZ
E

 A
N

D
 E

L
E

V
A

T
IO

N
 O

F
 S

E
W

E
R

S
, 
W

A
T

E
R

 L
IN

E
S

 A
N

D
 R

E
L

A
T

E
D

 S
T

R
U

C
T

U
R

E
S

 S
H

O
W

N
 H

E
R

E
O

N
 W

E
R

E
 

C
O

N
T

A
C

T
E

D
 F

O
R

 V
E

R
IF

IC
A

T
IO

N
 O

F
 S

U
C

H
 L

O
C

A
T

IO
N

S
.

C
O

N
S

T
R

U
C

T
IO

N
, 

IT
 I

S
 R

E
C

O
M

M
E

N
D

E
D

 T
H

A
T

 A
L

L
 U

T
IL

IT
Y

 C
O

M
P

A
N

IE
S

, 
A

G
E

N
C

IE
S

, 
D

E
P

A
R

T
M

E
N

T
S

 A
N

D
 E

T
C

. 
IN

V
O

L
V

E
D

 B
E

 

IN
F

O
R

M
A

T
IO

N
 O

N
L

Y
, 
O

B
T

A
IN

E
D

 F
R

O
M

 T
H

E
 U

T
IL

IT
Y

 C
O

M
P

A
N

Y
 I

N
V

O
L

V
E

D
 O

R
 F

R
O

M
 O

B
S

E
R

V
A

T
IO

N
. 
P

R
IO

R
 T

O
 A

N
Y

 

2
. 

IN
F

O
R

M
A

T
IO

N
 O

N
 D

E
P

T
H

, 
S

IZ
E

 A
N

D
 E

T
C

. 
O

F
 A

L
L

 O
T

H
E

R
 U

N
D

E
R

G
R

O
U

N
D

 U
T

IL
IT

IE
S

 S
H

O
W

N
 H

E
R

E
O

N
 I

S
 P

L
A

N
 

O
W

N
E

R
S

 W
H

O
 M

A
Y

 N
O

T
 B

E
 A

 P
A

R
T

 O
F

 T
H

E
 "

M
IS

S
 D

IG
"
 A

L
E

R
T

 S
Y

S
T

E
M

.

B
E

 R
O

U
T

IN
E

L
Y

 N
O

T
IF

IE
D

. 
T

H
IS

 D
O

E
S

 N
O

T
 R

E
L

IE
V

E
 T

H
E

 C
O

N
T

R
A

C
T

O
R

 O
F

 T
H

E
 R

E
S

P
O

N
S

IB
IL

IT
Y

 O
F

 N
O

T
IF

Y
IN

G
 U

T
IL

IT
Y

 

H
O

U
R

S
 P

R
IO

R
 T

O
 E

X
C

A
V

A
T

IN
G

 I
N

 T
H

E
 V

IC
IN

IT
Y

 O
F

 U
T

IL
IT

Y
 L

IN
E

S
. 
A

L
L

 "
M

IS
S

 D
IG

"
 P

A
R

T
IC

IP
A

T
IN

G
 M

E
M

B
E

R
S

 W
IL

L
 T

H
U

S
 

1
. 
F

O
R

 P
R

O
T

E
C

T
IO

N
 O

F
 U

N
D

E
R

G
R

O
U

N
D

 U
T

IL
IT

IE
S

, 
T

H
E

 C
O

N
T

R
A

C
T

O
R

 S
H

A
L

L
 D

IA
L

 1
-8

0
0
-4

8
2
-7

1
7
1
 A

 M
IN

IM
U

M
 O

F
 7

2
 

G
E

N
E

R
A

L
 S

P
E

C
IF

IC
A

T
IO

N
S

S
P

E
C

IF
IC

A
T

IO
N

S

BRSE

C
6
.0OKEMOS, INGHAM COUNTY, MI

5570 OKEMOS ROAD

GS FEDEWA  BUILDERS

EAST LANSING, INGHAM COUNTY, MI

PHONE: 517-339-0020

BRS ENGINEERING

S
H

E
E

T
 N

O
.P

L
O

T
 S

C
A

L
E

P
R

O
J
E

C
T

S
C

A
L

E

C
A

D
 F

IL
E

D
R

A
W

IN
G

E
D

IT

P
R

O
J
E

C
T

 M
G

R
.

E
N

G
IN

E
E

R

D
R

A
W

N
 B

Y
D

A
T

E

D
A

T
E

D
A

T
E

REVISED IN ACCORDANCE WITH CONSTRUCTION RECORDS

NO.REVISIONSBYDATE

B
R

S

B
R

S

B
R

S

brsengineering@comcast.net

Phone: (517) 719-5094

Lansing, MI 48910

3821 Stoneleigh Drive 

1
"
=

2
0

'

8
/
2

0
/
1

8

0
0

0
1

BRS 1

SLUP

ISSUE FOR REVIEW

8
/
2

0
/
1

8

8
/
2

0
/
1

8

15-UNITS, 2 BUILDING
1730 CHIEF OKEMOS CIRCLE

CHIEF OKEMOS CIRCLE TOWNHOMES

SPECIFICATIONS & NOTES





ED
GE

 O
F 

PA
VE

ME
NT

 
1.0

0' 
I 

VA
RIE

S 
-

EX
IST

ING
 U

ND
IST

UR
BE

D 
EA

RT
H 

';,
 

FIN
AL

 B
AC

KF
ILL

: 
CL

AS
S 

II G
RA

NU
LA

R 
FIL

L 
'•<··. 

'•<'\,
 '\

 
CO

MP
AC

TE
D 

(95
% 

DE
NS

ITY
) 

' '
 

''<\
 

45°
 

I fee 0 

ZO
NE

 O
F 

INF
LU

EN
CE

 

CL
AS

S 
II G

RA
NU

LA
R 

FIL
L 

CO
MP

AC
TE

D 
TO

 9
5%

 D
EN

SIT
Y 

TO
 1

2" 
OV

ER
 T

HE
 T

OP
 O

F 
TH

E 
PIP

E 
Jb/ __

____ / 
PR

OP
OS

ED
 8

" S
EW

ER
 M

AIN
 

US
E 

4" 
MIN

IMU
M 

1/2
" 

CR
US

HE
D 

ST
ON

E 
BE

DD
ING

 
_j 

OR
 

CL
AS

S 
II G

RA
NU

LA
R 

FIL
L 

CO
MP

AC
TE

D 
TO

 9
5%

 D
EN

SIT
Y 

SL
ICE

D 
UN

DE
R 

TH
E 

HA
UN

CH
ES

 
I 

I 
·-

-2
.0

0
·-

-

CL
AS

S-B
 T

RE
NC

H 
DE

TA
IL 

SC
AL

E: 
NO

NE
 

i
-
-
-
-
-

EX
CA

VA
TIO

N 
AR

EA
 -

-
-
-
-
-
i 

AR
EA

 O
UT

SID
E 

RO
AD

S 
&

 PA
RK

ING
 L

OT
S 

ZO
NE

 O
F 

INF
LU

EN
CE

 
ZO

NE
 O

F 
INF

LU
EN

CE
 F

OR
 

RO
AD

WA
Y 

&
 PA

RK
ING

 L
OT

S 

"' 
·cc 

=I
 

/ 
-1

-
-

_11 
/ 

! 
_[

f_
l] 

._ 
L 

.· 
·· 

. 
. 

I 
I 

' 
t 

,_
U

_ 
//

 
:/ 

//
 

,-1
1-

11
 

' 
I 11 

/ 
. 

• 
/ 

. 
/ /

• •
 

I -
I ~ 

GR
AN

UL
AR

 F
ILL

 
JO

B 
EX

CA
VA

TE
D 

BA
CK

FIL
L 

I 
. 

/ /M
AX

. 
TR

EtC
H. 

Wl
~T

H/ 
•.. 

I 11 
I I'. 

(M
IN.

 9
5%

 C
OM

PA
CT

ION
) 

-II 
PIP

E 
o ..

 +
 24 

• 
.·· 

-II 
-I

' 
i 

I 
I 

/"'
 

. 
, 

~
 -

11 
/ f

 •
 

. 
·/ -

1 
-I

 --' 
·. i

T
 

1 
.· 

_11
1_1

 
--

l--
--

~:
-c

...
.=

 11 -
/ 

. 
··. 

--~
I=

+-
---

-'-
-

• I
_ _

I_ :
· -:-:

·:---:
-:·:/-

:-:-:·
:·:·:-

:t;;::
:-:-:-

:-:-:-
-:-:·:

 :-:-:-
/ -=

1 
=IC

 
. -I 

II_ I
 I 

-
--

--
! 

-
--

-Ill
_ 1-

, 
II 

II 
· -.

. 
11 

_1
_1

_ 
..

..
 

_1
_1

, 
11

1TI
I 

__
 11_

 
CO

MP
AC

TE
D 

SA
ND

 O
R 

CR
US

HE
D 

-11
 -1

1 
_/_

-_._
-.·-c

-· 
-

LI I
 J_: 

ST
ON

E 
(1 /

2 "
 M

AX
. D

.) 
-1_

11 
_I_ I

I ·:
-:·:-

:-:-:
· 

. 1=
 1

2L
11

 C
OM

PA
CT

ED
 S

AN
.~ 

OR
 C

RU
SH

ED
 

~

I -
-

. 
..

 .
. 

._ .. -•• 
· 

-.
..

..
. •.•-

.I-
-I

 _
 ,

 
ST

ON
E 

(1
/2 

MA
X. 

D.)
 

II 
..

..
 

-
..

..
 

11 
, 

l]
 

::
::

 ::
I-

_1 
[fl 

O.
D./

:Eg
~!N

6~
 M

IN.I
 

. .
 

-.. -.
-.

.. -
, /

-
I 
=

 
}I 

: : ]
 
i 

--
jl

_
 _

_
_

_
 --.-"'-

'=--=
'=' ~
 

3" 
MIN

. 
--

-,.-
,-.-

-o.
D.

 4
·1=

 =
 =

 I 
1111

 ~I-
--I 

1111
11 

: 6' 
UN

DE
RC

UT
 

: 
I-

--
II_, 

PIP
E 

MA
TE

RIA
L 

AS
 ·.

 -
1 -

I_
 -

1 -
-

-~
II_

 l] 
-

[fB
ED

Di'
NG

 ~
 [f

: 
SH

OW
N 

ON
 P

LA
NS

 
-

J_ 
_J 

I 
I 

I 
I I 

I 
I 

-
I 

I .
 . I

 -
I 

'. 
U_ 

Jj 
GR

AN
UL

AR
 S

OIL
 

•1
11

• 
II 

RO
CK

 O
R 

CL
AY

 S
OIL

-
-I

I' 
·-11 _I_

 -;;_
I--

-1
_, 

, _I_ 
, ,_1 

-
1_1

1 _I_
 11_

1 
-

1_1
1 _I_

 11_
1 

-
1_1

1 

TH
E 

PV
C 

(S
DR

-26
) 

PIP
E 

MA
TE

RIA
L 

SH
AL

L 
CO

NF
IRM

 T
O 

AST
IM 

D
 22

41
, 

WIT
H 

BE
LL 

AN
D 

SP
IGO

T 
JO

INT
S 

IN 
AC

CO
RD

AN
CE

 W
ITH

 A
STI

M 
F

 47
7 

PIP
E 

INS
TA

LLA
TIO

N 
SH

AL
L 

BE
 IN

 A
CC

OR
DA

NC
E 

'MT
H 

AS
TM

 D
 23

21
. 

AL
L 

PIP
E 

SH
AL

L 
BE

 M
AR

KE
D 

TO
 P

RO
v1D

E 
AS

TM
 D

ES
IGN

AT
ION

S, 
SD

R 
NU

MB
ER

, M
AN

UF
AC

TU
RE

RS
 N

AM
E 

AN
D 

PIP
E 

DIA
ME

TE
R. 

TH
E 

CO
NT

RA
CT

OR
 S

HA
LL 

TE
ST

 T
HE

 M
AIN

 F
OR

 D
EF

LE
CT

ION
 B

Y 
PU

LLI
NG

 A
 MA

ND
RE

L 
TH

RO
UG

H 
TH

E 
SE

WE
R 

AF
TE

R 
AL

L 
BA

CK
FIL

L 
HA

S 
BE

EN
 P

LA
CE

D 
AN

D 
CO

MP
AC

TE
D 

Ov1
ER 

TH
E 

PIP
E. 

TH
E 

MA
XIM

UM
 

AL
LO

WA
BL

E 
DE

FLE
CT

ION
 S

HA
LL 

NO
T 

EX
CE

ED
 5

% 
OF

 T
HE

 P
IPE

'S 
INS

IDE
 

DIA
ME

TE
R. 

TH
E 

OU
TS

IDE
 D

IAM
ET

ER
 O

F 
TH

E 
TE

ST
 M

AN
DR

EL
 S

HA
LL 

BE
 

EQ
UA

L 
TO

 T
HE

 T
O 

TH
E 

INS
IDE

 D
IAM

ET
ER

 O
F 

TH
E 

PIP
E 

LE
SS

 5
%. 

TH
E 

INI
TIA

L 
TE

ST
 S

HA
LL 

BE
 P

ER
FO

RM
ED

 A
T 

LE
AS

T 
30

 D
AY

S 
AF

TE
R 

PIP
E 

INS
TA

LLA
TIO

N. 
A

 SE
CO

ND
 T

ES
T 

SH
AL

L 
BE

 P
ER

FO
RM

ED
 A

FT
ER

 1
0 

MO
NT

HS
 

OF
 P

IPE
 IN

ST
AL

LA
TIO

N. 

TY
PIC

AL
 T

RE
NC

H 
DE

TA
IL 

CS
DR

26 
PVC

 D
NL

 Y)
 

ND 
SCA

LE 

SH
EE

TIN
G 

IS 
RE

Q'D
. I

F 
FR

ON
T 

OF
 P

IT 
IS 

WIT
HIN

 1
: 1

 SL
OP

E 
FR

OM
 E

ND
 O

F 
R.R

. T
IE 

OR
 B

AC
K 

OF
 C

UR
B 

SE
AL

 C
AS

ING
 E

ND
S 

WIT
H 

BR
ICK

 A
ND

 M
OR

TA
R 

/ 

/ / / 

/ 

SIZ
E 

AN
D 

LEN
GT

H 
OF

 C
AS

ING
 

ON
 P

LA
NS

 O
R 

IN 
SP

EC
S 

-
-
-
-
-

RO
AD

WA
Y 

RA
ILR

OA
D 
-
-
-
-

~
 .. } 

CA
RR

IER
 P

IPE
 A

S 
SP

EC
IFIE

D 
AS

 S
HO

WN
 

ON
 P

LA
NS

 O
R 

IN 
SP

EC
S 

,;,;::1
{:,•J 

"' "' "' "' "' "' 
BA

ND
 T

IMB
ER

 S
KID

S 
TO

 C
AR

RIE
R 

PIP
E 

AN
D 

US
E 

AS
 T

EM
PO

RA
RY

 S
UP

PO
RT

S 

'-. 

FIL
L 

VO
ID 

BE
TW

EE
N 

CA
SIN

G 
AN

D 
CA

RR
IER

 
PIP

E 
WIT

H 
1 /2

" 
CR

US
HE

D 
ST

ON
E 

CA
SIN

G 
INS

TA
LLA

TIO
N 

DE
TA

IL 
FO

R 
RO

AD
S 

&
 RA

ILR
OA

DS
 

NO
TES

 
CA

SIN
G 

AN
D 

CA
RR

IER
 P

IPE
 T

O 
BE 

INS
TA

LLE
D 

BY
 M

ETH
OD

 O
TH

ER
 T

HA
N 

OP
EN

 C
UT

 
1. 

WO
RK

 IN
 R

OA
DS

 A
ND

 IN
 R

AIL
RO

AD
 R

IGH
T-O

F-W
AY

S 
SH

AL
L 

BE
 IN

 A
CC

OR
DA

NC
E 

WIT
H 

TH
E 

AP
PR

OP
RIA

TE
 R

EG
UL

AT
OR

Y 
AG

EN
CY

S 
RE

QU
IRE

ME
NT

S. 
2. 

CA
SIN

G 
PIP

E 
SH

AL
L 

BE
 A

STM
 1

39
, G

RA
DE

 B
 OR

 A
STI

M 
A-

53
, G

RA
DE

 B
 OR

 A
PI 

5-L
, 

GR
AD

E 
B

 OR
 A

PI 
GR

AD
E 

B
 WIT

H 
0.3

75
" M

INIM
UM

 W
ALL

 T
HIC

KN
ES

S. 

lj'_ 

' I-
----. _

-.--.--
-_-Jl.

----
_ I 

II 
:/} 

-y
'I

 UN
DIS

TU
RB

ED
 E

A
R

TH
~ =W

 
\==

I~~
 

~1H
+:i: 

" 
I 

I /
/ 

" 

I-
-

11= 
t-

i 
I 

6" 
SE

RV
ICE

 L
EA

D 
W/

PL
UG

 

lj'_ 

6n 
SE

RV
ICE

 L
EA

D 
W/

PL
UG

 

~j ~~ 
::B ~j 

-I 
H

~ 
CO

MP
AC

TE
D 

SA
ND

 
_A;l-

--J// 
=

 I 
1= J: 

-0
 

LO
NG

 R
AD

IUS
 C

UR
v1E

 

PLA
N 

WIT
HO

UT
 R

ISE
R 

lj'_ 

T
IY

 
2 x

 4 W
OOD

 ST
AKE

 
24

" A
BO

VE
 G

RA
DE

 
GR

AD
E 

·l·.·.
1.:.0

%·.·
MJN

:.·.S
lOP

.E.·.
· · 

9.0
' _L
 

6" 
P.V

.C.
 S

ER
\1C

E 
LEA

D 
W/

GL
UE

D 
JO

INT
S 

FE
RN

CO
 S

TYL
E 

CO
UP

LER
 

PIP
E 

OU
T O

F 
WY

E 
111

 
1,

 

Jr 
SEW

ER 
MA

IN 
__

__
_,,,

. 
PLA

N 

--, 
,_I 

WIT
H 

RIS
ER

 
2 

x 4
 WO

OD
 S

TA
KE

 
24

" A
BO

v1E
 G

RA
DE

 
GR

AD
E 

..........
 i:oli

: MIN
>>

si::
OR

t' 
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
. 

Fl 

CO
MP

AC
TE

D 
SA

ND
 

TO
 1

2" 
OV

ER
 P

IP
E-

-+-
~"'

""'"
"'-'

'-'-
--'-

'---
..:.

:...
.:.:

.. 

i 12
· I .
 ----

··-··
 

_y.·
.-.·, 

1" 
CR

US
HE

D 
ST

O
N

E_
/ 1'''

"' 
PIP

E 
RIS

ER
 

'--
-._

 U
ND

IST
UR

BE
D 

EA
RT

H 
UN

DIS
TU

RB
ED

 E
AR

TH
 ~
 I 

SEW
ER

 M
AIN

 
CO

M P
AC

 TE
D 

SA
ND

 

SE
CT

ION
 W

ITH
OU

T 
RIS

ER
 

NO
TE

S 
1. 

LEA
DS

 A
ND

 R
ISE

RS
 S

HA
LL 

BE
 C

ON
ST

RU
CT

ED
 O

F 
MA

TE
RIA

LS 
AS

 S
PE

CIF
IED

 A
ND

 O
F 

SIZ
ES

 A
S 

SH
OW

N 
ON

 P
LA

N. 
2. 

DE
PT

H 
AT

 P
RO

PE
RT

Y 
LIN

E 
SH

AL
L 

BE
 9

' U
NL

ES
S 

SH
OW

N 
OT

HE
RW

ISE
 O

N 
PL

AN
S. 

3. 
IF 

CO
NC

RE
TE

 P
IPE

 IS
 U

SE
D, 

AN
 A

SB
ES

TO
S 

CE
ME

NT
 B

EL
L 

IS 
TO 

BE
 C

AS
T 

IN 
WA

LL 
OF

 P
IPE

 
FO

R 
US

E 
AS

 T
EE 

BR
AN

CH
. 

4. 
FE

RN
CO

 S
TY

LE 
FLE

XIB
LE 

CO
UP

LIN
GS

 S
HA

LL 
BE 

US
ED

 W
HE

N 
CO

NN
EC

TIN
G 

HO
US

E 
TO

 S
TU

B. 
5. 

MIN
. 3

' S
EP

ER
A T

ION
 B

ETW
EE

N 
WA

TER
 &

 SEW
ER

 
SE

RV
ICE

S. 
6. 

AL
L 

RE
FE

RE
NC

ES
 T

O 
STO

NE
 B

ED
DIN

G 
SH

AL
L 

ME
AN

 
CR

US
HE

D 
STO

NE
. 

48"
 

4" 
MIN

. C
OM

PA
CT

ED
 S

AN
D 

SE
CT

ION
 W

ITH
 R

ISE
R 

'--
--

TEE
 

SEW
ER

 M
AIN

 

SE
RV

I C
EL

CO
N N

 EC
TI O

N 
DE

TA
IL 

i-
e
--

--
--

--
48

" _
_

_
_

_
_

 __
,-i 

.... • 
. ~.

 
' 

,!J
' 

·._
 4

 . 
. .. ' 

. 

A
• 
~
 .
.
.
.
.
 •,

 

4 
,.; 

4 
"·.

. 
·4---

-
<! 

•• . '1
-· 

,, 
·:.. 

.. :
· 

·~ 
•. 

·.-.. 
I! 

... 
·,,,:.

· 
" 

. 
.,,/1

. 
... 

.. 
"4 

:~ 
. ~·

 
,!J"

· .. ~
. 

· .. 
: 

~·
 ..

 "
.•

: 
1i 

.,. 
'f 

.. 
··· ..... 

... . :.
 ·." 

.. ... 
.. 

4 
.• 

"4·:
 

J .
.. 

' 
1 ..

.. :
 

• 
• <

! 
••

• 
4. 

\·.' 
' ......

.. ' . 
' 

. . 
. 

<I 
"· 

• "
 . . 
. ·"' 

': <
I ·

 ....
...

. .t .
. 

.• ".~ . . ' 
.i.

 
~
 

. 
·, 

.. , .. 
.... 

,.: 
~-, .

 
•• 

4 
'·

 
"-•

.
.
 :

• 
..

..
 

· ...
.. 

<I 
. 

·,!J
·'!' 

~-
... : 

... 
• .. 

·.•· • 
.,t.

 
.• 

·:1 
.. 4

 
. 

" 
• 

,/1.
. 

. 4
· 

, ..... "
 :" 

.. ' 
·:... 

. • 
4tt,

" 
.. '<

I''..
.. 

,:/ 
" 

" "· 
·., ...
.. 

4· 
... 

-4
 

4 
~·· 

. 
'!~.

 
: .• 

.......
.. '. ·

.;~
 ~

 
.. 

. 
w

 
. 

. 
.. 

.. . 
. 

. 
•· 

. . . .
 . 

·._>:
.·._,,

· .. ·:
_··1

· ··
 .. ·

 ..
 

PLA
N 

8' 
MIN

. F
DR

 R
OA

DS
 

PA
RK

ING
 L

OT
S 

AN
D 

PA
TH

w'A
YS

 

• 
•• ..... 

VA
L V

E 
BO

X 
RIS

ER
 

85
00

80
XX

 
E.J

.I.w
'. 

6" 
P.V

.C.
 S

ER
v1C

E 
LEA

D 
W/

GL
UE

D 
JO

INT
S 

FER
NC

O 
CO

UP
LER

 

I ~
-.... ~
 

...
. ~
 

..
 

CR
OS

S 
SE

CT
ION

 

J_ 8" T
 

CL
EA

NO
UT

 B
OX

ES
 IN

 C
ON

CR
ET

E 

---
/ 
/ 

---t-
.,-=

"'-'II
_ 

/ I I I \ I \ 
\ 

\ \ ' 
I 

'
,
 -

I 
I 

3-1
2" 

D. 
TR

EA
TE

D 
WO

OD
 

PIL
ES

 @
 EQ

UA
L 

SP
AC

ING
 

--
II

~
 POL

YE
TH

YLE
NE

 E
NC

AS
EM

EN
T 

AL
L 

CR
OS

SM
EM

BE
RS

 T
O 

BE
 

3" 
x 8

" T
RE

AT
ED

 T
IMB

ER
S 

FA
ST

EN
 C

RO
SS

ME
MB

ER
S 

TO
 P

ILIN
G 

WIT
H 

1" 
TH

RE
AD

ED
 R

OD
S, 

WA
SH

ER
S 

AN
D 

NU
TS

 

PO
LYE

TH
YLE

NE
 E

NC
AS

EM
EN

T 

MA
NH

OL
E 

PLA
N 

FR
ON

T 
VIE

W 
SID

E 
VIE

W 

1 s· 
• •

 • 
• •

 •
 • 

• •
 •

 
--, 

I 
.--

--, 
.--

130
00

 P
SI 

TR
AN

SIT
 M

IXE
D 

CO
NG

. 
_J

_ 
12"

 ·-r
 I /16 
@

 6" 
E.W

. 

MA
NH

OL
E 

SE
CT

ION
 

/ 
I 

\ 
/ I

 \ 

r
-
5

.
0

'-
-
j 

TO
P 

VIE
W 

PIL
ING

 D
ET

AIL
S 

OFF
-RO

AD 
CAS

TIN
G 

STA
NDA

RD 
CAS

TIN
G 

FR
AM

E 
SH

AL
L 

BE
 E

AS
T 

JO
RD

AN
 IR

ON
 W

OR
KS

 1
045

W 
BO

LT-
DO

WN
 C

AS
TIN

G 
AN

D 
BO

LT-
DO

WN
 C

OV
ER 

SH
ALL

 
CO

VER
 SH

ALL
 BE

 EA
ST 

JOR
DAN

 IR
ON

 W
ORK

S H
EAV

Y 
BE:

 E
AS

T J
OR

DA
N 

IRO
N 

WO
RK

S 
104

5 
ZPT

 O
R 

NE
EN

AH
 

DU
TY 

104
0 A

GS 
SOL

ID, 
GA

SKE
TED

, S
ELF

 SE
ALI

NG
 

R-
19

16
-F 

CA
STI

NG
 W

llH 
TYP

E 
'D' 

LID
 O

R 
EQ

UA
L 

AND
 S

HAL
L "

SA
NIT

AR
Y' 

AND
 "T

OW
NSH

IP 
TRE

E• 
CA

ST 
WIT

H 
'SA

NIT
AR

Y' 
CA

ST 
INT

O 
SU

RFA
CE

 
AN

D 
SH

ALL
 

-
-

INT
O 

SUR
FAC

E 
BE 

EQ
UIP

PED
 W

ITH
 (4

) S
TAI

NLE
SS 

STE
EL 

CA
P 

SCR
EW

S. 

3/4
• C

AD
MIU

M 
CO

AT
ED

 R
OD

 W
ITH

 7
/8.x

2"
xV

B"
 

ZIN
C 

PLA
TED

 M
ETA

L W
ASH

ER.
 

3/4
 x2

"x1
/8 

NEO
PRE

NE 
SEA

LIN
G 

WA
SHE

R 
AND

 N
UTS

. 
EXP

AN
SIO

N 
AN

CH
OR

S 
(4 

PER
 M

AN
HO

LE)
 

J:l:
l L C

OV
ER

 G
AS

KE
T 

1 T
O 

3 P
RE

CA
ST 

CO
NC

RE
TE 

RIN
GS

 F
OR

 
FUT

IJR
E 

GR
AD

E 
AD

JUS
TM

EN
T U

SE 
MIN

, N
O. 

OF 
RIN

GS 
TO 

BUI
LD 

CH
IMN

EY.
 

NO
N-S

HR
INK

 C
EM

EN
T M

OR
TAR

 C
OA

TIN
G 

ON
 

EXT
ER

IOR
 A

ND
 IN

TER
IOR

 R
ING

S 
AN

O 
JOI

NTS
 

1" 
BU

TYL
 G

AS
KE

T I
N 

FLE
XIB

LE 
RO

PE 
FO

RM
, 

('E
-Z 

STI
K, 

'BU
TY

L-L
OK

', O
R 

AP
PR

OV
ED

 
EQ

UA
L). 

US
E 

"W
RA

PIO
SEA

L" 
EN

CA
PS

UL
AT

ION
 S

YST
EM

 O
R 

AP
PR

OV
ED

 E
QU

AL 
INS

TAL
L 3

" B
ELO

W 
TO

P O
F E

CC
EN

TRI
C 

CO
NE 

SEC
TIO

N 
AS 

SH
O~

 

NO
TES

 
1) 

MA
NH

OL
E 

TOP
 S

EC
TIO

N 
TO 

BE
 E

CC
EN

TRI
C 

2) 
MA

NH
OL

E 
CO

VER
 T

O 
BE 

SET
 FL

US
H 

WIT
H 

PA
VE

ME
NT

, 
6" 

BEL
OW

 SU
RFA

CE
 O

F G
RA

VEL
 R

OA
DS

, 6
" A

BO
VE 

DIT
CH

 B
OTT

OM
 O

R 
AS 

SPE
CIF

IED
 O

N 
PLA

NS
. 

3) 
ALL

 JO
INT

S 
TO 

BE 
FIL

LED
 W

ITH
 N

ON
-SH

RIN
K 

CE
ME

NT 
MO

RTA
R 

BO
TH 

ON
 T

HE 
INT

ER
IOR

 A
NO

 
EXT

ER
IOR

 .
 

4) 
DR

OP
 C

ON
NE

CTI
ON

 T
O 

BE 
TO

TA
LLY

 EN
CA

SED
 IN

 
CLA

SS 
'B' 

CO
NC

RE
TE 

OR
 U

SE 
DU

C11
LE 

IRO
N 

PIP
E 

WIT
H 

STO
NE

 B
ED

DIN
G. 

5) 
STE

PS 
TO 

BE 
30

6 
MA

XIM
UM

 F
RO

M 
TOP

 O
F C

AS
TIN

G 
TO 

FIR
ST 

STE
P 

THE
N 

SP
AC

ED
 A

T 1
66 

O.C
 . 

MA
NH

OL
E 

SE
E 

CA
ST

ING
 D

ET
AIL

 

CO
NN

EC
TIO

NS
 S

HA
LL 

BE
 M

AD
E 

WIT
H 

AN
 

INT
EG

RA
L 

CA
ST

 S
EA

L 
SY

STE
M 

(KO
R-

N-
SE

AL
, L

OC
K-J

OIN
T 

FLE
XIB

LE 
MA

NH
OL

E 
SLE

EV
E 

OR
 A

PP
RO

VE
D 

EQ
UA

L) 

UN
DIS

TU
RB

ED
 E

AR
TH

 ~
I 

CL
AS

S 
'B' 

CO
NC

RE
TE

 
-I -1, 

CL
AS

S 
'B' 

CO
NC

RE
TE

 
-1 

I· rn ,,. 
~
 

EC
CE

NTR
IC 

MA
NH

OL
E 

CO
NE

 

FIL
L E

XTE
RIO

R 
&

 INT
ER

IOR
 JO

INT
S 

WIT
H 

NO
N-S

HR
INK

 C
EM

EN
T M

OR
TAR

 
WIT

H 
A

 SM
OO

TH 
BR

US
HE

D 
FIN

ISH
. 

ALL
 M

AN
HO

LE 
SEC

TIO
NS 

TO 
HA

VE 
0-R

ING
S 

AT 
THE

 JO
INT

S 

CA
ST

ING
 D

ET
AIL

 

30"
 

24
" D

IA. 

~-
~.

---
',-

ST
EP

S 
16

" O
.C. 

4B
" D

IA. 

AS
TM

 C
478

 P
RE

CA
ST

 M
AN

HO
LE 

SE
CT

ION
S 

BE
D 

AL
L 

PIP
E 

ON
 1

" C
RU

SH
ED

 S
TO

NE
 T

O 
FIR

ST
 P

IPE
 

JO
INT

 O
R 

TO
 S

TA
RT

 O
F 

ST
AN

DA
RD

 T
RE

NC
H 

BE
DD

ING
 

-I 
:_

1 
: 
_

· :
 

:_
1 
1 , i, J/

_ _
, ,L 

• i; ·
 1, 

\ 
2" 

TO 
4" 

OF
 C

OM
PA

CT
ED

 S
AN

D 
BE

DD
ING

 

2" 
TO

 4
" O

F 
CO

MP
AC

TE
D 

SA
ND

 B
ED

DIN
G 

24
" ----

CL
AS

S 
'B' 

CO
NC

RE
TE

 C
HA

NN
EL 

1/2
 O

F 
PIP

E 
D

IA
.-

-~
 

MA
NH

OL
E-S

EC
TIO

N 
DE

TA
IL 

f'9 I I 
BR

AN
CH

 L
INE

S 
TO 

HA
 v1E

 C
HA

NN
ELS

 
SH

AP
ED

 IN
 D

IRE
CT

ION
 O

F 
FLO

W 

"' 
/ 

5:::-
LOW

 
--~ 

/ 
SLO

PE
 S

IDE
S 

TO 
CE

NT
ER

 

MA
NH

OL
E 

FLO
WL

INE
 P

LA
N 

NO
TE

: U
SE

 A
 HA

LF 
PIP

E 
AS

 A
 FO

RM
 F

OR
 A

 CO
NC

RE
TE

 F
LO

W 
CH

AN
NE

L. 

M
eri

dia
n 

Ch
art

er 
To

wn
shi

p 
RE

VIS
IDN

S: 
DA

TE
 

I B
Y, 

ing
ha

m 
co

un
ty,

 m
ich

iga
n 

4/9
6 

I 
JG

 
7 /2

/9
9 

I 
JG

 
1/1

3/0
0 
I 

JG
 

PU
BL

IC 
WO

RK
S 

DEP
AR

TM
ENT

 
5/1

2/0
8 I

 JG
 

STA
ND

AR
D 

DE
TA

ILS
 

7 /3
1/1

2 I
 JG

 
5/1

5/1
5 I

 JG
 

SC
AL

E: 
FO

R 
SA

NIT
AR

Y 
SY

ST
EM

 NO
NE

 
DR

Av
/N 

BY
: 

MK
 

3/8
3 

CH
EC

KE
D 

BY
: 

JB
 

3/8
3 

CO
MM

EN
TS

, 
CO

MP
UT

ER
 G

EN
ER

AT
ED

 
AD

D 
BO

LT
S 

TD
 C

AS
TIN

G 
DE

TA
IL 

AD
D 

SD
R 

26
 D

ET
AIL

 
AD

D 
'w'

RA
PID

SE
AL

' ~
 

NO
N-S

HR
INK

 G
RO

UT
 

TD
 M

AN
HO

LE
/CA

ST
ING

 D
ET

AIL
 

CL
AR

IFI
ED

 C
RU

SH
ED

 S
TO

NE
 

AD
D 

CL
EA

ND
UT

 B
OX

 IN
 C

ON
CR

ET
E 

SH
EE

T 
OF

 
SA

ND
ET

 AL
.Dv

/G 

brstockhill
Text Box
9

brstockhill
Text Box
11





S
C

A
L

E
: 

N
O

 S
C

A
L

E

S
E

E
 C

H
A

R
T

T
R

E
N

C
H

 W
ID

T
H

IT
S

 M
A

X
IM

U
M

 U
N

IT
 W

E
IG

H
T

A
N

D
 C

O
M

P
A

C
T

E
D

 T
O

 9
5

%
 O

F

S
H

A
L

L
 B

E
 P

L
A

C
E

D
 I

N
 6

"
 L

A
Y

E
R

S

M
D

O
T

 C
L

A
S

S
 I

 I
  

S
A

N
D

 B
A

C
K

F
IL

L

D
E

P
T

H
 O

F
 B

E
D

D
IN

G

M
A

T
E

R
IA

L
 B

E
L

O
W

 P
IP

E

A

2
7
"
 O

R
 S

M
A

L
L

E
R

3
0
"
 T

O
 6

0
"

6
6

"
 O

R
 L

A
R

G
E

R

4
"

4
"

6
"

IT
S

 M
A

X
IM

U
M

 U
N

IT
 W

E
IG

H
T

A
N

D
 C

O
M

P
A

C
T

E
D

 T
O

 9
5

%
 O

F

S
H

A
L

L
 B

E
 P

L
A

C
E

D
 I

N
 6

"
 L

A
Y

E
R

S

M
D

O
T

 C
L

A
S

S
 I

 I
  

S
A

N
D

 B
A

C
K

F
IL

L

S
E

E
 C

H
A

R
T

T
R

E
N

C
H

 W
ID

T
H

C
O

M
P

A
C

T
E

D
 S

A
N

D
 B

A
C

K
F

IL
L

I.
 D

.

E
X

C
A

V
A

T
E

D
 M

A
T

E
R

IA
L

 B
A

C
K

F
IL

L

D
E

P
T

H
 O

F
 B

E
D

D
IN

G

M
A

T
E

R
IA

L
 B

E
L

O
W

 P
IP

E

A

2
7
"
 O

R
 S

M
A

L
L

E
R

3
0
"
 T

O
 6

0
"

6
6

"
 O

R
 L

A
R

G
E

R

4
"

6
"

I.
 D

.

U
N

D
IS

T
U

R
B

E
D

 E
A

R
T

H

N
O

T
E

D
 O

N
 T

H
E

 P
L

A
N

S

S
H

A
L

L
 B

E
 U

S
E

D
 W

H
E

R
E

N
O

T
E

: 
C

O
M

P
A

C
T

E
D

 S
A

N
D

 B
A

C
K

F
IL

L

M
A

T
E

R
IA

L

P
IP

E R
C

P
O

.D
. 

+
 1

2
"

O
.D

. 
+

 2
4
"

M
IN

IM
U

M
M

A
X

IM
U

M
M

A
T

E
R

IA
L

P
IP

E R
C

P
O

.D
. 

+
 1

2
"

O
.D

. 
+

 2
4
"

M
IN

IM
U

M
M

A
X

IM
U

M

CENTERLINE

PIPE

C
O

N
C

R
E

T
E

 B
L

O
C

K

C
U

L
V

E
R

T
 P

IP
E

H
A

R
D

W
A

R
E

 C
L

O
T

H

F
IN

IS
H

 G
R

A
D

E

O
U

T
L

IN
E

 O
F

 D
IT

C
H

C
L

O
T

H

T
O

 R
E

S
T

R
A

IN
 H

A
R

D
W

A
R

E
 

S
ID

E
 S

L
O

P
E

 W
IT

H
 2

 S
T

A
K

E
S

S
T

A
K

E
 C

O
N

C
. 

B
L

O
C

K
 T

O
 

W
A

S
H

E
D

 S
T

O
N

E

C
U

L
V

E
R

T
 P

IP
E

2
X

2
 W

O
O

D
 S

T
A

K
E

S

C
O

N
C

R
E

T
E

 B
L

O
C

K

H
A

R
D

W
A

R
E

 C
L

O
T

H

6
A

 W
A

S
H

E
D

 S
T

O
N

E

D
IT

C
H

 F
L

O
W

P
V

C
O

.D
. 
+

 2
4
"

O
.D

. 
+

 3
6

"

D
IP

O
.D

. 
+

 1
2

"
O

.D
. 
+

 2
4
"

P
V

C
O

.D
. 
+

 2
4
"

O
.D

. 
+

 3
6

"

D
IP

O
.D

. 
+

 1
2

"
O

.D
. 
+

 2
4
"

F
L

O
W

9
5

%
 O

F
 I

T
S

 M
A

X
IM

U
M

 D
R

Y
 D

E
N

S
IT

Y
.

1
2
"
 L

A
Y

E
R

S
 A

N
D

 C
O

M
P

A
C

T
E

D
 T

O
 

G
R

A
Y

 C
L

A
Y

) 
S

H
A

L
L

 B
E

 P
L

A
C

E
D

 I
N

 

M
A

T
E

R
IA

L
 (

E
X

C
L

U
D

IN
G

 B
L

U
E

 O
R

 

S
U

IT
A

B
L

E
 E

X
C

A
V

A
T

E
D

 B
A

C
K

F
IL

L

4
"

E
X

T
E

N
D

 O
U

T
S

ID
E

 O
F

 M
O

R
T

A
R

B
E

L
L

 O
F

 P
IP

E
 S

H
A

L
L

P
R

E
C

A
S

T
 C

O
N

C
R

E
T

E
 A

D
J
U

S
T

IN
G

R
IN

G
S

 O
R

 M
A

N
H

O
L

E
 B

R
IC

K
S

.

(5
 C

O
U

R
S

E
 M

A
X

IM
U

M
)

6
"
 C

O
M

P
A

C
T

E
D

 M
.D

.O
.T

.

C
L

A
S

S
 2

 S
A

N
D

 B
A

S
E

.

2
4
"
 P

R
E

C
A

S
T

C
O

N
C

. 
M

A
N

H
O

L
E

 DEPTH AS CALLED 

FOR ON PLANS

 3' MIN. SUMP 

E
J
IW

 1
0
2
0
-O

1
 F

R
A

M
E

 A
N

D
 B

E
E

H
IV

E
 C

O
V

E
R

S
E

T
 I

N
 F

U
L

L
 B

E
D

 O
F

 M
O

R
T

A
R

. 
 A

D
J
U

S
T

T
O

 G
R

A
D

E
 A

S
 S

H
O

W
N

 O
N

 P
L

A
N

S
.

8
 1

/
2

"

C S
C

A
L

E
: 

N
O

 S
C

A
L

E

S
T

O
R

M
 S

E
W

E
R

 M
A

N
H

O
L

E

S
C

A
L

E
: 

N
O

 S
C

A
L

E

C
A

T
C

H
 B

A
S

IN

2
'-

0
"

S
C

A
L

E
: 

N
O

 S
C

A
L

E

S
T

O
R

M
 S

E
W

E
R

 C
A

T
C

H
 B

A
S

IN
T

W
O

 F
O

O
T

 D
IA

M
E

T
E

R

S
C

A
L

E
: 

N
O

 S
C

A
L

E

R
IP

R
A

P

S
C

A
L

E
: 

N
O

 S
C

A
L

E

C
U

L
V

E
R

T
 -

 S
E

D
IM

E
N

T
 T

R
A

P

T
R

E
N

C
H

  
W

ID
T

H

U
N

D
IS

T
U

R
B

E
D

 E
A

R
T

H

I.D
.

O
.D

.

 

12" A

S
C

A
L

E
: 

N
O

 S
C

A
L

E

P
IP

E
 B

E
D

D
IN

G
 A

N
D

 B
A

C
K

F
IL

L
 D

E
T

A
IL

 

12"

O
.D

. I.D
.

A

S
C

A
L

E
: 

N
O

 S
C

A
L

E

P
IP

E
 B

E
D

D
IN

G
 A

N
D

 B
A

C
K

F
IL

L
 D

E
T

A
IL

T
R

E
N

C
H

  
 W

ID
T

H

L

 B
L

O
C

K
, 

H
A

R
D

W
A

R
E

 C
L

O
T

H
 &

 F
IL

T
E

R
 M

A
T

E
R

IA
L

 E
T

C
. 

S
H

A
L

L
 B

E
 R

E
M

O
V

E
D

.

C
O

M
P

L
E

T
IO

N
 O

F
 T

H
E

 W
O

R
K

, 
U

P
S

T
R

E
A

M
 O

F
 T

H
E

 S
E

D
IM

E
N

T
 T

R
A

P
S

, 
A

L
L

 B
R

A
C

IN
G

, 

T
R

A
P

S
 A

S
 N

E
C

E
S

S
A

R
Y

 D
U

R
IN

G
 T

H
E

 C
O

U
R

S
E

 O
F

 C
O

N
S

T
R

U
C

T
IO

N
. 
 A

T
 T

H
E

 

N
O

T
E

: 
S

E
D

IM
E

N
T

 S
H

A
L

L
 B

E
 R

E
M

O
V

E
D

 F
R

O
M

 T
H

E
 D

IT
C

H
 &

 C
U

L
V

E
R

T
 S

E
D

IM
E

N
T

 

 

 

(F
O

R
 U

S
E

 U
N

D
E

R
 P

A
V

E
M

E
N

T
 A

R
E

A
S

)
(F

O
R

 U
S

E
 I

N
 N

O
N

-P
A

V
E

M
E

N
T

 A
R

E
A

S
)

Y
A

R
D

 D
R

A
IN

 A
N

D
 D

R
O

P
 I

N
L

E
T

S
)

(A
L

S
O

 T
O

 B
E

 U
S

E
D

 F
O

R
:

P
E

A
S

T
O

N
E

 B
A

S
E

C
U

L
V

E
R

T
 P

IP
E

O
U

T
L

IN
E

 O
F

 D
IT

C
H

B
A

N
K

T
O

P
 O

F

F
IN

IS
H

 G
R

A
D

E

S
P

L
A

S
H

 B
L

O
C

K

1
2

"
 M

IN
. 

S
E

C
T

IO
N

F
L

A
R

E
D

 E
N

D
 

1
' 
M

IN
.

U
N

D
E

R
 R

IP
R

A
P

F
IL

T
E

R
 F

A
B

R
IC

 

8
" 

M
IN

. 
 D

IA
. 
S

T
O

N
E

S

R
I
P

R
A

P
 P

E
R

 S
P

E
C

.

O
N

 P
L

A
N

 S
H

E
E

T
S

T
Y

P
E

 A
S

 S
P

E
C

. 

1
2
"
 D

IA
. 
M

A
X

. 
A

N
D

 P
IP

E
 

S
C

A
L

E
: 

N
O

 S
C

A
L

E

S
T

O
R

M
 O

U
T

L
E

T
 S

T
R

U
C

T
U

R
E

 D
E

T
A

IL

P
R

IV
A

T
E

 S
T

O
R

M
 S

E
W

E
R

 O
N

L
Y

N
O

T
E

: 
T

H
IS

 D
E

T
A

IL
 S

H
O

U
L

D
 B

E
 U

S
E

D
 F

O
R

S
C

A
L

E
: 

N
O

 S
C

A
L

E

AA

S
C

A
L

E
: 

N
O

 S
C

A
L

E

S
E

C
T

IO
N

 A
-A

F
L

O
W

S
T

O
R

M
 O

U
T

L
E

T
 F

IL
T

E
R

 D
E

T
A

IL

4" MIN.

T
O

O
L

 I
N

T
E

R
IO

R
 J

O
IN

T
S

IN
T

E
G

R
A

L
 B

A
S

E

S
L

A
B

 I
S

 A
C

C
E

P
T

A
B

L
E

 A
L

T
E

R
N

A
T

E

R
E

Q
U

IR
E

D
. 
R

E
IN

F
O

R
C

E
D

 F
L

A
T

 

C
O

N
E

. 
V

A
R

Y
 H

E
IG

H
T

 A
S

 

P
R

E
C

A
S

T
 C

O
N

C
R

E
T

E
 E

C
C

E
N

T
R

IC
 

S
T

O
N

E
 O

R
 C

O
N

C
R

E
T

E

C
O

M
P

A
C

T
E

D
 S

A
N

D
, 

C
R

U
S

H
E

D
 

F
IR

M
 U

N
D

IS
T

U
R

B
E

D
 S

O
IL

, 

2
 O

N
 1

2
 T

Y
P

IC
A

L

T
R

O
W

E
L

 F
IN

IS
H

 S
L

O
P

E
 

C
O

N
C

R
E

T
E

 F
IL

L
- 

S
T

E
E

L
 

M
A

N
H

O
L

E
 R

IS
E

R
S

P
R

E
C

A
S

T
 C

O
N

C
R

E
T

E
 

U
N

L
E

S
S

 N
O

T
E

D
 O

T
H

E
R

W
IS

E

4
8

" 
D

IA
M

E
T

E
R

P
L

A
S

T
IC

, 
P

R
E

S
S

 F
IT

P
O

L
Y

P
R

O
P

Y
L

E
N

E
 A

N
D

 

C
0
-P

O
Y

M
E

R
 

C
E

N
T

E
R

. 
S

T
E

P
S

 S
H

A
L

L
 B

E
 

M
A

N
H

O
L

E
 S

T
E

P
S

 1
6

"
 O

N
 

M
IN

IM
U

M
 6

" 

A
D

JU
S

T
IN

G
 R

IN
G

S
 

P
R

E
C

A
S

T
 

G
R

O
U

T

N
O

N
-S

H
R

IN
K

 

B
U

T
Y

L
 R

U
B

B
E

R

O
-R

IN
G

 J
O

IN
T

 O
R

 

4
8

" 
D

IA
M

E
T

E
R

6
'-

0
"

6
"

8"

N
O

N
-S

H
R

IN
K

 G
R

O
U

T

M
IN

IM
U

M
 6

"

A
D

JU
S

T
IN

G
 R

IN
G

S
  

P
R

E
C

A
S

T
 

C
O

N
C

R
E

T
E

 F
L

A
T

 T
O

P
 S

E
C

T
IO

N

O
P

T
IO

N
A

L
 P

R
E

C
A

S
T

 

M
A

N
H

O
L

E
 S

E
C

T
IO

N
S

P
R

E
C

A
S

T
 C

O
N

C
R

E
T

E
 

S
T

O
N

E
 O

R
 C

O
N

C
R

E
T

E

C
O

M
P

A
C

T
E

D
 S

A
N

D
, 

C
R

U
S

H
E

D
 

F
IR

M
 U

N
D

IS
T

U
R

B
E

D
 S

O
IL

, 

P
L

A
S

T
E

R
 O

U
T

S
ID

E

M
IN

IM
U

M
 1

/2
" 

C
E

M
E

N
T

 

A
C

C
E

P
T

A
B

L
E

 A
L

T
E

R
N

A
T

E
.

2
. 
IN

T
E

G
R

A
L

 B
A

S
E

 I
S

 A
N

 

S
U

IT
 C

U
R

B
 O

R
 S

T
R

U
C

T
U

R
E

. 

1
. 

C
A

S
T

IN
G

 T
O

 B
E

 S
E

T
 T

O
 

N
O

T
E

: 

MIN. SUMP

3'-0"

C
O

N
E

. 
V

A
R

Y
 H

E
IG

H
T

 A
S

 R
E

Q
U

IR
E

D
.

P
R

E
C

A
S

T
 C

O
N

C
R

E
T

E
 E

C
C

E
N

T
R

IC
 

B
U

T
Y

L
 R

U
B

B
E

R

O
-R

IN
G

 J
O

IN
T

 O
R

 

B
A

S
E

 S
L

A
B

P
R

E
C

A
S

T
 C

O
N

C
R

E
T

E
 

T
O

O
L

 I
N

T
E

R
IO

R
 J

O
IN

T
S

B
Y

 I
C

D
C

 I
N

S
P

E
C

T
O

R
.

M
A

D
E

 I
N

 T
H

E
 F

IE
L

D
 M

U
S

T
 B

E
 C

O
R

E
 D

R
IL

L
E

D
 A

N
D

 V
E

R
IF

IE
D

 

N
O

T
E

: 
A

L
L

 O
P

E
N

IN
G

S
 T

O
 M

A
N

H
O

L
E

S
 O

R
 C

A
T

C
H

 B
A

S
IN

S

IN
T

E
R

IO
R

 S
T

E
P

R
O

T
A

T
E

 T
O

P
 T

O
 M

A
T

C
H

 

4
"
 T

Y
P

.

8"

MIN.

E
J
IW

 7
0

4
5

 

S
T

A
N

D
A

R
D

 C
A

T
C

H
 B

A
S

IN
 C

U
R

B
 I

N
L

E
T

, 
E

JI
W

 1
0

6
0

 W
IT

H
 1

0
6

0
 B

 L
ID

S
T

A
N

D
A

R
D

 M
U

N
IC

IP
A

L
 M

A
N

H
O

L
E

 C
A

S
T

IN
G

IN
T

O
 O

R
 L

E
A

V
E

 A
 S

T
O

R
M

 W
A

T
E

R
 B

A
S

IN
.

A
T

 T
H

E
 F

L
A

R
E

D
 E

N
D

 (
O

P
E

N
 E

N
D

) 
S

E
C

T
IO

N
 O

F
 A

L
L

 P
IP

E
S

 T
H

A
T

 T
IE

N
O

T
E

: 
C

O
N

T
R

A
C

T
O

R
 T

O
 P

R
O

V
ID

E
 A

N
D

 I
N

S
T

A
L

L
 A

 G
R

A
T

E
 O

R
 "

R
A

T
 G

U
A

R
D

"

P
O

U
R

E
D

 C
O

N
C

. 
O

R
 B

L
O

C
K

 S
U

P
P

O
R

T

I
N

V
. 

O
U

T
 

IN
V

E
R

T
 I

N

P
E

R
F

O
R

A
T

E
D

 8
"
 P

V
C

 P
IP

E

1
' 
S

U
M

P

8
"
 D

IA
. 

 P
V

C
 P

IP
E

S
T

R
U

C
T

U
R

E
 D

E
T

A
IL

S
E

E
 S

T
O

R
M

 O
U

T
L

E
T

 

O
R

IF
IC

E
 D

E
T

A
IL

8
"
 D

IA
. 

 P
V

C
 P

IP
E

P
IP

E
 O

V
E

R
 G

E
O

T
E

X
T

IL
E

 F
A

B
R

IC

@
 2

' 
M

IN
IM

U
M

 S
U

R
R

O
U

N
D

IN
G

4
"
 M

IN
IM

U
M

 D
IA

. 
S

T
O

N
E

 F
IL

T
E

R
, 

C
O

V
E

R
 P

IP
E

 W
IT

H
 

A
P

P
R

O
X

. 
2
0
'

S
E

E
 O

R
IF

IC
E

 D
E

T
A

IL

E
L

E
V

 =
 S

E
E

 P
L

A
N

 S
H

E
E

T
S

=
 2

' 
A

B
O

V
E

 O
R

I
F

I
C

E

T
O

P
 O

F
 P

IP
E

 O
V

E
R

F
L

O
W

 

8
"
 P

V
C

 S
T

O
R

M
 S

E
W

E
R

O
V

E
R

 P
IP

E
 E

N
D

P
V

C
 C

A
P

 S
E

C
U

R
E

D

IN
T

O
 P

IP
E

 E
N

D
 C

A
P

3
"
 D

IA
M

. 
O

R
IF

IC
E

 C
O

R
E

D

IN
T

O
 P

IP
E

 E
N

D
 C

A
P

3
"
 D

IA
M

. 
O

R
IF

IC
E

 C
O

R
E

D

O
V

E
R

 P
IP

E
 E

N
D

P
V

C
 C

A
P

 S
E

C
U

R
E

D

8
"
 P

V
C

 S
T

O
R

M
 S

E
W

E
R

C
A

P
 P

IP
E

 E
N

D

F
L
O

W

 2
"
X

2
"
 H

A
R

D
W

O
O

D
 S

T
A

K
E

A
T

 8
' 
O

N
 C

E
N

T
E

R
 (

M
A

X
).

N
A

T
IV

E
 M

A
T

E
R

IA
L

 

S
C

A
L

E
: 

N
O

 S
C

A
L

E

S
I
L

T
 F

E
N

C
E

24" 12"

6"

 

6
"

8
.0

9
.0

6
 O

F
 T

H
E

 1
9

9
0

 M
D

O
T

 S
T

A
N

D
A

R
D

S
P

E
C

IF
IC

A
T

IO
N

S
 F

O
R

 C
O

N
S

T
R

U
C

T
IO

N
, 
S

E
C

T
IO

N

3
6
"
 W

ID
E

 G
E

O
T

E
X

T
IL

E
 F

A
B

R
IC

 S
H

A
L

L
 B

E
 P

E
R

P
E

R
 E

A
T

O
N

 C
O

U
N

T
Y

 D
R

A
IN

 O
F

F
IC

E
 S

T
D

S
.

S
E

T
 F

O
R

T
H

 I
N

 S
O

IL
 E

R
O

S
IO

N
 C

O
N

T
R

O
L

 P
E

R
M

IT
S

.

R
E

G
U

L
A

R
 M

A
IN

T
A

N
C

E
 O

F
 F

IL
T

E
R

S
 S

H
A

L
L

 B
E

 P
E

R
 S

C
H

E
D

U
L

E
 

F
L

O
W

FLOW

F
L

O
W

FLOW

C
O

V
E

R
 C

A
S

T
IN

G
 W

IT
H

F
IL

T
E

R
 F

A
B

R
IC

S
C

A
L

E
: 

N
O

 S
C

A
L

E

F
I
L

T
E

R
 F

A
B

R
I
C

 I
N

L
E

T
 F

I
L

T
E

R

F
O

L
D

 F
A

B
R

IC
 

U
N

D
E

R
 G

R
A

T
E

  
S

O
IL

 E
R

O
S

IO
N

 C
O

N
T

R
O

L
 P

E
R

M
IT

S
.

4
. 
R

E
G

U
L

A
R

 M
A

IN
T

A
N

C
E

 O
F

 F
IL

T
E

R
S

 S
H

A
L

L
 B

E
 P

E
R

 S
C

H
E

D
U

L
E

 S
E

T
 F

O
R

T
H

 I
N

 

   
T

H
E

 F
IL

T
E

R
 F

A
B

R
IC

 I
N

L
E

T
 F

IL
T

E
R

 S
H

O
W

N
 A

B
O

V
E

.

3
. 
A

L
L

 M
A

N
H

O
L

E
S

, 
C

A
T

C
H

 B
A

S
IN

S
, 
A

N
D

 C
U

R
B

 I
N

L
E

T
S

 T
O

 B
E

 P
R

O
T

E
C

T
E

D
 W

IT
H

   
D

) 
O

R
 A

P
P

R
O

V
E

D
 E

Q
U

A
L

  
C

) 
T

Y
P

A
R

 (
N

O
N

-W
O

V
E

N
) 

- 
D

U
P

O
N

T
 C

O
M

P
A

N
Y

  
B

) 
P

O
L

Y
F

IL
T

E
R

 X
 (

W
O

V
E

N
) 

- 
C

A
R

T
H

A
G

E
 M

IL
L

S

  
A

) 
M

IR
A

F
I 

(N
O

N
-W

O
V

E
N

) 
- 

C
E

L
A

N
E

S
E

 F
IB

E
R

S
 M

A
R

K
E

T
IN

G
 C

O
.

2
. 

F
IL

T
E

R
 F

A
B

R
IC

 S
H

A
L

L
 B

E
 O

F
 T

H
E

 F
O

L
L

O
W

IN
G

 O
R

 A
N

 A
P

P
R

O
V

E
D

 E
Q

U
IV

A
L

E
N

T
:

 1
. 

C
L

E
A

N
 F

IL
T

E
R

 W
H

E
N

 F
L

O
W

 B
E

C
O

M
E

S
 R

E
S

T
R

IC
T

E
D

.

 N
O

T
E

S
:

G
E

O
T

E
X

T
IL

E
 F

A
B

R
IC

.
W

IT
H

 T
W

O
 L

A
Y

E
R

S
 O

F
W

R
A

P
P

E
D

 O
N

 T
H

E
 O

U
T

S
ID

E
 

P
E

N
E

T
R

A
T

IO
N

S
 S

H
A

L
L

 B
E

 
A

L
L

 P
IP

E
 T

O
 S

T
R

U
C

T
U

R
E

 

B
Y

 I
C

D
C

 I
N

S
P

E
C

T
O

R
.

M
A

D
E

 I
N

 T
H

E
 F

IE
L

D
 M

U
S

T
 B

E
 C

O
R

E
 D

R
IL

L
E

D
 A

N
D

 V
E

R
IF

IE
D

 
A

L
L

 O
P

E
N

IN
G

S
 T

O
 M

A
N

H
O

L
E

S
 O

R
 C

A
T

C
H

 B
A

S
IN

S

G
E

O
T

E
X

T
IL

E
 F

A
B

R
IC

.
W

R
A

P
P

E
D

 O
N

 T
H

E
 O

U
T

S
ID

E
 W

IT
H

 T
W

O
 L

A
Y

E
R

S
 O

F
N

O
T

E
: 

A
L

L
 P

IP
E

 T
O

 S
T

R
U

C
T

U
R

E
 P

E
N

E
T

R
A

T
IO

N
S

 S
H

A
L

L
 B

E
 

B
Y

 I
C

D
C

 I
N

S
P

E
C

T
O

R
.

M
A

D
E

 I
N

 T
H

E
 F

IE
L

D
 M

U
S

T
 B

E
 C

O
R

E
 D

R
IL

L
E

D
 A

N
D

 V
E

R
IF

IE
D

 
A

L
L

 O
P

E
N

IN
G

S
 T

O
 M

A
N

H
O

L
E

S
 O

R
 C

A
T

C
H

 B
A

S
IN

S

G
E

O
T

E
X

T
IL

E
 F

A
B

R
IC

.
W

R
A

P
P

E
D

 O
N

 T
H

E
 O

U
T

S
ID

E
 W

IT
H

 T
W

O
 L

A
Y

E
R

S
 O

F
N

O
T

E
: 

A
L

L
 P

IP
E

 T
O

 S
T

R
U

C
T

U
R

E
 P

E
N

E
T

R
A

T
IO

N
S

 S
H

A
L

L
 B

E
 

6/30/16 BRS RECORD DRAWING 2

BRSE

C
6
.4OKEMOS, INGHAM COUNTY, MI

5570 OKEMOS ROAD

GS FEDEWA  BUILDERS

EAST LANSING, INGHAM COUNTY, MI

PHONE: 517-339-0020

BRS ENGINEERING

S
H

E
E

T
 N

O
.P

L
O

T
 S

C
A

L
E

P
R

O
J
E

C
T

S
C

A
L

E

C
A

D
 F

IL
E

D
R

A
W

IN
G

E
D

IT

P
R

O
J
E

C
T

 M
G

R
.

E
N

G
IN

E
E

R

D
R

A
W

N
 B

Y
D

A
T

E

D
A

T
E

D
A

T
E

REVISED IN ACCORDANCE WITH CONSTRUCTION RECORDS

NO.REVISIONSBYDATE

B
R

S

B
R

S

B
R

S

brsengineering@comcast.net

Phone: (517) 719-5094

Lansing, MI 48910

3821 Stoneleigh Drive 

1
"
=

2
0

'

8
/
2

0
/
1

8

0
0
0
1

BRS 1

SLUP

ISSUE FOR REVIEW

8
/
2

0
/
1

8

8
/
2

0
/
1

8

15-UNITS, 2 BUILDING
1730 CHIEF OKEMOS CIRCLE

CHIEF OKEMOS CIRCLE TOWNHOMES

STORM SEWER DETAILS







 

 

 

Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community. 

 

To:  Planning Commission  

 

From:  Peter Menser, Principal Planner 

 

Date:  November 20, 2018 

 

Re: Mixed Use Planned Unit Development #18044 (Newton Pointe, LLC), 

construct Newton Park mixed use project at the southeast corner of Saginaw 

Highway and Newton Road. 

 

 

The public hearing for MUPUD #18044 was held at the November 5, 2018 Planning Commission 

meeting.  In response to comments made at the public hearing several changes were made to the 

site plan for the project, which are detailed in an attached letter from the applicant.  To inform the 

discussion on the setback of buildings along the southern property line, staff has attached the 

approved preliminary plat for the adjacent 99 lot Sierra Ridge Estates development. 

 

Waiver requests 

 

The following is an updated list of waivers the applicant is requesting from the requirements of the 

underlying C-2 (Commercial) zoning district: 

 

Front yard setback (Saginaw Highway): A 100 foot front yard setback from the centerline along 

Saginaw Highway is required.  At its closet point the proposed mixed use building is located 75.5 feet 

from the centerline of Saginaw Highway.  A waiver of 24.50 feet is requested for the front yard 

building setback. 

 

Front yard setback (Newton Road): The required setback is 25 feet from the Newton Road street right-

of-way line.  At its closest point the proposed mixed use building is located 0.5 feet from the street 

right-of-way.  A waiver of 24.50 feet is requested for the front yard building setback. 

 

Setback from residential zoning district (south): In the C-2 zoning district no structure is permitted 

within 100 feet of any residential zoning district boundary line.  As proposed, Building B15 (a single 

family home) is located 29.49 feet from the RAA (Single Family) property to the south, therefore a 

waiver of 70.51 feet (a decrease of 9.49 feet from the previous site plan) is requested for the setback 

from the residential zoning district boundary.   

 

Setback from residential zoning district (east): Buildings C5, C6, and C7 (10-unit apartment buildings) 

are located 20 feet from the RR (Rural Residential) property to the east, therefore a waiver of 80 feet 

is requested for the setback from the residential zoning district boundary. 

 

Parking: 637 parking spaces are required for the project based on the number of residential units, 

commercial space in the mixed use building, and the allowed reduction granted for bicycle parking.  

410 parking spaces are proposed by the applicant (a decrease of four spaces from the previous site 

plan).  A waiver of 227 parking spaces is requested. 

 



 

Mixed Use Planned Unit Development #18044 (Newton Pointe, LLC) 

Planning Commission (November 26, 2018) 

Page 2 

 

  

Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community. 

 

Parking lot setback (adjacent to residential zoning district): Where a parking area with a capacity of 50 

or more vehicles, or its associated internal access or service drives, adjoins a residential district a 

landscaped buffer at least 40 feet wide must be provided between the parking area and the adjoining 

property line.  At its closest point the parking lot on the west side of the property is located 10 feet 

from the RAA zoning district line.  A waiver of 30 feet is requested for the parking lot setback from a 

residential zoning district.  

 

Parking lot setback (adjacent to residential zoning district): Where a parking area adjoins a public 

street a landscaped buffer at least 20 feet wide must be provided between the parking area and the 

adjacent right-of-way.  At its closest point the parking area on the south side of the mixed use building 

is located 1.5 feet from the Newton Road right-of-way.  A waiver of 18.5 feet is requested for the 

parking lot setback from a public street. 

 

Wall signs: The submitted building elevations show seven, seven square foot wall signs located on the 

front elevation (street side) of the mixed use building and eight, seven square foot wall signs on the 

rear elevation (parking lot side) of the mixed use building.  As proposed, the eight wall signs on the 

rear building elevation would not be permitted without a waiver, as each business is permitted one 

wall sign.   

 

Freestanding signs: The submitted plans show three 68.3 square foot (8’ 4” tall) monument signs 

proposed on the property, one on the south side of the driveway at Newton Road, and two along 

Saginaw Highway.  Freestanding signs are generally not permitted in a MUPUD.  Exceptions for 

freestanding signs of the monument type may be permitted when a building is located a minimum of 

15 feet from the right-of-way (ROW) line with the resulting yard set aside for permanent public open 

space.  The mixed use building is set back approximately 0.5 feet from the Newton Road ROW and 

approximately 5 feet from the Saginaw Highway ROW.  A waiver is required for the installation of the 

three freestanding signs. 

 

Wetland setback: All structures and grading activities are required to be located at least 20 feet 

(Wetland B) or 40 feet (Wetland A) from the delineated boundary of a wetland.  As indicated on the 

list of waivers submitted by the applicant, walking paths would extend into the wetland setback at 

numerous locations around both Wetlands A and B.  A waiver is requested for the encroachment of 

the walking paths into the water features setback. 

 

At its last meeting the Planning Commission agreed to consider a resolution to recommend approval 

of the proposed MUPUD at its next meeting on November 26, 2018, subject to the requested changes 

to the site plan as discussed at the meeting. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

Mixed Use Planned Unit Development #18044 (Newton Pointe, LLC) 

Planning Commission (November 26, 2018) 

Page 3 

 

  

Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community. 

 

Planning Commission Options 

 

The Planning Commission may recommend approval, approval with conditions, or denial of the 

proposed MUPUD.   The Planning Commission is required to make a recommendation on the MUPUD 

within 60 days of the date of the public hearing on November 5, 2018.  A resolution to recommend 

approval of the MUPUD to the Township Board is provided. 

 

• Motion to adopt the resolution recommending approval of Mixed Use Planned Unit 

Development #18044. 

 

Attachments 

1. Resolution to recommend approval. 

2. Letter from Chuck Holman dated November 19, 2018 and received by the Township on 

November 19, 2018. 

3. Revised site plans prepared by Kebs, Inc. dated November 22, 2017 (Revision Date November 

19, 2018) and received by the Township on November 19, 2018. 

4. Detailed setback diagrams received by the Township on November 19, 2018. 

5. Detailed site amenities plan prepared by Luke Landscape dated November 15, 2018 and 

received by the Township on November 19, 2018. 

6. Detailed landscape plans received by the Township on November 19, 2018. 

7. Approved Preliminary Plat for Sierra Ridge Estates. 

 

 
G:\Community Planning & Development\Planning\MIXED USE PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENTS (MUPUD)\2018\MUPUD 18044 (Newton 

Pointe LLC) Newton Park\MUPUD 18044.pc2.docx 



RESOLUTION TO RECOMMEND APPROVAL Mixed Use Planned Unit Development #18044 

 (Newton Pointe, LLC) 

 

 

 At a regular meeting of the Planning Commission of the Charter Township of Meridian, 

Ingham County, Michigan, held at the Meridian Municipal Building, in said Township on the 26th 

day of November, 2018, at 7:00 p.m., Local Time. 

 

PRESENT: _________________________________________________________________                                                             

 

  _________________________________________________________________                                                            

 

ABSENT: _________________________________________________________________                                                              

 

 The following resolution was offered by _____________________ and supported by 

_________________________. 

 

WHEREAS, Newton Pointe, LLC has submitted a request to establish a mixed use planned unit 

development (MUPUD) identified as Newton Park on 23.95 acres located at 6276 Newton Road and a 

property recognized as Parcel I.D. #04-252-005; and 

 

WHEREAS, the proposed mixed use planned unit development includes the construction of a 

new 86,468 square foot mixed use building with 85 multiple family dwelling units and 19,367 

square feet of commercial space, 10, 10-unit multiple family buildings, six, four-unit single family 

attached buildings, nine single family dwellings, and a 4,778 square foot clubhouse; and 

 

WHEREAS, 19,367 square feet of commercial space, 238,719 square feet of residential 

space, and a total of 218 dwelling units are proposed in the project; and  

 

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission held a public hearing at its regular meeting on 

November 5, 2018, and has reviewed staff material forwarded under cover memorandums dated 

October 31, 2018 and November 20, 2018; and 

 

WHEREAS, the subject site is appropriately zoned C-2 (Commercial), which allows for a 

mixed use planned unit development; and 

 

WHEREAS, the mixed use planned unit development meets the conditions established in 

Rezoning #06050 for site layout, residential density, and land use; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the proposed mixed use planned unit development has been designed to be 

harmonious and appropriate with the existing and potential future uses surrounding the site; and 

 

WHEREAS, the proposed mixed use planned unit development meets the minimum MUPUD 

design standards as outlined in Section 86-440(f) of the Code of Ordinances; and 

 

WHEREAS, the requested waivers for building setbacks, parking lot setbacks, number of 

parking spaces, signage, and water feature setbacks are appropriate and necessary to facilitate 

development of the property consistent with the intent of the MUPUD ordinance; and 

 

 

 



Resolution to Recommend Approval 

MUPUD #18044 (Newton Pointe, LLC) 

Page 2 
 

WHEREAS, the number and type of amenities provided in the mixed use planned unit 

development are consistent with the requirements, guidelines, and criteria stated in Section 86-

440(e) of the Code of Ordinances; and 

 

WHEREAS, municipal water is available in the vicinity of the project site and sanitary sewer 

is available for extension to serve the subject site; and 

 

WHEREAS, the proposed mixed use planned unit development is consistent with Objective 

A of Goal 1 of the 2017 Master Plan to maintain a community of desirable, attractive residential 

neighborhoods; and 

 

WHEREAS, the proposed mixed use planned unit development is consistent with Objective 

B of Goal 1 of the 2017 Master Plan to ensure new residential developments meet high standards of 

visual attractiveness, health and safety, and environmental sensitivity. 

 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THE PLANNING COMMISSION OF THE CHARTER 

TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN hereby recommends approval of Mixed Use Planned Unit Development 

#18044, subject to the following conditions. 

 

1. Approval is in accordance with the site plan prepared by prepared by Kebs, Inc. dated 

November 22, 2017 (Revision Date November 19, 2018) and received by the Township on 

November 19, 2018. 

 

2. Approval is in accordance with the architectural renderings, floor plans, building elevations, 

and sign plan prepared by The Peabody Group dated September 17, 2018 and received by the 

Township October 5, 2018. 

 

3. Approval is in accordance with the landscape plan and amenities plan prepared by Luke 

Landscape dated September 18, 2018 and received by the Township on October 5, 2018. 

 

4. Approval of the mixed use planned unit development is contingent on the approval of Special 

Use Permit #18091. 

 

5. Approval of the mixed use planned unit development is contingent on the approval of Wetland 

Use Permit #18-03, unless the plan is amended to alleviate the need for a wetland use permit. 

 

6. Approval is subject to the conditions established in Rezoning #06050. 

 

7. The waivers requested for building setbacks, parking lot setbacks, number of parking spaces, 

signage, and water feature setbacks are recommended for approval as depicted on the 

submitted site plan prepared by Kebs, Inc. dated November 22, 2017 (Revision Date November 

19, 2018) and received by the Township on November 19, 2018 as well as the waivers 

identified by staff and outlined in a memorandum dated November 20, 2018. 

 

8. Approval is subject to the applicant obtaining all necessary permits, licenses, and approvals 

from the Ingham County Road Department, Michigan Department of Transportation, Ingham 

County Drain Commissioner, Michigan Department of Environmental Quality, and the 

Township, as applicable.  Copies of all permits and approval letters shall be submitted to the 

Department of Community Planning and Development. 

 



Resolution to Recommend Approval 

MUPUD #18044 (Newton Pointe, LLC) 

Page 3 
 
9. The utility, grading, and storm drainage plans for the site are subject to the approval of the 

Director of Public Works and Engineering and Ingham County Drain Commissioner and shall be 

completed in accordance with the Township Engineering Design and Construction Standards. 

 

10. No grading or land clearing shall take place on the site until the site plan has been approved by 

the Director of Community Planning and Development and grading and soil erosion and 

sedimentation control (SESC) permits have been issued for the project. 

 

11. All utility service distribution lines shall be installed underground. 

 

12. Any future building additions or revisions to the site layout will require amendments to Mixed 

Use Planned Unit Development #18044 and Special Use Permit #18091. 

 

13. The final design of the trash and recycling facilities and related enclosures shall be subject to 

the approval of the Director of Community Planning and Development. 

 

14. Site accessories such as railings, benches, exterior lighting fixtures, and bicycle racks shall be of 

commercial quality and complement the building design.  Final design and location shall be 

subject to the approval of the Director of Community Planning and Development. 

 

15. Landscaping shall comply with the provisions of the Code of Ordinances, including the 

standards outlined in Section 86-440(f)(4) and other applicable sections of the Ordinance 

pertaining to landscaping. 

 

16. Site and building lighting shall comply with Article VII of Chapter 38 of the Code of Ordinances 

and shall be subject to the approval of the Director of Community Planning and Development. 

 

17. The applicant shall combine the two subject parcels into one parcel. 

 

18. The applicant shall construct the required 10 foot wide pathway along the Saginaw Highway 

frontage and the required seven foot pathway along the Newton Road frontage of the properties 

included in the development.  The pathways shall be designed and constructed in accordance 

with Township Engineering Design and Construction Standards.  The design and location of the 

pathway shall be subject to the approval of the Director of Public Works and Engineering.   

 

19. All mechanical, heating, ventilation, air conditioning, and similar systems shall be screened from 

view by an opaque structure or landscape materials (if at street level) selected to complement 

the building.  Such screening is subject to the approval by the Director of Community Planning 

and Development. 

 

ADOPTED: YEAS: _______________________________________________________________________  

 

   _______________________________________________________________________ 

                                                                                             

  NAYS: _______________________________________________________________________                           

 

STATE OF MICHIGAN ) 

    ) ss 

COUNTY OF INGHAM ) 

 

 



Resolution to Recommend Approval 

MUPUD #18044 (Newton Pointe, LLC) 

Page 4 
 
 I, the undersigned, the duly qualified and acting Chair of the Planning Commission of the 

Charter Township Meridian, Ingham County, Michigan, DO HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing is a 

true and a complete copy of a resolution adopted at a regular meeting of the Planning Commission 

on the 26th day of November, 2018. 

 

 

       ______________________________   

       Dante Ianni 

       Planning Commission Chair 

 

 
G:\Community Planning & Development\Planning\MIXED USE PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENTS (MUPUD)\2018\MUPUD 18044 (Newton 

Pointe LLC) Newton Park\MUPUD 18044 resolution PC approval.docx 



n 
November 19, 2018 

Mr. Mark Kieselbach 
Community Planning & Development Director 
Meridian Township 
5151 Marsh Road 
Okemos, Ml 48864 

Re: Newton Park 
6276 Newton Road 
MUPUD Application 

Dear Mr. Kieselbach, 
Newton Pointe, LLC is pleased to submit the MUPUD Resubmittal Package for the referenced 
project. 

The Meridian Township Planning Commission held a Public Hearing on this proposed 
development on November 5, 2018. While there appeared to be unanimous support for the 
project, the commissioners raised several concerns. This resubmittal is intended to address 
most of these concerns. Several revised drawings are included -

• Site Plan 

• Utility Plan 

• Storm Water Management Plan 

• Open Space Plan 

• Building Setback at M78 - Updated Plan 

• Building Setback at M78 - Original Plan 

• Building Setback at Single Family Homes - Updated Plan 

• Building Setback at Single Family Homes - Original Plan 

• Landscaping Plan 

• Site Amenities Plan 

• Colored Site Amenities Plan 

• M78 Tree Berm Plan 

• Single Family Tree Berm Plan 

• Townhome Tree Berm Plan 

• Clubhouse Tree Berm Plan 

We have highlighted and responded to the concerns we believe the commissioners noted in 
their review of this development. 

2502 LAKE LANSING RD., SUITE C • LANSING, Ml 48912-3620 
PHONE (517) 371-5300 • FAX (517) 371-5356 • E-MAIL: dtn@dtnmgt.com 



n 
M-78 Traffic 

It is true that speed limits on M-78 are higher than one we see is a more residential 
setting. As it turns out, MDOT will be closing off the Newton Road and Towner Road 
intersections on M-78 in 2019. They are incorporating "Michigan Left Turn Lanes" to facilitate 
traffic in this area. We are happy to join adjacent property owners and Meridian Township in 
any effort with MDOT to accommodate pedestrian traffic at Newton Road intersection. 

At the request of MDOT, Newton Park has revised the M-78 western entrance to "entry 
only". Newton Park traffic will not be able to exit from this entrance. Again, at the request of 
MDOT, the M-78 eastern entrance is relocated 200 feet+/- to the east. 

Traffic Study 
Concerns were raised about the actual traffic that should be expected at the Newton 

Road entrance. The changes made to our entrances on M-78 will also change the amount of 
traffic at the Newton Road entrance. We have requested our traffic engineer to update their 
report based on the changed conditions. 

Building Setback@ M-78 
In response to concerns raised about the building setbacks at M-78, we have revised the 

site plan to increase this setback 15%. In addition, we have added a landscaping berm and trees 
to further isolate the buildings from M-78. 

Building Setback @ Single-Family Homes (One Story) 
In response to concerns raised about the building setbacks at the single-family homes, 

we have revised the site plan to increase this setback 47%. In addition, we have added a 
landscaping berm and trees to further isolate the one story single-family homes from the 
adjacent development. 

Public Amenities 
The commissioners encouraged the incorporation of public amenities. We have 

included a colored site amenities plan in this resubmittal. It shows the following public 
amenities-

• Wetland Walking Path with public access from several locations 

• Public Access Pocket Park 
• Public Access Dog Park 
• Public Access Walkway Connector to Towner Road Township Park 

We look forward to the next Planning Commission meeting on November 26, 2018. 

~ -~~-Chuck Holman 
DTN Management, VP Construction & Development 

2502 LAKE LANSING RD., SUITE C • LANSING, Ml 48912-3620 
PHONE (517) 371-5300 • FAX (517) 371-5356 • E-MAIL: dtn@dtnmgt.com 































 

 

 

Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community. 

 

To:  Planning Commission  

 

From:  Peter Menser, Principal Planner 

 

Date:  November 20, 2018 

 

Re: Special Use Permit #18091 (Newton Pointe, LLC), construct a group of 

buildings greater than 25,000 square feet in size at 6276 Newton Road and an 

adjacent property to the east recognized as Tax I.D. #04-252-005. 

 

 

The public hearing for Special Use Permit #18091 was held at the November 5, 2018 Planning 

Commission meeting.  The special use permit is being processed concurrently with Mixed Use 

Planned Unit Development #18044.     

 

At the public hearing the Planning Commission agreed to consider a resolution to recommend 

approval of the special use permit at its next meeting on November 26, 2018, subject to the 

requested changes to the site plan for Mixed Use Planned Unit Development #18044 as discussed at 

the meeting. 

 

Planning Commission Options 

 

The Planning Commission may recommend approval, approval with conditions, or denial of the 

proposed special use permit.   A resolution to recommend approval of the special use permit to the 

Township Board is provided. 

 

• Motion to adopt the resolution recommending approval of Special Use Permit #18091. 

 

Attachment 

1.  Resolution to recommend approval. 

 

 
G:\Community Planning & Development\Planning\SPECIAL USE PERMITS (SUP)\2018\SUP 18091 (Newton Pointe LLC) Newton Park\SUP 

18091.pc2.docx 



RESOLUTION TO RECOMMEND APPROVAL Special Use Permit #18091 

 (Newton Pointe, LLC) 

 

 

 At a regular meeting of the Planning Commission of the Charter Township of Meridian, 

Ingham County, Michigan, held at the Meridian Municipal Building, in said Township on the 26th 

day of November, 2018, at 7:00 p.m., Local Time. 

 

PRESENT: _________________________________________________________________                                                             

 

  _________________________________________________________________                                                            

 

ABSENT: _________________________________________________________________                                                              

 

 The following resolution was offered by _____________________ and supported by 

_________________________. 

 

WHEREAS, Newton Pointe, LLC has submitted a request to construct a project identified as 

Newton Park on 23.95 acres located at 6276 Newton Road and a property recognized as Parcel I.D. 

#04-252-005; and 

 

WHEREAS, the proposed project includes the construction of construction of a new 86,468 

square foot mixed use building with 85 multiple family dwelling units and 19,367 square feet of 

commercial space, 10, 10-unit multiple family buildings, six, four-unit single family attached 

buildings, nine single family dwellings, and a 4,778 square foot clubhouse; and 

 

WHEREAS, 19,367 square feet of commercial space, 238,719 square feet of residential 

space, and a total of 218 dwelling units are proposed in the project; and  

 

WHEREAS, a special use permit is required for constructing a group of buildings totaling more 

than 25,000 square feet in gross floor area; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission held a public hearing at its regular meeting on 

November 5, 2018, and has reviewed staff material forwarded under cover memorandums dated 

October 31, 2018 and November 20, 2018; and 

 

WHEREAS, the subject site is appropriately zoned C-2 (Commercial), which permits the 

construction of buildings greater than 25,000 square feet in floor area by special use permit; and 

 

WHEREAS, the proposed project meets the conditions established in Rezoning #06050 for 

site layout, residential density, and land use; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the proposed project is consistent with the general standards for granting a 

special use permit found in Section 86-126 of the Code of Ordinances; and 

 

WHEREAS, municipal water is available in the vicinity of the project site and sanitary sewer 

is available for extension to serve the subject site. 

 

 

 

 



Resolution to Recommend Approval 

SUP #18091 (Newton Pointe, LLC) 

Page 2 
 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THE PLANNING COMMISSION OF THE CHARTER 

TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN hereby recommends approval of Special Use Permit #18091, subject to 

the following conditions: 

 

1. Approval is in accordance with the site plan prepared by prepared by Kebs, Inc. dated 

November 22, 2017 (Revision Date November 19, 2018) and received by the Township on 

November 19, 2018. 

 

2. Approval of the special use permit is subject to all conditions placed on Mixed Use Planned Unit 

Development #18044 by the Township. 

 

3. Approval of the mixed use planned unit development is contingent on the approval of Wetland 

Use Permit #18-03, unless the plan is amended to alleviate the need for a wetland use permit. 

 

4. Approval is subject to the conditions of approval established in Rezoning #06050. 

 

5. Any future building additions will require an amendment to the special use permit. 

 

ADOPTED: YEAS: _______________________________________________________________________  

 

   _______________________________________________________________________ 

                                                                                             

  NAYS: _______________________________________________________________________                           

 

STATE OF MICHIGAN ) 

    ) ss 

COUNTY OF INGHAM ) 

 

 I, the undersigned, the duly qualified and acting Chair of the Planning Commission of the 

Charter Township Meridian, Ingham County, Michigan, DO HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing is a 

true and a complete copy of a resolution adopted at a regular meeting of the Planning Commission 

on the 26th day of November, 2018. 

 

 

       ______________________________   

       Dante Ianni 

       Planning Commission Chair 

 

 
G:\Community Planning & Development\Planning\SPECIAL USE PERMITS (SUP)\2018\SUP 18091 (Newton Pointe LLC) Newton Park\SUP 

18091 resolution PC approval.docx 



 

 

To:  Planning Commission  
 
From:  Peter Menser, Principal Planner 
 
  Justin Quagliata, Assistant Planner 
 
Date:  November 20, 2018 
 
Re: Commission Review #18133 (Meridian Township), Section 61 review of the 

location, character, and extent for a 40 acre Land Preservation purchase of a 
parcel recognized as Parcel I.D. #06-226-001, located east of and adjacent to 
the northern portion of the Towar Woods Land Preserve. 

 
 
The Land Preservation Advisory Board recommends the purchase of an approximately 40 acre 
parcel recognized as Parcel I.D. #06-226-001, located east of and adjacent to the northern portion 
of the Towar Woods Land Preserve.  At its meeting on October 16, 2018 the Township Board 
referred this case to the Planning Commission to review the location, character, and extent of the 
property. 
 
Section 61 of the Michigan Planning Enabling Act (the “MPEA,” Public Act 33 of 2008) requires 
Planning Commission review and approval of the location, character, and extent for the 
construction/purchase of new public streets, parks, open space, buildings, and other public 
facilities.  This process is called a Section 61 Review.  The MPEA does not require a public hearing 
for Section 61 Reviews. 
 
Master Plan 
 
The Future Land Use Map from the 2017 Master Plan designates the subject site in the R1-
Residential 0.0-0.5 dwelling units per acre category. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
Commission Review #18133 (Meridian Township) 
Planning Commission (November 26, 2018) 
Page 2 

 

  

Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community. 

 

FUTURE LAND USE MAP 
 

 
 
Zoning 
 
The site is zoned RAA (Single Family-Low Density). 
 

ZONING MAP 
 

 



 
Commission Review #18133 (Meridian Township) 
Planning Commission (November 26, 2018) 
Page 3 

 

  

Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community. 

 

Physical Features 
 
According to the submitted application the property is completely forested.  The Flood Insurance 
Rate Map (FIRM) for Meridian Township indicates floodplain is limited to the northeast corner of 
the site.  The Township Wetland Map shows the entire property is located in a wetland. 
 

WETLANDS AND FLOODPLAIN MAP 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



 
Commission Review #18133 (Meridian Township) 
Planning Commission (November 26, 2018) 
Page 4 

 

  

Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community. 

 

GREENSPACE PLAN 
 

 
 
The Township Greenspace Plan shows an off road pathway and Priority Conservation Corridor 
(PCC) on the property.  A PCC is a network of ecologically significant open spaces. 

 
Staff Analysis 
 
The Township Board referred the purchase of the 40 acre site to the Planning Commission for a 
Section 61 Review.  Section 61 of the MPEA requires Planning Commission review and approval of 
the location, character, and extent for the construction/purchase of new public streets, parks, open 
space, buildings, and other public facilities.  Location refers to the site’s placement in the 
Township and its surroundings; the property proposed for purchase is located east of and adjacent 
to the northern portion of the Towar Woods Land Preserve.  Character includes the site’s 
distinguishing features; the site is forested with hardwood trees.  Extent includes the dimensions 
of the site which is approximately 40 acres in size. 
 
The project is consistent with Goal 2 of the 2017 Master Plan to preserve open space and natural 
areas.   
 
Planning Commission Options 
 
The Planning Commission may approve or deny the commission review.  A resolution to approve 
is attached. 
 

 Move to adopt the resolution to approve Commission Review #18133. 
 



 
Commission Review #18133 (Meridian Township) 
Planning Commission (November 26, 2018) 
Page 5 

 

  

Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community. 

 

Attachments 
 
1.  Resolution to approve. 
2.  Commission Review application. 
3.  Memo from Jane Greenway, dated October 19, 2018. 
4.  Land Preservation property map. 
5.  Submitted property map. 
 
 
G:\Community Planning & Development\Planning\COMMISSION REVIEWS (CR)\2018\18133 (Meridian Township)\CR 18133.pc1.doc 

 
 
 



RESOLUTION TO APPROVE Commission Review #18133 
Meridian Township 

 Land Preservation Purchase 
 Approx. 40 acres, Parcel I.D. #06-226-001  

 
RESOLUTION 

 
At a regular meeting of the Planning Commission of the Charter Township of Meridian, 

Ingham County, Michigan, held at the Meridian Municipal Building, in said Township on the 26th 
day of November 2018, at 7:00 p.m., Local Time.  
 
PRESENT:                                                                                                                                                                           
 
                                                                                                                                                                           
   
ABSENT:                                                                                                                                                                             
 
 The following resolution was offered by Commissioner ____________________ and supported by 
Commissioner ____________________. 
 

WHEREAS, Section 61 (MCL 125.3861) of the Michigan Planning Enabling Act states, “A 
street; square, park, playground, public way, ground, or other open space; or public building or 
other structure shall not be constructed or authorized for construction in an area covered by a 
municipal master plan unless the location, character, and extent of the street, public way, open 
space, structure, or utility have been submitted to the planning commission by the legislative 
body.”; and 
 

WHEREAS, at its September 12, 2018 meeting the Land Preservation Advisory Board 
recommended the purchase of an approximately 40 acre parcel recognized as Parcel I.D. #06-226-
001, located east of and adjacent to the northern portion of the Towar Woods Land Preserve; and  
 

WHEREAS, the Township Board referred the case to the Planning Commission at its October 
16, 2018 meeting to review the location, character, and extent of the property; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the Planning Commission discussed the proposed property acquisition at its 
November 26, 2018 meeting and reviewed the staff material provided under a cover memorandum 
dated November 20, 2018; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the property is valuable for its environmental assets including forested areas 
with hardwood trees; and   
 
 WHEREAS, the property will be acquired through the use of the Land Preservation millage 
funds; and  
 

WHEREAS, purchase of the property is consistent with Goal 2 of the 2017 Master Plan  to 
preserve open space and natural areas. 

 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THE PLANNING COMMISSION OF THE CHARTER 

TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN approves the location, character, and extent of an approximately 40 acre 
parcel of land recognized as Parcel I.D. #06-226-001, located east of and adjacent to the northern 
portion of the Towar Woods Land Preserve. 



Resolution to Approve  
CR #18133 (Meridian Township) 
Page 2 
 

 
ADOPTED: YEAS:                                                                                                                                                      
  
                                                                                                                                                        
 
  NAYS:                                                                                                                                                      
 
STATE OF MICHIGAN ) 
    ) ss 
COUNTY OF INGHAM ) 
 
 I, the undersigned, the duly qualified and acting Chair of the Planning Commission of the 
Township of Meridian, Ingham County, Michigan, DO HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing is a true 
and a complete copy of a resolution adopted at a regular meeting of the Planning Commission on 
the 26th day of November 2018. 
 
 
       ______________________________   
       Dante Ianni  

Planning Commission Chair 
 
 
G:\Community Planning & Development\Planning\COMMISSION REVIEWS (CR)\2018\18133 (Meridian Township)\CR 18133 res to 
approve.doc 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN 
DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT 

5151 MARSH ROAD, OKEMOS, MI  48864 
PHONE:   (517) 853-4560, FAX:   (517) 853-4095 

 
COMMISSION REVIEW:  

AMENDMENT TO MASTER PLAN APPLICATION 
(Municipal Planning Act, MCL 125.31, Section 9) 

 
A. Applicant _Charter Township of Meridian_____________________________________________ 

Address of Applicant __5151 Marsh Road________________________________________________ 
___________________Okemos MI  48864_______________________________________________ 

 Telephone:  Work __517-853-4610________________ Home __n/a_________________________  
     Fax ___517-853-4099_________________ Email  __greenway@meridian.mi.us____ 
  
B.  Jurisdiction having authority (if different than applicant) ____n/a_______________________________ 

Address ___________________________________________________________________________ 
Telephone ____________________ Fax___________________  Email address__________________ 
Please provide the name of the board, commission or body having jurisdiction for the authorization of financing of 
the public way, ground, space, building, structure or utility. 

 
C.  Applicant’s Representative, Architect, Engineer or Planner responsible for request: 
  Name / Contact Person ___Jane Greenway________________________________________________ 
  Address ______________same as above_________________________________________________ 
 Telephone:  Work ____517-853-4610_______________ Home ______________________________  
     Fax ________________________________ Email  _greenway@merdian.mi.us_______ 
 
D. Site location/address:  Adjacent to the northern portion of the Towar Woods Land Preserve; east of 

Towar Ave., East Lansing, MI 48823      
 
  Zoning Classification(s) _Rural Residential 
   

Parcel number(s) 33-02-02-06-226-001 
  _________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
E. I (we) hereby grant permission for members of the Charter Township of Meridian’s Boards and/or 

Commissions, Township staff member(s) and the Township’s representatives or experts the right to enter 
onto the above described property (or as described in the attached information) in my (our) absence for 
the purpose of gathering information including but not limited to the taking and the use of photographs.  

  
  x    Yes      No  (Please check one)—Permission granted with Land Preservation Application 
 

By the signature(s) attached hereto, I (we) certify that the information provided within this application and 
accompanying documentation is, to the best of my (our) knowledge, true and accurate. 
 

  _Jane Greenway__________________________________  __10-19-2018 
  Signature of Applicant              Date                          
 
  _Jane L. Greenway__________________________________     
  Type/Print Name 
 
  Fee: _______________________    Received by/Date: ___________________ 
 
 

Date application 
submitted: ____________  

Date application deemed 
complete:____________  

Date of last day for  
decision:__________



This form should be included with the COMMISSION REVIEW APPLICATION. 
Explain your position on the lines below, and attach supporting information. 

 
REASONS FOR MODIFYING THE MASTER PLAN 

 
Please explain your request to modify the Township’s Master Plan for construction or 
authorization of a street, public utility, park, public way, ground, open space or other public 
building or structure on the following lines: 
 
_Supports Township Goal #2 – Preserve Open Space and Natural Areas _____________ _____ 
 
_Supports the Township Greenspace Plan _______________________________________ ___ 
 
  
The location, character and extent of your request will be evaluated in accordance with the 
responses you provide to Questions 1-12. 
 
1. How will the request if approved be consistent with current development trends in the 

Township? 
 
  The acquisition of this parcel will preserve open space in the Township and support the 

Township Greenspace plan. _____________________________________________________    

2. How does the request further the Township Master Plan goals to:  
 Preserve and strengthen existing and future residential neighborhoods 
 Preserve open space and natural areas 
 Maintain the viability of Meridian Township businesses 
 Maintain and expand a diverse park system 
 Maintain essential public services 
 Provide and support an efficient, safe and environmentally sensitive multi-modal 

transportation system 
 Maintain and enhance the Township’s growth management program 

 
  This acquisition will preserve the area in perpetuity. Providing/protecting open space is 

essential for protecting the natural features of our community. The land will be protected 

from development, but at the same time provide an attraction for planned growth in the 

future. ____________________________________________________________________  

   _________________________________________________________________________  

   _________________________________________________________________________  



3. Is the request supported by surveys or studies of the present conditions and future needs of 
the Township? If yes, please attach a copy of the survey and/or study. 

   
  It is supported by Township Board Goal #2 to preserve open space and natural areas in the 

Township. Strategy 1 under section A of this goal includes the public purchase of land. _______  

 
4. How does the request promote the health, safety and general welfare of the Township 

public? 
  
  It adds to an area of greenspace near a residentially developed area of the Township (the 

Towar Gardens neighborhood). ___________________________________________________  

5. How does the request promote the best use of time, effort and resources in the development 
of the Township? 

 
  Land preservation parcels are purchased through the use of the Land Preservation Millage Funds. 

6. How does the request promote wise and efficient expenditures of Township Public funds? 
 
  The Land Preservation Advisory Board has deemed that the acquisition of this parcel is a 

wise expenditure of the Land Preservation Program funds because it is a 100% forested, large 

parcel that borders the current Towar Woods Preserve on two sides thus providing a valuable 

buffer. _______________________________________________________________________  

7. How does the request impact traffic in the Township? 
  N/A ______________________________________________________________________  

8. How does the request impact the public’s safety from fire and other dangers in the 
Township? 

  N/A ______________________________________________________________________  

9. How does the request impact the light and air in the Township? 
  Forested areas improve air quality. _____________________________________________  

10. How does the request impact the population distribution in the Township? 
  N/A ______________________________________________________________________  

11. How does the request promote good public design and arrangement in the Township? 
  The parcel will increase the size of the current Towar Woods Preserve adding an additional 

40 acres of 100% forested land for community members’ enjoyment of nature that is otherwise 

landlocked and inaccessible. _____________________________________________________  

12. How does the request impact public utilities and other public services in the Township? 
 N/A ______________________________________________________________________  



 
 

 

  

Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community. 

 

 

To:  Planning Commission 
 

From:  _Jane Greenway____________________________________________ 

  Jane Greenway, Senior Parks and Land Management Coordinator 
 
Date:  October 19, 2018 
 
Re:  Section 61 Review – Proposed Land Preservation purchase 
 
 
The Land Preservation Advisory Board (LPAB) is currently considering the purchase of a 40 acre 
property within the Township. This property is known as the “Malcangi property.” 
 
Section 61 of the Michigan Planning Enabling Act (the “MPEA,” Public Act 33 of 2008) requires 
Planning Commission review and approval of the location, character, and extent for the 
construction/purchase of new public streets, parks, open space, buildings, and other public 
facilities.  This process is called a Section 61 Review.   
 
The Township Board voted at their October 16, 2018 meeting to forward a request to the Planning 
Commission for review.  
 
Property interest: 

 Malcangi – East Lansing, MI 48823 
 Adjacent to the northern portion of the Towar Woods Land Preserve 
 Parcel number 33-02-02-06-226-001 
 Area: 40 acres 
 Provides a large, contiguous buffer to an area that is already protected (Towar Woods 

Land Preserve) 
 100% forested property 
 Almost entirely wetland (except for northwest corner) 

 
 
 
 
Attachment 
1.  Land Preservation property map. 
2.  Map of proposed acquisition in relation to the Towar Woods Preserve. 
 



La
ke 

La
nsi

ng

Mu
d

La
ke

La
ke

of 
the Hi
lls

! (7

! (3

! (6
! (2

! (9

! (10

! (11

! (15

! (8

! (12

! (13

! (16

! (17

! (18

! (19

! (1

! (14

! (5

! (20

N°

L
a

n
d

 P
re

se
rv

a
ti

o
n

 M
a

p

21

22

Le
ge

nd Lan
d P

res
erv

es
Pa

rks
Lak

es 
& R

ive
rs

Ro
ad

s
Ra

ilro
ad

s

23

24

1 D
avi

s/F
ost

er 
Pre

ser
ve

2 F
ost

er-
Cro

use
 Pr

ese
rve

3 H
ub

be
l P

res
erv

e
4 K

uzm
a P

res
erv

e
5 L

ake
 La

nsi
ng

 No
rth

 Pr
ese

rve
6 N

ew
ma

n E
qu

itie
s P

res
erv

e
7 T

ow
ar 

Wo
od

s P
res

erv
e

8 L
ake

 La
nsi

ng
 So

uth
 Pr

ese
rve

9 C
en

tra
l M

eri
da

in 
Up

lan
ds

10
 So

we
r W

oo
ds 

Pre
ser

ve
11

 Ti
nh

art
/C

orn
ell

 W
etl

an
ds

12
 So

uth
we

st M
eri

dia
n U

pla
nd

s
13

 Su
mb

al P
res

erv
e

14
 Re

d C
ed

ar 
Gle

n P
res

erv
e

15
 To

wn
er 

We
tla

nd
 Pr

ese
rve

16
 M

eri
dia

n C
en

tra
l W

etl
an

ds
17

 Re
d C

ed
ar 

Riv
er 

Ea
st P

res
erv

e
18

 Fo
res

t G
rov

e P
res

erv
e

19
 No

rth
 Ri

dg
e P

res
erv

e
20

 Ta
nk

 W
etl

an
d

21
 Ti

ha
rt P

res
erv

e
22

 M
an

de
nb

erg
 W

oo
ds

23
 Po

nd
ero

sa 
Pre

ser
ve

24
 Ne

mo
ke 

Pre
ser

ve

"M
alc

an
gi"

 Pr
op

ert
y



0
0.

15
0.

3
0.

07
5

M
ile

s

±

To
wa

r W
oo

ds

Ma
lca

ng
i

Pr
op

ert
y

Le
ge

nd La
nd

 P
re

se
rv

e

W
et

la
nd

Bi
be

r S
t.

Towar Ave.


	November 26 2018 Planning Commission Meeting Agenda
	November 5 2018 Planning Commission Minutes Draft
	1 Sheila Zwiesele
	2 Suzanne Ferris
	3 Cecelia Kramer
	4 Michael & Betty Casby
	4A Casby
	4B Casby
	5 Cecelia Kramer
	6 Chris Weiss
	7 Kathy & Larry McCurdy
	8 Catherine and Chris Cleveland
	9 Jessi Adler
	10 Alice Cardy
	11 Carol Weaver
	SUP 18101.pc1 with attachments no site plan
	SUP 18101.pc1
	SUP 18101 application
	traffic study
	TRAFFIC IMPACT STUDY
	October, 2018

	Table of Contents
	List of Tables
	List of Figures
	EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

	INTRODUCTION
	PROJECT DESCRIPTION
	SCOPE OF WORK
	Aerial Site Map

	EXISTING CONDITIONS
	ROADWAYS AND INTERSECTIONS
	EXISTING TRAFFIC VOLUMES
	LEVEL OF SERVICE ANALYSIS FOR EXISTING TRAFFIC
	Table 1
	Level of Service (LOS) Summary
	Existing Traffic


	BACKGROUND CONDITIONS
	BACKGROUND TRAFFIC VOLUMES – GROWTH RELATED
	LEVEL OF SERVICE ANALYSIS FOR BACKGROUND TRAFFIC
	Table 2
	Level of Service (LOS) Summary
	Background Traffic


	FUTURE CONDITIONS
	SITE TRAFFIC GENERATION
	SITE TRAFFIC DISTRIBUTION
	Figure 4 – Future Traffic
	Table 4
	Level of Service (LOS) Summary
	Future Traffic


	SIGNIFICANT FINDINGS
	ANALYSIS FOR A RECOMMENDED RIGHT TURN TREATMENT
	RECOMMENDATIONS

	SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION

	MW_Natural Features Assessment_v1-merged-compressed_9-24-2018
	site plan
	1841_A1-0 COMPOSITE FLOOR PLAN
	Sheets
	A1.0 - COMPOSITE FLOOR PLAN


	1841_A2-1 EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS
	Sheets
	A2.1 - EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS


	1841_A2-2 EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS
	Sheets
	A2.2 - EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS




	SUP 18111.pc1 with attachments
	SUP 18111.pc1
	SpecialUsePermitApplicatio
	Trip Gen Letter
	COMBINED plan set revised 11-20-18
	c0000 rev0-Default-000
	C0100 EXIST SITE
	c0200 rev0-Default-000
	c0201 rev0-Default-000
	c0300 rev0-Default-000
	c0400 rev0-Default-000
	C0402-SAN 22C89
	C0403-WTR 22T02
	c0500 rev0-Default-000
	c0501 rev0-Default-000
	c0600 rev0-Default-000
	C0601 WTRDETAIL2015
	C0602 SANDETAL 2015 v10-Model - B&W
	C0603 PATH DETAIL 2014
	c0604 rev0-Default-000

	ELEVATIONS

	MUPUD 18044.pc2
	MUPUD 18044 resolution PC approval
	Newton Park MUPUD Resubmittal Package Letter 11192018
	1a - Newton Park MUPUD Site Plan - Sheet 1  11192018
	1c - Newton Park MUPUD Storm Water Management Plan - Sheet 3  11192018
	2c - Newton Park Building Setback at Single Family Homes - Updated Plan 11192018
	2d - Newton Park Building Setback at Single Family Homes - Original Plan 11192018
	3c - Newton Park Colored Site Amenities Plan 11192018
	3d - Newton Park M78 Tree Berm Plan 11192018
	3f - Newton Park Townhome Tree Berm Plan 11192018
	3g - Newton Park Clubhouse Tree Berm Plan 11192018
	Sierra Ridge Preliminary Plat
	SUP 18091.pc2
	SUP 18091 resolution PC approval
	CR 18133.pc1 with attachments
	CR 18133.pc1
	CR 18133 res to approve
	Malcangi Section 61 Application
	Memo to planning commission Section 61 Review Malcangi
	2018 Land Preserve Map Section 61 Malcangi
	Malcangi Property with Wetland

	Revised site plan 11-9-18 with new pages.pdf
	18400890-CP1-C-100
	18400890-CP1-SURVEY-BASE-C-201
	18400890-CP1-SURVEY-BASE-C-202
	18400890-CP1-SURVEY-BASE-C-203
	18400890-CP1-C-205
	1841_A1-0 COMPOSITE FLOOR PLAN
	Sheets
	A1.0 - COMPOSITE FLOOR PLAN


	1841_A2-1 EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS
	Sheets
	A2.1 - EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS


	1841_A2-2 EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS
	Sheets
	A2.2 - EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS






